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“EXCLUSIVE CONTENT
IS THE POWER ENGINE FOR
EVERYTHING WE DO IN

THETOTAL VIDEO UNIVERSE”




KEY FIGURES

SHARE PRICE PERFORMANGE o1/01/2016 - 31/12/2016
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RTI. Group share price development for January to December 2016
based on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange {Xetra) against MDAX,
Euro Stoxx 600 Media and ProSiebenSat1
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CONTENT

4.5%
PLATFORM REVENUE 4.1%

‘—— RADIO ADVERTISING

RTL Group Revenue Spiit
In 2016, TV advertising accounted for 48.0 per cent of RTL Group’s total
revenue, making the Group one of the mast diversified groups when
it comes to revenue. Cantent represented 21.2 per cent of the total, while
greater exposure to fast-growing digital revenue streams and higher
margin platform revenue will further imprave the mix.
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ABOUT
RTL GROUP

RTL Group is a leader across broadcast,
content and digital, with interests in

60 television channels and 31 radio
stations, content production throughout
the world, and rapidly growing digital
video businesses.

The television portfolio of Europe’s largest
broadcaster inciudes RTL Television in
Germany, M6 in France, the RTL channels in
the Netherlands, Belgium, Luxembourg,
Croatia and Hungary, and Antena 3 in Spain.

The Group also operates the channels

RTL CBS Entertainment and RTL CBS Extreme
in Southeast Asia. RTL Group’s families

of TV channels are either the number one or
number two in eight European countries.

The Group’s flagship radio station

is RTL in France, and it also owns or has
interests in other stations in France,
Germany, Belgium, the Netherlands, Spain
and Luxembourg.

RTL Group’s content production arm,
FremantleMedia, is one of the largest
international creators, producers and
distributors of multi-genre content cutside
the US. With operations in 31 countries,
FremantleMedia’s comprehensive

global network is responsible for around
12,000 hours of programming broadcast

a year and distributes over 20,000 hours
of content worldwide.

Combining the catch-up TV services of

its broadcasters, the multi-channel networks
BroadbandTV, StyleHaul and Divimove as
well as FremantleMedia’s 260 YouTube
channels, RTL Group has become the leading
European media company in online video.

RTL Group also owns majority stakes in
the programmatic video advertising
platforms, SpotX and Smartclip.
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Chief Executives’ report

EXGLUSIVE CONTENT — -

THE POWER ENGINE I
THE TOTAL VIDED UNIVERSE |

GUILLAUME DE POSCH

“WE’RE TRANSFORMING RTL GROUP INTO
A GLOBAL LEADER IN VIDEO PRODUCTION,
AGGREGATION AND MONETISATION”

—




Chief Executives’ report

Following a series of investments into online videc and digital advertising, digital has become arapidly
growing third pillar of RTL Group'sbusiness. We talked to Anke Schéaferkordtand

Guillaume de Posch about RTL Group’s financial performance in 2016,

its growth strategy, the importance of editorial independence,

and how RTL Group is shaping the ‘total video’

environment globally.

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT

“WE HAVE THE FINANGIAL MEANS
FOR FURTHER INVESTMENTS,
FUELLING DUR GROWTH STRATEGY”

S ® o
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Chief Executives’ report

How did RTL Group perform in 20167
GUILLADKE DE POSGH; 2016 was another record year for RTL Group. We
registered high revenue growth, resuiting in consolidated revenue
of €6,237 million. Operating profit also reached a new all-time high,

L l"_TI MATEI_Y IT Is N[IT thanks to a higher EBITA contribution from Germany and a positive

- G M6. | , thi iti -
ONLY ABOUT VIDED VIEWS, &roo: v~ amounting to €42 miton ~wen s o e settament.
BUT AB"“T THE AH"_ITY of the M8 Mobile contract, which more than compensated for
the i t of high i ts for the Uefa E 2016
Tu M “ N ETISE THE M ” Iiv: Ibmrs:gc:stsl.gMee:as\rf?r%:,n;:l:gGizzse (I:;B :nd T\na;dil;r:gruppe

GUILLAUME DE POSCH

“TV stands for total video”
Anke Schiferkordt
and Guillaume de Posch
spoke about the
rapidly gchanging TV husiness
at the Bertelsmann
Management Meeting 2016

RTL Deutschland saw a year-end rally in TV advertising in December.

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT: Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland generated
another record profit, for the fifth year in a row. Despite strong
cornpetition from the public channels broadcasting the Uefa Euro
2016 and the Olympic Games, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland's channels recorded
a stable combined audience share in the target group. RTL Plus, launched on
4 June 2016, was our most popular channel launch of the past few years.

What does this mean for your shareholders?
ANKE SCHAFERKORDT: We are a very cash-generative business, which allows us to make
attractive dividend payments to our shareholders. The ordinary dividend for the
financial year 2016 is €3.00 per share. Combined with the interim dividend of €1.00
paid in September 2016, this brings the total dividend for 2016 to €4.00 per share.
Based on the average share price at the Frankfurt Stock Exchange for the full year
2018, this represents a dividend yield of 5.4 per cent — once again, among the best
in class in Europe. Having said that, we still have the financial means for further
investments, fuelling our growth strategy.

But you just decided not to exercise the call option for
BroadbandTV. How does that fit in?
GUILLAUME DE PESCH: First of all, let’s not forget that RTL Group owns 51 per cent
of BroadbandTV and is the controlling shareholder. This is still the case for
now, while we review our strategic options together with the Broadband TV minority
shareholders. This doesn't change our digital strategy. BroadbandTV was our
ground-breaking, significant investment in online video back in 2013 and we are
very proud of what the BBTV management and teams have achieved in the
past three and a half years. Since then, the company has been a driving force for
our digital ambitions - especially if you look at the number of online video views
RTL Group generates among the millennials. Now, we have reached a point
where we need to decide how to best develop this rapidly growing asset. That's
why we've decided - together with the Broadband TV minority shareholders -
to evaluate all strategic options for BroadbandTV, We aim to finish this evaluation
process during 2017.

In March 2015 you announced you wanted to generate

10 per cent of RTL Group’s total revenue from digital within

three to five years. How is this progressing?
ANKE SCHAFERKORDT: 1f vou look at the competition, you'll notice that some of the other
piayers in the market come up with digital revenue shares that are a little higher than
ours, but if you take a closer look, you'll see that our definitions differ fundamentally.
RTL Group’s digital revenue includes only pure digital revenue: no home shopping,
no e-commerce and no platform revenue for digital TV. if you apply this definition
to all players, we're in a reasonably comfortable position. Our digital revenue grew
by 32 per cent in 2016. With currently €670 million in revenue, digital is truly a
dynamic third pillar for RTL Group and makes up 10.7 per cent of our total revenue.
We have reached this goal much faster than criginally expected. We will aim for

RTL Group Annual Report 2016



Chief Executives' report

further growth in digital, with the target of generating at least 15 per cent of our total
revenue from digital within the next three to five years.

How do you plan to achieve that?
GUILEAUME DE POSCH: Looking at online video views — RTL Group generated 274 billion
online video views in 2018 — we are already one of the leading online video
companies globally, in particular in the YouTube ecosphere. But it is important to
understand that ultimately it is not only about video views, but about the ability to
monetise them. There is still a big gap in value between a view on our broadcasters'
catch-up TV services such as 6play or TV Now, which feature premium long-form
content, and a view on YouTube which is more short form. Having achieved
significant global reach in online video, we will now focus more and mare on
monetising this reach. This is also why we invested in SpotX, We aim te become
one of the leading partners for the advertising industry, offering an inventory that
covers all the different programming segments from short-form video to premium
long-form content.

ANHE SCHAFERKDROT: Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland acquired Smartclip in 2016.

The company fits in with this strategy in two distinct ways. Firstly, it has substantially
boosted our video inventory, because Smartclip currently aggregates the output

of 750 publishers, most of whom produce short-form content. Secondly, there’s the
technological factor: Smartclip is a strong player in connected TV, which is an
up-and-coming ared, and we are very happy with Smartclip’s development in 2016.
The company scored a solid double-digit million revenue figure and, even more
importantly, operates profitably. In January 2017, we made another investment and
acquired 39 per cent of Q Division, an expert in data handling.

Why is data a real topic for a TV company?
ANKE SCHAFERKARDT: in the age of digitisation, the role of 'big data’ — in the form of
cookies, clusters or cross-device analytics - is becoming ever-more prominent.
Indeed, the aggregation and exploitation of data is increasingly important
for media companies such as RTL Group, their advertising clients and ultimately
the consumer. Accordingly, in July 2016, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland created
a new role of '‘Head of Smart Data’, who reports directly to the Chief Strategy Officer.

What is RTL Group's response to the rapidly growing

non-linear viewing of long-form content = mostly via streaming

services, which often operate on an international level?
ANKE SCHAFERKERDT: Today, we clearly recognise that pay platforms such as Netflix or
Amazon Prime are gaining in popularity. There is a simple reason for this: these
services offer attractive price points for their pay offers, in particular in countries
with high pay-TV penetration. Consumers in the US pay around $ 100 per month
for their cable bundle, while Netflix charges — for an advertising-free service - $9.99
for its standard offer. This is fundamentally different in most European countries.
But of course, we have intensively analysed our opportunities in the field
of 8YOD, subscription video-on-demand. For our broadcasters across Europe,
we see interesting business opportunities for hybrid models, consisting of a free,
advertising-funded service and a paid, premium content bundle - offering
the programmes of our linear TV channels plus licensed content from third parties.
Regardless of how we will further develop the business models of our non-linear
services, one thing is more than certain: content, or more specifically, exclusive
content, is the power engine for all our offers in the ‘total video universe'.

GUILLAUME DE POSCH: Streaming platforms also represent an opportunity for
FremantleMedia. Take, for example, American Gods, the ambitious fantasy seres
based on the popular novel by Neill Gaiman. The series was largely financed

in the US by our client, Starz. Outside the US, the series found a worldwide client,

RTL Group Arnual Repart 2016

tn April 201§,
Guillaume de Posch held
a keynote speech at Mip TV in
Cannes explaining why
TV nowadays is more than just
a device in the living room

“RTL PLUS, LAUNCHED ON
4 JUNE 2018, WAS
QUR MOST POPULAR

CHANNEL LAUNGH
OF THE PAST FEW YEARS”

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT



“Digitisation has changed
the industry”
Anke Schiferkordt at
TretfPunkt IHK Bielefald in
November 2016

Chief Executives’ report

“*ALWAYS GLOSE TO THE AUDIENCE’
— THIS IS AND WILL REMAIN ONE OF
OUR NEY MISSIONS AT RTL GRGUP”

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT

Amazon Prime Video, to which we sold the rights to more than
200 territories. Deutschland 86, the sequel to Deutschiand 83,
will also be produced in collaboration with Amazon. To be
prepared for this opportunity, FremantleMedia made some
targeted acquisitions, fuelling the creative pipeline -~ and it is
starting to pay off. The Young Pope, for example, starring
Jude Law and directed by Paolo Sorrentine, is produced by
FremantleMedia’s newly acquired company Wildside. And we
see yet another trend: if you look at the market, you can see
that more and more stars are changing from working for
cinema blockbuster productions only to working on television
series — both on and off camera. Coming back to The Young
Pope: it's unlikely that Jude Law or Paolc Sorrentino would
have worked for TV 15 years ago.

In June, you presented a new mission statement, Can you

tell us something about that?

GUILLRUME DE POSEE: The old mission statement gave a really accurate description

of RTL Group's key mission of ten or 15 years ago. Back then, we had a clear focus
oh geographic expansion in the broadcast business. But a lot has changed in a
decade, especially in our industry. Five years ago, we were not invested in any multi-
channel network nor in advertising technology. Today, digital makes up more than
10 per cent of our revenue! In effect, we're transforming a European entertainment
network into a global leader in video production, aggregation and monetisation.
That's the only way we’re going to write the next chapter in RTL Group’s success
story — and the new mission statement is all about capturing our ambition.

The words 'independence’ and 'diversity’ really stand
out in the new mission statement. How important is editorial

independence at RTL Group?
ANNE SCHEFERKORIT: Editorial and journalistic independence are deeply rooted in all
of our news organisations. Senior management doesn't interfere with the
independence of our editorial personnel. This is especially crucial in times of ‘fake
news’ and ‘filter bubbles’. Yes, there has always been fake news, across all media
genres. With this, | mean news stories which simply weren’t true. However, one
aspect of the public debate has changed significantly. Today, some people attack
the media as being fake news themselves, resenting established news brands as
part of an elitist, out-of-touch establishment — and this is a concern in many countries.
| don’t believe that we will get anywhere by demanding that Faceboak checks
every single post or that governments decide what'’s right or wrong. In times like
these, it's our responsibility as media companies not only to remain independent,
but also to report factually and truthfully and to ultimately keep and regain the
audience’s trust. Let me be very clear: we are not in the business of lecturing
our viewers and listeners. We have to take their concerns very seriously. ‘Always
close to the audience’ is. and will remain. onte of our ey missicns at RTL Group.

RTL Group Annual Report 2016



Chief Executives’ report

Facebook is one of the dominant players in the digital

advertising market. How do you prepare for the competition

from the US tech giants?
GUILLAUME DE POSCH: First of all, we're not afraid of competition, but we want the
same rules for everyone. Our ‘total video® industry is highly attractive, with
many US giants placing big bets an expansion into video. Many of these players
are using their state-of-the-art technology and massive consumer data to develop
sophisticated advertising offers — currently for online services, but probably
also for linear TV in the near future. To succeed in an ever more competitive world,
there’s the need for a level piaying field. The proposed revisions to European
legistation by the European Commission are a step in the right direction, helping to
adapt the fegal framework to recent changes. A few more steps are desirable,
as this might be the last opportunity for a long time to create the right framework to
nurture, develop and grow the media groups ‘made in Europe’.

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT: in parallel, we are preparing ourselves by investing in advertising
technology and exploring new partnerships. In 2016, we announced Ad Alliance,

a new advertising offer in Germany in collaboration with Gruner + Jahr, which
started in January 2017, There’s a high demand from advertising clients to
showcase their brands in cross-media campaigns. But they're alsc very interested
in automation. For this reason, both advertising sales houses are likewise interested

in technology in general, and programmatic advertising sales in particular. When In June 2016, Anke Schaterkordt
developing technologies, it makes a great deal of sense to work logether across ~ and G“'""‘“"‘e,d" Posch
RTL Gr nd with external partners, sin le yvields are distingt competitiv disgussed the Group’s opportunities
oup and with external partners, since scale yields are distinct competitive and challenges in the
advantages in this connection. rapidly changing total video industry

at the RTL Group
Finance Meeting in Belgium

Is this trend also a driving force for the planned
combination of Groupe M6 and RTL Group’s French radio family?
GUILLAUME DE POSCH: We are an active player in shaping the media
landscape. This combination, if realised, aims to open a new,
promising chapter for RTL Radio and Groupe M6 in France as
convergence and consolidation continue to shape our industry —
not only in North America, but also across our Eurepean footprint.
We are re-organising our French TV and radio activities into
one integrated media house. This path is followed by other media
groups in France and has already been successfully achieved
in Benelux within our Group.

Does this mean that in the future, you will cover
everything from content production to programmatic
advertising and addressable TV?

GUILLAUME DE POSCH: That is exactly what our ‘total video' approach

is about. We want to focus our strategy on video as our

current core business. This is what we do best, and we want

to do it right. Professionally produced video is at the heart of

our strategy and our objective is to cover all key links in the

value chain, including its technological elements, and gaining

expertise in them so we can offer them to viewers of all ages.

“T0 SUGCEED IN AN EVER-MORE GOMPETITIVE
WORLD, THERE’S THE NEED FOR A LEVEL
PLAYING FIELD IN TERMS OF REGULATION™

GUILLAUME DE POSCH

RATL Group Annual Report 2016 11
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Our mission statement

OQUR MISSION:

WE ARE INNOVATORS WHO SHAPE
THE MEDIA WORLD ACROSS BROADCAST,
CONTENT AND DIGITAL.

WE BUILD INSPIRING ENVIRONMENTS
WHERE CREATIVE AND PIONEERING
SPIRITS CAN THRIVE.

WE CREATE AND SHARE STORIES
THAT ENTERTAIN, INFORM, AND ENGAGE
AUDIENCES AROUND THE WORLD.

WE EMBRAGE INDEPENDENCE AND
DIVERSITY IN OUR PEOPLE,
OUR CONTENT AND OUR BUSINESSES.

WE HAVE A PROUD PAST, A VIBRANT
. PRESENT AND AN EXCITING FUTURE.

}

RTL Group Annual Report 2016
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Deuvtschland sucht
den Supersiar
continues to be one
ot RTL Television's
most popular
prime-time shows*

We are
leaders across
broadcast,
content, digital

StyleHaul's Matarial Girl
gives viewers an intimate
look at the life of
recording artist Pia Mia as
she becomes the firstever
fashion director of
Madanna’s Material Girl
clothing ling




The Price is Right
first aired in

1956, making it
FremantieMedia's
oldest on-air format




OUR BUSINESS MODEL

BROADCAST

TV and radio

CONTENT PRODUCTION

What we do

FremantleMedia produces content for broadcasters and
digital platforms globally. Our broadcasters alsc make and
commission local content. We are active across most
popular genres: news, entertainment shows, drama, sports,
and factual entertainment.

How we make money

Broadcasters and digital platforms commission productions,
with a guaranteed income for producers. The production
company may also take some of the development risk, for
later reward. Global hit formats can generate additional
revenue by exploiting rights in gaming, music, merchandising
and digital activities.

What makes us different

FremantleMedia is a global content and distribution
network. We have a unique ability to roll out productions
and hit formats internationally, and turn them into globally
recognised brands. Established over a peried of time,
this model is hard to replicate.

CONTENT

production and
distribution

DIGITAL

especially
online video

THE VALUE CHAIN
OF THE ‘TOTAL VIDEO’ MARKET

AGGREGATION

What we do

TV channeis and radio stations create and schedule
programming that helps them shape their channel brands.
Rather than focusing on a single genre, our flagship channels
balance ingredients to create a general interest programming
mix. A similar concept applies with multi-channel networks
(MCNs), which aggregate attractive content into specific niches
in the digital world.

o 9 “‘Tf' L DIVIMOVE
RTL -ﬂi 57 LE ¢ -

draquband ™Y

How we make money

Advertising clients book spots in linear and non-linear
programming. The price they pay generally depends on the
reach and demographic structure of the audience they target.

What makes us different

We have a unique ability to create and promote new formalts,
refresh long-running hits, and promote major events.

We are experts in 'audience flow’, creating a programming
schedule that will reassure and attract audiences and

keep them tuned in.

RTL Group Annual Repart 2016



Maintaining
direction

The Group provides strategic
direction and financial
control, while overseeing

a broad portfolio of
autonomous businesses.
These form a decentralised,
scalable multi-region,
multi-platform business
model: television, radio

and online services with
leading market positions

in key gecgraphical
markets or thermnes.

Qur business modet

THE ROLE OF
THE GROUP

Allowing

autonomy

TV and radio are local
businesses that serve
different cultures, traditions
and markets, so each is led
by its own CEQ. This
entrepreneurial approach
ensures each business

can act quickly and flexibly
in its target market,

create its own identity,

and benefit from proximity
to its audience. It can

also build its own family

of channels to complement
its flagship channel.

DISTRIBUTION

What we do

Our aim is to offer our content wherever the audience wants

to watch it — on multiple platforms and devices. But distribution

has to follow clearly defined business rules. First, our TV
shows are never separated from our channel brands.

Secondly, we remain in control of monetisation. tn other words,

we sell advertising.

How we make money

Qur aim is tc receive a fair share of the revenue generated
by our brands and programmes on distribution platforms

Collaborating

and coordinating
Group and local management
meet regularty to share
experiences, discuss
opportunities and challenges,
develop strategies, and
collaborate across the Group,
in particular in the digital
domain where scale

is becoming ever more
important. We ensure
knowledge, expertise

and promising innovations
are rapidly shared across

our Group.

Creating

synergy

Qur Synergy Committees
{Sycos) enable relevant
experts and decision makers
to exchange best practice
and develop strategic and
operational aspects for all
key areas of our business,
such as programming, digital,
sales, radio, and news.

MONETISATION

What we do

Advertising sales is our primary revenue stream. We
provide advertisers with large audiences who are attracted

by high-quality content.

We work closely with our advertising clients to provide all types
of ad formats - not just the traditional 30-second TV
commercial, but also packages tailored to each client’s needs.

I

—

f
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such as cable network operators, satellite companies and
internet TV providers. These services include high-definition
TV channels, on-demand platforms and digital pay channels.
Qur platform revenue is growing fast. It already accounts

for 4.5 per cent of RTL Group's total revenue, and there is

potential for this to grow.
o K3 You D)

L obeDemaum
What makes us different
The various platform operators need must-see content and
strong brands - this is exactly what we offer.

What makes us different

Advertising in audio-visual content has become very
technaology-driven, as digital advertising sales are much more
fragmented and complex than in traditional broadcast. We are
very early investors in the programmatic technology that
automates the advertising sales process.

RTL Group Annual Report 2016



1/COMPETITION

As video offers become ever more
ubiquitous, the television market
continues to undergo fragmentation.
Lower barriers to entry make
launching new linear TV channels
easier than in the past. This
fragmentation results in increasing
competition for viewing time

and audience — both linear and non-
linear. Above all, fragmentation of
audiences and devices in the digital
world makes it more challenging

to generate mainstream hits —
blockbuster formats that reach mass
audiences. But this also means

that successful formats and exclusive
content become more valuable.

2/ CONVERGENCE

Rapid technological developments

in devices have changed user
behaviour in recent years, and led to
significant business opportunities.
Smartphone and tablet sales are

on the rise. The highly anticipated
media convergence is already a
reality on these devices. Accordingly,
TV no longer stands for television
alone - it also stands for ‘total video’.

For advertising-financed content,
the key question is: how do you
measure, and ultimately monetise,
mobile, second-screen and other
alternative viewing habits?
Advertisers crave better multiscreen
measurement and targeting. Given
the fragmented markets, and the
ageing society, where young target
groups are increasingly consuming
video on a non-linear basis, there
is a need to measure and compare
success on all devices,

UR STRATEGY

FOUR KEY TRENDS SHAPING RTL GROUP’S STRATEGY

3/COMPLEXITY

4 /CONSOLIDATION

Digitisation also increases the
importance of technology — whether
for aggregating content or for
advertising sales. For example, a
multi-channel network (MCN) needs
user guidance, a recommendation
engine and thumbnail optimisation,
just as a linear TV channel needs
perfect audience flow. Establishing
high reach online translates

into aggregating a number of small
networks - this also leads to a
more fragmented way of selling
advertising, namely tech and data
driven programmatic ad sales,

with an increasing number of
intermediate players between the
advertisers and publishers.

Additionally, TV shows and films
are increasingly available on more
services and devices, leading to

a higher number of rights windows,
which need to be considered or

acquired. Producers and rights owners

may also extract additional value
from catalogue and library ¢ontent.

FremantleMedia continu

acclaimed set
Keator and

RTL Group Annual Report 2016

In recent years, the media industry
moved more towards consclidation —
in broadcast, content and digital.

In the media market some of the
biggest mergers are being proposed:
AT&T and Time Warner announced
plans for a merger, Liberty Global is
actively investing in the European
markets, as is Discovery, while 21st
Century Fox agreed to buy Sky. In
Content, Endemol merged with Shine
and FremantieMedia acquired several
smaller production companies. In
France, RTL Group plans to combine
its radio and TV assets under the
Groupe M6 urnbrella. In digital, the
market is dominated by Google and
Facebook who have already proved
that they have the financial fire power
needed to make acquisitions across
the board. In order to compete

with the increasing competition from
overseas, a level playing field is
needed throughout Europe in terms
of regulation.




Qur strategy

THREE PRIORITIES FOR LONG-TERM GROWTH

What we said

“Finding the new hits — both big
and small - is a shared priority
for both our broadcasters and our
content production arm,
FremantleMedia.”™’

“We have to develop our own
formats because they strengthen
the channel brand and, most
importantly, command exclusivity
in the marketplace.™

d bes
lle TV F

“Strengthening the creative pipeline
= and ultimately improving the profit
margin - of FremantleMedia requires
targeted investments in new talents,
genres and geographical areas.”™

“Increasing creative diversity - both

organically and through acquisition -
is FremantleMedia’s top priority.™

Further investments in live events and

¢ sports rights; M6 broadcast 11 matches
of the Uefa Euro 2016 champlionship

i and RTL Television signed a new
agreement to broadcast the European

{ Qualifiers until 2022

| wildside produced the highly
i acclaimed The Young Pope for HBO,
i Sky and Canal Plus

. FremantleMedia North America produced
: American Gods for pay-TV charnel
. Starz. It will also be available on Amazon

In 2016, FremantleMedia increased its
i margin to 7.3 per cent

1/ CREATE MUST-SEE TV

e

: What we achieved

Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland signed
i adeal with NBC Universal for the
development of US procedural dramas
as they consistently generate higher

{ ratings than serialised dramas on free-TV !
channels in Europe. In November 2016,
! Gone was announced as the first drama
from this partnership

-

{ What's next

Further strengthen the development of
i local fiction and factual entertainment
formats {for example: Vox has

: commissioned a third season of locat

fiction series Club der roten Bander)

! UFA Fiction will produce Deutschiand 86
in collaboration with Arnazon Prime

i Video and RTL Television ~

Groupe MG praduced Glacé, — a six-part

i thriller, broadcast in January 2017 — which
* attracted an audience share of 16.0 per :
: cent in the commercial target group

Vox broadcast the second season of

its first commissioned drama series,

: Club der roten Bénder, with an average
audience cf 14.0 per cent (channel
average: 6.8 per cent) and 37.7 per cent
amaong women aged 14 to 29

i In 2016, FremantieMedia invested in:
: = Abot Hameiri (51%)

. = Dr Pluto (25%)

i = Wild Blue Media (25%)

i = Darcing Ledge (25%)

! to be shown in 2018

i FremantleMedia continues its strategy
to pursue bolt-on acquisitions and talent
i deals (short to medium term)

Increase the profit margin of
i FremantleMedia back to 10 per cent

¢ until 2020

¢ FremantleMedia's Euston Films to

i produce Hard Sun for BBC One

Prime Video in more than 200 territories

i and Hulu — a pre-apocalyptic crime
 drama set in contemporary London

. FremantleMedia North America has

. entered into an exclusive, multi-yzar first

RTL Group Annual Repert 2016

look agreement with award-winning
. author Neil Gaiman to adapt any of his

novels for television



Qur strategy

2/ GROW AUDIENCES

e -/ »

What we said . What we achieved | What's next
“We always want to be where our FremantleMedia continued its push Capture the growth of long and
audiences are - and so we want ¢ into digital. by: i short-form non-linear usage at least
RTL Group to become a global force = founding dedicated digital studios short to medium term
in online video."”® such as the Dutch TinyRiot!

: w increasing its stake in the leading u Expand distribution of RTL Group’s

European MCN, Divimove catch-up TV services
u |nvest in digital content by building
RTL Il started its digital video offering, and buying non-linear brands to
: RTL Il You, available 24/7 for linear attract young audiences
¢ and on-demand viewing on PC, smart = Explore possible hybrid models for

TV and all mobile devices i VOD services

i StyleHaul launched new verticals for ¢ Focus on marketable reach in
men and millennial mums i online video

BroadbandTV extended its
partnership with the NBA

“We continue to pursue opportunities | New linear TV channels launched Invest into attractive and complementary
to solidify our market position and in 2016: broadcast assets (short to medium term)
to expand and strengthen our family i m RTL Plus and Toggo Plus in Germany

of channels portfolio in order to drive = RTL Croatia World Further grow audience shares of recently
growth and address the opportunities launched channels such as RTL Plus,

of market fragmentation.” ¢ In Germany, RTL Plus became the most RTL Nitro, 6ter

successful channel launch in recent
¢ years, reaching an audience share of
: 0.9 per cent in December 2016

1annel RTL Plus offers
n entertaining programme mix

20 RTL Group Annual Report 2016



Qur strategy

3/CAPTURE THE VALUE OF DIGITAL

What we said

e

i What we achieved

>

What’'s next

“To better monetise our rapidly
growing digital reach will require
new skills and resources - skills like :
aggregation and producticn of
short-form video, and in advertising
technology.”®

D smar’rclip

Mediengruppe RTL Deutschiand
i acquired Smartclip, one of the

most innovative European companies

i in online video advertising

i SpotX continued its product development
i and formed partnerships with

leading tech platforms and clients

Converge advertising sales and build

i new offers (including the rebranding

i and strategic realignment of RTL Group’s
international sales hause 1P Network

i in2017)

i Continued investment in product
: development at SpotX, for example into

i connected TV products {short-term) Q

i Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland
i invests in data specialist Q division

OIVISICN

“Increasing competition in the digital
world calls for closer co-operation

across RTL Group, to give our global
advertising clients the best service.”®

RTL Group pians to combine Groupe M6
i and RTL Radio (France) and market both
: with a new, fully integrated sales house

Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland and

: Gruner + Jahr announced the

collaboration in the area of advertising
sales. To this end, the sales houses

IP Deutschland and Gruner + Jahr e|MS
have formed the Ad Alliance

i Manage and measure cross-screen
i video usage (short-term)

Transfer pragrammatic model from
¢ onfine video into OTT and Connected TV
i {short to medium term)

Closer collaboration between the
Group's ad tech businesses to build che
i Integrated platform

“We are confident that these digital
businesses will reach such scale over
the next three years that they witl
become ohe of the growth drivers of
RTL Group’s total revenue.”?

In 2016, RTL Group's digital
revenue’? increased by 31.9 per cent

| to €670 million

FremantleMedia signed deals with

Amazon for American Gods and

“With our financial strength, it

is our ambiticn to continue to grow
RTL Group over the forthcoming
years — to transform the leading
European entertainment network into
a global force in video production,
aggregation and monetisation.”"

“Within the next three to five years,
digital revenue should make up at least
10 per cent of our total revenue”*?

the production of Deuischiand 86

In 20186, RTL Group's digital revenue

made up 10.7 per cent of the Group’s

total revenue

RTL Group Annual Report 2016

RTL Group expects its digital revenue
will continue to grow strongly

* by dauble-digit rates in 2017

RTL Group expects FremantleMedia’s
digital revenue to increase by double-
digit rates, thanks to partnerships
with Amazon Prime Video and full
consolidation of Divimove

Grow digital revenue to at least 15 per
cent of the Group’s total revenue within
the next three to five years

21
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Ad tech

MONETISATION OF “TOTAL VIDEQ’

With a healthy business in the bank, the prospects for
players in the production, aggregation and monetisation of
professicnally produced video content remain favourable.
People watch more video than ever — wherever they are,
whenever they want, and on all kinds of devices. There's
no doubt about it: video will continue to be the dominant
advertising genre in the future. But trying to understand
the new types of advertising sales in the ‘total video’
environment, can make your head spin. There are a lot of
technical terms in the market — especially around advertising
technology. What used to be a rather simple process in
linear TV -~ a negotiation between the advertiser or media
agency on the one hand and the advertising sales house
on the other — can become surprisingly complicated in the
world of tech and data-driven digital advertising sales.

The main reason: more and more players have established
themselves in the value chain between media owners

and advertisers — from trading desks and monetisation
platforms to ad servers and companies specialising in
data optimisation and targeting. As a consequenca,

RTL Group has made & series of investments into tech-
driven advertising sales across all devices, from online

via mobile and over-the-top devices’ into linear TV. The key
strategic goals: offering advertisers all solutions from
within RTL Group, remaining independent from third-party
platforms and thus being able to better monetise the
Group's revenue potential in the rapidly growing markets
for digital video advertising.

k3

P,

NON-LINEAR

PROGRAMMATIC
VIDEO AD
SERVING

SPOT

RTL GROUP

THE PERFECT MATCH

CROS3-SCREEN
OPTIMISATION

)

While linear television remains the only medium to reach mass
audiences on a daily basis, digital video advertising enables
advertisers to connect their message to an engaged audience,
which can be enhanced by the use of technology and data.
The main difference: targeting individual users or target groups
instead of broad reach.

How does this work? An ad request to a holistic platform such
as SpotX is initiated when the publisher's content is about ta be
displayed for a viewer. Advertisers have the opportunity to

play their video ad to the user through the SpotX platform. If the
initiaf ad call data matches with the parameters and price set
up by the media owner and advertiser, SpotX delivers the ad.
For a fully integrated publisher, this whole process ideally

takes less than 500 milliseconds before the ad is played, so the
user experience is unaffected.

SpotX is aligned closely with the media owner throughout the
process, helping publishers, who seek to monetise their
inventory. The company has to make sure that the platformis
effectively integrated into the publisher’s inventory as
seamlessly as possible, because missed impressions also
mean missed revenue.

In summary, programmatic advertising fulfills two main goals:
a) find the perfect match between adverliser and user and

b} find the perfect price for both advertiser and publisher.
This process takes place behind every video screen — from
desktop to mobile and increasingly to connected TV.

®
! a
LINEAR
____..____._____________.____.______.____.._........................................_..)
aTT PROGRAMMATIC HOUSEHOLD
ADDRESSABLE LINEAR TV LEVEL TARGETING

v

STILL IN
PILOT PHASE

clypd
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AD
DEGISIONING

SpotX uses a parallel
ad call to fulfill ad requests.
Here’s an explanation
of how this works.

3/ TIERING

SpotX allows publishers to assign
priority to different advertisers
through 6 tiers. Regardless of tier,
SpotX presents the ad

reguest to all tiers and advertisers
at the same time.

Ad tech

PUBLISHER

PARALLEL AD DEGISIONING STEPS

2 { PARALLEL AD CALL

v
5/ CAGHED RESPONSES

BT

6/ IMPRESSI

The winning advertiser serves the impression.
[f the winner is unable to serve the impression,

THE CHALLENGE: MAKE EVERY IMPRESSION COUNT

SpotX selects the next highest bidder

in line respecting tienng from the cached

responses to fulfil the ad request.

ocAN 70 LEARN

@ 7R
;"gg'!ﬂ%

ol
3
2]

ALL ABOUT SRty

2D DECISIONING

1/ AD REQUEST
When a user arrves on
a puplisher's page,
the publisher sends an
ad requast to SpotX.

2/ PARALLEL AD CALL
The SpotX Platdorm
receives the ad requast and
calls all advertising
sources simultanecusty.

4 /BID RESPONSES
Advertisers in each tier return
their bid responses to SpotX.
Tiers override bid in the
hierarchy, but within a tier,
bid determines the winner.

5 / WINNER/
CACHED RESPONSES
SpotX rung an auction to
determine the winner,
and caches all ather
responses INn case
the winming ad is unable
to serve the impression.

u FRAUD

Ad tech companies need to ensure that potentially fraudulent
activity is reduced to a minimum. No advertiser wants to pay
a premium far a non-existent audience, generated by bots

® BRAND SAFETY

it's vital that ads are placed in the correct environment

& USER EXPERIENCE

extended buffering times

CONVERGENT MEASUREMENT

The implementation of advertising technology should not
negatively impact the user experience, for example with

Total net reach of a video advertising campaign is still hard

to quantify acress all screens. Both Arbeftsgemeinschaft
Fernsehfarschung {Committee for TV Research) in

Germany and Mediamétrie in France have developed hybrid
systems that integrate catch-up TV and four-screen
television measurement, based on both panels and big data

RTL Group Annual Repart 2018
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ENSURING INDEPENDENCE, EMBRACING DIVERSITY

News, views,
information,
entertainment:
RTL Group
content
is available
when and where
you want it.




WE BELIEVE...

video is the most complete medium. It engages our mind and speaks to our heart.

It reminds us of our past and creates visions of what our future might ook like.

It captures aur attention and spurs our imagination. There simply is no better

way to tell stories. Since our first radio broadcast in 1924, and into the video and
digital ages, our aim has always been to entertain and inform people. We also

strive to engage audiences around the world. These three functions - to entertain,
inform, and engage ~ constitute our role in society.

ln 2016, we adopted a new mission statement, which defines who we are, what

we do and what we stand for. This new mission statement reflects our understanding
of our role in society and guides us in our daily work. It includes a commitment to
embrace independence and diversity in our people, our content and our businesses.
This demonstrates that Corporate Responsibility is integral to our mission.

ON THE FOLLOWING PAGES, WE DESCRIBE OUR EFFORTS
TO MEET THIS COMMITMENT TO OUR MAIN STAKEHOLDERS:

VIEWERS, LISTENERS AND
DIGITAL USERS

Every day, millions of people access RTL Group’s cantent
on television, radio and digital piatforms. We have a tong
and proud history of setting new standards in our industry,
and of creating and sharing stories that entertain, inform
and engage audiences around the world. We've never
strayed from our commitment to be “refreshingiy different
and “always close to the audience™. And we've grown
our business by covering events and issues that people
care about.

A vibrant, varied and high-quality broadecast and internet
landscape is an important enabling factor for democratic,
diverse and connected societies. The millions of pegple,
who turn to us each day for the latest local, national

and internaticnal news need to be able to trust us. Our
commitment to independence and diversity in our

u

content enables us to maintain a journalistic balance that
reflects the diverse opinions of the societies we serve.

In keeping with this commitment, our local CECs act as
publishers and don't interfere in the sefection or production
of content, which is the exclusive responsibility of the
editors-in-chief.

Since the early 1990s, we’ve been building families of

TV channefs, radio stations and digital pfatforms. They offer
our audiences an extremely broad range of high-quality
entertainment and infecrmational programmes that can be
enjoyed by people of all demographics and circumstances.
Because of our befief in inclusive, barrier-free television,
last year we increased our subtitled programming in
Germany by over 60 per cent, offering a far greater choice
for hearing impaired viewers.

RTL Group Annual Repart 2016
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THE CREATIVE COMMUNITY

A central aspect of our mission is to build inspiring
environments where creative and pioneering spirits can
thrive. Our broadcasters commission content from
production companies, and our own production company,
FremantleMedia, commissions scriptwriters, artists,

and many other creatives. Buying a TV programme from

EVERY YEAR, RTL GROUP
INVESTS €2 BILLION
IN EUROPE’S CREATIVE

COMMUNITY
15.2% —
RTL GROUP'S
BROADCASTERS'
PROGRAMME

SPEND IN 2016*

*based on fully
conselidated businesses

25.3%

a production company or creating one ourselves involves
a substantial investment. Our ability to recoup this
investment is founded on our exclusive right to show
and distribute the programme in a particular geographic
area. Successful programmes attract large audiences,
which, in turn, attracts advertisers who pay us to show
their commercials. This cycle ensures production
companies and other creators are suitably rewarded, so
they can continue to develop new, entertaining and
compelling content.

Maintaining the integrity of this cycle is crucial. That’s
why copyright is the lifeblood of our industry. Effective
protection and enforcement of intellectual property
rights are particularly indispensable in a digital world,
where people can watch whatever they want, wherever
they want, whenever they want. Without this protection
and enforcement, the rewards to creators would
dwindle, as would their creativity. Our unwavering
commitment to copyright is therefore one important way
we add value to society.

u Loecat productions
News. magazines and sports
& Acquired programming
(mainly US content)
u QOther programming costs

N— 22.2%

ADVERTISERS

No advertising is more effective than
television commercials, TV reaches
mass audiences, which is why it
remains the dominant ingredient in the
advertising mix. TV communicates the
main message of a major advertising
campaign. This message then
resonates across other media, such as
radio, newspapers, magazines and
onling. We've taken a variety of steps
to expand our position in the rapidly
growing online video advertising
market. One of them was to acquire, in
March 2016, Germany-based
Smartclip, a pacesetter in this market.
Smartclip integrates and delivers an
online video advertising inventory of
700 publishers worldwide to all types
of connected devices. The acquisiticn
offers opportunities for innovatiaon in
cooperation with SpotX, RTL Group's
programmatic video advertising
platform, which was acquired in 2014.

RTL Group Annual Report 2016

Television and video commercials work
best when they tell interesting,
informative stories that grab viewers
emotionally. Together, high-quality
programming and engaging
commercials form the basis for
successful free-to-air broadcasting.
Each day, more than 100 million
viewers watch our free-TV channels,
which are financed mainly through
advertising. A recent study by Deloitte,
published in January 2017, estimates
that each euro spent on advertising
generates up to seven euros of GDP

in the EU economy. Advertising helps
shape people’s lifestyles, guide their
purchasing decisions and keep the
wheels of commerce turning. It

also fosters media plurality, which is
essential in a democratic society.

A Europe without advertising would be
less affluent, less informed and iess
competitive,




OUR PEOPLE

Our business is a people business, built on the creativity
and dedication of our employees. To reward them, we affer
attractive salaries and other financial incentives. We foster
a supportive and inspiring work environment and conduct
talent-management and successicn-planning programmes.
We also provide a wide range of opportunities for

our people to develop personally and professionally, to
advance their careers, and to maintain a healthy work-

life balance. Our efforts haven’t gone unnoticed. In 20186,
Randstad named RTL Group the most atiractive employer in
Luxembourg for the third year running, and RTL Belgium
the most attractive employer in Brussels. To remain

an attractive employer and a successful media company,
it's important we reflect the audiences we entertain, and

embrace workplace diversity in gender, ethnicity, disability
and socio-economic status. We’re committed to equal
opportunities. We strive to recognise each individual's
unigue value, and treat everyone at our company with
courtesy, honesty and dignity. Harassment, bullying, and
intimidation are strictly prohibited. In 2016, we reinforced
our commitment to equal opportunities and non-
discrimination in a new Diversity Statement, which we
expect all RTL Group companies to comply with.

Qur management approach is decentralised. This enables
each company to respond to its particular market, develop
its own identity and be close to its audience - a crucial
success factor in our industry. Yet our markets — despite
their differences — also have some characteristics in
common. So whenever it makes sense, we work together
across the Group, share best practices, and learn from one
another - for example, in the RTL Group Synergy
Committees (Sycos). These have become one of the major :
platforms for sharing information and knowledge across our
deceniralised organisation. The Sycos comprise executives
and experts from RTL Group's profit centres and the
Corporate Centre, and meet regularly on subjects such as
programming, news, radio, advertising sales and new media.

+ COMMUNITIES AND

CHARITIES

As a [eading media organisation, we're in an excellent
position to raise awareness of important sccial and
environmental issues, particularly those that might otherwise
go unreported or under-funded. In 2016, one of our drama
series in Germany began a parthership with the German
Bone Marrow Donor Centre (DKMS) ta draw attention to
blood cancers. Similarly, one of our programmes in Belgium
highilights the charitable activities of the Belgian Red Cross
and tells viewers how they can get involved.

We also harness the power of TV, radio and the internet to
raise money for charities that make a positive difference to
people’s lives. Since 1996, the annual RTL-Spendenmarathon
in Germany has raised more than €151 million for children
in need, Qur Té/évie events in Belgium and Luxembourg
have raised maore than € 162 million for scientific research

to fight cancer, particularly leukaemia, since 1989. We

also support many organisations and projects that help sick
or disadvantaged children and young people in Croatia,
Belgium, Hungary, UK, France and the Netherlands.
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THOMAS RABE

Charrman of the Board of Directars

28 RTL Group Annual Report 2018



Ghairman’s statement

RTL Group looks back on a successful
business year. In 2016, both our
revenues and EBITA rose to nhew

highs - nat least thanks to one of the
highest organic growth seen in many
years, and another record year at
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland. We
alsa made strategic progress across
the Group to become more digital,
more international, and faster growing.

Our broadcasting business once again delivered z strong
performance, first and foremost Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland,
which not only grew its revenues again, but also improved its
EBITA for the fifth consecutive year.

ih 2016, the tearn in Cologne generated higher income from TV
and digital advertising, as well as higher platform revenues.
Although big sporting avents such as the Olympic Games
and the Uefa European Football Championships were largely
shown by the public service broadcasters, our family of channels
recorded a stable audience share in the main target group of 28.4
per cent, doubling its lead over its biggest commergial competitor
to 3.1 percentage points.

Groupe M6 also had a strong year with revenues and earnings
growth, attributable to higher TV advertising revenues and a
positive effect from the gradual phase-out of the M6 Mobile
contract. Our flagship channel M6 increased its average market
share to 16.0 per cent, profiting from its broadcast of eleven
European Championship matches, which achieved an average
total audience share of close to 40 per cent.

Qutside Germany and France, our key Eurcpean TV advertising
markets mainly developed positively. This benefited our respective
families of channels, which we have expanded by launching new
channels in Germany and Croatia.

In the area of content, FremantleMedia successfully expanded
its prime-time drama business. Despite a slight dip in revenues,
FremantleMedia achieved a higher EBITA. In adgition, our
production companies celebrated a raft of creative and commercial
successes. The UFA Fiction series Deutschiand 83 inspired
audiences and critics worldwide, as did the Wildside production
The Young Pope, which premiered at the Venice Film Festival
and was rolled out in almost 200 territories by FremantleMedia
International and co-producing partners. Beyond this,
FremantleMedia tock over the production company Abot
Hameiri, and acquired holdings in Dr Plutg, Wild Blue Media, and
Dancing Ledge.

Our digital businesses made significant progress. Fuelled
by strong organic and acquisitive growth, they contributed
more than 10 per cent to RTL Group's total revenue. Their
revenue grew by 32 per cent to €670 million. The BroadbandTV,
StyleHaul and SpotX businesses bundled in the RTL Digital Hub,
all of which showed dynamic growth, were key contributors to
this. Moreover, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschiand strengthened its
position in the digital advertising sector by acquiring a majority
stake in the online video advertising sales house, Smartclip.

This progress throughout 2016 shows that the Beard of Directors
helped to initiate and supervise a multitude of measures to
further develop RTL Group along its three strategic pillars:
broadcast, cantent and digital. We intend to build on this success
in the years ahead.

“OUR CREATIVITY AND INNOVATIVE
SPIRIT HELP US ENTERTAIN,
INFORM, AND ENGAGE MILLIONS
OF VIEWERS, LISTENERS,
AND USERS AROUND THE GLOBE.”

We will do so with a changed executive management team — one
which will ensure long-term continuity in the leadership of the
Group. Anke Schaferkordt, Co-CEO of RTL Group, has decided
to focus on leading Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland and on
serving as a member of the Bertelsmann Executive Board. She
will leave our Group’s Board of Directors and Executive
Committee at her own request, with effect from the Annual
General Meeting on 19 April 2017. Bert Habets, currently GEO of
RTL Nederland, will become the new Co-CEQ of RTL Group and
will join the Group’s Executive Committee, alongside Co-CEC
Guillaume de Posch and CFO Elmar Heggen.

Together with almost 13,000 employees, we will continue
to build on RTL Group's tremendous success. The most
important foundations for continuing to be faster-growing, mere
digital, and more international, are our creativity and innovative
spirit. They help us entertain, inform, and engage millions of
viewers, listeners, and users around the globe —and | am pleased
that you are following us on this path.

e L
///Q/%.ﬁA Tk

Thomas Rabe
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ANKE SCHAFERKQRDT

Co-Chief Executive Officer
{until 19 Aprit 2017}

Anke Schéferkordt, born in 1962, holds
a degree in business administration.

She started her career at Bertelsmann

in 1988. In 1991, she moved to RTL Plus
{now RTL Television} in Cologhe, and
took over the Controlling departrment
the following year. From 1993 to 1995
she was a Director in charge of the
Corporate Planning and Controlling
division at RTL Television.

In 1995, she joined the TV broadcaster
Vox, serving as CFO and, from 1997
onwards, also as Programme Director.
From 19389 until 2005, she was CEO of
Vox. In February 2005, Anke Schéaferkordt
was appointed Chief Operating Officer
and Deputy CEQ of RTL Television,
and since September 2005, its CEO.
In November 2007, the German

RTL family of channels adopted the
corporate brand name Mediengruppe
RTL Deutschland. [n her capacity

as CEO of RTL Television, Anke
Schiferkordt is also CEO of
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland.

Since April 2012, Anke Schaferkordt

has been Co-CEQ of RTL Group.

In this capacity, she retains her role as
CEOQ of Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland.
She alsoa sits on the Executive Board

of Bertelsmann Management SE,

RTL Group’s majority shareholder.

Anke Schaferkordt was appointed
Member of the Supervisory Board of
Groupe MB as of 28 April 2015.

GUILLAUME DE POSCH

Co-Chief Executive Officer

Guillaurne de Posch, born in 1958,
started his career at the international
energy and services company Tractebel
(1985 to 1990) and then joined the
global management consutting firm
McKinsey & Company (1990 to 1993).

Guillaume de Posch began his career

in the media industry at the Compagnie
Luxembourgeocise de Télédiffusion (GLT)
as assistant to the Managing Director
{1993 to 1994} and then became Head of
CLT's TV operations in French-speaking
countries {1985 to 1997). From 1997 to
2003, he was Deputy General Manager
and Programming Director of the French
pay-TV company TPS, before joining the
publicly listed ProSiebenSatt Media AG
in August 2003, first as Chief Operating
Officer and then as Chairman of the
Executive Board and CEO (2004 to 2008).

Guillaume de Posch was appointed
Chief Operating Officer and a new
member of the RTL Group Executive
Committee on 1 January 2012.

With effect from 18 April 2012, Guillaume
de Posch assumed the role of Co-CEQ
of RTL Group.

Since 28 April 2015, Guilaume de Posch
has been Chairman of the Supervisory
Board of Groupe M6.

Nationahty: Germar
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The Board

NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

BERT HABETS

Ca-Chief Executive Cfficer
{with effect from 19 April 2017}

Bert Habets, born in 1971, holds a
Master of Economics and Law (fiscal)
from the University of Maastricht. He
joined CLT-UFA, which later became
RTL Group, in 1999 in the Business
Development unit.

In March 2001, he was appointed CFQ
of Holland Media Groep, which
rebranded as RTL Nederland in August
2004. In January 2008, Bert Habets was
appointed CEO of RTL Nederland.
Under his leadership, RTL Nederand
established a clear strategy of
strengthening the core business, while
diversifying and innovating.

It will be proposed at the AGM, to be
held on 19 April 2017, that Bert Habets
joins the RTL Group Board of Directors
as Executive Director with immediate
effect. Bert Habets is then expected to
become Co-GEQ of RTL Group.

ELMAR HEGGEN

Chef Financial Otficer and
Head of the Corporate Centre

Elmar Heggen, born in 1968, holds a
diploma in business administration from
the European Business School, and
graduated with a Master of Business
Administration (MBA) in finance.

In 1882, he started his career at the
Felix Schoeller Group, becoming Vice
President and General Manager of

Felix Schoeller Digital Imaging in the UK
in 1999, Elmar Heggen first joined the
RTL Group Corporate Centre in 2000 as

Vice President Mergers and Acquisitions.

In January 2003, he was promoted to
Senior Vice President Controlling and
Investments. From July 2003 until
December 2005 he was Executive Vice
President Strategy and Controlling.

Since January 2006, Elmar Heggen has
served on the RTL Group Executive
Management team, and since 1 October
2006 he has been CFO and Head of the
Corporate Centre of RTL Group.

Nationahty: Dutcn
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THOMAS RABE

CEO and Chairman of the Bertelsmann
Management SE Executive Board

Thomas Rabe, born in 1965, holds

a diploma and a doctorate in economics
from the University of Cologne Germany,
He started his career in 1989 at the
European Commission in Brussels.

From 19290 to 1996 he held various seniar
pasitians at Forrester Norzall & Sutton
(now White & Case) in Brussels, the state
privatisation agency Treuhandanstalt,
and a venture capital fund in Berlin.

In 1996, he joined Cedel International
(Clearstream, following the merger

with Deutsche Bdrse Clearing) where he
was appointed Chief Financial Officer
and member of the Management Board
in 1998.

In 2000, Thomas Rabe became Chief
Financial Officer and member of the
Executive Committee of RTL Group. In
March 2003, he was also appointed
Head of the Corporate Centre with
responsibility for the Luxembourgish
activities of RTL Group. With effect
from 1 January 2006, Thomas Rabe
was appainted to the Executive Board
of Bertelsmann AG as the Group’s
Chief Financial Officer. From 2006 to
2008, he was additionally responsible
for Bertelsmann AG’s music business.

Since 1 January 2012, Thomas Rabe
has been CEO and Chairman of the
Executive Board of Bertelsmann AG,
now Bertelsmann Management SE.

Nationality: Sarmanr
First appointed:
effective 1 january 27206)
Re-elected: 12 Apri 20,
Mandates in listed companes:
rinarear af tha Sopesr sy Boared
R T P
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L T il

RTL Group Annual Report 2016




32

The Board

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

THOMAS GTZ

General Counsel,
Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA

Thomas Gétz, born in 1971, graduated
from the University of Bayreuth with

a doctorate in law in 1999, A year
earlier, during his studies, he joined
Bertelsmann’s Corporate Legal
department as an in-house lawyer.
From 2009 to 2013, he was Co-Head
of Mergers and Acquisitions at
Bertelsmann. Prior ta this he worked
for two years as Senior Vice President
Mergers and Acquisitions.

Thomas Gétz has been General Counsel
at Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA since
January 2014,

ROLF HELLERMANN

Executive Vice President
Corporate Gontroling & Strategy,
Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA
Chief Financial Officer, Arvato AG

Rolf Hellermann, born in 1876, studied
business administration in Vallendar, Los
Angeles and Nancy and completed his
studies with a doctorate from the WHU ~
Otto Beisheim School of Management.

In 2004, he joined Bertelsmann’s
Corporate Controlling and Strategy
department, and in 2008 he was
appointed Vice President in charge of
corporate controlling and investment
controlling for the divisions Random
House, Arvato and Direct Group. During
his Berteismann career, Rolf Hellerrnann
has also completed postings at

RTL Group in Luxembourg and

Gruner + Jahr in Hamburg.

Since 2012, he has been EVP Corporate
Controlling & Strategy at Bertelsmann
SE & Co. KGaA. In addition to this
function he became CFQO of Arvato AG
in July 2015.

BERND HIRSGH

Executive Vice President
Corporate Chief Financial Officer {CFO}
at Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA

Bernd Hirsch, born in 1970, holds a
diploma in economics from the
University of Wiirzburg, Germany.

He started his career in 1998 at the
international audit firm Arthur Andersen
where he served as an Audit Manager.
In 2001, he joined the Carl Zeiss Group
as Head of Mergers & Acquisitions.
One year later, Bernd Hirsch was
appointed Chief Financial Officer and
member of the Executive Board at

Carl Zeiss Meditec AG.

From December 2008 until December
2015 Bernd Hirsch has been Chief
Financial Officer and member of the
Executive Board of Symrise AG.
Effective 1 April 2016, he has been
appoeinted Chief Financial Officer of
Bertelsmann SE & Co KGaA.

In December 2013 Bernd Hirsch was
appointed Member of the Supervisory
Board of Evotec AG, Hamburg, where
he currently serves as Chairman of
the Audit Committee and Vice Chairman
of the Supervisory Board.

On 20 April 2016, Hirsch was
appointed as Non-Executive Director to
RTL Group's Board of Directors for

a term of office of two years, to expire
at the end of the Ordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders ruling on the
2017 accounts.

Nananality: Genrean
First appointed: "3 ypr 125 5

Nationality: Lr
First appomted
Ratified: »™ Apn| 2715

Natignality: Goran
First appointed: 20 Aprs 20043
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BERND KUNDRUN

Business Founder
and Investor

Bernd Kundrun, born in 1957, studied
business administration at the
universities of Minster and Innsbruck. In
1984, he started his career as Execulive
Assistant at the Bertelsmann Club.

In 1993, he was appointed Chairman

of the Management Board of the
Bertelsmann Club,

In 1994, Bernd Kundrun became
Managing Director of Premiere Medien in
Hamburg. He was appointed a member
of the Executive Board of Gruner + Jahr
in August 1997 and was responsible

for the company’s newspaper division
until 31 October 2000.

From November 2000 to 6 January 2009,
Bernd Kundrun was Chairman of

Gruner + Jahr's Executive Board and the
company’s CEQ. During this time, he
was also a member of the Executive
Board of Bertelsmann. Since February
2009, Bernd Kundrun has been partner
of the online donation platform
Betterplace.org and since 2015 he is the
Honorary Chairman of the Supervisory
Board of Gut.org.

At the end of 2009, Bernd Kundrun
founded the Start 2 Ventures
Beteiligungsgesellschaft which provides
online start-ups with initial capital.

He is also a member of the Board of
Directors of Neue Zircher Zeitung, of
the Board of Comcave GmbH and
Chairman of the Superviscry Board of
CTS EVENTIM AG & Co. KGaA.

JAGOUES SANTER

Chairman of the Board of CLT-UFA;
Independent Director
{until 19 April 2017)

Betfore Jacques Santer, born in 1937,
became Chairman of the Board of

CLT-UFA in May 2004, his distinguished

career covered a variety of political

roles, including Member of the European

Parliament (1974 to 1979, and 1999

to 2004), Prime Minister of Luxembaourg
(1984 to 1995} and President of the
European Commission {1995 to 1999).

‘Jaﬂi‘!
6\%,

JEAN-LOUIS SCHILTZ

Tech Law Adviscr, Profassor (inw)
Ingependent Director
{with effect from 19 April 2017}

Jean-Louis Schiltz, born in 1964, holds a
pest graduate degree (DEA) in business
faw from the University of Paris |,
Panthéon-Sorbonne. He has also been
teaching at his alma mater in the early
1990's.

From 2004 to 2009, Jean-Louis Schiltz
was a Cabinet minister in Luxembourg.
His portfolios included media,
telecommunications, technology (T and
internet in particular), international
development and defense.

Jean-Louis Schiltz is a tech law advisor,
a partner at Schiltz & Schiltz {(avocats)
and a Professor (inv.) at the University of
Luxembourg. His work focuses on
technology, regulatory as well as M&3A
and finance. He is a regular speaker at
tech law canferences and has authored
and co-authored a number of articles
and reports in this field.

Jean-Louis Schiltz serves on the boards
of a number of companies and non-
profit organisations. He is also a member
of the Advisory Board of the Smart
Sustainable Development Model (SSDM)
of the International Telecommunications
Union (ITU).

It will be proposed at the AGM, to be
held on 19 April 2017, that Jean-Louis
Schiltz joins the RTL Group Board of
Directors as Non-Executive Director with
immediate effect.

Nationality: _cimran
First appointed: "3 \ri Ao 0
Re-glected: = “pr| >0 -

Nationahty: L.xaombourg st

First appointed: J _«
Re-elected: " ain {00 =

Nationality: | xomosor jisn
Furst appoimnted: "J Anc 2007
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ROLF SCHMIDT-HOLTZ

Business Founder
and Investor

Rolf Schmigdt-Hoitz, born in 1948 in
Martinsreuth, Germany, is an examined
lawyer and studied political science and
psychology. He has been an independent
business founder and investor since
April 2011, Prior to that he was CEQO of
Sony Music Entertainment from February
2006 (until October 2008 Sony BMG
Music Entertainment) to March 2011,
having served the company as Chairman
of the Board from August 2004.

From January 2001 to August 2004,

Rolf Schmidt-Holtz was Chairman and
CEO of Bertelsmann Music Group (BMG)
and a member of the Bertelsmann AG
Executive Board {from 2000} heading

the BMG division, which consisted

of the Sony BMG Music Entertainment
joint venture and BMG Music Publishing.
He also served on the Bertelsmann
Executive Board as Chief Creative
Officer. Furthermore, he was a member of
the Supervisory Boards of Gruner + Jabhr,
RTL Group and of the Bertelsmann
Foundation’s Board of Trustees.

Prior to running BMG, Schmidt-Holtz
served as Chief Executive Officer

of CLT-UFA. He later oversaw the merger
of CLT-UFA with Pearson Televisicn

to form RTL Group. He is Co-Founder
and Chairman of Just Software AG

and Co-Founder and Partner of Hanse
Ventures BSJ GmbH.

JAMES SINGH

Independent Director

James Singh, born in 1946, holds

a Bachelor of Commerce (Hons) and

a Master of Business Administration
from the University of Windsor, Canada.
He is a CPA {Canada) and a Fellow of
the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants (UK).

James Singh joined Nestié Canada as
Financial Analyst in 1977 and served the
company in various executive positions
until 2000 when he was appointed
Senior Vice President, Acquisitions and
Business Development in Nestlé SA's
headquarters in Vevey, Switzerland. He
was a member of the Executive Board,
Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Cfficer of Nestlé SA from 2008
to 2012. He retired on 31 March 2012
after a long and distinguished career of
35 years with Nestié.

James Singh previously served as
Chairman of the Finance Committee of
the European Round Table, and is a
member of the International Integrated
Financial Reporting Standard
Committee.

He is also a Director of Great West Life
Assurance, Director of the American
Skin Association, and Chairman of CSM
Bakery Solutions Ltd.

MARTIN TAYLOR

Vice Chairman
and Independent Director

Martin Taylor, born in 1952, began his
career as a financial journalist with
Reuters and the Financial Times. He
then joined Courtaulds PLC, becoming a
director in 1987, then Chief Executive of
Courtaulds Textiles PLC on its demerger
in 1990. He moved to Barclays PLC

in 1993 as Chief Executive, a post he
held until the end of 1998. From 1999 to
2003, he was Chairman of WHSmith
PLC, and from 1999 to 2005,
International Advisor to Goldman Sachs.
From 2005 until 2013, he was Chairman
of the Board of Syngenta AG.

Since 2013, Martin Taylor has been an
external member of the Financial Policy
Committee of the Bank of England.

He has worked on various projects for
the British Government and served

for five years as a member of its Council
for Science and Technology. Appointed
as Independent Non-Executive Director
in July 2000 (when RTL Group was
created), he took over the responsibilities
of Vice-Chaimman of the Board in
December 2004.

Nationality: Goerar

First appomnted: "3 4gr1 2772
Re-gfected: "= el 27013
Committee memaershio:

Nt e apres Semwacana o

Nationahty. Caradiar

First apponted: "5 prl 2272
Re-elected: "o apnl A1°3
Committze membership:

Tt e

Natianality: Sntsr

First appointed: 25 _uly, 200
Re-elected: 7 Aprl 773
Committee membership:
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In her capacity as Co-CEQ of RTL Group, Anke Schéferkordt
has been responsible for the Group's largest profit centre, Mediengruppe
RTL Deutschland, for which she also continues to serve as CEOQ.

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT

Ca-Chief Executive Officer
{until 19 April 2017)

In his capacity as Co-CEQ of RTL Group, Guillaume de Posch will be
responsible - foliowing the changes on the executive management team
- for Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland, Groupe M6, RTL Radio {France),
and RTL Belgium. Guillaume de Posch is also Chairman of the Boards of
SpotX, BroadbandTV and StyleHaul.

GUILLAUME DE POSCH

Go-GChief Executive Officer Both Co-GEQs will be jointly responsible for the Group's global digital

businesses (SpotX, BroadbandTV and StyleHaul), and for Group Strategy,
Business Development, Corporate Communications & Marketing,
European Affairs, Internal Audit & Compliance and - together with the
CFO - for Group HR.

Bert Habets will become a member of the RTL Group Executive
Committee with effect from 19 April 2017. In his future capacity as Co-
CEOQ of RTL Group, Bert Habets will be responsible for RTL Nederland,
FremantleMedia and for the Group’s broadcasting activities in Hungary
and Croatia.

BERT HABETS

Gao-Chief Executive Qfficar
{withr eflect frorm 19 Aprit 2017}

In his capacity as CFO and Head of the Corporate Centre of RTL Group,
¢ Eimar Heggen controls Finance and Legal. He also oversees the

Group's businesses in Luxembourg, will assume responsibility for
RTL Group's radio activities in Germany, and represents RTL Group on
the Board of Atresmedia in Spain.

ELMAR HEGGEN

Chicl Finangial Officer and
read or the Corporate Gentre

The Executive Committee keeps the Board of Directors informed
on the results of the Group and its mainh profit centres on a regular basis.
The compensation of the members of the Executive Committee is determined
by the Nomination and Compensation Committee, and is composed of a fixed
and a variable part {see note 10.3. fo the consolidated finangial staternents).
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The third season of Die Méhie der Liwen,
was the most successful local prime-time
production ever on Vox, setting a new
record in 2016 with up to 16.4 per cent

of the 14 to 59-year-old target audience. The
start-up show won the German TV Award

in the ‘best factual entertainment’ category.

In 2016, RTL Hungary invested in their news studi
with a a cutting-edge set up, and new enhanced graphics withg
augmented reality and 30 visval elements]

K|

in ME's political TV show, {fne ambition
intime, Karine Le Marchand offered a human
introduction of the 2017 candidates for

the highest office in the French Republic.
The candidates got the chance to tell their
stories, and to reveal their personalities,
motivations and poals through the acceunts
of their nearest and dearest.

(e W]

Launched in June 2016, RTL Plus — the
latest addition to Mediengruppe

RTL Deutschland’s family of channeis
- pecame the most successful channel
launch in recent years. RTL Plus offers
an entertaining programme mix
comprising popular classics
and exclusive local productions.

RTL

41w A -}
In January 2016, RTL Televizija broadcast

21 matches of the Men's World Handball
Championship reaching an average audience
share of 28.0 per cent in the target group.
The match between Croatia and Spain
drew an audience share of 55.0 per cent,

RTL Group — Entertain. Inform. Engage.
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Directors' report

REGORD REVENUE, EBITA, EBITDA

Full-year revenue up 3.4 per cent to €6,237 million

EBITA up 3.3 per cent to €1,205 million, EBITDA up 3.8 per cent to €1,411 million

Digital revenue' continues to grow dynamically, up by 31.9 per cent to €670 million

Attractive shareholder returns: total dividend of €4.00 per share
for the fiscal year 2016, representing a dividend yield of 5.4 per cent

Luxembourg, 9 March 2017 — RTL Group announces its audited results for the year ended 31 December 2016.

FINANGIAL SUMMARY

Year o Year 10
December Decemier
2016 2013

€m €m

Reverue o mmmmmen

Underying reverwe:

ERITAS
FRITAmargn (%) o
EBTOA
ESTOAMargn )

EBITA
Amortisaticn and impairment of far value acjustments on acquisitions of subsidiares

Re-measurement of

ements

Gain ‘rom sale of subsidianes, other investments and re-measurement
to far value of pre-existing Interest In acquireg 6 2

EBIT
Net financial [expense)/income

Income tax expense

Proftfortheperiod .

Attribatable ~o: ‘ L )

C Nomcontchngmterests T !
SR Grewosnarenoders L T8
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Directors’ report

HIGHEST ORGANIC REVENUE GROWTH RATE SINCE 2010

2 Group revenue increased 3.4 per cent to
€6,237 milliort (2015: €6,029 million), mainly driven
by growing revenue at Mediengruppe RTL
Deutschland and dynamic growth in digital revenue;
underlying/organic growth rate’ was 3.0 per cent

B Platform revenue® was up 13.3 per cent to
€281 million {2015: €248 million)

mRTL Group's revenue is well diversified with
52.1 per cent from broadcast advertising (TV and
radio}, 21.2 per cent from content, 10.7 per cent
from digital activities, 4.5 per cent from platform
revenue and 11.5 per cent from other revenue

= EBITA also reached a new record level, up 3.3 per
cent to €1,205 million (2015: €1,167 million). The
increase is mainly due te higher EBITA contribution
from Germany and a positive one-off effect at
Groupe M6 from the settlement of the M6 maobile
contract, amounting to €42 million

® EBITA margin was stable at 19.3 per cent {2015:
19.4 per cent)

= EBITDA was up by 3.8 per cent to €1,411 million
(2015: €1,360 million), with an EBITDA margin of
22.6 per cent (2015: 22.6 per cent)

= Net profit attributable to RTL Group shareholders
decreased to €720 million {2015: €789 million),
mainly due to higher tax charges

m Net cash from operating activities was €1,108
million, resulting in a higher operating cash

conversion® of 97 per cent (2015: 87 per cent). Net
financial debt® was €576 million at the end of
2016 {2015; net financial debt of €671 million)

u |n the fourth quarter of 2016, Group revenue was
up 6.3 per cent at €2,007 million {Q4/2015: €1,888
million), while EBITA was stable at €449 million
(Q4/2015. €451 million). This reflects a one-off
charge at RTL Radio (France) following accounting
misstatements cver a number of previcus years
and a decrease at RTL Nederland, partly balanced
by higher EBITA contributions from Mediengruppe
RTL Deutschland, Groupe M6 and FremantleMedia.
Adjusted for the one-off charge at RTL Radio
{France), fourth quarter EBITA was up 2.0 per cent
year on year

®»RTL Group’s Board of Directors has proposed
a final ordinary dividend of €3.00 per share for
the fiscal year 2016. This proposal is a reflection of
the Group’s strong cash flows, future investment
plans and its target net debt to full-year EBITDA
ratio® of 0.5 to 1.0 times. In addition, RTL Group
already paid an interim dividend of €1.00 per share
for the fiscal year 2016 in Septermber 2016 (2015:
ordinary dividend of €3.00 per share plus interim
dividend of €1.00)

m Based on the average share price in 2016 (€73.77)},
the total dividends for the fiscal year 2016
(€4.00 per share; 2015: €4.00 per share) represent
an attractive dividend yield of 5.4 per cent {2015:
4.9 per cent) and a payment of 85 per cent of the
reported EPS {€4.69)

SEGMENTS: RTL GROUP’S THREE LARGEST BUSINESS UNITS
— MEDIENGRUPPE RTL DEUTSCHLAND, GROUPE M6 AND FREMANTLEMEDIA —
WITH SIGNIFICANTLY HIGHER PROFIT CONTRIBUTIONS

= Once again, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschiand
closed the year with record results; EBITA grew by
3.1 per cent to €705 million {2015: €684 million),
resulting in an cutstanding EBITA margin of 31.8
per cent {2015: 32.0 per cent). Over the past ten
years, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland more than
doubled its EBITA (2007: €329 millior)

= Groupe M6 also reached a record EBITA of €252
million (2015: €205 million), mainly driven by the
positive one-off effect from the settlement of the
M6 Mobile contract, amounting to €42 million
which mgore than compensated for the impact of

the higher programming costs for the Uefa Euro
2016 live broadcasts

% in line with previous guidance, FremantleMedia’s
EBITA increased by 6.8 per cent to €110 million
(2015: €103 million), reflecting higher profit
contributions from content coming through the
pipeline as a result of recent acquisitions and
investments

u RTL Nederland's EBITA was down to €85 million
(2015: €101 million), due to lower TV advertising
revenue, higher programme costs and start-up
losses of the SVOD platform, Videoland

RTL Group Annual Report 2016
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QUTLOOK
& Beginning with the fiscal year 2017, RTL Group wili @ Digital revenue is expected to continue to show
report EBITDCA as its key performance indicator for dynamic double-digit growth and increase its
operating profit, adapting to more common share of RTL Group's total revenue to at least
reporting standards of the media industry 15 per cent within the next three to five years

{previously: EBITA)
= RTL Group will keep a leverage target of 0.5 and

m RATL Group expects its total revenue for the fiscal 1.0 times net debt to full-year EBITDA for the fiscal
year 2017 to continue to grow moderately (+2.5 per year 2017, RTL Grgup will continue to focus on
cent ta +5.0 per cent), driven by the Group’s digital cash conversion and expects 2017 levels to be
businesses and Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland. broadly in line with the previous years, not beiow
At the same time, RTL Group's EBITDA for the full 90 per cent

year 2017 is expected to be broadly stable
{-1.0 per cent to +1.0 per cent}, mainly duetothe ®The dividend policy remains unchanged:

lack of positive one-off effects at the level RTL Group plans to pay out between 50 and 75
Groupe M6 recorded in 2016 per cent of the adjusted net result for the fiscal
year 2017

MUST-SEE CONTENT DRIVES RTL GROUP’S BROADCAST BUSINESSES

2 |n December, RTL Group announced that it plans  ®In May, RTL Television signed a new exclusive TV

to regroup its French radio operations into broadcasting rights agreement with Uefa to air 28
Groupe M6. The transaction is, among others, of the 40 matches that the German national
subject to approval by the French media authority football tearn is due to play in the period 2018 to
CSA (Conseil supérieur de I'Audiovisuel) 2022. The new deal grants RTL Television exclusive

broadcasting rights for all of Germany’s Euro 2020
= M6 broadcast a total of 11 matches, including the qualifying games and World Cup 2022 qualifiers.

final, of the biggest European football competition The deal comes on top of the exclusive TV
— Uefa Euro 2016. The final, between Portugal and breadcasting rights RTL Television already holds
France, achieved the same audience as the final of for the period from September 2016 to October
the 1998 World Cup bstween Brazil and France: 2017 for Germany’s qualifying matches for the
20.8 million viewers represented a total audience World Cup 2018 in Russia

share of 71.8 per cent. This was a new all-time
audience record for M6 since its creation, making = RTL Plus, the iatest addition to Mediengruppe RTL

it the most watched programmme on French Deutschland's family of channels, was launched
television in 2016 and the fifth largest TV audience on 4 June 2016 and is the most successful channel
ever recorded in France launch of the last few years. In December 2016,

RTL Plus already recorded an average audience
share of 0.9 per cent in the 14 to 59 demographic

RTL Group Annual Report 2016



Directors' report

CONTENT: ADDITIONAL INVESTMENTS IN THE CREATIVE PIPELINE

aln 2016, FremantleMedia made several
investments, strengthening capabilities in the
scripted, entertainment and factual genres. This
included Abot Hameiri (51 per cent), Dr Pluto (25
per cent), Wild Blue Media {25 per cent), and
Dancing Ledge {25 per cent)

# On 24 August, FremantleMedia announced a deal
with Amazor to showcase its ambitious fantasy
drama, American Gods, on Amazon Prime Video in
2017. The show will be available on Amazon’s
SVOD platform in over 200 territories, shortly after
its US premiere on the pay-TV channel Starz in
April 2017

m |n Septembber, highly acclaimed drama, The Young
Pape - produced by FremantleMedia's Wildside
for Sky, HBO and Canal Plus — celebrated its world
premiere at the Venice Film Festival. The Young
Pope was the best premiere for a new series on
Sky in ltaly, launched as Canal Plus’ number one
new international drama of 2016 in France, and
was Sky Atlantic’s number three new drama of the
year in the UK

s On 14 October, UFA Fiction, FremantleMedia
International and RTL Television announced that
the sequel to the nationally and internationally
award-winning series Dautschiand 83 will premiere
exclusively on Amazon Prime Video in Germany in
2018. RTL Television has secured a first-look
option for the linear TV rights and expects to air
the sequel on German free-to-air television in
2018/19, after Amazon’s first window

DIGITAL HAS BECOME A SIGNIFICANT PILLAR OF RTL GROUP'S REVENUE

= RTL Group's digital revenue® continued to show
strong growth, up 31.9 per cent to €670 million
{(2015: €508 million), mostly due to organic growth.
Digital revenue now makes up more than 10 per
cent of RTL Group's total revenue

m Al} of the three main businesses of the RTL Digital
Hub - BroadbandTV, StyleHaul and SpotX -
continued to show strong individual revenue
growth. Year-on-year, BroadbandTV was up
131 per cent, StyleHaul was up 54 per cent, and
SpotX was up 18 per cent

= Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland, Groupe M8 and
RTL Nederland reported outstanding onlihe video
advertising revenue growth rates. Comparing 2016
with 2015: Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland was
up 106 per cent {driven by organic growth and the
acquisition of Smartclip), Groupe M6 was up 37
per cent and RTL Nederland was up 61 per cent

m RTL Group's catch-up TV services, websites and
MCNs attracted a total 274 billion online video
views in 2016 (2015: 105 billion video views)

mn March 2016, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland
announced the acquisition of a 93.75 per cent
majority stake in Smartclip, with a call option to
acquire the remaining shares. The purchase price
was €48 milkon. Smartclip currently bundles the
online video advertising inventory of 750 publishers
worldwide, and manages the integration and
serving of video advertising to all internet-
connected devices. Smartclip complements
RTL Group's investments in digital advertising
sales, including in particular SpotX. Approval from
Germany’s Federal Cartel Office was received on
22 April 2016

u Also in March, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland
bundled their catch-up services of the ‘Now’ family
{RTL Now, Vox Now, RTL Il Now, RTL Nitro Now,
Super RTL Now and N-TV Now) in a new offer
called TV Now
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CORPORATE PROFILE

RTL GROUP - ENTERTAIN. INFORM. ENGAGE.

With interests in 60 television channels, 31 radio
stations, a global business for content production
and distribution, and rapidly growing digital video
businesses, RTL Group entertains, informs and
engages audiences around the world. The
Luxembourg-based company owns stakes in
TV channels and radio stations in Germany, France,
Belgium, the Netherands, Luxembourg, Spain,
Hungary, Croatia and South East Asia. With
FremantleMedia, it is one of the world’s leading
producers of television content: from talent and
game shows to drama, daily soaps and telenovelas,
including ldois, Got Talent, The X Factor, Good
Times ~ Bad Times and Family Feud. And with
digital investments in North America — BroadbandTV,
StyleHaul and SpotX - RTL Group reached critical
mass in online video.

The roots of the company date back to 1924, when
Radio Luxembourg first went on air. Compagnie
Luxembourgeoise de Radiodiffusion (CLR} was

founded in 1931. As a European pioneer, the
company broadcast a unigue programme in several
languages using the same wavelength.

RTL Group itseif was created in spring 2000
following the merger of Luxembourg-based CLT-
UFA and the British content production company
Pearson TV, owned by Pearson PLC. CLT-UFA was
created in 1997 when the shareholders of UFA
{Bertelsmann) and the historic Compagnie
Luxembourgeocise de Télédiffusion — CLT {Audiofina)
merged their TV, radio and TV production
businesses.

Bertelsmann has been the majority shareholder of
RTL Group since July 2001. RTL Group’s shares are
publicly traded on the regulated market (Prime
Standard) of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange and on
the Brussels and Luxembourg stock exchanges.
Since September 2013, RTL Group has been listed
in the prestigious MDAX stock index.
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SCHEME OF RTL GROUP REPORTING SEGMENTS

(Th# Group's awnerstip based on total numter of shares after declarabion of treasury sharas hele by the company as per 31 Oecember)
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RTL Group’s business comprises the saven
reporting segments: Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland,
Groupe M6, FremantleMedia, RTL Nederland,
RTL Belgium, RTL Radio (France) and Qthers (which
includes RTL Hungary, RTL Creatia, RTL Group’s
Luxembourgish activities, the German radio busihess
and the investment accounted for using the equity
method, Atresmedia in Spain). The segment “Others”
also includes RTL Group's global digitat businesses,
SpotX, BroadbandTV and StyleHaul, which are part
of the RTL Digital Hub.

RTL Group’s business covers three business areas:
broadcast, content and digital. The Group's
broadcast businesses are, above all, local
businesses. Each segment serves different cultures,
traditions and identities across Europe and further
afield. For that reason, each segment s led by its
own GEO and acts autonomously with full editorial
independence. This entrepreneurial approach
enables each segment to act flexibly in its local
market, to build its own local identity, and to benefit
fromt one of the most important success-factors in
the broadcasting business: proximity to its audience.

Although the Group's segrments have the advantage
of being able to act independently to their markets’
needs, each segment benefits from the integrated
approach of knowledge and experience sharing
acress the Group. The Group's Synergy Committees
(Sycos) have become a major platform for
information and knowledge sharing across the
Group's decemntralised organisation. The Sycos —
which are comprised of executives and experts from

ATL RTL RADIQ

NEDERLAND BELGIDM {FRANCE)
109%" 66.0%° 10%?

il ATRESHLOIA
HRVATSKA
100%" 1

BROADBAND
1K'

&2.54

each segment and from the Corporate Centre —
meet regularly to discuss topics such as
programimiing, news, radio, advertisitg sales and
new media. While each segment makes its own
management decisions, it is free to draw on the
understanding and expertise of aother RTL Group
campanies to replicate successes and share ideas.
The Sycos are coordinated by RTL Group's
Corporate Strategy team.

Based in Luxembourg and led by the Group’s Chief
Financial Officer, the Corporate Centre provides a
framework of strategic direction and financial
control while actively managing the Group’s
portfolio of holdings.

In the Operations Management Cormmittee (OMC),
the Executive Committee and senior managerment of
the Corporate Centre mest regularly with the CEOs
of the Group's local operations to share experiences,
to discuss opportunities and challenges, and to
explore the potential for cooperation. This process
ensures that khowledge and expertise are rapidly
disseminated throughout the Group, and that
successful ideas and innovations can quickly be
implemented by other segments, if appropriate.

The Coarparate Centre comprises the following
functions: Consolidation and Accounting, Corporate
Strategy & Controlling, Corporate  Human
Resources, Legal, Investor Relations, Corporate
Communications & Marketing, Treasury & Corporate
Finance, Internal Audit & Compliance, and Tax.

RTL Group Anntual Report 2016
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THE BUSINESS AREAS

RYL\GEoup has operations in more

(see note 12 to the Consolidated

44

than 30 countries worldwide

Financial Statements)

Breoadcast

Television: RTL Group is Europe's largest free-to-air
broadcaster. Each day, millions of viewers all over
Europe watch RTL Group's television channels,
which include the families of channels clustered
around the flagships RTL Tetevision in Germany, M6
in France, RTL 4 in the Netherlands and RTL-TV! in
Belgium. The Group also has broadcasting
operations in Hungary (RTL Klub, RTL li, and six
cable channels), Croatia (RTL Televizija, RTL 2, RTL
Kockica), and Luxembourg and interests in
Atresmedia in Spain. In August 2013, RTL Group
and CBS Studios International launched RTL CBS
Asia Entertainment Network, which operates two
pay-TV channels within South East Asia.

Radio: RTL Group's radio stations reach millions of
listeners each day. The Group's flagship radio
station is RTL Radio in France, and it also owns or
has interests in stations in Germany (including:
104.6 RTL, Antenne Bayern), Belgium {Bel RTL,
Radio Contact), Spain {Onda Cero, Europa £M,
Melodfa FM) and Luxembourg (RTL Radio
Létzebuerg, Eldoradio).

Content

RTL Group's  content production arm,
FremantleMedia, is one of the largest creators,
producers and distributors of television brands
in the world. With operations in 31 countries,
FremantleMedia is responsible for around
12,000 hours of TV programming broadcast each
year. FremantleMedia also distributes more than
20,000 hours of content in over 200 territories.

Digital

RTL Group has become the leading European
media group in online videc and is ranked among
the top global players in online video. In June 2015,
RTL Group founded the RTL Digital Hub, bundling
key investments in multi-channel networks (MCNs)
such as BroadbandTV and StyleHaui, and SpotX -
one of the leading players in programmatic
video advertising - as well as the investments
accounted for at equity: Clypd, a pioneer in
programmatic TV, and VidegAmp, a platform for
cross-screen data optimisation.  Additionally,
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland acquired Smartclip
in 2016 and a 30 per cent share in data expert
Q Division in January 2017.
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MARKET ENVIRONMENT

Digitisation has sigrificantly transformed the TV
market, with more channels and more content
available than ever before. 92 per cent of EU
households now receive their TV signal digitally. 1n
Germany alone, viewers have access to over 75
linear television channels.

Digitisation has brought with it new ways of reaching
viewers, such as IPTV and especially the open
internet, which complement conventional modes of
distribution such as terrestrial television, cable and
satellite. Broadcasting groups such as RTL Group
have seized the opportunity to air their programmes
not anly linear, based on the channels’ pragramme
schedules, but also non-linear, on demand. In
addition to the extensive changes in the technical
infrastructure of content distribution, above all, it's
the development of devices that has led to far-
reaching changes in viewing behaviour. in 2015,
about 19.3 per cent of the European population
owned a tablet and 55.9 per cent owned a
smartphone. n fact, media convergence became a
reality long ago on these screens.

Against the background of the ongaing digitisation,
RTL Group's markets are shaped by four Key trends:
Competition, Consalidation, Convergence and
Complexity (see pages 18 to 21 of the Annual
Report 2016).

While lirear TV is stil by far the tmain way of

consuming video content (representing around

80 per cent of all video content consumed in

Germany, France and the Netherlands), usage

growth is driven by non-linear viewing. Three general

trends summarise changing viewing behaviours

driven by this growth of non-linear video

consumption:

u the younger the target group, the higher the share
of non-linear viewing;

® the younger the target group, the higher the share
of viewing on mobile devices;

mwatching videc content on mobile devices
increases the demand for *short-form video’ (short
clips lasting a few minutes).

Consequently, for RTL Group as a video content
provider, TV no longer means just ‘television’, it now
means ‘total video'.

The total video market comprises linear TV, catch-up
piatforms of TV channeis’; on-demand services
financed by advertising, pay per view or
subscriptions™; and YouTube, Facebook and other
short-form online video. Total video revenue in
Germany, France and the US is expected to grow by
4 to 5 per cent annually until 2020.

ESTIMATED ‘TOTAL VIDEQ® MARKET DEVELOPMENT

it € illion] ™ .

IIEHl“i

GEAMANY FRANGE

. 2020e
. CAGR
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TOTAL VIDEO: A GLOBAL FORCGE IN VIDEO PRODUCTION,
AGGREGATION AND MONETISATION

RTL Group has built market-leading positions across
the value chain of the total video industry. With their
families of channels, RTL Group’s subsidiaries are
either number cne or number two in the European
markets in which they operate. RTL Group’s
production arm, FremantieMedia, is a global leader in
content production. And with its digital investments in
North America - Broadband TV, StyleHaul and SpotX
— RTL Group reached a critical mass in online videa.

While the following segment describes RTL Group's

strategy from the angle of the Group’s three rnain
investment areas — broadcast, content and digital -

Broadcast

there are also three strategic priorities for long-term
growth which are outlined on pages 18 to 21: a) Create
must-see TV, which applies to both broadcasters
and FremantleMedia; b} Grow audiences, which is
true for both broadcasters and multi-channel
networks and ¢) Capture the value of digital, which
is important for all three investment areas.

RTL Group's general value chain is outlined on pages
16 and 17. Value chains and business models outlined
in this section of the report are specific to individual
business areas.

BROADCASTING BUSINESS MODEL

CONTENT PROCUREMENT AND PRODUCTION

Fﬂmn!»fmﬁ\@ um I@SAL OCBS

AGGREGATION

RTL
il &

MEDIEN
GREM,.,C..M, [ AvresmeDIA ;

and others -

DISTRIBUTION AND MUNETESATIDN

Advertisers /
media agencies

Distribution platforms: .
cable = satellite = digital ~

bl () (5

All platfarms and devices (TV, online, mobile devices)

Strengthening RTL Group's core business remains a
key part of the Group’s strategy and building and
extending families of channels is key to tackling
increasing audience fragmentation and competition

in a digital, multi-channef world. The Group has
established strong families of channels in Western
Europe, all of which are either number cne or two in
their respective markets. In recent years, these
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families of channels have been enhanced by the
addition of several digital channels with clearly
defined profiles, including RTL Nitro, RTL Plus,
Teggo Plus, W9, Bier and RTL 2.

One focus of the broadceast strategy is to achieve a
significant increase in non-advertising revenue by
establishing a secand revenue stream from platform
operators. RTL Group aims to receive a fair revenue
share for its brands and programmes from the major
distribution platiorms — cable network operators,
satellite companies and internet TV providers — for
new services such as high-definition TV channels,
on-demand platforms and digital pay channels.
RTL Group increased its platform revenue from
€128 million in 2011 to €281 million in 2016.

As ‘must-see’ content becomes ever-more valued
by today’s digital audience, broadcasters must
invest in top-quality content that will attract high
viewing figures. As well as nurturing and refreshing
established popular shows, news, daily soaps and
reality formats, RTL Group's broadcasters invest
significantly in developing new, exclusive formats
and premium content that build image, strengthen
the brand and — most importantly — cormmand
exclusivity in the marketplace. The major task for
today's linear TV channels is to have something that
makes them stand out from the crowd.

In digital, RTL Group channels have guickly
succeeded in establishing their own onh-demand
platforms with catch-up TV services, making their
programmes available on all devices - PCs,
smartphones, tablets and internet-connacted TV
sets {see below under ‘Digital’ for more details).

Content

The business model of FremantleMedia - RTL Group's
global production arm - is fundamentally diffarent to
that of RTL Group's broadcasters. FremantieMedia
produces, licenses and distributes a vast array of
programmes that range from high end drama, through
game shows and daily soaps to entertainment. Al of
this on a worldwide basis through its network cf local
production and distribution companies.

Given that the timing of the delivery of the finished
programme is often at the behest of the local
broadcaster, which uitimately drives revenue
recognition at the level of RTL Group, phasing effects
from one quarter to another are frequent and can
lead to significant swings. These are often neutralised
over the course of the year.

As FremantleMedia increases its exposure to high-
end drama, where the development cycle, from
concept to on-screen, can be anything from two to
three years, FremantieMedia’s cash conversion is
negatively impacted as it takes on more working
capital and/or decides to finance part of the
production itseff — the so-called deficit financing
model. This is more of an exception as local
broadcasters  still traditionally finance their
commissioned programming, with FremantieMedia
taking a margin, but no risk, on the finished
production.

FremantleMedia’s distribution arm, FremantieMedia
International, sells finished programmes and formats
around the world, and acquires, develops, finances
and co-produces new titles for the international
market. its cataiogue contains a diverse and exciting
range of programming spanning drama, comedy,
factual, lifestyle and entertainment. Supported by a
sales network that spans nine international offices
and five continents, and a brand management team,
FremantleMedia International’s content reguiary
reaches audiences in over 150 countries around the
world.

RTL Group Annual Report 2016

a7



438

Directors’ report

FremantleMedia’s strategy has four pillars

1) Maintaining the company’s position as a leading
producer of quality programming by nurturing
established brands such as Got Talent and The
Farmer Wants A Wife, and investing to create
new formats and brands.

2) Diversifying FremantleMedia's portfolio by
strengthening its local businesses and increasing
prime-time drama. FremantleMedia made a series
of investments in 2016, to strengthen capabilities
in the scripted, entertainment and factual genres.
Meanwhile, investments in high-end productions
accelerate the company’s growth in prime-time
drama. In Cctober, The Young Fope produced by
FremantieMedia’s italian production arrm Wildside,
premiered on Sky in Germany, italy and the UK, as
well as Canal Plus in France — and generated
exceptional ratings for a drama on pay TV
Elsewhere, FremantleMedia North America’s
adaptation of Neil Gaiman's acclaimed
contemporary fantasy novel, American Gods, will
be broadcast on the US pay-TV channet Starz,
and be available on Amazon Prime Video in more
than 200 territories.

3) Maximising the global FremantleMedia
network by increasing scale in strategic markets.
In recent years, the company has strengthened its
Scandinavian and Southern European footprint
with the opening of new offices in Sweden,
Norway and Spain. In 2016, FremantleMedia
made several invesiments, among them the
Israeli production company Abot Hameiri.

4) Building a scalable digital business.
FremantleMedia’s goal is to become as successful
a creator, producer and distributor in the digital
space as it is in traditional television {(see ‘Digital’
for more details).

Digitat
Developing profitable business models for rapidly
growing trends in non-linear viewing is cne of the
most important tasks for RTL Group in the years
ahead. RTL Group aims to have a strong presence
in all segments of the total video market.

First, the Group is extending its premium linear TV
content into the non-linear world. RTL Group's
channels have quickly succeeded in establishing
their own on-demand platforms with catch-up TV
services, making their prograrnmes available on all
devices — PCs, smartphones, tablets and internet-
connected TV sets. Examples include TV Now in
Germany, 6play in France and RTL XL in the
Netherlands, Audiences appreciate these services:
whenever they miss an episode of their favourite
show, they can watch it online for free. The Group is
also branching cout into new business models,
including subscription-based on-demand services
{SVOD)}, such as Videgland in the Netherlands.

A second goal in online video is to become as
successful a creator, producer and distributor in the
digital space as RTL Group is in traditional television
with its content arm FremantleMedia. To achieve this
goal, FremantleMedia is identifying and generating
more original content made specifically for
digital platforms (‘web originals’}. FremantleMedia
operates original digital production stugios inthe US
{Tiny Riot}, UK {Shotglass Media), Germany {UFA
Lab), the Netherlands (Tiny Riot) and Australia
{Spring) and produces content for partners such as
Vice Media, StyleHaul, BroadbandTv and for
FremantleMedia's TV brands.

At the same time, RTL Group's broadcasters are
increasing their production of web originat content.
For example, Groupe M6's successful platform,
Golden Network, provides a medium for a new
generation of talented young comedians.

Moreover, RTL Group aims for a strong short-form
video presence via its own platforms and multi-
channel networks (MCNs). Qver 80 per cent of
RTL Group’s 26 billion monthly video views are
generated outside the Group’s core broadcasting
territories.

Through key digital investments, RTL Group has
become a leader In the YouTube ecosystem. in June
2013, the Group acquired a 51 per cent majority
stake {cn a fully diluted basis) in BroadbandTV.
BroadbandTV manages 85,000 partners and
achieves around 22 billion video views per month.
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According to Comscore, BroadbandTV is the world's
largest MCN. In December 2014, RTL Group
increased its shareholding in StyleHaul - the largest
fashion, beauty and women's lifestyle network on
YouTube - to 94 per cent (on a fully diluted basis).
FremantieMedia holds a 75 per cent non-controlling
interest in Divimove, Europe’s number one multi-
channel network (MCN) with 1.5 billion monthly
video views.

Further substantial growth of RTL Group's digital
revenue requires new skills in advertising technology.
Online video advertising is currently the fasiest
growing digital advertising segment, and is expected
to grow globally between 20 and 25 per cent each
year between 2014 and 2020", driven primarily by
programmatic video advertising.

in September 2014, RTL Group acquired a 65.2 per
cent majority stake (on a fully diluted basis) in the
programmatic video advertising platform, SpotX.
The company provides a comprehensive video
advertising monetisation service to hundreds of
publishers around the globe, who use the platferm
to navigate through the complexity of advertising
techneology and maximise revenue for their desktop,
mobile and connected TV video advertising
inventory whife driving down operational costs.

In 2016, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland acquired
Smartclip, which currently bundles the enline video
advertising inventory of 750 publishers worldwide,
and manages the integration and serving of video
advertising to all intermet-connected devices. As a
strong sales house and technhological innovator,
Smartclip also creates solutions for Connected TV
and multiscreen advertising. In February 2017,
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland invested into data
expert Q division. A description of RTL Group's
approach to advertising technology is outlined on
pages 22 and 23.

In June 2015, RTL Group founded the RTL Digital
Hub. A dedicated team develops and managas the
Group'’s MCN and digital advertising investmants,
particuiarly BroadbandTV, StyleHaul, SpotX, Clypd
and VideoAmp. The RTL Digital Hub maximises the
value of this highly complementary portfolio of digital
video businesses to further strengthen RTL Group's
leadership position in a high growth market.

In March 2015, RTL Group's Co-CEOs announced
that the Group aims o grow the revenue share of the
digital business to at least 10 per cent within the
next three to five years. RTL Group achieved this
goal earlier than expected and digital revenue now
accounis for 10.7 per cent of the Group’s total
revenue, based on the full-year figures for 2016.
“Digital” refers to internet-related activities, excluding
online sales of merchandise (“e-commerce”). Digital
revenue encompasses different categories of
revenue, for example other advertising sales, the
production/distribution of films, programmes and
other rights and the professional services.

To summarise: unlike some competitors, RTL Group
only recognises pure digital businesses in this
category/revenue stream and does not consider
e-commerce, home shopping and platform revenue
as part of its digital revenue.

RTL Group Annual Report 2016
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FINANGIAL REVIEW

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

RTL Group controls its financial situation by means
of various key performance indicators (KPIs) such as
reveriue, audience share in main target groups,
EBITA and EBITDA, RTL Group Value Added, net
debt and cash conversion. For definitions and more
details of these KPIs, please see the note 3 to the
Consolidated Financial Staternents.

RTL Group reports differert alternative performance
measures not defined by IFRS that management
believe are relevant for measuring the performance

of the operations, the financial position and cash
flows and for making decisions. These KPls also
provide additional information for users of the
financial statements regarding the management of
the Group on a consistent basis over time and
regularity of reporting.

RTL Group's KPls may not be comparable to
similarly titled rmeasures reported by other groups
due to differences in the way these measures are
calculated.

REVENUE

Advertising markets across Europe were largely
positive over the course of 2016 despite the mixed
macro-economic climate. RTL Group experienced
significant variations across the months and
quarters of the year, making it difficult to predict
market trends with any certainty. Nonetheless, all
European net TV advertising markets in RTL Group’s

Germany
France

During the year to December 2016, RTL Group's
total revenue was up 3.4 per cent to €6,237 million
(2015: €6,029 million). This result was mainly
driven by increasing revenue at Mediengruppe
RTL Deutschland and dynamic growth in digital
revenue. On a like-for-like basis (adjusting for
portfolio changes and at constant exchange rates)
revenue was up 3.0 per cent to €6,202 million (2015:
€6,020 million).

territories were up year on year, with the exception
of the Netherlands and Hunhgary.

A summary of RTL Group's key markets is shown
below, including estimates of net TV advertising
market growth rates and the audience share of the
rmain target audience group.

Net TV RTL Group ATL Group
advertising aucience share aucience share
market in main In main
growth rate target group target group
2016 208 2014
{in per cent) fin per centy tin per cend)
+2.6103.5™ 28.4M 28.4™
+. 7% 22.5%
2.1)8 . 32.77
36.67
36.9%
27.5%
2924

RTL Group's revenue is highly diversified, with
52.1 per cent from advertising from the broadcast
business (TV and radio}, 21.2 per cent from content
production, 10.7 per cent from digital activities, 4.5
per cent from platform revenue, and 11.5 per cent
other revenue.

In contrast to some competitors, RTL Group only
recognises pure digital businesses as digital revenue
and does not consider e-commerce, home shopping
and platform revenue as digital revenue. Revenue
from e-commerce and home shopping are included
in "other revenue”.
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RTL GROUP REVENUE SPLIT

11.9%
OTHER

10.7%
DIGITAL

21.2%
CONTENT

4.5%
PLATFDRM REVENUE

48.0%
TV ADVERTISING

4.1%

‘——————— RADI0 ADVERTISING

GEOGRAPHICAL REVENUE OVERVIEW

Netherlancs B 4

Belgum

iors 000 P P

For more details on gecgraphical information,
please see note 5.2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

L%

EBITA AND EBITDA

EBITA reached a new record level, up 3.3 per cent
to €1,205 million (2015: €1,167 million). This
increase was mainly due to higher profit contribution
from Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland and a positive
one-off effect at Groupe MB, amounting to €42
million, partly balanced by a one-off charge at
RTL Radio (France), following accounting
misstatements over a number of previous years and
a decline at RTL Nederland. Reported EBITA margin
was stable at 19.3 per cent (2015: 19.4 per cent).

Beginning with the fiscal year 2017, RTL Group will
report EBITDA as its key performance indicator for
operating profit, adapting ta more common reporting
standards of the media industry (previously: EBITA).
In 20186, the Group's EBITDA was up 3.8 per cent to
€1,411 million for the year (2015: €1,360 million),
resulting in a stable EBITDA margin of 22.6 per cent
(2015: 22.6 per cent).
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RTL GROUP VALUE ADDED

The central performance indicator for assessing the
profitability from operations and return on invested
capital is RTL Group Value Added {RVA). RVA
measures the profit realised above and beyond the
expected return on invested capital. This form of
value orientation is reflected in strategic investment
and portfolio pianning — including the management
of Group operations — and is the basis for senior
management variable compensation.

The RVA is the difference between net operating
profit after tax (NOPAT), defined as EBITA adjusted
for a uniform tax rate of 33 per cent, and cost of
capital. The NOPAT corresponds to the sum of (i}
EBITA of fully consolidated entities and share of
result of investments accounted for using the equity

method not already taxed adjusted for a uniform tax
rate of 33 per cent, and (i} share of resuit of
investrments accounted for using the equity method
already taxed. The cost of capital is the product of
the weighted average cost of capital (a uniform 8 per
cent after tax) and the average invested capital
(operating assets less non-interest bearing operating
liabilities as reported in note 5.1. to the Consclidated
Financial Statements. 66 per cent of the present
value of operating leases and of satellite transponder
service agreements is also taken into account when
calculating the average invested capital.

In 2016, RVA was €462 million (2015: €455 million}.
For more detailed information on RVA, please see
note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

NET DEBT AND CASH CONVERSION

The consclidated net debt at 31 December 2016
amounted to €576 million (31 December 2015: net
debt of €671 million). The Group intends to maintain
a conservative level of gearing of between 0.5 and
1.0 times net debt to full-year EBITDA in order to
benefit from an efficient capital structure.

The Group continues to generate significant
operating cash flow, with an EBITA to cash
conversion ratio of 97 per cent in 20186 (2015: 87 per
cent).

As at As at

31 December -3 Decemosr

2016 2015

Net {debt}/ cash position €m £m

Gross balenceshestdebt L et s

Add: cash and cash equivalents and other shart-term investments 438 449

Add: cash deposit ard others T

Net {debt}/ cash position® (576) (671}
For more details on net {debt)/cash position, please
see note 3 to the Cansolidated Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL DEVELOPMENT OVER TIME

2016 2015 20147 2013 2012

£m £€m €m €m

Revenue .58 5008

EBITA 1,148 1078

EBITDA _las 1257

RVA 464 o 408
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OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Operating expenses
Group operating expenses were up 4.9 per cent to
€5,209 million (2015: €4,964 million).

Investments accounted for using the equity
method

The total contribution of investments accounted for
using the equity method amounted to €67 million
(2015: €57 million).

Gain from sale of subsidiaries, other
investments and re-measutement to fair value
of pre-existing interest in acquiree

In 2018, the Group recorded a gain of €6 million
(2015: €4 million).

Interest expense

Net interest expense amounted to €21 million (2015:
expense of €25 milion), primarily due to the interest
charge on the Group’s financial debt, pension ¢osts
and other interest expenses.

Amortisation and impairment of fair value
adjustments on acquisitions of subsidiaries

and joint ventures

The Group has conducted an impairment testing on
the different cash generating units (see note 8.2 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The loss totalling €15 million solely relates to the
amortisation and impairment of fair value
adjustments on acquisitions of subsidiaries (2015:
loss of €6 million).

Income tax expefise
In 20186, the tax expense was €363 million (2015:
expense of €300 million).

Profit attributable to RTL Group shareholders
The profit for the period attributable to RTL Group
shareholders was €720 million (2015: € 789 million).

Earnings per share

Reported eamnings per share, based upon
153,555,377 shares, was €4.69 {2015: €5.14 per
share based on 153,589,269 shares).

Own shares

RTL Group has an issuied share capitaf of
€191,845,074 divided into 154,742,806 fully paid up
shares with no defined nominal value.

RTL Group directly and indirectly holds 0.8 per cent
{2015: 0.8 per cent) of RTL Group’s shares {without
taking into account the liquidity programme).

Profit appropriation (RTL Group SA)®

The statutory accounts of RTL Group show a profit
for the financial year 2016 of €964,392,448 (2015:
€566,205,027). Taking into account the share
premium account of €4,691,802,190 {2015:
€4,691,802,190) and the profit brought forward of
€70,590,918 (2015: €125,525,131), the amount
available for distribution is €5,572,238,665 (2015:
€5,227,966,107), net of an interim dividend of
€154,546,821 (€1.00 per share} as decided by the
Board of Directors of RTL Group on 26 August 2016
and paid on 8 September 2016 (2015: €154,556,241
i.e. €1.00 per share).

Main portfolio changes

Abot Hameiri

on 11 January 2016, FremantleMedia Netherlands
BV {“FremantleMedia”} acquired 51 per cent of Abot
Hameiri Communications Ltd {"AM"), an israeli
content development and TV production company,
which primarily focuses on the development and
production of both established and original
entertainment, scripted drama and factual
programmes.

Smantclip

On11March2016, RTLGroup Vermdgensverwaltungs
GmbH entered into an agreement to acquire 93.75
per cant of smartclip Holtding AG and five of its
subsidiaries operating in  Germany, Raly, the
Netherdands and Sweden (“Smartclip”). Smartclip
currently bundles the online video advertising
inventory of 750 publishers wortdwide, and manages
the integration and serving of video advettising to all
internet-connected screens.

Mandarin Cinéma

On 22 July 2016, Groupe M6 acquired 100 per cent
of Mandarin Cinéma SAS (“Mandarin Cinéma").
Mandarin Cinéma, which is based in France, holds
a catalogue of 32 feature films. With this targeted
acquisition, Groupe M6 continues the consolidation
of its activities of distribution of audiovisual rights by
extending its catalogue, which now contains almost
1,300 full-length feature films.
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iGraal

On 30 November 2016, Groupe M6, through its
subsidiary M6 Web SAS, acquired 51 per cent of
iGraal SAS ("iGraal"). iGraal is based in France and
the leader for cashback on online purchases. With
this acquisition, Groupe M6 is strengthening its
capacity for innovation in support of online retaiters,
expanding its range of ‘gocd deals’ for consumers
and enriching its data strategy by accessing highly
qualified purchasing behaviour data.

Major related party transactions

At 31 December 2016, the principal shareholder of
the Group is Bertelsmann Capital Holding GmbH
{“BCH™ (75.1 per cent). The remainder of the
Group’s shares are publicly listed on the Brussels,
Frankfurt and Luxembourg stock exchanges. The
Group also has a related party relationship with its
associates, joint ventures and with its directors and
executive officers.

Sales and purchases of goods and services
During the year the Group made sales of goods and
services, purchases of goods and services to
Bertelsmann Group amounting to €9 million (2015:
€10 million) and €23 million (2015: €24 millicn),
respeclively. At the year-end, the Group had trade
accounts receivable and payable due from/to
Bertelsmann Group amounting to €3 million (2015:
€2 million) and €8 million {2015: €4 mitlion),
respectively.

Deposits Bertelsmann SE & Go. KGaA

With the view to investing its cash surplus,

RTL Group SA entered in 2006 with Bertelsmann SE

& Co. KGaA (previously Bertelsmann AG) into a

Deposit Agreement, the main terms of which are:

u [nterest rates are based on an overnight basis on
EONIA plus 10 basis points; or on a one to six
menth basis, EURIBOR plus 10 basis points;

® Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA grants to RTL Group
as security for all payments due by Bertelsmann
SE & Co. KGaA a pledge on:

All shares of its wholly owned French subsidiary
Meédia Communication SAS;

All shares of its wholly owned Spanish subsidiary
Media Finance Holding SL;

All its interests in the German limited liability
partnership Gruner + Jahr GmbH & Co. KG;

All shares of its wholly owned English subsidiary
Bertelsmann UK Lid.

At 31 December 2016, RTL Group SA did not hold
any deposit with Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA (2015:
€ nil million on & one to three months basis and € nil
rillion on an overnight basis). The interest income
for the period is € nil million {2015: € nil million).

The interests in Gruner + Jahr GmbH & Co. KG and
shares of Bertelsmann UK Litd have also been
granted as pledge by Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA
to CLT-UFA SA, a subsidiary of RTL Group, in
connection with the accounts receivable related to
PLP and Compensation Agreements as defined
below.

On 22 December 2011, RTL Group Deutschland
GmbH, a Group cormpany, and Bertelsmann SE &
Co. KGaA entered into an agreement related to the
deposit of surplus cash by RTL Group Deutschland
GmbH with the shareholder. To secure the deposit,
Bertelsmann pledged to RTL Group Deutschiand
GmbH its aggregate current partnership interest in
Gruner + Jahr GmbH & Co. KG.

At 31 December 2016, RTL Group Deutschiand
GmbH did not hold any deposit with Bertelsmann
SE & Co. KGaA (2015: € nil million). The interest
income for the period is insignificant {2015:
insignificant}.

RTL Group SA has additicnally entered into a
Treasury Agreerment in  North America with
Bertelsmann Inc. Interest rates are based on US
Libor plus 10 basis points. At 31 December 2016,
the balance of the cash pooling accounts receivable
and payable amounts to € nil million (2015: € nit
million). The interest income/expense for the year is
€ nil million (2015: € nil million).

Loans from Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA and
BeProcurement Sarl
On 7 March 2013, RTL Group Deutschland GmiH,
a Group company, and Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA
entered into a shareholder loan agreement pursuant
to which Bertelsmann makes available a term loan
facility in the amount of €500 million and a revolving
and swingline facility in the amount of up to
€1 billion. The main terms of these facilities are:

= Term loan facility of €500 million until 7 March
2023 bearing interest at 2.713 per cent per annum;
RTL Group SA has the right to early repay the loan
subject to break costs. On 23 June 2016, the term
loan facility of €500 million has been transferred
from Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA to BeProcurement
Sarl controlled by Bertelsmann Luxembourg Sarl.
At 31 December 2016, the term loan balance
amounts to €500 million (2015: €500 million);

B Revolving locans bear interest at the applicable
EURIBOR plus a margin of 0.60 per cent per
annum, and swingline loans bear interest at EONIA
plus a margin of 0.60 per cent per annum. A
commitment fee of 35 per cent of the applicable
margin is payable, where for purposes of
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calculation of the payable commitment fee, the
available commitment under the revolving and
swingline facilities will be reduced by €200 million,
At 31 December 2016, the total of revolving and
swingline loan amounts to €383 million (2015:
€542 million).

The interest expense for the period amounts to
€15 million (2015: €17 million). The commitment fee
charge for the period amounts to €0.6 million (2015;
€0.4 million).

Tax

On 26 June 2008, the Board of Directors of
RTL Group agreed to proceed with the tax pooling
of its indirect subsidiary RTL Group Deutschland
GmbH ("RGD") into BCH, a direct subsidiary of
Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA.

To that effect, RGD entered into a Profit and Loss
Pooling Agreement (“PLP Agreement”) with BCH for
a six-year period starting 1 January 2008.
Simultaneously, Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA
entered into a Compensation Agreement with
CLT-UFA, a direct subsidiary of RTL Group, providing
for the payment to CLT-UFA of an amount
compensating the above profit transfer and an
additional commission {*Commission”) amounting
to 50 per cent of the tax saving based upon the
taxable profit of RGD.

Through these agreements, as from 1 January 2008,
Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA and the RGD sub-
group of RTL Group are treated as a single entity for
German income tax purposes.

As the PLP Agreement does not give any authority
to BCH to instruct or contral RGD, it affects neither
RTL Group nor RGD’s ability to manage their
business, including their responsibility to optimise
their tax structures as they deem fit. After six years,
both PLP and Gompensation Agreements are
renewable on a yearly basis. RGD and CLT-UFA
have the right to request the early termination of the
PLP and Compensation Agreements under certain
conditions.

On 15 May 2013, the Board of Directors of
RTL Group agreed to the amendment of the
Compensation Agreement in light of the
consumption of the trade tax and corporate tax
losses at the level of Bertelsmann SE and Co. KGaA
and of the expected level of indebtedness of
RTL Group in the future.

The PLP Agreement was slightly amended in 2014
on the basis of a recent change to German corporate
tax law.

In the absence of specific guidance in IFRS,
RTL Group has elected to recognise current income
taxes related to the RGD sub-group based on the
amounts payable to Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA
and BCH as a result of the PLP and Compensation
Agreements described above. Deferred income
taxes continue to be recognised, based upon the
enacted tax rate, in the consolidated financial
statements based on the amounts expected to be
settled by the Group in the future. The Commission,
being eccnomically and contractually closely related
to the Compensation, is accounted for as a
reduction of the tax due under the Agreements.

At 31 December 2016, the balance payable to BCH
amounts to €578 million (2015: €583 million) and
the balance receivable from Bertelsmann SE & Co.
KGaA amounts to €423 million (2015: €472 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the German
income tax In relation to the tax pooling with
Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA amounts to €171
million (2015 €176 million). The Commission
amounts to €16 million (2015: €65 million). The
brought forward income tax losses available for
offset were fully consumed at 31 December 2015.

The UK Groub relief of FremantleMedia Group to
Bertelsmann Group resulted in a tax income of
€2 million (2015: €2 million).

Al Danish entities under common control by an
ultimate parent are subject to Danish tax
consolidation, which is mandatory under Danish tax
law. Blu A/S, a 100 per cent held subsidiary of
RTL Group, was elecled as the management
company of the Bertelsmann Denmark Group.
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CAPITAL MARKETS AND SHARE

RTL Group’s shares are publicly traded on the Luxembourg stock exchanges. Since Septermber
regulated market (Prime Standard) of the Frankfurt 2013, RTL Group has been listed in the prestigious
Stock Exchange and on the Brussels and  MDAX stock index.

SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE

{1 Jan.ary 2016 to 31 December 201£1

+6.8%
: MDAX
MDEx =00
\ -7.6%
f -9.5%
: /V e S ’ RTL GROUP
RTL Group share price development for B A R A i
January to December 2016 » S : _ .
based on the Frankfurt Slock Exchange : LT =217 %
{Xetra) against MDAX, Euro Stoxx 600 i H PROSIEBENSATI
Media and ProSiebenSat1 - :
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RTL Group's share price started the year at just over
€77 and finished the year down 9.5 per cent, at just
under €70 per share. The share was reasonably
range bound throughout 2016 with a peak share
price of €83.36 (31 May) and a low of €63.47 (30
November).

For the first four f{o five months of the vyear,
RTL Group’s share price remained in a narrow range
of between €68 and €75 per share, before rising to
its full year high at the end of May. This performance
reflected conflicting reports and signals about the
Chinese economy, oil prices, the banking system,
jobs data and interest rate decisions.

The share price also reflected good advertising
market conditions ahead of the major sporting
events in the summer, At the end of June, markets
reacted negatively to the Brexit vate. The resulting
31-year low of the British pound against the

American dollar affected the stock market including
RTL Group's shares and led to a drop in share price.

Continuing concerns around China and the price of
oil affected stock markets towards the back end of
the year. This was compounded by weaker
advertising markets, following the European football
championships and the summer Clympics. Markets
bounced back in December, due to a rebound in oil,
greater confidence from the ECB and, to a certain
extent, transactions being made in the media space
(Fox/Sky and Vivendi).

The Group declared and paid dividends in both April
and September 2016, The April payment of €3.00
(gross) per share related to the 2015 full-year
ordinary dividend. In September the Board decided
to make an interim dividend payment of €1.00 per
share. The total cash paid out in 2016 with respect
to RTL Group’s dividends amounted to €614 million.

RTL Group Annual Report 2018



Direstors’ repart

ANALYSTS’ VIEW

39 per cent of the anaiysts that have published
nates known aof by the Group since the publication
of the 2016 half-year results recommended
RTL Group shares as a buy at the end of 2016 (2015:
28 per cent). 57 per cent recommended holding the
share (2015: 56 per cent}, and the remaining 4 per
cent recommended selling 2015: 16 per cent). Their
average price target at the end of the year was
€80.41, compared to €87.28 at the end of 2015.

4%
SELL

57%
HOLD

In order to discuss RTL Group's strategy with its
current investors and present the Group to existing
and potential new investors, the RTL Group
Executive Committee and the Investor Relations
team participated in varipus conferences (London,

There was one initiation of the Group during this
period.

Recommendations by financial analysts play an
important role in helping investors make decisions.
With a total of 23 brokerage firms and financial
institutions covering RTL Group {2015: 23}, the share
is broadly covered.

39%
BUY

Barcelona and New York) and held numerous
roadshows {London, New York, Boston and Paris as
well as Denver, |Los Angeles and San Francisco) with
more than 100 one-cn-one meetings.

DIVIDEND POLICY

RTL Group's dividend policy states that the Group
will pay out between 50 and 75 per cent of the
adjusted net profit.

The adjusted net result, if any, is the reported net
result available to RTL Group sharsholders, adjusted
for significant one-off items {both positive and
negative) above €10 million. The Group reports its
adjusted net result, and provides reconciliation to
the reported net resuit, when it announces its full-
year results.

The Group intends to maintain or, where possible, to
have a progressive ordinary dividend over time.

As well as the ordinary dividend, the Board also
considers, twice a year, whether there is a chance to
pay additional dividends to shareholders in the form
of interim dividends. The ability to pay an interim
dividend depends on the Group's financial capacity
- noting that the Group aims to have a balance
sheet efficiency of between 0.5 and 1.0 times net
debt to full-year EBITDA — and the amount of cash
earmarked for further growth opportunities.
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RTL GROUP’S SHAREHOLDER RETURN

RTL Group measures its Total Shareholder Return
(TSR} using the share price development and the
dividend paid over the same time frame and
assumes that the share has been held for this full
period.

Snaepiceasof “Jansayne
Closing share price as of 31 Decertber 2016 n €

Qver the past five years (since 2012}, three years
{since 2014) and last year (2016) the TSR of
RTL Group shares is as follows:

Cumulative dividends paic (mbl@dnﬁg :htérvemng yearér B

2012 2014 2016
7699 92.95 77,05
. - B
400

3

SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE™'

The share capital of the Group is set at €191,845,074
divided into 154,742,806 shares with no par value.

0.8%
TREASURY STOCK

24.1%
PUBLIC

Bertelsmann has been the majority shareholder of
RTL Group since July 20Q1. As at December 2016,

Bertelsmann held 75.1 per cent of RTL Group shares,

The shares shall be in the form of either registered
or bearer shares, at the option of the owner.

75.1%
BERTELSMANN

and 24.1 per cent were free float. The remaining 0.8
per cent were held collectively as treasury stock by
RTL Group and one of its subbsidiaries.
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RTL GROUP SHARE MASTER DATA
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RTL Group's shares are listed in the indices with the
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EQUITY STORY

= RTL Group is a global leader across broadcast,
content and digital, with interests in 60 television
channels and 31 radio stations, content production
throughout the world and rapidly growing digital
video businesses

®* RTL Group has re-defined TV as ‘total video' and
has market-leading positions across the value
chain of video production, aggregation, distribution
and monetisation. With their families of channeis,
RTL Group's broadcasters are either number one
or number two in the European markets in which
they operate. FremantleMedia, RTL Group’s
production arm, is a global leader in content
production. And with its recent digital investments,
RTL Group is one of the front runners in the high-
growth market of online video

m BTL Group acts from a position of strength in all
three strategic areas: Broadcast, Content and
Digital

& RTL Group stands for resilient top-line growth, a
well-diversified revenue mix and an excellent
earnings profile

® RTL Group's revenues are generated on the basis
of an effigient cost structure and strict cost control
providing financial flexibility to management

= RTL Group’s business model is based on strong
and robust cash flows, enabling attractive
shareholder returns

u RTL Group is in the excellent position to invest
sustainably in existing businesses and explore
new growth drivers through acquisitions, while
simultaneously ensuring attractive shareholder
remuneration

w RTL Group offers an attractive ordinary dividend
policy with a pay-out ratio of between 50 and
75 per cent of the Group's adjusted net result

= RTL. Group intends to maintain or, where possible,
to have a progressive ordinary dividend over time

®m RTL Group's largest shareholder is Bertelsmann, a
leading media, services and education company
that operates in about 50 countries around the
world

s RTL Group is a responsible corporate citizen
creating value for viewers, listeners and digital
users, partners, shareholders, employees and the
greater society
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GENERAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT ON THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 PERFORMANCE

Advertising markets across Europe were largely
positive over the course of 2016 despite the mixed
macro-economic climate, Ajl European net TV
advertising markets in RTL Group’s territories were
up year on Yyear, with the exception of the
Netherlands and Hungary. RTL Group experienced
significant variations in viewing figures due to
popular sporting events, making it difficult to predict
market trends with certainty.

Linear TV dominates the video market and is the
only medium to consistently reach mass audiences
day by day. In total, people watch more video
content than ever before — long-form and short-
form, linear and non-lingar, on televisions and
portable devices, especially in a year rich in sports.
The demand for high-quality videc content is
growing rapidly, and onling video advertising with it.

This stimulated revenue growth in the broadcasting
business - particularly at Mediengruppe RTL
Deutschland which reported yet another record
result. Across Europe, RTL Group's flagship
channels remained number one or number two in
their respective markets and target groups.

Throughout the year, FremantleMedia increased
creative diversity within the company — organically
and through acquisitions. It invested into several
production companies, securing talent and
intellectual property in the process. Following
investments inthe creative pipeline, FremantleMedia's
ltalian production arm, Wildside, premierad its highly
anticipated production The Young Pope at the Venice
Film Festival and on pay-TV channels around the
world. Meanwhile, April 2017 will see the premiere
of American Gods — produced by FremantleMedia
North America - on the US pay-TV channel Starz
and on Amazon Prime Video internationally. As one
of the biggest independent production companies,
FremantleMedia continues to focus on creative
talent and on developing projects that will feed into
their network.

RTL Greup’s digital businesses developed into a
dynamic third pillar of RTL Group's business, with
digital revenue increasing by 31.9 per cent to €670
million during 2016 - representing more than 10 per
cent of the Group's total revenue - as a result of
both acquisitions and organic growth. Online video
advertising is the fastest growing advertising
segment and RTL Group invested in this sector
early. The Group expects this level of growth to
continue for the foreseeable future.

For the full year 2016, RTL Group fulfilled its financial
guidance on revenue (moderately up: 2.5 per cent to
5.0 per cent) with revenue up 3.4 per cent to €6,237
million, and exceeded the guidance on EBITA
(slightty up: 1.0 per cent to 2.5) with EBITA increasing
by 3.3 per cent to €1,205 million. The Group
maintained an EBITA margin of around 20 per cent.
Cwverall, 2016 was a very positive firancial year for
RTL Group, with new record revenue, EBITA and
EBITDA. RVA increased accordingly to €462 miliion.

At the time this Directors’ report was compiled,
RTL Group is characterised by overall very good
revenue and earnings, and by a strong financial
position and operating performance. Strong cash
flows allow the combination of attractive dividend
payments with significant investments.
Management’s first priority has always been to
further develop the Group, to make the right
investments and to achieve profitable growth.

RTL Group has leading market positions across the
value chain of the rapidly evclving total video
market, With this financial strength, it is the Group's
ambition to further grow over the coming years — to
transform the (eading European entertainment
network into a truly global powerhouse in video
production, aggregation and monetisation.
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REVIEW BY SEGMENTS: FULL-YEAR 2016
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REVIEW BY SEGMENTS: THREE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (04/2016)
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- MEDIENGRUPPE RTL DEUTSCHLAND

Financial results

in 2016, the German net TV advertising
market was estimated to be up between 2.5
and 3.5 per cent. Once again, Mediengruppe
RTL Deutschland closed the year with

a financial record: revenue increased by

3.5 per cent to €2,214 million (2015:

€2,140 million), mainly driven by higher TV
and digital advertising as well as platform
revenue. Accordingly, EBITA was up

from €684 million in 2015 to €705 million -
an increase of 3.1 per cent.

Year to Year o
December Dece~ber
2016 2015 Parcent
£m £€m change
Revenue 2214 2140 435
EBITDA 718 701
EBITA 705 684 +3.1

ACTIVE

RTL PASSION
aniversum fiim GEB
O smariclip

Audience ratings

Despite strong competition from the public channels
broadcasting the Uefa Euro 2016 and the Olympic
Games, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland’s channels
recorded a stable combined audience share of
28.4 per cent (2015: 28.4 per cent) in the target group
of viewers aged 14 to 59. The German RTL family of
channeis significantly widened its lead over its main
commercial competitor, ProSiebenSatl, to 3.1
percentage points (2015; 1.7 percentage points).

With an audience share of 11.9 per cent in the target
group of viewers aged 14 to 59 in 2016 {2015: 12.2
per cent), RTL Television was the leading channel in
the target group for the 24th consecutive year, well
ahead of Sat1 (8.7 per cent}, ZDF (8.6 per cent), ARD
{8.4 per cent} and ProSieben (7.9 per cent). Once
again, RTL Television was the onily channel to score
a two-digit audience share in this demagraphic.

RTL Television's most-watched programme of the
year was the World Cup qualifier between Germany
and Naorthern Ireland on 11 October 2016, which
attracted an audience share of 30.6 per cent among
viewers aged 14 to 59 and a total of 10.4 million
viewers. The channel’s flagship shows also did well
in 2016, Early in the year, the tenth season of lch bin
ein Star - Holt mich hier raus! ('m A Celebrity...Get
Me Out Of Here!) was watched by an average 37.3
per cent of 14 to 59 year olds (2015: 35.9 per cent).
The most successful new show of the year was
Ninja Warrior Germany, which attracted an average
audience share of 15.9 per cent in the target group
of viewers aged 14 to 59. On average 16.1 per cent
of viewers aged 14 to 59 watched Winnetou — a
three-part remake of the German classic fiims —
around Christmas. Also popular was Duell der
Briider - Die Geschichte von Adidas und Puma, a
film about the Dassler brothers who founded the
global corporations Adidas and Puma. Broadcast on
25 March 2016, the movie was watched by 4.96
million viewers — an audience share of 21.2 per cent
of the 14 to 59 target audience.

2016 was one of the most successful years ever for
Vox, which was prime-time market leader 15 times
in the target group of viewers aged 14 to 59. In the
almost 25-year-old history of Vox, the channel was
prime-time market leader only once before, in 2014,
The channel increased its average audience share in
the target group by 0.2 percentage points to 6.8 per
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cent in 2016 (2015: 6.6 per cent}. In terms of total
audience, Vox recorded an average audience share
of 5.2 per cent and surpassed competitor ProSieben
(5.0 per cent} for the first time. The channel also
achieved new records with its established hit
farmats, including Die Hohle der Léwen (Dragons'
Den) and Club der roten Bénder (Red Bracelets),
which attracted 15.0 per cent and 14.0 per cent of
the target audience respectively. Among women
aged 14 to 29, Club der roten Bander scored an
average audience share of 37.7 per cent. The music
show Sing meinan Song — Das Tauschkonzert and
the cooking show Grill denr Henssler also remained
popular with average audience shares of 9.8 per
cent and 9.3 per cent respectively, while the newly
launched Kitchen Impossible was watched by 8.8
per cent of viewers aged 14 to 59,

RTL Nitro attracted an average 1.7 per cent of the
target group of viewers aged 14 to 59 (2015: 1.8 per
cent} and 1.9 per cent of male viewers of the same
age (2015: 2.1 per cent). The male-focused channel
remained one of the most successful digital free-to-
air channels of the third and fourth generation in the
target group. On 11 April 2016, RTL Nitro achieved
a new record, attracting 3.2 per cent of the target
group of 14 to 59-year-old viewers - the highest
daily audience share in the channel’s history.

RTL N recorded an average audience share of 4.9
per cent among viewers aged 14 to 59 (2015: 5.2
per cent). With an audience share of 13.7 per cent in
the target group, the channef’s most watched
programme of the year was Daniela und L uicas - Die
Hochzefl. Long-running hits Die Reimanns — Ein
auBergewdhnliches Leben and Extrem schwer —
Mein Weg in ein neues Leben remained popular,
with an audience share of 5.9 per cent each, while
Zuhause im Gilick reached 5.6 per cent of the target
audience, and doccumentary The Battle for Chernoby!
altracted 7.3 per cent.

The news channel N-TV attracted 1.1 per cent of
viewers aged 14 to 59 {2015: 1.0 per cent). The
channel gave continuous and thorough status
reports about the Brexit referendum, the US
elections, the attacks in Berlin, Brussels and Nice,
and the attempted coup in Turkey. The channel's
marning reports proved popular once again,
recording an average audience share of 1.6 per cent

“The fact that we have
expanded our lead over our
competitors enceourages
us to further focus on the
production of our own exclusive
content. RTL Plus has
been the most successful channel
launch in the past few years.
Online, the successful launch of
TV Now and the acquisition
of Smartclip have enabled us to
strengthen our position
in advertising technology.”
ANKE SCHAFERKORDT

C0-CEQ, RTL Group;
CEQ, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschliand
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of the target group on weekdays between 6:00 and
12:00.

Super RTL reclaimed the title of the most popular
children's channel in Germany, with an audience
share of 20.6 per cent in the target group of 3t0 13
year olds during the 6:00 to 20:15 time slot (2015:
19.3 per cent), ahead of competitors Kika (19.7 per
cent), the Disney Channel {9.5 per cent) and
Nickelodeon (7.9 per cent). The new adaptation of
Bob The Builder and the new series Paw Patrol
attracted average audience shares of 36.7 and 34.1
per cent of the target group respectively. Prime-time
maovies Christmas Vacation and lce Age reached 4.9
and 4.5 per cent of viewers aged 14 to 59.

Launched on 4 June 2016, RTL Plus - the latest
addition to Mediengruppe RTL Deutschiand'’s family
of channels - became the most successful channel
launch in recent years. In 2016, the channel attracted
an average 0.4 per cent of the 14 to 59 target
audience. In December 2016, the channel already
attracted 0.9 per cent of viewers in this target group.

In June 2016, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland and
Gruner + Jahr announced collaboration in the area
of advertising sales, Ad Alliance. As of 1 January
2017, under Ad Alliance's umbrella the respective
sales houses offer high-reach platforms to
advertisers and agencies and develop cross-media
solutions and innovative advertising products.

National audience breakdown
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Digital and diversification activities

RTL Interactive is Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland’s
subsidiary for digital and other diversification
products, including online video. In 2016,
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland - combining the
unit's catch-up TV services, TV sites, thematic
websites, YouTube channels, Facebook pages and
the video streaming service, Clipfish — generated a
total of 1,200 million video views of professionally
produced content — a new record (2015; 1,142
million, excluding YouTube and Facebook).

In March 2016, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland
announced the acquisition of a 93.75 per cent
majority stake in Smartclip, with a call option to
acquire the remaining shares. The purchase price
was €48 millien. Smartclip currently bundles the
online video advertising inventory of 750 publishers
worlgwide, and manages the integration and serving
of video advertising to all internet-connected
devices. Smartclip complements RTL Group's
investments in digital advertising sales, including
SpotX in particular. Approval from Germany’s
Federal Cartel Office was received on 22 April 2016.

In March 2016, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschiand
launched TV Now. This new video service bundles
video content of the Group's eight free-to-air
channels in a single umbrella brand, replacing the
previously separate services associated with
individual channels — RTL Now, Vox Now, N-TV Now,
RTL Nitro Now, Super RTL Now and RTL Il Now.

In May 2016, RTL Il launched its digital video offering
RTL Il You, which is available 24/7 for linear and
on-demand viewing on PC, smart TV and mobile
devices. RTL Il You combines original and licensed
content with exclusive premieres of popular YouTube
stars for its target group of 14 to 25 year olds. The
app has already registered more than 500,000
downloads.

With a digital total reach of 11.99 million unique
users and 145.9 million visits, N-TV reached new
record figures in 2016.
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GROUPE M6

Financial results

The French TV advertising market was
estimated to be up 0.7 per cent comparead to
the previous year, with Groupe M6’s channels
outperforming the market. tn 2016,

Groupe M&’s revenue was slightly up to
€1,283 miltion (2015: €1,254 million), mainty due
to higher TV advertising revenue. Groupe M6's
EBITA was up strongly to €252 million

{2015: €205 million}, mainly driven by the
positive one-off effect from the settiement of
the M6 Mobiile contract amounting to

£42 miltion which more than compensated for
the impact of the higher programming costs
for the Uefa Euro 2016 live broadcasts.

Year 1o Year Ip
December December
2016 2015 Per cent
€m £m change
Heve“ue s s 1|25:§ 1254 - +23
389 325 +19.7
252 205 +22.9

Gorporate

In December, RTL Group anncunced that it plans to
regroup its French radio operations intc Groupe M6.
As part of the internal re-organisation, Groupe M6
plans to acquire 100 per cent ownership of
RTL Group’s market-ieading French radio family
{RTL, RTL 2, Fun Radio, advertising sales house IP
France) for €216 milion on a debt and cash-free
basis. Following the transaction, Groupe M6& will
combine a unique portfolio of TV channels, radio
stations, digital services, content production/rights
trading and diversification. The transaction is, among
others, subject to approval by the French media
authority CSA (Gonseil supérieur de I'Audiovisuef).

S} WO Ster wiiinas
(28 v B

Audience ratings

Groupe Mé's combined audience share was
significantly up tc 23.5 per cent in the key
commercial target group of women under 50
responsible for purchases {2015: 22.5 per centj,
thanks to higher audience shares from M6 and 6ter.

Flagship channel M6 performed remarkably well,
retaining its status as the second most-watched
channel in France among women under 50
responsible for purchases, with an average audience
share of 16.0 per cent (2015: 15.4 per cent) and the
highest growth of all TV channels in the target group
{up 0.6 percentage points.

M6 clearly benefited from the record audiences
achieved by broadcasting 11 matches, including the
final, of the biggest European footbal competition -
Uefa Euro 2016, The live matches were watched by
8.7 million viewers on average, representing a total
audience share of 39.4 per cent. The final between
Portugal and France on 10 July 2016 attracted a
massive 20.8 million viewers (a total audience share
of 71.8 per cent) — the same audience as the final of
the 1998 World Cup between Brazil and France, and
the best audience figure of the tournament. This was
a new all-time audience record for M6, the mast-
watched programme on French tefevision in 2016
and the fifth largest TV audience ever recorded in
France. Apart from sports, M6 progressed with its
major programming brands such as LAmour est
elans fe Pré {The Farmer Wants A Wife), Le Meillieur
Patissier {The Best Baker) or La France a un
tncroyable Talent (Got Taient). M6’s audience share
performance was aiso supported by its access
prime time schedule, including shows such as La
meilleure boulangerie de France and Chasseurs
d'appart. Le 19h45 remained the second most
popular news show among women under 50
responsible for purchases.
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“2016 was an excellent year for

Groupe M6. In a highly

Directors’ report

W9's audience share remained stable with an
average 3.8 per cent among women under 50
responsible for purchases (2015: 3.8 per cent).
Among its target group of viewers under 25, W8 was
the leading DTT channel with an average audience
share of 5.8 per cent. W9 scored high ratings in
various genres including sports (live broadcasts of
Uefa Europa League foctball matches), magazines
{Enquéte d'action and Enquétes Criminelies), movies,
reality TV shows (Les Marseillais South Africa, Les
Ch'tis vs Les Marseillais) and musical documentaries.

fragmented audience market,

we break the traditional
TV rules and set the pace
of innovation in all
types of programmes and
in all our activities.”
NICOLAS DE TAVERNOST

Chairman of the Management Board
of Groupe M&

National audience breakdown
Source Meoiarnétrie Target women « 50 respansiole for purchases
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6ter remained the leading HD DTT channel among
the commercial target group for the fourth consecutive
year, attracting an average audience share of 2.4 per
cent (2015: 2.1 per cent). The channel continued to
increase its total audience share to 1.4 per cent
{2015: 1.1 per cent). The most popular broadcasts
of 2016 included the fifth season of the series Once
{Jpon a Time and the movie X-Men Origins: Wolverine.

Paris Premiére remained the most-watched pay
channel among the total audience, with 11 million
viewers each month, and the most popular general-
interest pay channel in prime time. Téva has
remained the leading pay-TV channel in the target
group of women under 50 responsible for purchases
for & years.

Digital and diversification activities

In 2016, with 20.6 million unique users a month on
average across its network and all devices (PC, tablet
and mobile}, Groupe M8 remained the leading French
TV group online. M6 Web almost doubled its video
views, reaching 2.2 billion online video views (1.2

2016 (%}
billion in 2015). The new version of 6play, launched
during the reporting period, registered 1.5 billion
. 16.0  online videos views (2015: 0.9 billion) and more than

. 3.8 14 million registered users, while Groupe Mé&’s digital
2.4 entertainment platform launched Refresh, featuring
224 short-form video aimed at millennials.
3.6
.40 With the acquisition of iGraal - the leading French
.38 cashback site — and the equity investment in
.38  Elephorm -the leading French producer of e-learning
35  video content - M6 Web has positioned itself in
1.5 strong growth markets and continued its expansion
2.0 into the digital sector. In May, Groupe M6 announced
28 the gradual phase-out of the M6 Mohile by Orange

agreement, resulting in a contractual compensation.
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FREMANTLEMEDIA
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Production business

In 2016, FremantleMedia’s global network of
production companies saw hours broadcast increase
by 16 per cent to 11,981 hours {2015: 10,313 hours);
the total number of FremantleMedia programmes
broadcast worldwide increase by 13 per cent to 423
{2015: 375) and the number of formats aired by 7 per
cent to 61{2015: 57). Combined with FremantleMedia
International’s sales catalogue of more than 20,000
hours which are sold to over 200 termitories,
FremantleMedia remains one of the largest creators

0 Year ta Yoar lo and distributors of award-winning international
ecember Deeember
2016 2015 fercent programme brands in the world.
€m em change
“fsie s g Mom-scripted
T Yge T TTMas 7T T3 In January 2018, the farewell season of
“J1e Ttoz " iég  FremantleMedia's American /dof performed strongly

on Fox in the US, remaining the channel’s number
one entertainment show for eight consecutive years.
The iconic show, which shaped a genre of
entertainment formats, attracted an average 11.2
million viewers and an audience share of 9.7 per
cent amgng viewers aged 18 to 49 and ranked
number one or two for total audience across every
single episode.

Also inthe US, Family Feud hit a new high in Jahuary
2016, with a 7.5 househcld rating* — the highest
since the advent of 'People Meters’ audience
measurement in 1987. On 26 June 20186, the revived
Match Game premiered on ABC in the US, with an
audience share of 4.8 per cent among viewers aged
18 to 49 - the highest summer audience for ABC in
this time slot in nearly ten years.

In the UK, the tenth season of Britain's Got Talent
reached an average audience share of 48.7 per cent
among adults aged 16 to 34, watched by an average
audience of 9.9 million viewers. In September 2016,
ITV signed a new three-year deal for Britain’s Got
Talent and The X Factor, which will see the two
shows continuing on ITV until at least 2019. In
Qctober 2016, Simon Cowell signed a three-year
deal that secures his position as a judge on
America’s Got Talent until at least 2019,

!., | btu |
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FremantleMedia China announced the commission
of the gameshow The Eurcka Moment with CCTV.
The FremantleMedia format, originally created in the
Netherands, was co-develeped for local audiences
with CCTV Creation and premiered on the coveted
CCTV-1 Sunday evening slot in July 20186, ranking
number cne,

Scripted

in January 2016, Deutschiand 83 became the UK's
highest ever rated foreign-language drama launch,
attracting an average audience share of 6.6 per cent
of viewers aged 16 to 34. The show also went on to
win a prestigious Peabody Award in the US in April
and an Internaticnal Emmy in November. A sequel
to the series was announced in October. Deutschiand
86 will be produced by UFA Fiction in partnership
with Amazon Prime Video and RTL Television.
FremantleMedia international will roll out the series
internationally.

In March 2016, the German public broadcaster ZDF
showed the three-part mini-series Ku’damm 56
which was watched by an average audience of 6.0
million viewers, representing an average total
audience share of 17.5 per cent. ZDF commissioned
a second season called Ku'damm 59 in June 2016.

In February, Kwar’s Baron Noir successfully launched
on Canal Plus, achieving a 2.1 per cent audience
share. A second season has already been
commissioned.

In May, the fourth season of Wentworth premiered
on pay-TV channel SoHo in Australia. The latest
season achieved an average total audience share of
5.4 per cent. In July, Faxtel in Australia commissioned
a fifth season of the show, while a Flemish-language
adaptation was commissioned by commercial
Belgian broadcaster, Vier.

Mogrammes 2018 201k

New 2,003 3,25
Rsturring 9,888 8,'58
Total N 11,981 233

“The evolution of FremantieMedia
continued in 2016, with our
organic growth complemented by
the exciting partnerships
we made with some of the best
creative talent in the business.
We delivered bold and ambitious
new programmes, both scripted
and non-scripted, which
achieved both critical and popular
acclaim and helped us deliver
strong margins to RTL Group.”

CECILE FROT-COUTAZ
CEQ, FramantieMedia

The Young Pope became the most popular premiere
for a new series on Sky in Italy, launched as Canal
Plus' number one new international drama of 2016
in France, and was Sky Atlantic’s third most popular
new drama of 2016 in the UK.

In October, the second season of Misoc Film’s
Acquitted became the number one show on TV2
Norway in 2016 winning a 36 per cent audience
share and perfaorming 70 per cent higher than TVZ2's
prime time average (total individuals 2+).

In November, Wildside’s Mafia Only Kills in Summer
launched on Rai in Italy. The series attracted an
average total audience share of 19.5 per cent and a
16.6 per cent share for the target group of adults
aged 15 to 64. The series — which has been sold to
Australia. Turkey and Karea - regularly ranked as the
number one show in its time slot.
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FremantleMedia International

On 24 August 2016, FremantleMedia International
{FMI) announced a deal with Amazon to showcase
its ambitious fantasy drama, American Gods, on
Amazon Prime Video in 2017. The show will be
available on Amazon's SVOD platform in over 200
territories following its US premiere on the pay-TV
channel, Starz.

Together with co-producer territories and FMI sales,
Wildside's The Young Pope has been rolled out in
almost 200 territories around the world.

In October, FremantleMedia International announced
that it had extended its multi-year digital deal with
the China-based portal, Youku by three years. The
deal ensures FMI's premium entertainment and
drama content continues to be available to Chinese
online audiences, averaging 130 million unique
users & day.

Digital & Branded Entertainment

In 2016, FremantleMedia strongly increased its
onling video views and subscribers. The company
reported 19 billion views on YouTube (up from 13.5
billion in 2015) and 40.3 million subscribers across
more than 260 channels (2015 27.4 million).
Elsewhere, FremantleMedia content registered 228
million fans across YouTube, Facebook, Twitter and
Instagrarm.

Europe’s leading multi-channel network, Divimove,
attracted a total of 19 billion online video views in
2016 and increased its subscriber base to 170
million (2015: 135 million subscribers). The network’s
social influencers in  Germany, Spain, the
Netherlands, Waly, Poland and France generated
350 million social media fans (2015: 250 million
fans). The increase in these KPls was partly due to
the company decreasing the number of influencers
it reprasants {fram 1,300 in 2015 to 1,200 in 2016) ta
focus more on the growth of key talent.

In 2016, Ludia launched five new mobile games,
including Teenage Mutant Ninja Turtles: Legends
and Kung Fu Panda: Battle of Destiny. The former
was Best iPad Game Overall in 68 countries and the
latter leading in 16 countries in the same category.
During the reporting period, Ludia’s games were
downloaded 60 million times and reached an
average 2 million daily active users.

On 4 April 2016, FremantleMedia India launched its
first web series exclusively on Facebock. Entitled
Confessions - it's Complicated, the series uses
Facebook Live to enable people to share their
experiences and perspectives in real time. The
seties reached 11 million views.

RTL Group Annual Report 2016

™



72

Cirectors’ report

RTL NEDERLAND

Financial results

The Dutch TV advertising market was estimated
to be down 2.1 per cent year on year. Despite
lower advertising revenue, RTL Nederland's
revenue increased slightly to the record level of
€495 million {2015: €490 miillion}. This increase
was driven by growing platform and sponsoring
revenude and higher revenue from the
company’s live entertainment operations

which typically generate lower margins than

TV broadcasting. This, along with higher
programme costis and investrment in the SVOD
platform Videoland, resulted in an EBITA down
15.8 per cent ta €85 million {2015: €10*% million}.

Year to Year 0
December Ooczmber
2016 2015 Per cent
£€m £m change

Revenue 495 490 410
EBITDA ... % 11 (089
EBITA 101 (15.8)

Audience ratings

Despite the big sporting events being broadcast on
the public channels, RTL Nederland’s channels
reached a combined prime-time audience share of
32.3 per cent in the target group of viewers aged 20
to 49 — only slightly down from 32.7 per cent in
2(115. RTL Nederland's channels remained clearly
ahead of the public broadcasters (25.4 per cent) and
the SBS group (20.0 per cent).

RTL Nederland’s flagship channel, RTL 4, scored an
average prime-time audience share of 18.7 per cent
in the target group of shoppers aged 20 to 49 {2015:
19.4 per cent). Throughout the year, RTL 4 retained
its strong position in the talent genre, with shows
such as The Voice Of Holland {average audience
share: 34.2 per cent in January, and 46.3 per cent
for the autumn season), Dance Dance Dance (35.4
per cent) and Holland’s Got Talent (33.4 per cent).

4 RTLY/ @ Lo rELZ
I SR

On Sundays, RTL 4 scored with drama series such
as Divorce (32.8 per cent) and Moordvrouw {24.6 per
cent). The channel’s access prime-time line-up —
which includes RTL Boulevard, Goede Tijden,
Siechte Tijden and RTL Nieuws - delivered strong
ratings once again. The Christmas special of Alf You
Need Is Love scored record ratings on 24 December,
with an audience share of 42.4 per cent among
shoppers aged 20 to 49.

RTL 5's prime-time audience share remained stable
at 6.2 per cent in the key target group of viewers
aged 20 to 34 (2015: 6.4 per cent). After eight years,
tdofs returned to the Netherlands in 2016. The
launch episode was RTL 5's highest-rated
programme since 2006 and the series registered an
average audience share of 29.9 per cent among
viewers aged 20 to 34. On Thursdays, Expeditie
Robinson performed well, with an average share of
35.0 per cent - the shaw’s best audience ever share.
In access prime time, new launches of Galileo (6.1
per cent) and Get The Fck Qut Of My House (7.2 per
cent} proved popular.

Men’s channel RTL 7 scored an average prime-time
audience share of 6.4 per cent among male viewers
aged 20 to 49 (2015: 6.5 per cent}. Sports remained
the most popular programmes on RTL 7, including
the Darts World Cup 2016 in January (average
audience share: 25.5 per cent), and Uefa Europa
League football matches. 37.0 per cent of target
viewers tuned in to the match between Feyenoord
Rotterdam and Manchester United on 15 September.

The average prime-time audience share of the
women'’s channel RTL 8 remained stable at 3.5 per
cent among women aged 20 to 49 (2015: 3.5 per
cent), with female movies and thrillers among the
most popular broadcasts. /it Takes 2 was the most-
watched movie, with an audience share of 14.7 per
cent, followed by Grease with an audience share of
9.0 per cent.

In its first full year of existence, =7 _ 2 recorded an
audience share of 0.7 per cent in the demographic
of the upper sccial status aged 25 to 59 (September
to December 2015: 0.4 per cent). Undercover Boss
Canada was the most-watched programme, with an
average audience share of 1.1 per cent.
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“These exceptional times present
us with new challenges every day.
We are a healthy company and
that makes it possihle to invest in
several strategic routes. On
one hand we build on the
development of local content, our
channels and numerous digital
initiatives that contribute directly
to the operating result.

On the other hand we invest
in promising activities which
include VOD and the MCN."

BERT HABETS
GED, RTL Nederland

Natienal audience braakdown
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Digital and diversification activities

RTL Nederland’s platforms and partners generated
a total 1,517 million video views™ in 2016 —up 77
per cent from 857 million in 2015, The most popular
formats were Goede Tijden, Slechte Tijden, The
Boid And The Beautifui, RTL Nieuws and RTL Late
Night.

With an average reach of nearly 46 million video
views per month, RTL MCN was the fastest growing
multi-channel network in 2016 in the field of
premium content creators and multi-screen formats
in the Netheriands.

in February 2016, RTL Nederdand entered an
agreement with StukTV, the largest online
entertainment channel in the Netherlands, with
nearly 1 million subscribers and 12 miltion views per
meonth on  YouTube. Through this agreement
RTL MCN became the largest Dutch premium multi-
channel network in the field of entertainment, with
over 70 miifion views per month,

During the year, RTL Ventures sold its interests in
Miinto to Bestsefler.com; the dating platform Pepper
to MatchMedia and Couverts to IENS, a TripAdvisor
company.

2016 was a year of small growth for RTL Nieuws
digital. Websites and apps generated a combined
419 million visits and 1,880 million page views (up 3
per cent on 2015 figures). in April 2016, RTL Nieuws
began using Facebook Instant Articles, where
articles can be accessed more quickly, while the
user is not redirected to the website. According to
Google Analytics, Facebook Instant Articles
generated an additional 13 million page views in
2016.
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RTL BELGIUM

Against the background of a TV advertising
market that was estimated to be up 2.2 per cent
year on year, RTL Belgium’s revenue increased

by 1.0 per cent to €202 million {2015:

€200 million} due to diversification. EBITA was
below the previous year at €43 million (2015:
€45 million), reflecting higher costs in RTL
Belgium's TV and radio business during the

reporting period.

Year to Year fo
December Oeeamber
2016 2015
€m tm
Reveve 202 200
EBMDA %
EBITA 43 45
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Audience ratings

Despite the broadcast of the Uefa Euro 2016
matches on the public channels, RTL Belgium’s
family of TV channels achieved a combined prime-
time audience share of 36.2 per cent among
shoppers aged 18 to 54 (2015: 36.6 per cent),
maintaining its position as the clear market leader in
French-speaking Belgium. RTL Belgium maintained
its comfartable lead over the public channels, with
15.8 percentage points (2015: 17.6 percentage
points).

The flagship channel RTL-TVI grew its audience
share to 26.4 per cent in prime time among shoppers
aged 18 to 54 (2015: 26.2 per cent) ~ 10.4 percentage
points ahead of the number two channel, French
broadcaster TF1, and 12.4 percentage points ahead
of the Belgian public broadcaster, La Une. The most
watched programme of the year on RTL-TVI was the
eighth season of L'amour est dans le pré {The Farmer
Wants A Wife) which scored an average total
audience share of 45.0 per cent. Second were the
evening news show, ATL info, which remained the
most popular news programme in Frehch-speaking
Belgium with an average audience share of 39.6 per
cent (2015: 41.5 per cent), and the Belgian humurist
francois Pirette’s show, with an audience share of
46.0 per cent (2015: 35.0 per cent). Also popular
was Le Meilleur Patissier, with an average audience
share of 41.6 per cent in the target group of
shoppers aged 18 to 54, Throughout the year, the
channel launched several new productions across
all time slots, including docusoaps Brol en Or,
Niveau 4, Police de fa Route and Un Crime parfait.
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Club RTL recorded an audience share of 6.3 per
cent among male viewers aged 18 to 54 (2015: 6.2
per cent). Football remains one of the most popular
broadcasts on the channel through a wide choice of
matches and competitions (Champions League,
Europa League, the Belgian Cup and the new
acquisition: Italian Serie A). The 2016 Champions
League broadcasts attracted an average 15.7 per
cent of men aged 18 to 54. Plug RTL. reported a
prime-time audience share of 6.2 per cent among 15
to 34-year-old viewers (2015: 7.3 per cent). The
channel’s most popular programmes were talk show
Touche pas a mon poste (9.7 per cent) and Secret
Story (19.1 per cent).

According to the CIM audience surveys for 2016,
which combine all three waves of 2016, Bel RTL and
Radio Contact achieved audience shares of 14.4
and 15.4 per cent respectively (2015: 14.4 and 15.0
per cent respectively), among listehers aged 12
years and over. In September 2016, Bel RTL
launched a brand new programme schedule that
involves listeners even more and gives them the
chance to make up their own minds about all kinds
of local issues.

French-speaking Belgium audience breakdown
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“We are proud that our
strategy based on new local
productions allowed us to
maintain our strong
leadership in 2016, despite
the enormous enthusiasm
for the Red Devils team during
the Eure 2016 tournament,
which was broadcast on the
public channels.”

PHILIPPE DELUSEINNE
CED, RTL Belgium

Digital and diversification activities

In 2016, the number of video views across RTL
Belgium's websites decreased to 95 million (2015:
130 million). This decline was ngtably the result of a
technical change that stopped the automatic faunch
of videos and an increase of users using ad blocking
technology. The number of daily visitors to RTL.be
increased to 290,684 (2015: 287,965). RTL Iinfo is
the leading French-speaking news application, with
a daily average of 92,861 unique users — twice as
many as in 2015 (45,700). The SVOD service, RTL &
Vinfini, continued to grow strongly — its Series Pass
recorded a 26 per cent growth in subscribers, while
the whole SVCD service increased its revenue by 11
per cent,
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RTL RADIO (FRANGE)

Financial results

Throughout 2016, the net radio advertising
market in France was estimated tc be down
1.8 per cent compared to the same period
in 2015. Accordingly, total revenue of the
French RTL Radio family decreased to

€164 million (2015: €188 million}. EBITA was
also down at €5 million {2015: €24 million},
mainly reflecting the correction of the
accounting misstatements from previous
years {minus €11 million one-off impact) and
accelerated depreciation of assets ahead
of the move to new buildings in 2017,

Year to Year to

December Oecember
2186 2015 Percent
€m €m change
Revenue 164 188 @4
EBTA 1 2@ 807D
EBITA 5 24 (79.2)

Audience ratings

RTL Radio was the leading station in France for the
13th consecutive year. With the average audience
share growing to 12.5 per cent (2015: 11.8 per cent),
RTL Radio remained ahead of the next commetrcial
competitors NRJ and Europe 1 by 5.7 percentage
points each. At the end of the year (survey covering
November/December 2016), with over 6.8 million
daily listeners, RTL had reached its second best
historical score ever, up 391,000 new listeners
compared to the same period in 2015.

The pop-rock station RTL 2 achieved an average
audience share of 2.7 per cent in 2016 {2015: 2.6 per
cent) and a cumulated audience of 2.5 million daily
listeners (2014: 2.4 million).

M &

“In a very challenging market,
RTL continues to increase
its audience and remains by far
the first French station,
both in radio and on digital.”

CHRISTOPHER BALDELLI
CEOD, RTL Radio (France}

Following a disputed allegation that Fun Radio had
influenced audience results unfairly, Médiamétrie,
RTL Radio (France) is not in a position to publish
audience shares for Fun Radio for the first part of
2016. Fun Radio was reinstated in the ratings survey
from September 2016 and achieved an average
audience share of 4.1 per cent for the four last
maonths of 2016 (2015 unavailaole} and a cumulated
daily audience of 3.5 million listeners, ranking
second most popular music station in France on
both cumulated audience and audience share.

Digital and diversification activities

According to the Médiamétrie / NetRatings global
study, RTL.fr reached an average of more than &
million unique visitors per month, maintaining its
ranking among the 15 most visited French websites.
In 2016, the RTL family of digital brands (RTL,
Fun Radio, RTL2, and Girls) grew by 47 per cent on
podcast consumption, and by 38 per cent on video
streaming, while its social media reach nearly
doubled, with an increase of 80 per cent.
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OTHER SEGMENTS

This segment comprises the fully consolidated
businesses RTL Klub (Hungary), RTL Croatia
(Croatia), RTL Group’s Luxembourgish
activities, the German radio business and the
investment accounted for using the equity
method, Atresmedia in Spain. It also includes
RTL Group’s digital assets - SpotX,
BroadbandTV and StyleHaul - bundled in the
RTL Digital Hub.
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The Hungarian net TV advertising market was
estimated to be down 4.5 per cent in 2016. Total
consolidated revenue of RTL Hungary was up to
€104 million (2015: €100 millicn}) mainly due to
platform revenue from the main channel, RTL Klub,
which could be coliected as of July 2016 for the first
time. EBITA was down to €12 million (2015: €21
million}, mainly because the 2015 EBITA was driven
by one-off effects amounting to €10 millien such as
the partial reversal of a stock valuation allowance
and the re-glaim of over-paid advertising tax. On a
purely operational basis, EBITA was up year-on-year,
as lower ad revenue could be compensated by the
newly started collection of platform revenue from
RTL Klub.

The combined prime-time audience share of the
RTL family of channelsin the key demagraphic of 18
o 49-year-old viewers was 34.3 per cent (2015: 36.9
per cent). The prime-time audience share of
ATL Klub decreased to 18.6 per cent {2015: 20.2
per cent) though the Group's Hungarian flagship
channel remained the clear market leader, 8.8
percentage points ahead of its main commercial
competitor TV2 {(2015: 8.8 percentage points}.

During the year, RTL Klub won 304 prime time
evenings in the target group (2015: 337 evenings).
The most popular programmes were The X-Faktor
with an average audience share of 28.8 per cent in
the target group, the gastro reality show A
Konyhafdnék (Chef Of The Kitchen) with an average
of 24.5 per cent and Gyertek dt! (Hollywood Game
Night} with an average 18.0 per cent. The second
season of Vdldtarsak (Divorce} was the most-
watched weekly series in Hungary in 2016, with an
audience share of 20.6 per cent., The main news
programme Hiradd recorded an average audience
share of 19.0 per cent (2015: 20.4 per cent).
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"The Hungarian market has
gone through numerous changes
in 2016 but I think that we
have properly responded to the
challenges all the time. We
are proud that RTL Klub was by
far the most watched channel
also in 2016, well ahead of TV2.
But our biggest milestone
iast year: introducing a second
revenue stream for RTL Klub.”

GABRIELLA VIDUS
CEQ, RTL Hungary

RTL Hungary's cable channels achieved a combined
prime-time audlence share of 15.7 per cent among
viewers aged 18 to 49 (2015: 16,7 per cent), even
though the competition launched ten new channels
in 2016. With a prime-time audience share of 5.3 per
cent in the target group (2015: 6.5 per cent}, Cool
was once again the leading cable channel in
Hungary. The channel's most watched series was
X-Fifes with an average audience share of 15.6 per
cent. RTL I} registered stable audience shares in
2016, with the channel's most popular shows
including ValoViidg powered by Big Brother (6.4 per
cent} and BeleVald (5.4 per cent). The most watched
programme on Film Plusz — which scored an
average audience share of 5.1 per cent in the target
group {2015: 5.8 per cent} — was The Expendables
3, with an audience share of 13.2 per cent.

RTL Hungary's online portfolio generated a total of 93
million video views of long and short-form content in
2016 (2015: 76 million) — 32 million of which were
recorded on the catch-up platform RTL Most. With
a monthly average of more than 750,000 unique
users (2015: 520,000 unique users), RTL Hungary's
online portfolic is the biggest local TV online video
portfolio with owned and licensed content.

National audience breakdown
Source AGB [lungary. Target 18—49 [uume fime) 2016 (4
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“We outperformed
the market in terms of audiences,
revenues and online activities
in 2016 and improved
our financial performance as
a result. Qur aim for 2017
is to continue this growth.”

HENNING TEWES
CEO, RTL Hrvatska

In Croatia, the TV advertising market was estimated
to be up 2.1 per cent, with RTL Croatia clearly
outperforming the market as increasing audience
shares led to increasing prices for advertising on
RTL Croatia’s quality content. Accordingly, total
revenue of RTL Croatia increased to €38 million
(2015: €35 million), while EBITA was up to €2 million
(2015 €1 million), reflecting higher advertising
revenue.

RTL Croatia’s channels achieved a combined prime-
time audience share of 28.6 per cent in the target
group of viewers aged 18 to 49 (2015: 27.5 per cent)
~ an increase of 1.1 percentage points, and the
highest level since 2007. The main channel,
RTL Televizija, recorded a slight decrease in
average prime-time audience share to 18.2 per cent
(2015: 19.8 per cent}, mainly due to popular sporting
events such as the Uefa Euro 2016 and the Olympics
on competing channels. The year on RTL Televizija
started with the broadcast of the Men's World
Handball Championship. On  average, the 21
matches broadcast reached an average audience of
28.0 per cent in the target group, while the match
between Croatia and Spain drew an audience share
of 55.0 per cent. Ljubav je na selu, the local version
of The Farmer Wants A Wife, was a hit in both spring

(average audience share: 30.1 per cent) and autumn
{(average audience share: 25.5 per cent), while the
main news programme, RTL Danas, reached an
average 19.9 per cent (2015: 22.6 per cent).

RTL 2 increased its prime-time audience share to
7.4 per cent (2015: 6.5 per cent), thanks to its strong
US programming. US sitcoms such as Big Bang
Theory, and Two And A Half Men continued to be a
vital part of the channel’s offering, while the channel
also introduced docu series such as Storage Wars,
Pawn Stars and American Pickers in prime-time. The
children's channel RTL Kockica increased its
average audience share among children aged 4 to
14 between 7:00 and 20:00 to 19.4 per cent (2015:
16.0 per cent). The channel's new prime-time line-up
- which includes classic sitcoms such as Alf, Allo,
Allo and You Rang M'Lord? —resulted in a significant
increase in prime-time audience share, reaching 3.0
per cent of the target group of viewers aged 18 to
49 {2015: 1.2 per cent).

July 2016 saw the launch of a seventh channel from
RTL Croatia. RTL Croatia World is the first channel

aimed at Croats living outside Croatia and

broadcasts a mix of locally produced news and
entertainment shows.

In 2016, RTL Croatia accelerated its digital growth
strategy and significantly strengthened its portfolio
of websites. By the end of 2016, RTL Croatia’s
digital network gathered more than 20 different
websites, ranging from its three core brands to
female verticals, casual gaming and regional portals.
At the same time it increased its total number of
page views by 53 per cent and video views by 4 per
cent compared to 2015,

National avdience breakdown
Source AGB Miglsen Meoia Research. “arget 18—48 jpnme time) 2016 (%;
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In 2016, RTL was onge again the leading media
brand in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg.
Combining its TV, radio and internet activities, the
RTL Luxembourg media family achieved a daily
reach of 83.8 per cent {2015: 85.0 per cent) of all
Luxembourgers aged 12 and over.

RTL Radio Létzebuerg is the station listeners turn
to for news and entertainment, with 194,100 tuning
in each weekday (2015: 195,200).

The TV channel RTL Télé Létzebuerg attracts
146,100 viewers each day {2015 144,200),
representing a prime-time audience share of 49.8
per cent of Luxembourgish viewers aged 12 and
over, Monday to Friday, 19:00 to 20:00 (2015: 47.6
per cent).

RTL.lu continues to be the country’s mest visited
website, with a daily reach of 37.5 per cent among
Luxemicourgers aged 12 and over {2015; 36.8 per
cent). With the re-launch of the Sminutes.iu website
and applications in 2015, ATL Luxembourg
strengthened its position in the French-speaking
market in Luxembourg and beyond.

In 2016, RTL Télé Létzebuerg maintained its high
audience figures by strengthening its focus on local
news, sports, culture and current affairs. The total
airtime for live coverage of international sporting
events has again been extended, in particular for
world leading cycling races and major footbalt
competitions such as Champions' League matches
or the European Qualifiers.

RTL Luxembaury DAILY REACH
Scurce TNS !l Res Plurimedia 2016-1. Target 12+ 2016 %)
AT_Padoléle o sar
RLTelew o 38
RT_u : 37.5

RTL Luxembourg e 3.8

In 2016, Breadcasting Center Europe (BGE)
prepared toc move the technical infrastructure to
RTL Group’'s new Corporate Centre, RTL City. With
the goal of maintaining its technological edge, BCE
seized the opportunity to migrate to a fuli IP-based
architecture, and to install a state-of-the art playout

“In 2016, RTL was once again
the leading media brand in
the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg,
reaching 83.8 per cent
of the Luxembourgish population
every day.”

ALAIN BERWICK
CEO, RTL Luxembourg until 31 December 2016

and IT infrastructure. BCE also finalised its new
teleport in Junglinster {Luxembourg), which provides
broadcasters with direct access to numerous
satellites for worldwide coverage. The site is
connected to both RTL City and BCE’s telecom
network.

In Croatia, BCE installed a file-based production
system for HRT, the naticnal public service
broadcaster. Without changing the customer’'s
complete workflow, the new praoduction asset
management system offers new possibilities for
HRT in the future.

The newly founded BCE France, located in Paris,
worked on the mass digitisation of HBS Professional
Football League archives. HBS selected BCE’s
Digital Media Operations to digitise, screen and
transcode its content.

Qutside Europe, BCE connected ENEX into the
Middle East with Al Arabiya thanks to its newsroom
and news distribution system: Newslink. Al Arabiya
is part of the MBC Media Group based in Dubai.
MBC is the region’s leading privately owned
television company, with 23 different channels
serving its audience on free-to-air and subscription-
based chanrels.
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“ln 2016, we continued to shape
the transformation process
that will enrich linear programmes
by interactive, mobile and
user-centred offers. With this
strategy we are creating
a new approach to radio in the
digital world that will make
our content even more special:
anything, anywhere, anytime.”

GERT ZIMMER
CEQ, RTL Radic Deutschland

RTL Radic Deutschland reported increased
revenue of €53 million in 2016 (2015: €51 million),
while EBITA was up to €9 million (2015; €8 million).
Revenue increased due to an outstanding national
and regional sales performance, despite a loss in
reach in 2016.

Radio usage in Germany was slightly up, reaching
78.7 per cent of the adult population (up
1.3 percentage points) and 77.0 per cent of listeners
aged 14 to 49 {up 0.4 percentage points) each day,
while average net reach per hour among listeners
aged 10 and above decreased by 2.4 per cent.

RTL Group’s German radio portfolio performed’

slightly below the market (down 3.0 per cent), mainly
resulting from a disproportionate loss of reach in the
federal states of Lower Saxony and Saxony-Anhalt,
which affected the local stations.

Berlin-based radic station, 104.6 RTL, celeorated its
25th anniversary in 2016. In Germany's most
competitive radio market, Berlin, which has a total
market of around 30 FM stations, 104.6 RTL
remained the clear market leader. The youth station
of RTL Radio Center Berlin — 93.6 Jam FM -
increased strongly {up 10.6 per cent, net reach per
hour amang listeners aged 10 and over).

Germany's most  popular  radio  station,
Antenne Bayern, maintained its high reach with
1.2 million listeners per day. Audience figures for
Radioc Hamburg also remained stable and the
station retained its market leadership.

Radio NRW, the broadcaster providing programme
components for the local radio stations in North
Rhine-Westphalia, recorded slight growth, reaching
1.6 milliont listeners per day (up 1.1 per cent).

With the foundation of the Digital Media Hub (DMH)
at the beginning of 2016, RTL Radio Deutschiand is
taking a significant step into the digital future. The
digital unit is a strategic and technical partner for
radio stations. DMH bundles the online develapment
activities of various stations from the radio portfolio
and creates a central technological platform.

At the end of 2016, RTL Group's German radio
portfolio comprised investments In 17 stations, most
of which are minority holdings because of
constraints in media ownership in Germany. In total,
these stations reach more than 23 million listeners
each day (2015: 23 million), and have a combined
average audience of approximately 4.8 million
listeners per hour (2015: 4.9 million).
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Atresmedia in Spain: The Spanish TV advertising
market increased by an estimated 5.5 per cent in
2016. The Atresmedia family of channels achieved a
combined audience share of 29.7 per cent in the
new commercial target group of viewers aged 25 1o
58 (2015: 29.2 per cent), The main channel,
Antena 3, recorded an audience share of 12.8 per
cent {2015: 13.5 per cent} in the commercial target
group.

On a 100 per cent basis, consolidated revenue of
Atresmedia was up 5.2 per cent to €1,021 million
{2015: €870 million), while operating profit (EBITDA)
increased to €202 million (2015: €166 million} and
net profit was €129 million (2015: €39 million). The
profit share of RTL Group was €25 million {2015:
€19 million).

National audience breakdown
Source TNS Sofres. Targe™ 16— 54 2016 (%)
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RTL Digital Hub

In June 2015, RTL Group announced the creation of
the RTL Digital Hub, a new unit bundling the
company's investments in the online video segment,
in particular BroadbandTV, StyleHaul and SpotX.
RTL Digital Hub also includes the BroadbandTV
subsidiary YoBoHo and the shareholdings in Clypd
— a company specialising in the automated sale of
TV advertising - and VideoAmp — a platform for
cross-screen data optimisation.

“We're seeing a continuing
expansion and sophistication of
automated monetisation
in the video space as publishers
look for ways to maximise
their video yield.”

MIKE SHEHAN
CEQ, SpotX

SpotX, an inventory platform for premium publishers
and broadcasters, is building solutions to help
monetise inventory across all screens and all
streams. SpotX continued to grow strongly in 20186,
with global headcount up 26 per cent and a 18 per
cent increase in net revenue year on year The
company continues to work closely with RTL Group
to leverage synergies and shared knowledge as the
business expands into Europe and Asia-Pacific.
More than 12 billion video ad calls are processed
daily via SpotX as of December 2016 (2015: 7.5
billion). Throughout the year, SpotX registered 180
million ad impressions served on a daily basis (2015:
175 million).

Thanks to an agreement with Newsy, SpotX became
one of the first companies to monetise via Apple’s
TVOS in 2016. Newsy helps advertisers target
millennials who watch its videc news reports on
Connected TV, desktop and mobile devices. The
Apple TV app by Newsy was named a “Best of
2015" app by Apple. SpotX also signed agreements
with companies including LiveRamp, MediacCorp,
Gameloft Advertising Solutions and Anypoint Media.
The partnership with Anypoint Media will bring
addressable programmatic TV to the JAPAC region
at the household level for the first time.
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“We’re now the number one
distributor of short form video
content. Our vision is to build one
of the world's strongest
ecosystems in online video, which
is a combination of operating
strong brands, producing
captivating content, innovating
leading technologies, and smart
distribution and monetisation
across the board.”

SHAHRZAD RAFATI
Founder & CEQ, BroadhandT¥

In 2016, BroadbandTV became the largest global
muiti-channel network (MCN) on YouTube
worldwide. BroadbandTV now leads the MCN
market in unique views, total impressions, and total
minutes watched. Throughout  the  year,
BroadbandTV registered a total of 206 billion video
views — up 246 per cent from 2015, while revenue
increased 131 per cent year on year.

In 20186, Broadband TV and The National Basketball
Association (NBA) announced the launch of NBA
Playmakers, a groundbreaking community for video
creators focused on basketbali and basketball
culture. The first-of-its-kind millennial video network
gives the creator community and NBA fans the
chance to produce basketball-related content and
share it across the NBA Playmakers network, which
spans YouTube, the NBA's digital assets, and other
platforms.

The company alsa continued its content ficensing
suceess with major SVOD platforms, and announced
a partnership with Netflix, the world's largest
streaming-subscription service. The partnership
Includes Netflix licensing content from Broadlband TV's
kids and family brand, HooplaKidz, following an
ariginal content partnership with Amazon.

“We’'ve seen great growth and
success in 2016 through
the diversification of StyleHaul's
verticals, tremendous
developments in product and
data, and continued
advancements in large brand
partnerships and original
programming.”

STEPHANIE HORBACZEWSKI
Founder & CEQ, StyleHaul

StyleHaul continues to ba the leading global network
for fashion, beauty and women’s lifestyle content with
5,000 creators and a community of over 500 million
fans across four social platforms. in 2016, StyleHaul
registered a total of 25.2 billion views — up 60.1 per
cent compared to 2015 (15.7 billion video views).
Revenue increased by 54 per cent year on year.

StyleHaul launched two new verticals in 2016 to
answer the growing demand for millenniat mums’
and men’s style content from both the creator and
advertiser communities. The millennial mums’
vertical consists of roughly 900 StyleHaul creators
that produce motherhood and family content, driving
40 million monthly views, while Hauk, the men's
style vertical, generates over 1 billion views each
month with content from 70 leading male creators.

In May 2016, StyleHaul held its second NewFronts
presentation, announcing its second scripted series,
Relationship Status, distributed on Verizon's new
platform, go90. An official selection at the 2016
Tribeca Film Festival, Relationship Status is an
ensemble dramedy that follows millennials as they
experience the highs and lows of dating in the digital
and social media age.
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NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY (CH)

RTL Group believes that CR adds value not only to
the societies and communities it serves, but also to
the Group and its businesses. Acting responsibly
and sustainably enhances the Group’s ability to
remain successful in the future. In 2016, RTL Group
adopted a new Mission Statement, which defines
what the Group does, what it stands for and how
RTL Group employees communicate, both with the
outside world and with each other. It also includes a
commitment to embrace independence and
diversity in the Group's people, content and
businesses, demonstrating that CR is integral to the
Group’s mission. RTL Group believes it is important
to have a set of guiding principles and values.

In 2012, RTL Group created a CR Council (CRC)
with the aim of advancing environmental, social and
governance issues. The CRC meets three times a
year to work on RTL Group’s material CR issues and
their implications for human resources, investor
relations, legal, compliance, risk and
communications. It consists of experts in these
areas at RTL Group’s Corporate Centre in
Luxembourg and is currently chaired by Oliver
Fahlbusch, the Group’s Executive Vice President of
Corporate Communications & Marketing. in March
2014, RTL Group expanded its CR task force Group-
wide, to create the RTL Group CR Network, which
consists of CR representatives from RTL Group's
profit centres as well as the Corporate Centre. The
CR Network meets once a year to share knowledge
and best practices, enabling the CRC to gain a
greater understanding of local initiatives.

RTL Group’s CR activities focus primarily on the
following issues: editorial and journalistic
independence, protection of media users and
customers, denations and aid projects, education
and training for employees, workplace diversity and
fair working conditions. These issues were identified
in a materiality analysis conducted in 2014 in close
consultation with Bertelsmann, the Group’s majority
shareholder. Althcugh the analysis did not deem
environmental and climate protection to be ameng
the most material issues for RTL Group, the Group
is nevertheless strongly committed to this issue and
therefore includes it in this chapter.

RTL Group’s Corporate Responsibility Report 2016
provides mare details about the materiality analysis
and its findings. The analysis will be updated in
2017. The above-mentioned material issues provide

the structure for the CR Report 2016, part of the
RTL Group Annual Report 2016. The CR Report
provides a comprehensive overview of the Group’s
CR strategy and initiatives as well as the results
achieved. The following paragraphs of the Directors’
report supplement the CR Report with disclosures
of non-financial and diversity information required
by the European Directive 2014/95/EU and by the
provisions of the law of 23 July 2016 regarding the
publicaticn of non-financial and diversity information
in Luxembourg. Charitable donations, aid projects
and product diversity are not directly relevant to this
directive and are therefore disclosed in RTL Group’s
CR Report 2016 only.

RTL Group's Annual Report 2017, which will be
published in 2018, will include a reference to a
separate non-financlal statement. The statement,
which will be published on RTL Group’s website
(RTLGroup.com) by 30 June 2018, will consist of all
legally mandated non-financial disclosures.

Compliance

Violating laws and regulations is not only inconsistent
with RTL Group's values; it is also damaging for the
Group’s business. Non-compliance may pose risks
to RTL Group's reputation, impede its ability to
achieve strategic objectives, endanger its business
success, and can expose its people to criminal or
civil actions. Responsible and ethical behaviour
towards RTL Group's audiences, employees,
advertisers, business partners, the creative
community as well as government agencies and
regulators, is therefore integral to the Group’s value
system. The RTL Group Code of Conduct sets
binding minimum standards for responsible
behaviour for everyone at RTL Group. It includes a
decision-making guide that clarifies how to comply
with RTL Group standards in cases of doubt.

The Audit & Compliance department designs and
implements RTL Group’s Compliance Management
System and provides support and assistance on
compliance matters. It also reports regulary to
RTL Group's Audit Committee {see p. 61) and the
Corporate Compliance Committee on  any
compliance matters that have arisen. Profit centres
are required to report significant compliance
incidents tc RTL Group’s Audit & Compliance team.

RTL Group’s Compliance Management Systern can
only be effective if employees are familiar with the
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principles of the Code of Conduct and put them into
practice. The Group therefore provides regular
compliance training and takes steps to make
employees aware of emerging fraud and corruption
issues. In 20186, 4,400 people -~ 47.5 per cent of the
Group's permanent workforce - completed
compliance training (300 received classroom training,
3,500 received online training). In the 2016 employee
survey, 78 per cent of respondents stated that they
feel well informed about the Code of Conduct {the
Group conducts an employee survey every three
years, the participation rate in 2016 was 85 per cent).

If employses have questions about compliance
issues or need to report a suspected violation, they
can talk to their supervisor, a senior manager, or any
of the following RTL Group departments: HR, Legal,
Finance, or Audit & Comptiance. Employees and
external stakeholders wishing to remain anonymous
can contact the RTL Group compliance team by
means of a secure, anonymous web-based system.
They can also contact an independent
ombudsperson, who is bound by an obligation of
confidentiality. English-speaking ombudspersons
can be contacted from anywhere in the worid, or
written to in any language.

RTL Group strives to resolve compliance issues as
quickly and equitably as possible, as well as in
accordance with applicable laws and reguiations.
The persons handling the case listen carefully to the
individual reporting the issue - first to ensure a
thorough understanding and second to determine
the best approach to take. They will find out all the
relevant measures that would appear to be
appropriate, including safeguarding the rights of the
accused.

Business partner principles

RTL Group’s commitment to responsible and ethical
business conduct extends to its business partners,
In 2016, the Group articulated this commitment in
the RTL Group Business Fartner Principles, which
set minimum standards for responsible business
relationships. RTL Group encourages its business
partners and any entities or individuals they hire to
work for, or on behalf of, to be familiar with these
minimum standards and to commply with them. f
business partners or their stakeholders have
guestions about the Group’s standards or want to
report a violation, they can contact the RTL Graup
compiiance team directly or, if they wish to remain
anonymous, by a secure, anonymous web-based
system. They can also contact an independent
ombudspersaon.

Anti-corruption

RTL Group takes a zero-tolerance stance to any form
of corruption. This stance is codified in RTL Group’s
Anti-Corruption Policy. RTL Group condemns ail
forms of corruption and bribery. Offering or
accepting a bribe of any kind to or from any person
in either the public or private sectors is strictly
prohibited. These standards can only be attained
and maintained through the actions and conduct of
everyone at RTL Group. It is the cbligation of alt
employees to conduct themselves in a manner that
ensures these standards are maintained.

A violation of any anti-bribery law can have severe
legal consequences. For RTL Group, consequences
can include civil and criminal prosecution, penalties
and fines, debarment from government contracts,
loss of export or other business licenses, loss of
revenue and reputational risks. Employees, too, may
face severe consequences for violations, including
disciplinary measures that could include termination
{as provided by, and in accordance with, local labour
laws), civil and criminal prosecution, fines and
penalties, potentially including incarceration.

This policy is fully endorsed by RTL Group's
Executive Commitiee and Board of Directors.
RTL Group considers a breach of this policy as a
serious cffence. Any violation will result in disciplinary
action, which could include dismissal of an individual
in appropriate circumstances, as provided by and in
accordance with local labour laws.

To ensure employees are aware of this policy and its
principles, RTL Group conducts regular training
sessions. In addition, the RTL Group compliance
team regularly shares knowledge about the risks of
corrupticn and fraud, as well as good practices to
mitigate these risks, with the Group’s profit centres.

In 2016, RTL Group received no reports of alleged
violations involving anti-corruption and bribery
matters.

Information security and data protection

Information and information systems are vitally
impartant assets to RTL Group. RTL Group has an
information security policy that describes the
security and control expectations for RTL Group IT
systems as well as the responsibility of users of
RTL Group IT systems. All organisational units must
ensure all users of RTL Group IT systems adhere to
this policy. Any infringements are to be dealt with
appropriately as determined by each organisational
unit. To ensure employees are aware of the
information security policy and its principles,
RTL Group conducts regular training sessions.

RTL Group Annual Report 2016



86

Directors' report

RTL Group initiated a new IT security awareness
training module in July 2016. 510 employees
participated in this module by the end of 2016.

RTL Group's IT Governance Committee (ITGCo) is
responsible for ensuring the Group adcpts a
thorough and structured approach to IT governance.
Members of the ITGCo are RTL Group’s CFO,
Deputy CFO, Head of Group IT and IT representatives
of the three largest business units as well as a
representative from RTL Group’s Audit & Compliance
department. s mission is to align IT and the
business and to identify and mitigate |T-related risks.
It convenes three times a year. As part of the averall
risk management, Group IT runs a yearly assessment
of the IT risks to identify mitigation measures and
gain management approval on new IT security
investments. Group IT organises information security
workshops and [T Integration Days. The purpose
was to communicate the corporate IT vision,
strategy, policies and related compliance processes.

RTL Group collects, retains, uses and transmits
personal data relating to employees, customers and
third parties with great care and sensitivity and in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
RTL Group’s commitment to data protection is stated
explicitly in the Group’s Code of Conduct and its
information security policy. All erganisational units are
committed to protecting personal data pertaining to
clients, suppliers and employees. RTL Group
personnel involved in collecting, retaining, using or
transmitting personal data receive guidance and
support from the RTL Group legal team and data
protection officers. In April 20186, the Eurcpean Union
adopted the General Data Protection Regulation
(GDPR). The GDPR, which will take effect in all
mempber states in May 2018, is intended to strengthen
and unify data pratection for individuals in the EU
through a range of new or stricter requirements.

RTL Greup will update its existing policies and will
also introduce new policies to comply with the
GDPR. RTL Group is a decentralised and diversified
media company. Each of RTL Group’s business
units is therefore responsible for taking measures to
ensure it complies with the GDPR’s requirements.
This process is steered and monitored by the
RTL Group Corporate Legal team together with the
Audit & Compliance team. In 2016, RTL Group
established a Privacy Office in Luxembourg with a
mission to implernent the nacessary steps to ensure
compliance with the GDPR in Luxembourg and to
preserve and enhance privacy protection for all
individuals whose personal data are handled by
RTL Group’s Luxembourg-based businesses.

Respect for human rights

Respect for human rights is an integral part of
RTL Group’s Code of Conduct. RTL Group respects
the dignity and individual rights of its employees and
of third parties it has business relations with, The
Group also respects employees’ right to freedom of
association and collective bargaining. RTL Group
condemns forced or child labour and any form of
exploitation or discrimination, and complies fully
with applicable laws.

Moreover, being a media company enables RTL Group
to play a crucial role in supporting people's right to
freedom of opinion, self-expression and information —
across all media and frontiers. This role brings with it
the responsibility to operate ethically and to maintain
editorial and journalistic independence in news
gathering and distribution. This independence is the
foundation of RTL Group’s publishing, broadcasting
and news reporting, and is exernplified by the editor-
in-chief principle. Under this principle, all editorial
decisions are made solely by the editor-in-chief
without any interference from senior management,
thereby ensuring journalistic independence across
RTL Group. This principle is stated explicitly in
RTL Group's Code of Conduct, new Mission
Statement and the RTL Group Newsroom Guidelines.
In 2017, KTL Group plans to revise these guidelines,
which were established in 2012.

More broadly, Bertelsmann has formed a waorking
group on press freedom and journalistic and editorial
independence. This group consists of members of
RTL Group's management and editorial staff, as well
as of other Bertelsmann divisions and is chaired by
RTL Group's CR Chairman. It meets annually to
share ideas and information about matters ranging
from the editorial independence of advertising
clients to the obligation to maintain free speech
even in the face of harsh public criticism.

Editorial and journalistic independence is a crucial
facet of RTL Group's ability to attract talented
journalists, to maintain its reputation as a trusted and
impartial news source, and to minimise complaints
and legal issues. If viewers and listeners begin to
question this independence, they may turn to
competing news sources. Maintaining editorial and
journalistic independence is therefore essential for
the sustainability of the Group’s news operations
and far long-term business success.
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Employees

RTL Group’s business is a people business, buiit on
employees' creativity and dedication. Attracting and
retaining the right talent at every level, from
individual contributors to executives in creative and
management roles, as well as popular entertainers
for the Group's content across all platforms {linear
TV channels, radio stations and digital non-linear
services), is necessary for avoiding disruptions in
the conduct of a thriving and successful business
that aims at achieving its strategic targets. To remain
an attractive employer and a successful media
company, the Group needs to reflect the audiences
it inferms and entertains, ensure equal oppertunity
and provide an inclusive and enjoyable workplace.
In 2016, RTL Group reinforced these commitments
in a new Diversity Statement, which it expects all
RTL Group companies to comply with. If employees
have questions about diversity issues, ot need to
report a suspected violation, they can use the same
reporting channels as for compliance issues. These
efforts have met with success: in 2016, 83 per cent
of employees who took the employee survey stated
that they enjoy their work and 85 per cent that
RTL Group provides a work environment in which
people from different backgrounds and cultures feel
inckuded and valued.

RTL Group is committed to the International Labour
Qrganisation’s eight fundamental conventions as a
matter of course. The Group’s corporate culture is
founded on fairness, partnership, mutual trust
and commitment. The company, its employees and
their representatives work together for mutual
benefit. If, after careful consideration, management
decides on staff reductions, these are implemented
in a socially responsible manner, while engaging in
a constructive dialogue with the respective
employee representatives. RTL Group also respects
employees’ rights to freedom of association and
collective bargaining. Employee representatives
may not be hindered in the exercise of their duties
or discriminated against in any way.

Another aspect of RTL Group’s commitment to its
employees is to foster their development, and for
pay to be fair and not gender-discriminating. As the
business shifts from national to global structures,
professional growth is facilitated by internal and
international mobility. This broadens employees’
competencies, cuitural harizons, and understanding
of the Group’s various business models, working
cultures and leadership styles. In 2014, RTL Group
compiled a ‘mebility peal’ of about 200 employees
eager to work abroad. The Group reviews potential
candidates fram the pool before recruiting outside
candidates. As of 30 June 2016, 77 employees had

taken assignments, ranging from short-term to
permanent, at an RTL Group subsidiary in another
department, business unit or country. Mability
Ambassadors at the Corporate Centre and at the
Group'’s business units support this process and
serve as the contact point for interested employees.
To increase transparency across the broader
organisation, RTL Group and Bertelsmann combine
their vacancies and post them on their intranets
Backstage and Benet. In the years ahead, the Group
intends to create a unified Group-wide job board for
the Peoplenet platform — a commen HR platform for
all business units.

Remuneration at RTL Group is based on objective
criteria in line with market standards and statutory
requirements. The same applies to the remuneration
of freelancers and temporary staff, ensuring that
such labour relationships do not compromise or
circumvent employee rights. To promote employees’
development, the Group conducts talent
management and succession planning as well as
training programmes, also in collaboration with
Bertelsmann University.

As a responsible employer, RTL Group complies
with applicable health and safety laws and
regulations. The Group strives to preserve a safe,
healthy and gratifying working environment and
reports that 66 per cent of the respondents to the
2016 employee survey said that they are able to
maintain a healthy work-life balance.

Environmental protection

RTL Group is a media company with no industrial
operations. It therefore does not consuma significant
amounts of raw materials or fossil fuel and is not a
major polluter. Consequently, environmental and
climate protection are not among the most material
aspects of the Group's CR effort.

Nevertheless, RTL Group strives to conserve natural
resources and to minimise its impact on the
environment and the earth’s climate. This applies in
particular to the consumption of electricity, which is
responsible for most of the Greup’s carbon emissions.
RTL Group therefore continually looks for ways to
reduce the amount of electricity used to air-condition
the Group’s office buildings, studios and data centres
and to power broadcast equipment and data servers.
Since 2008, RTL Group has measured and published
its carbon footprint* every two years, and annually
since 2015. In 2010, the Group set a target of
reducing its annual carbon emissions by 20 per cent
by 2020 relative to a 2008 baseline of 72.738 tonnes
{including scope 1, 2, and 3 {only business travel) ).
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The total amount of carbon emitted by RTL Group in
2015 was 54,800 tons®, a reduction of 25 per cent
compared to 2008 levels due to local investment in
energy-saving measures and the general
improvement in business units’ infrastructure. The
decrease of 25 per cent is partly related to a change
in reporting — from a ‘location-based’ approach to a
‘market-based’ approach. Accordingly, RTL Group
takes the specific emissions from the electricity
supply contract instead of the national grid average.
Without that change, emissions would only be 11
per cent lower compared to 2008.

Environmental indicators according to GRI! G4

Materials

EN1  Paper ftotal purchase volume}
EN2 ) Faper sustalnabfe paper

RTL Group's main environmental indicators are
shown in the table below. The Group’s reporting is
based on the Global Reporting Initiative's G4
sustainability reporting guidelines.
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INNOVATION

RTL Group's inncvation management is focused on
three core topics: developing and acquiring new,
high-quality TV formats; using all digital means of
distribution; and expanding diverse forms of
marketing and monetisation. RTL Television focuses
on locally produced, creative content, supported by
a dedicated programme development department.
Over the next few years the Group expects to see
early results in its programming. Elsewhere,
Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland worked with NBC
Universal and TF1 to co-produce original US-style
procedural TV dramas - the first time Eurcpean
broadcasters have partnered with a major US media
company for a deal of this nature. The first project
evolving from this partnership — the thriller series
Gone - was announced in November 2016. The
highly acclaimed series The Young Pope - produced
by FremantleMedia’s Wildside for Sky, HBO and
Canal Plus — celebrated its worlid premiere at the
Venice Film Festival. FremantleMedia North
America’s adaptation of Neil Gaiman's acclaimed
contemporary fantasy novel, American Gods, will
premiere on the US pay-TV channel Starz in April
Z017.

In 2016, RTL Group enhanced and strengthened its
position in the growing online video market, with a
focus on aggregation and monetisation. Online
video advertising is currently the fastest-growing
segment in  digital advertising, driven by
programmatic video advertising. This business is

especially based on technological expertise. In
spring 2016, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland
acquired Smartclip, which bundies the online video
advertising inventory of 700 publishers worldwide,
and manages the integration and delivery of video
advertising to all internet-connected devices. As a
strong sales house and technologicali innovator,
Smartclip also creates solutions for Connected TV
and multiscreen advertising. Smartclip complements
RTL Group's investments in digital advertising sales,
in particular SpotX — one of the world's leading
platforms for programmatic online video advertising.

FremantleMedia founded more dedicated digital
studios in 2018, including Tiny Riot in the
Netherlands, and produces original web content
such as the Facebook series Confessions — It's
Complicated in India.

Synergy Committees and the RTL Digital Hub are
used for exchanging information and knowledge at
RTL Group. In the age of digitalisation, the role of
‘big data’ —in the form of cookies, clusters or cross-
device analytics - is becoming ever more prominent.
The aggregation and exploitation of data is
becoming increasingly more important for
RTL Group, its advertising customers and ultimately
consumers. With this in mind, Mediengruppe RTL
Deutschland created the role of Head of Smart Data
- reporting directly to the Chief Strategy Officer — in
July 2016.
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SIGNIFICANT LITIGATIONS

Provisions for litigations correspond to the Group's
best estimate of the expected future cash outflow
related to disputes arising from the Group’s activities
{see note 8.13.1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements).

RTL Group is party to legal proceedings in the
normal course of its business, both as defendant
and claimant. The main legal proceedings to which
RTL Group Is a party are disclosed below.

Several subsidiaries of the Group are being sued by
broadcaster RTL 2 Fernsehen GmbH & Co. KG and
its sales house El Cartel Media GmbH & Co. KG
before the regional court in Dilsseldorf in Germany
seeking disclosure of information in order to
substantiate a possible claim for damages. The
proceedings succeed the imposition of a fine in
2007 by the German Federal Cartel Office for the
abuse of market dominance with regard to discount
scheme agreements ("share deals”) 1P Deutschland
GmbH and SevenOne Media GmbH granted to
media agencies. The German Federal Cartel Office
argued that these discounts would foreclose the
advertising market for small broadcasters. In 2014,
the court of Disseldorf decided to order an expert
report. The expert has not yet rendered his report.
Similar proceedings of other small broadcasters
initiated in different courts were unsuccessful or
have been withdrawn.

Brandi Cochran was employed as a model on the
television series The Price Is Right from July 2002
until February 2010 and was claiming wrongful
termination and other allegations due to her gender
and pregnancy. Her claim was brought against

FremantleMedia North America (“FMNA”). The Court
entered judgment in January 2013 and awarded her
damages in the amount of USD 9 million
(compensatory damages of USD 1 million and
punitive damages of USD 8 million; subject to
interest at the rate of 10 per cent per annum until
paid) pius attorney’s fees. FMNA appealed the
verdict. FMNA also filed a post-trial motion for a new
trial, which was granted in March 2013 (and the
verdict was vacated). In December 2014, the
Appellate Court remanded the parties for a new trial,
which was set to begin in April 2016. However, in
February 2016, the parties reached a settlement
agreement, which resolved this matter. The related
cash-out in 2016 was USD 3 millign, net of insurance
reimbursement, without significant impact on the
income statement.

In June 2016, the main competitors of Fun Radio
alleged that a host of the morning show had
influenced Fun Radio’s audience ratings by
encouraging his listeners to give favourable
treatment to Fun Radio in the Médiamétrie surveys.
In response tc these allegations, Médiamétrie called
a special committee, which ultimately decided to
remove Fun Radio from Médiameétrie’s survey to be
published in July 2016. Following a legal procedure
inttiated by Fun Radio, Médiamétrie was required to
reinstate Fun Radio in the ratings surveys as from
September 2016 but, since then, decided to lower
Fun Radio’s audience results, arguing a possible
“halo effect”. Thereafter, Fun Radio initiated a
procedure to challenge the scientific reliability of the
Mediamétrie calculation. In December 2016, the
main competitors of Fun Radio also filed a claim for
damages, claiming unfair competition.
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GORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties are disclosed in
note 4 to the Consclidated Financial Statements for
the risks linked to financial instruments and in the
section “Corporate Governance” on the RTLGroup.
com website for the external and markat risks.

Corporate governance statement

The RTL Group Board of Directors is committed to
high standards of corporate governance. RTL Group
has applied the principles of good governance for
years, even before the Ten Principles of Corporate
Governance were implemented by the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange - principles that RTL Group is in
line with and submitted to.

More information on this topic can be found in the
“Investors” section of the Company's website
(RTLGroup.com), which contains RTL Group's
corporate governance charter, and regularly updated
information, such as the latest version of the
Company's geovernance documents (articles of
Incorporation, statutory accounts, minutes of
shareholders’ meetings), and information on the
composition and mission of the RTL Group Board
and its Committees, The “Investors” section also
contains the financial calendar and other information
that may be of interest to shareholders.

1. SHAREHOLDERS

Foliowing the Extracrdinary General Meeting held on
25 May 2016, 44,748 shares have been cancelled as
a result of the application of the Immgebilisation Law
of 28 July 2014, Consequently, the reduced share
capital is set at €191,845,074, which is divided into
154,742,806 fully paid up shares with no par value.

As at December 2016, Bertelsmann held 75.1 per
cent of ATL Group SA shares, and 24.1 per cent
were publicly traded. The remaining 0.8 per cent
were held collectively as treasury stock by
RTL Group and one of its subsidiaries (see note
8.15.12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

General Meetings of Shareholders will be held at the
registered office or any other place in Luxembourg
indicated in the convening notice. A General Meeting
of Shareholders must be convened on the request
of one ar more shareholders who together represent

at least one tenth of the Group's capital, and the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders is held on
the third Wednesday of April at 15:00. If this day isa
public holiday, the meeting will be held on the next
business day at the same time.

Resolutions will be adopted by the simple majority
of valid votes, excluding abstentions. Any resolution
amending the Articies of Incorporation will be
adopted by a majority of two thirds of the votes of
all the shares present or represented.

The Annual General Meeting will examine the reports
of the Board of Directors and the auditor and, if
thought fit, will approve the annual accounts. The
meeting will also determine the allocation of profit,
and decide on the discharge of the directors and the
auditor from any duties.
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2. BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

Board of Directors

On 31 Dacember 2016 the Board of RTL Group SA
had 12 members: three executive directors, and nine
non-executive directors. On 20 April 2016, Bernd
Hirsch was appointed as Non-Executive Director to
RTL Group's Board of Directors for a term of two
years, to expire at the end of the Ordinary General
Meeting of Sharehalders ruling on the 2017 accounts.
Likewise, the term of office of the other executive

and non-executive directors will expire at the end of
the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders ruling
on the 2017 accounts. The biographical details of the
directors are set out on pages 30 to 34. Three of the
non-executive directors — Jacques Santer, James
Singh and Martin Taylor - are independent of
management ang other outside interests that might
interfere with their independent judgement.

RTL GROUP'S BOARD OF DIRECTORS

THOMAS RABE
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MARTIN TAYLOR™

VICE-CHAIRMAN OF THE BGARD OF DIRECTORS

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT
£0-CEQ RTL GROUP

GUILLAUME DE POSCH
CO-CEO RTL GROUP

Martin Taylor was appointed under the criteria of
independence of the London Stock Exchange,
before RTL Group adopted the Ten Principles of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Jacques Santer and
James Singh are independent directors, and both
meet the current criteria of independence of the Ten
Principles of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

The Board of Directors has to review, with expert
help if requested, that any transaction between
RTL Group or any of its subsidiaries on the one hand
and any of the shareholders or any of their respective
subsidiaries on the other hand Is on arm's length
terms.

ELMAR HEGGEN THOMAS GOTZ
CFO RTL GROUP
ROLF HELLERMANN
BERND HIRSCH

BERND KUNDRUN

' JACQUES SANTER™

: ROLF SCHMIDT-HOLT2

JAMES SINGH

The responsibility for day-to-day management of
the Group is delegated to the Chief Executive
Officers (*CEQs”). The Board has a number of
responsibilities, which include approving the annual
Group's budget, overseeing significant acquisitions
and dispesals, and managing the Group's financial
statements. The Board of Directors met four times
in 2016 — with an average attendance rate of 97.9
per cent - and adopted some decisions by circular
resolution. An evaluation process of the Board of
Directors’ activities, and the activities of its
committees, was carried out in 2014 and will recur
in 2017,
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Participation in Attendance
Individual attendance of the members of the RTL Group Board of Directors meetings %
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Troras Gotz T Tan
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Bemd Hirsch Cam
Bend Kungrun T 474
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The Executive Committee updates the Board on the
Group’s activities and financial situation. At each
meeting, representatives of the Executive Committee
brief the Board on ongoing matters and on possible
upcoming investment or divestment decisions.

In 2016, a total of €0.6 million (2015: €0.6 million}
was allocated in the form of attendance fees to the
non-executive members of the Board of Directors
and the Committees that emanate from it. {see note
10.4 to the consolidated financial statements).

- Neither options nor loans have been granted to
Directors.

Appropriate measures were taken by the Group to
ensure compliance with the provisions of the
Luxembourg law on market abuse, and with the
Circulars of the Commission de Surveillance du
Secteur Financier {CSSF) concerning the application
of this legislation.

The following Board Committees
are established:

Nomination and Compensation Committee

The Nomination and Compensation Committee
comprises three non-executive directors, one of
whom is an independent director {who also chairs
the meetings), and meets at least twice a year. The
Committee's plenary meetings are attended by the
CEOs and the Executive Vice President Human
Resources. The Nomination and Compensation
Committee may involve other persohs whose
collabaoration is deemed to be advantageous to help
the committee fulfil its tasks. The Chairman of the
Nomination and Compensation Committee reports
on the discussion held and conclusions taken by the
committee to the subsequent Board of Directors
meeting. The Nomination and Compensation
Committee met five times in 2016, physically or via
telephone conference, with an average attendance
rate of 86.7 per cent,

Participation in

Individual attendance of the members of the Nomination and Compensation Committee meetings %
Mariin Taylor {chaurmar) T am e
ThomagRabe 5/6 100
Rolf Schmic-Hoitz 480

The Nomination and Compensation Commitiee
consults with the CEOs and gives a prior consent on
the appointment and removal of executive directors
and senior management, makes a proposal to the

Gereral Meeting of the shareholders on the
appointment and removal of the non-executive
directors, and establishes the Group's compensaticn

policy.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is composed of a maximum of
four non-executive directors — two of whom are
independent - and meets at least four times a year.

The Committee’s plenary meetings are attended by
the CEOQs, the Chief Financial Officer (“CFQ"), the
Head of Audit & Compliance, the external auditors
and other senior Group finance representatives. The

Individual attendance of the members of the Audit Committee

TnomasRabe
M Tt

The Committee assists the Board of Directors in its
responsibility with respect to overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting, the risk management and internal
control as well as standards of business conduct
and compliance.

The Audit Committee monitors the financial
reporting process, the statutory audit of the legal
and consolidated accounts, the independence of
the external auditors, the effectiveness of the
Group's internal controls, the compliance
programme, and the Group's risks. The Audit
Committee reviews the Group's financial disclosures
and submits a recommendation to the Board of
Directors regarding the appointment of the Group’s
external auditors.

The Head of Audit & Compliance and the external
auditors have direct access to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee, who is an independent director.

Audit Committee may invite other persons whose
collaboration is deemed to be advantageous to help
the committee fulfill its tasks. The Audit Committee
met five times in 2016 physically or via telephone
conference, with an average attendance rate of 95
per cent. The Chairman of the Audit Committee
reports on the discussions held and conclusions
taken by the Audit Committee to the subseguent
Board of Directors meeting.
Participation in Attendance
meetings Y
a/a
4/5

CEOs

Responsibility for the day-to-day management of
the Group rests with the CEOs, who - on a regular
basis and upon request of the Board = inform the
Board of Directors about the status and gdevelepment
of the Group.

The CEOs are responsible for proposing the annual
budget, to be approved by the Board of Directors.
They are also responsible for determining the
ordinary course of the business.

Executive Committee

0On 31 December 2016, the Executive Committee is
comprised of the three executive directors, the two
Co-CEQOs and the CFQ. The former Executive Vice
President Regicnal Operations & Business
Development, CEE and Asia, was invited to attend
the meetings on a permanent basis. The Executive
Committee is vested with internal management
authority. Biographical details of the members of the
Executive Committee can be found on page 35.

RTL GROUP'S EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

ANKE SCHAFERKORDT GUILLAUME DE POSCH ELMAR HEGGEN
GO -GEO RTL GROUP CO-CEO RTL GROUP GFO RTL GROUP

In 2016, a total of €12.8 million {2015: €12.6 million)
was allocated in the form of salaries, nen-cash
benefits and a post-employment benefit plan to the

members of the Executive Cormmittee (see note 10.3
to the Consolidated Financial Statements).
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External auditor

In accordance with the Luxembourg law on
commercial companies, the Group's annual and
consolidated accounts are certified by an external
auditor, appointed at the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders. On 20 April 2016, the shareholders
appointed Pricewaterhouse Coopers, societé
coopérative (PwC} for a year. PwC’'s mandate will
expire at the Annual General Meeting on 19 April
2017.

Dealing in shares

The Group's shares are listed on Euronext Brussels,
and on the Frankfurt and Luxembourg Stock
Exchanges. Applicable Belgian, German and
Luxembourg insider dealing and market
manipulation laws prevent anyone with material

non-public information about a company from
dealing in its shares and from committing market
manipulations.

A detailed Dealing Code contains restrictions on
dealings by directors and certain employees of
RTL Group and its subsidiaries, or associated
companies.

Restrictions apply to:

= Members of the Board of Directors;

m All employees of RTL Group 8A, and directors and
employees of any subsidiary or affiliated company
of RTL Group who, because of their position or
activities, may have access to unpublished price-
sensitive information.

3. GODE OF GONDUCT

Basic guidelines for conducting business at
RTL Group are governed by the Code of Conduct,
which oullines binding minimum standards for
responsible behaviour towards business partners
and the public, as well as for behaviour within the

Group. The Group has a training programme in place
to ensure all employees are fully aware of the code.

The Code cof Conduct is available at
www.rtigroup.com/codeofconduct

4, INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Internal controls over financial reporting aim to
provide reasonable assurance on the reliability of
external and internal financial reporting, and their
conformity with the applicable laws and regulations.
They help to ensure that financial reporting presents
a true and fair picture of the Group’s het assets,
financial position and operational results. The Code
of Conduct requires the Group to manage
recordkeeping and financial reporting with integrity
and transparency.

Standards and rules

The rules governing the Group's financial reporting
environment and critical accounting policies are set
out in the Group’s Financial Accounting Manual
(FAM). The FAM, which is regularly updated, is
circulated to the members of the Group's finance
community, and published on RTL Group’s intranet,
Standards of a minimum control framework for key
accounting processes at the level of RTL Group's
fully consotidated reporting units are formalised in a
set of expected key controls. RTL Group's
centralised treasury and corporate finance activities
are governed by dedicated policies and procedures.
Hedging of exposure h non-Euro currencies is
governed by a strict policy. All internal and external

financial reporting processes are organised through
a centrally managed reporting calendar.

Systems and related controls

Locally used ("ERP", treasury applications) finance
systems are largely centrally monitored via a
common system piatform to ensure a consistent
set-up of system-embedded controls. Segregation
of duties, access rights and approval limits are
regularly reviewed by the local data owners for all
reporting units whose finance systems are centrally
maintained. Internal and external financial reporting
is up-streamed through a centrally managed
integrated finance system — from budgeting and
trend year analysis, monthly internal management
reporting, forecasting of financial and operational
KPls, to consolidation and external financial
reporting, and finally risk management reporting
(see the section "How we manage risks”). Specific
system-embedded controls support the
consalidation process, including the reconciliation
of intercompany transactions. |T General Controls
{(*ITGCs") are regularly assessed by external experts
or internal audit. Controls objectives are defined for
all the RTL Group central applications and interfaces
{the “Referenced Applications”) as well as their

ATL Group Annual Report 2016
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related (T infrastructure. The description of the
control environment and the effectiveness of these
controls are subject to an annual SOC1 ISAE3402
third party assurance report. The Group’s
consolidation scope is constantly updated, both at
the level of financial interests captured in the
consolidation system, and at the level of legal
information through a dedicated legal scape system.

Analytics and reporting

All internal and external local financial and
consolidated reporting is systernatically reviewed by
local finance staff or by finance teams within the
Corporate Centre. Typical analyses include
comparisens with previous year, budget and
forecast, financial and cperaticnal KPls, flows of key
captions on the income statement, statement of the
financial position, changes in equity, and cash flow
statement. Regular communication between
RTL Group's operations and the Corporate Centre’s
finance department ensures any issue that could
affect the Group’s financial reporting is immediately
flagged and resolved. Quarterly reporting to the
financial market is reviewed by the Audit Committee
and approved by the Board of Directors. {Q1 and Q3
condensed  consolidated interim  financial
information is approved by the Audit Committee
upon delegation by the Board of Directors}.

Transparency

RTL Group’s policy on reporting of significant
compliance incidents requires business units to
immediately report fraud as well as significant
comgpliance incidents to the Group. Identified control
weaknesses that could impact the reliability of
financial reporting — reported by either externai or
internal audit - are brought to the attention of
management and the Audit Committee, and are part
of a follow-up process. Each year, the business units
self-assess the maturity level of their jocal internal
controls over financial reporting. Results of this self-
assessment are reported to the Audit Committee. At
each meeting the Audit Committee is updated on
the key accounting, tax and legal issues within the
Group. Finance committees are used as additional
platforms to exchange informaticn with business
units with financial impact.

The Corporate Centre constantly promotes the
importance of soundly designed internal controls —
not only over financial reporting, but also for
operational processes - through dedicated
workshops with RTL Group’s business units, and the
work of the Audit & Compliance department.

RTL Group Annual Report 2316



Risk matrix

Type of risk

Strateglc and market risks

Legal

Audlence and market share

Strategic direction

Cyclical development
of economy

New entrants and
market fragmentation

Technological
challenges/innovation

Risks in key business

Customers

Suppliers

Inventories

Fmanclal risks

Forelgn exchange exposure

Directors’ report

RISK MANAGEMENT

Description and areas of impact

Local and European reguletions are subject o change,
Sore changes could alter businesses znd revenue streams
ffor example, & ban on certam types of advertisements,
opening of markets, dereguiation of markets, cancellation of
restr\ct!ons I\mnatlon of advemsmg rnmutes)

A decrease in auduence andl/or ~arket share may have a
negative Impac: on RTL Group's “evenue

Wrong s'rategic decisions could lead to potential losses of

revenug, Also, wrong strategc investrment dacisions and
overpric ng could imply the risk an an ympairment of goodwill

Eccmomlc developmem c\rectly mpacs the advemswng
rmarkets and therefore RTL Group revenue

As countries move towards digital switchover. market enty
barriers are reduced, New enirants will also prawde further
chowe 1o the vewer. Migher compettion in prograrmime
acquistion, fragmentaton due to thematic channels, and
expansion of platform operators may impact BTL Group's
posmon

New oroaccasting Technolognes becommg more and more
important cver the coming years Ifor nstance, digital
broadcast ng, intermet, video-on-demand} may imply not anly
opporturit es, but also threats for RTL Group

Bad debts or loss of customers may negat vely 'mpact
RTL Group's financial statements

Mhe supply of certam types of content 1s krmited and ~—ay lead
o arse in costs, Over-relance on ona suppler may also
cause costs to rise n the long term

Ihere 15 & nsk of over-acourmulztion of stock that woulo be
unused or could become obsolete. This may imply that wnte
ofts/imparmeants are necessary

Effzctive management of foreigr excharge nsk 1$ an imoor:ant
factor. The operating margin and broadcasting costs are
~pacted by foreigr exchange volanlty, escecikily f there s a
strong nerease of the USD agamst the Furo feature flme or
sport/d stribution nghts pu-chases)

RTL Group Annual Report 2016

Mitigatron activities

RTL Group tres to anllcwpale any changss lal Ieglslahon and to
act accordingly by developing and exploing new revenue
SOUrces

New talent ard formats are devsloped ar acqurred.
Performance o' existing shows 1s under constant review with
the am of crving audence share performance and hence
fulure revenus. Moreover, RTL Group remains constantiy
prcachve ol al-] momlor\ng OfL 'ernahoﬁal markel UEHdS

Prudent investmer-t pol\mes arg followed underplnned oy
reaiistic and conservative business pians, approval levels being
followed ensuring the refevant degree of management 'sign-
off", solid valuatior models and regular strategic planning
32531613, A regular review of strategic options I1s undertaken
ensurng that the strategic course of the Group 15 well
understood and r:onswstent over 1|me

RTL Group tnes 1o d\vefswfy The revenue bass th rough reg»onal
expansion as well as new products and serices generating
nen- adver‘ctsmg revenue

RTL Group's strategy 1§ 10 embrace new dlg tal ooporunmes
by ensuang its channels and stations are platform neutral
{avalable on the widest possible choice) and that we develop
strong families of channels for tre digital age vased arcund
our leading brands

RTL Group remains proactve on naw technelogical and
broadcasting trends and develops digtisation activities to
offset the removal/loss of analogue activities

Credit analysis of all new advertisers is systemarically
undertaken to prevert such a risk. Depending on the
custamer’s credit worthi~ess insurances may be used. This
nsk I1s also mitigated by broae‘eﬂmg 1he advertiser base

The Group tres wherﬂ\rDr Dosswb(e 1o diversify s sources of
supply. RTL Group benchmarks purchasing tems and
conditions to identify best practices with the aim of reducing
costs wa, for example, oint purchasing. RTL Group selects
hign quzhty and sohd supplers for kay services or cquipment
1o "educe the nisk of bankruptcy of busmess pa"mers

F{TL Group has strict commercial pohcwes very close fo\low-up
of existirg Inventcnes and strie: critena for approval of
invesiment proposals for r ghts

RTL Graup nas in place a sirict policy ragarcing foreign
exchange managerent, wh ch i monitored and 10liowed up
oy Group Ireasury, using plain vanilla hedge mstroments o
~itgzte valatilty or the ncorre statemert,
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By their nature, media businesses are exposed to
risk. Television and radio channels can lose
audiences rapidly as new competitive threats
emerge, with consequent loss of revenue.
Broadcasters and producers are exposed to legal
risks, such as litigation by aggrieved individuals or
organisations, and media businesses are more
exposed than most to economic cycles — advertising
is usually one of the first casualties in an economic
downturn. RTL Group’s international presence
exposes it to further risks, such as adverse currency
movements and debtors’ default.

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring
RTL Group maintains a sound system of internal
controls, including financial, operational and
compliance risks,

RTL Group defines its risk management as a
continuous process at Business Unit and Group
level to prevent, protect, mitigate and leverage risks
in light of execution of RTL Group’s mission and
strategic objectives. RTL Group’s risk management
has been designed to be fully aligned with
International risk management standards (e.q.
COS0 framework) and Bertelsmann SE & CO.
KGaA's risk management practices. RTL Group has
robust risk management processes in place,
designed to ensure that risks are identified,
monitored and controlled. RTL Group’s risk
management system is based on a specific policy
and a clear set of procedures. Policies and
procedures are reviewed on a regular basis by the
Internal Audit Department and/or external consulting
companies. Risk management and risk reporting are
coordinated by the Head of Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM}, and reporting is reviewed by
the Internal Audit Department.

RTL Group’s risk management process intends to

meet the following three main objectives:

= “Embedded culture”: promote and embed a
common risk management culture in the daily
work of all RTL Group's employees;

a “Consistent policy”™ develop consistent risk
policles on key matters to be tailored and
implemented at Business Unit level with
consideration of local challenges and environment;

w *Harmonised response”: ensure harmonised risk
management prevention, detection and mitigation
measures across RTL Group and its Business
Units vs key risks, as well as a continuous related
monitoring and improvement programme.

The risk management organisation is the
combination of structures and relationships (see the
diagram on the following page} which enables a
proper risk governance environment. RTL Group’s
Risk management governance model has a strong
vertical component descending from the Board,
Executive, Audit and Risk Management Committees,
through the executive responsible (CEQ, CFO and
Head of ERM) and down to all levels of the dedicated
risk management functions, incluging Group lecal
entities. This backbone is enabled by related control
functions carried out by the Legal & Regulatory,
Compliance, Strategy & Controlling, Corporate
Communications & Marketing, Treasury, Insurance,
Group Financial Reporting, Tax, IT, Human
Resources, Sales & Commercial and Investor
Relations departments. Independent monitoring is
also carried out by Internal Audit and External Audit.

The internal control system is designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of

objectives in the following categories:

m Effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and the
optimal use of the Group’s resources

B Integrity and reliability of financial and operational
information

® Reliability of financial reporting

® Proper identification, assessment, mitigation and
reporting of material risks

8 Compliance with applicable laws, reguiations,
standards and contracts

RTL Group Annual Report 2016
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The Risk Management Committee is composed of

the following permanent members:

# RTL Graup Chief Financial Officer and Head of the
Corporate Centre

wRTL Group Deputy CFQ and Executive Vice
President Finance

= RTL Group Executive Vice President Audit and
Compliance

BRTL Group Senior Vice President Treasury and
Enterprise Risk Management

uRTL Group Senior Vice President Controlling &
Investments

® RTL Group General Counsel

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICERS
GHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER

B Treagury b

HEAD OF ENTERPRISE
RISK MANAGEMENT
Sk da

A BbLIGETIET D e

e A PR
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wocil Hisk
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® RTL Group Senior Vice President Group IT

# Media Assurances’ Chief Executive Officer

# Additional guests may be invited to participate to
Risk Management Commitiee meetings as subject
matter experts based on the topics to be
addressed.

Definition of risk

RTL Group defines a risk as the danger of a negatr've‘

development that could endanger the solvency or
existence of a business unit, or have a negative
impact on the Group’s income statement.

RTL Group Annual Report 2016
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RISK CLASSIFICATION

PLANNED FREE CASH FLOW IMPAGT

PROBABILITY OF OCCURENCE

Risk reporting framework
We have developed a framework for the reporting of
risks, in line with good corporate practice.

This framework is based on a number of key
principles:
® Comprehensive scope of risk assessment: risks
are assessed within a framework of defined key
risk categories. Regular risk assessments include
a description of the risk, an indication of the
potential financial impact, and steps taken to
mitigate the risk. These steps are performed
throughout RTL Group, consclidated by the Head
of Enterprise Risk Management, reviewed by the
Internal  Audit Department, and ultimately
summarised in a dedicated risk management
report. Results are presented to the Audit
Committee.
® Regular and consistent reporting: RTL Group’s
systermn of internal controls ensures that risks are
addressed, reported and mitigated when they
arise. All significant risks are comprahensively
assessed within the risk reporting framework, and
reported to RTL Group management cn a bi-annual
basis. This ensures that necessary actions are
undertaken to manage, mitigate or offset risks
within the Group. The risks are reported in a
common reporting tool to ensure consistency in
scope and approach.
® Bottorm-up approach: RTL Group assesses risks
where they arise — in its operations. All business
units assess themselves according to the three
parts of the risk management report:
Risk Management System: risk assessment and
quantification of residual risks if applicable
Internal Control System: seif-assessment on
internal controls in place

: Information Security Management System: risk
assessment and guantification of [T-related risks
= Consclidated Group matrix: the Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM} team aggregates a
comprehensive view of significant risks for the
Group by consclidating local risk assessments. A
Risk Management Committee prepares and
reviews this consolidated Group risk matrix. The
cormmittee also:

* Advises on the control and reporting process for
any major risks, and recommends mitigation
strategies to the Group CFO
Monitors follow-up of risks and ensures
mitigation measures have been taken

- Increases risk awareness within the Group
Identifies potential optimisation opportunities in
processes

# Audit approach: both the process of local risk
assessments and the consolidated Group risk
matrices are regularly reviewed by the Internal

Audit Department.

Going forward

RTL Group’s risk management framework is
constantly challenged — at both operational and
Group level — through the Risk Management
Committee, to ensure it reflects the risk profile of the
Group at all times.

To ensure RTL Group’s Enterprise Risk Management
process and reporting requirements are consistently
implemented throughout the Group, it holds regular
workshops to update staff and to introduce new
tools available to assess risk.

RTL Group Annual Report 2016
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General Management Statement

on Risk Evaluation

RTL Group is committed to high risk management
standards and applies pringiples endorsed by local
and European reguiations and expected by market
authorities. Consequently, RTL Group’s risk
management process has developed a risk
management framework integrated into an
enterprise-wide process as laid out in the previous
section.

RTL Group defines its risk management process as
a continuous process at Business Unit and Group
level to prevent, protect, mitigate and leverage risks
in light of the execution of the Group's mission,
strategic objectives and values. RTL Group’s risk
management strategy is a holistic, enterprise-wide
process defined and implemented in light of the
definition and execution of RTL Group's strategy.
RTL Group may have ta make strategic decisions
involving a new set of risks or reassessment of
existing risks that need to be addressed within the
risk managemeni framework,

The global media industry — especially with regard
to advertising markets — is subject to constant
market change and intense competition. The Group
is in a great strategic and operational position to
benefit from the market’s dynamism and to use it as
an opportunity to grow across broadcast, content
and digital.

At the time this Directors’ report was compiled,
RTL Group is characterised by overall very good
revenue and earnings, and a strong financial position
and operating performance. Strong cash flows
enable attractive dividend payments to be combined
with significant investments. Management’s first
priority has always been to further develop the
Group, to make the right investments and to achieve
profitable growth. RTL Greup has leading market
positions across the value chain of the rapidly
evolving total video market. With this financial
strength, it is the Group’s ambition to further grow
RTL Group over the coming years - ta transform the
leading European entertainment network into a truly
global powerhouse in video production, aggregation
and monetisation. Against this backdrop, as of the
date of preparation of this Directors’ report,
RTL Group coisiders risks to be limited, and the
overall risk situation to remain manageable. Given
the rapid changes in glcbal economy and the
industry, RTL Group considers the overall risk
situation to be slightly more serious than the year
before.

There are currently no discernible risks that,
individually or in combination with other risks, could
have a material or lasting adverse effect on the
revenue, earnings, financial position and
performance of RTL Group over the projection
period of three years.

RTL Group Annual Report 2016
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OPPORTUNITY MANAGEMENT

Opportunity Management System

An efficient opportunity management system
enables RTL Group to secure its corporate success
in the long term and to exploit potential in the best
possible way. Opportunities are defined as future
developments or events that could result in a
paositive change from either the Group's outlook or
from sirategic objectives. RTL Group's Risk
Management System {(RMS) is an important part of
the Group's business processes and decisions.
Significant opportunities are identified from profit
centre level upward, during the Group’s annual
strategy and planning process.

This largely decentralised system is coordinated by
central departments to identify opportunities for
cooperation across the Group and within the
business units. Experience is shared within divisions,
and this collaborative approach is reinforced by
regular senior management meetings.

Opportunities

While opportunities associated with positive
development may be  accompanied by
corresponding risks, certain risks are necessary to
expleit potential opportunities. This link to risk within
the Group offers strateqic, operational, legal,
regulatory and financial opportunities for the Group.
Strategic opportunities can be derived primarity
from the Group's strategic priorities. Strengthening
core businesses, driving forward the digital
transformation, developing growth platforms and
expanding in growth regions are the most important
long-term growth opportunities for RTL Group. in
particular, there are opportunities to exploit

synergies as a result of the Group’s expanding
portfolio, individual operational opportunities, the
possibility of more favourable economic
development and the potential for efficiency
improvements,

Two major opportunities for RTL Group are a better-
than-expected development of the TV and radio
advertising market, and increasing audience and
advertising market shares.

The rapidly changing digital environment is opening
up ocpportunities as the media landscape fragments.
High-guality content can be distributed across
multiple  platforms,  both  nationally  and
internationally. New revenue streams can be
generated by exploiting existing TV content across
muitiple platforms, and by creating native digital
content. With the expansion of its presence in the
digital space, RTL Group could increase online
video advertising sales on all screens and TV
platforms and establish pay models in the
on-demand world. New advertising sales could
emerge through the offering of new interactive forms
of advertising parallel to linear TV use, as well as
more effective targeted advertising in the digital
environment. What's more, as an established
content producer with a global presence, RTL Group
could further expand its digital distribution through
multi-channel networks and digital streaming
platforms.

Other oppertunities could arise from changes to the
legal and reguilatory environment and as a result of
favourable changes to interest and exchange rates.

ATL Group Annual Report 2016
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LUXEMBOURG LAW ON TAKEOVER BIDS

The following disclosures are made in accordance
with article 11 of the Luxembourg Law on Takeover
Bids of 19 May 2C06.

a) Share capital structure

RTL Group SA has issued one class of shares which
is admitted to trading on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange, Euronext Brussels and the Luxerrbourg
Stock Exchange. No other securities have been
issued. The issued share capital as at 31 December
2016 amounts to €191,854,074 represented by
191,845,074 shares with no par value, each fully
paid-up.

b) Transfer restrictions

At the date of this report, all RTL Group SA shares
are freely transferable but shall be subject to the
provisions of the applicable Belgian and Luxembourg
insider dealing and market manipulation laws, which
prevent anyone who has material non-public
information about a company from dealing in its
shares and from committing market manipulations.
A detailed Dealing Code contains restrictions on
dealings by directors and certain employees of
ATL Greup SA and its subsidiaries.

c) Major shareholding

The shareholding structure of RTL Group SA as at
31 December 2016 is as follows: Bertelsmann
Capital Holding GmbH held 75.1 per cent, 24.1 per
cent were publicly traded and the remaining 0.8 per
cent were held collectively as treasury stock by
RTL Group SA and one of its subsidiaries.

d) Special control rights

All the issued and outstanding shares of RTL Group
SA have equal vating rights and no special control
rights attached.

e) Control system in employee share scheme

RTL Group SA's Board of Directors is not aware of
any issue regarding section e) of article 11 of the
Luxembourg Law on Takeover Bids of 19 May 2006.

f) Voting rights

Each share issued and outstanding in RTL Group SA
represents one vote. The Articles of Association do
not provide for any voting restrictions. In accordance
with the Articles of Association, a record date for the
admission to a general meeting is set and certificates
for the sharehcldings and proxies shall be received
by RTL Group SA the 14th day before the relevant
date at 24 hours {Luxembourg time}). Additional
provisions may apply under Luxembourg law.

g) Shareholders’ agreement with transfer
restrictions

RTL Group SAs Board of Directors has no

information about any agreements between

shareholders which may result in restrictions on the

transfer of securities or voting rights.

n) Appointment of Board members, amendments
of the Articles of Assaciation

The appeointment and replacement of Board
members and the amendments of the Articles of
Association are governed by Luxembourg Law and
the Anicles of Association. The Articles of
Association are published under the ‘Investors’
Corporate Governance Section on RTLGroup.com.

I} Powers of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is vested with the broadest
powers to manage the business of RTL Group SA. It
may take all acts of administration and of disposal
in the interest of RTL Group SA. The Board of
Directors has set up several cormmittees whose
members are Directors. The responsibilities and
functionalities of the Board of Directors and its
committees are described in the Articles of
Association and the Corporate Governance Charter,
published under the ‘Investors’ Gorporate
Governance Section on RTLGroup.com. The
Group’s General Meeting held on 16 April 2014
authorised the Board of Directors to acquire a total
number of shares of the Group not exceeding
150,000 in addition to the shares already held {.e.
1,168,701 own shares) as of the date of the General
Meeting. This authorisation is valid for five years and
the purchase price is fixed at a minimum of 90 per
cent and a maximum of 110 per cent of the average
closing price of the RTL Group share over the last
five trading days preceding the acquisition.

j) Significant agreements or essential business
contracts )

The Board of Directors is nat aware of any significant

agreements to which RTL Group SA is party and

which take effect, alter or terminate upon a change

of control of RTL Group SA following a takeover bid.

k) Agreements with Directors and employees

The Executive Committee members are entitled to
contractual severance payments in case of
dismissal, except in the case of dismissal for serious
reasons.

RTL Group Annual Report 2016
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 2 February 2017, UFA Film und Fernseh GmbH
entered into an agreement with the controlling
shareholders of Divimove GmbH ('Divimove”) to
modify the corporate governance of the company.
This change provided the control to RTL Group and
extended the exercise period of the call option over
the remaining 24.5 per cent until the first half of
2019, at the latest. The strike price of the option is
based on a variable component. The transaction
gualifies as a business combination since RTL Group
gains the control of Divimove. The amount of the
re-measurement to fair value of the pre-existing
interest is estimated at €14 million.

On 27 September 2016, Magyar RTL Televizid
Zartkorien Miikddd Részvénytarsasag (“RTL
Hungary”) entered into an agreement to acquire a
30 per cent stake representing 51 per cent of the
voting rights in Central Digital Media Kft {“Central
Digital Media™), one of the leading web publishers in
Hungary. Central Digital Media operates a number
of websites and mobile apps. Central Digital Media
is ranked as one of the top three conline media
companies in Hungary, based on web anaiytics. The
acquisition, subject to approval by the Hungarian
competition authority, would significantly accelerate
the Group’s strategy to increase RTL Hungary's

presence in the digital media market. The transaction
would qualify as a business combination since
M-RTL would gain control of Central Digital Media.
RTL Hungary would alsc hold call options on the
remaining 70 per cent shares exercisable 18 months
after the deal completion. However, in the second
part of February 2017, the Hungarian competition
authority decided to refuse its approval of the
transaction. RTL Hungary is currently assessing this
decision and possible legal actions.

On 8 March 2017, RTL Group’s Board of Directors
acknowledged the request from Mrs. Anke
Schéferkordt to resign as Co-CEO of RTL Group
and to step down from the Board of Directors, with
effect from the Annual General Meeting on 19 April
2017. Anke Schiferkordt will continue to be the
CEOQ of Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland.

It will be proposed at the AGM, to be held at 19 April
2017, that Mr. Bert Habets joins RTL Group’s Board
of Directors as Executive Director with immediate
effect. The Board has decided, on 8 March 2017,
that Bert Habets then also becomes Co-CEQO of
RTL Group. The Board has acknowledged that
Bert Habets will thus be member of the Group’s
Executive Committee.

RTL Group Annual Report 2016
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OUTLOOK

Beginning with the fiscal year 2017, RTL Group will
report EBITDA as its key performance indicator for
aperating profit, adapting to more commen reporting
standards of the media industry (previously: EBITA).

Given the current economic climate, RTL Group
does not see any signs of either a wider advertising
market rally or decline — especially with uncertainty
around the Brexit and the political efections in
Europe — and expects the picture in 2017 to be
similar to 2016 with overall slight growth.
Accordingly, RTL Group currently believes 2017 will
be another challenging year for its TV channels and
therefore expects only skight top line growth from its
core broadcast markets.

FremantleMedia — RTL Group's content production
arm - will continue to face market pressure on both
volumes and pricing, but should benefit from the
invastments made in new businesses and also in the
pipeline, especially in drama and digital. Accordingly,
RTL Group expects FremantleMedia’s revenue to be
broadly stable, subject to stable exchange rates,
with EBITDA progressing strongly.

Digital revenues are expected to continue to show
dynamic double~digit revenue growth and increase
its share of RTL Group's total revenue to at least 15
per cent within the next three to five years.

Outlook RTL Group

8 March 2017
The Board of Directors

C 141 1,397 101,425

The company will continue to focus on cash
conhversion and expects 2017 levels to be broadly in
line with the previous year, at around 90 per cent,

RTL Group keeps a leverage target of 0.5 and 1.0
times net debt to full-year EBITDA for the financial
year 2017.

The dividend policy remains unchanged: RTL Group
plans to pay out between 50 and 75 per cent of the
adjusted net result for the financial year 2017 as an
ordinary dividend. The potential for an interim
dividend payment will be assessed by the Board
after having reviewed the Group’s investment
pipeline, cash generation and net debt level.

RTL Group expects its total revenue for the financial
year 2017 to continue to grow moderately (+2.5 per
cent to +5.0 per cent), driven by the Group’s digital
businesses and Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland —
this means 2017 revenue is expected to reach a
window of between €8,393 million and €6,549
million. The company expects EBITDA for the full
year 2017 to be broadly stable (-1.0 per cent to +1.0
per cent), mainly due to the lack of positive one-off
effects at the level of Groupe M6.

2016 2017e Qutlook Change
€m £€m €m %

| Broadlystable 1010410
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MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

We, Anke Schéferkordt and Guillaume de Posch, Chief Executive Officers and Elmar Heggen, Chief Financial
Officer, confirm, to the best of our knowledge, that these 2016 consolidated financial statements which have
been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of
RTL Group and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, and that the Directors’
report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of
RTL Group and the undertakings included in the consalidation taken as a whole, together with a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

Luxembourg, 8 March 2017

u!.QS..F/WW V %%/

Anke Schéiferkordt and Guillaume de Posch Elmar Heggen
Chief Executive Officers Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December
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Consump!f&ﬂ cfcurrem programme rrghts ) e o _(2 070) o (721‘;)175)

Deprec.at on, amomsatlon impairment and valuanon allowancs- o - - (215)
o (2,924)
\mpa\rmem of goodm and amomsat\on and \mpalrmert of farvalue ad]ustmenl= on vauusmons of s.ubsldlanes o o (‘! _5) o 6

Gan/{loss) trom sale of subsdanes, other nvesiments
and re-m ement to far value of pre-existing interest in

iree

Profit from nperatmg actlvmes o T 7 o ) 1,1 30 o 1 , 17178

Share ofresuhs Df \nvestments accounted for usung‘he equlty me‘(hod L K 4. 67 57
Earnlngs before |nterest a.nd taxes (“EBIT") B 1,197 1,175

Interest expense, U URURR . - S -2/ B -1
Financial resuits olherthan mterest e e ‘ , a3
1,179 1,183

Prafit for the year ‘816 883

Atrioutable to:

7 789
96 74
816 883

Galn/(loss) from sale o SUbS\dIﬁT!eS c:mer mvestmems and 8- measurement lo raw va\ue of ﬁre ex‘si "g lmeresl n accu\ree
Earnings befare interest and taxes ("EBIT ")

1,360
Deprecamr\ amor‘lsatlon and |mpa\rment o o e o (221)___ '199)

Re- measurement of earn our arrangemems 1 ‘0
Gam /(Ioss) Vom sale of subsm!larles other rnvestmeﬂts and re measuremeni to .eur value of Dre exlstmg mterest n acquuree

Earnings befare interest and taxes ("EBIT"J

Earnings per shar S o
- Basic 4.69 5.14

“Died T - R 7. Y- 5.14

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December

2016 2015
Nates €m €m
Profit for the year " B16 863
Other gpmp!'gh:ensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Re-measurement of post-employment benefi: obligations 8. 14] {11) je]
Ircome tax 8.6 3 2
(8) 7
Mems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Forelgnﬂcu rrency translaton differences 33 34
Effective portion of changas in fai- value of cash flow hedges 39 36
I~come tax (&6 (12) 12)
27 4
Ghaﬂglg“m'fa[\{é\ué of cash ‘low ;*edges translerred to pro‘lt orflss B.15. 4, ”(34)7 {28)
Income tax 8. 5] 11 g
77777777 (23) (19)
Far varliu; Qén:s/(losses) on avalable-for-sale financial zssets 8,15, 5) 2 15)
Ircome tax 8. 5] - 1
2 (4)
39 25
Other comprehensive income/{loss} for the year, net of income tax 31 &
Total comprehensive income for the year B47 905
Atributableto:
RTL Group shareholders AL 829
Non-cortrolling interests 96 76
Total comprehensive income for the year 847 905

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANGIAL POSITION

31 December 31 Decemnir
2016 205
Notes &m Fm
Non-guwént assets )
Programme and otrer nghts 100 835
Goodwil 3,039 2.959
Other intangible assets o 225 215
Property, plant and equpment 290 352
Investments accounted for using the equity method 427 4C0
Loans and other financial assets 167 207
De‘arred tax assets 37 370
4,565 4,588
Currenj: éésets ST )
Programme rights 1,160 1,093
Other nventanes 15 18
Incorme tax recenvatle 7 1g 34
Accounts recevable and otner financial assets 2,025 2,014
Cash and cash equwvalents 8. 9] 433 449
3,652 3,669
Asse.ts c}lassnf}gé! aS hé\d .forrsralé ST ) 83 -
Current liabilities
Loans and bank overdrafts 493 805
Income tax payatle 52 45
Accounts payable ) 2,842 ) 2,742
Prowvigions 145 132
3,532 3,524
Net current assets 203 a5
Non-current‘ |lab 1|é§ -
Loans ; ] 517 524
Accounts payable ) 405 443
Provisions 249 235
De‘erred tax liabilities 45 &2
1,216 1,764
Net assets 3562 3,409
Equity attributable to RTL Group shareholders 3,077 2,854
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests. 475 455
Equity 8. 15, 3,552 3,400
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Consolidated financiaf statements

Equity
Eouity  attrbulaoke
Currency Resarves attrbutable 1o to nan-
Share Treasury translatine -edgng  Reval.ation  arg retange R'L Group controlling Totat
camtal shares. 125erve “PSEIVE fESEIVE garmings  shareholgers INENESIS equity
Noles €m £m em £m £m Em £m £m €m
Balance at 1 January 2015 192 (45) {149) 42 77 2,711 2,828 447 3,275
Total comprehensive income:
Profit for the year N - - - - - 759 789 74 883
F})reign :eren-cy- franslation d-\ffaré"r;cés 8.15.3 - - 32 - - - 32 2 34
Eftective por‘tlon of changés n fair vé\ﬁe 7
of cash flow hedges, net of tax - - - 25 - - 25 1) 24
Change n fair value of cash fiow hedges transferred - B
to profit or loss, net of tax ) S - - - (19 - - {19) - (19)
Fair value gains /flosses! on avalable-for-sale firancial
assets, ne of tax - - - - {4 - (4) - (4)
Re-nlneasurémeﬁi l(;:f post-eméﬁoymeﬁi beneft ‘
oblgations, net o' tax - - - - - 6 8 ' 7
- - 32 8 14) 795 829 75 905
Capi-ta-l trar;sactions;ith- 6wﬁers: ) -
D\V\delﬁds e [8. 15, 6] - - - - - {69} 6a1) 175) ' (766} .
Eqﬁlty-setlled traﬁls;léfloﬁé. net of h;x ‘ - - - - - 5 5 4 9
(.Acqui.si;_l-cr-]f'dwsposal of treasur;.sharé;s..l. - (2) - - - - 12) - 2)
Trarsactions on non-controlling interests ' ' .
witheut a change in control - - - - - (B &) 2 (3
Trar-s'act-nc-ms on nén-comrc\hng |'nte'est's - -
with a change n control — - — — - {7 7} 4 (3)
Derivatives on equlty nstruments - - - - - 3 (3 @ (3]
E )] - - - 701} (703} B8 (z771)
Balance at 31 December 2015 192 (47) {17} 48 73 2,805 2,954 455 3,409
Total comprehensive income:
Profit fr the year - - - - - 720 720 96 816
Foreign currency translation differerces - - 33 - - - 33 - 33
Eflective poriuon of changes in fair value
of cash flow hedges, net of tax - - - 27 - - 27 - 27
Char-ige In far vaiLe of cas~ flow hedges transterred
to profit and loss, net of tax - - - (23) - - (23) - (23)
Far value gans/{losses)
on avallable-for-sale financial assets, net of tax 8.15. 5 - - - - 2 - 2 - 2
Re-measurement of post-empioyment benefit
abligations, net of tax - - - - - @ @) - (8)
- - 33 4 2 712 751 96 847
Capital transactions with owners:
Owidends 8. 15. 5. - - - - - 614} 614) (74) {688}
Cancellation of shares . - - - - - (2) 2 - {2}
Equity—éetﬂed transactions, net of tax - - - - - 5 o] 5 10
{Acquistionl /disposal of treasury shares - m - - - - m - (1}
Trarszctions on non-controlling iNterests
without & change In control ~ - - - - (B} (63} (4) (10}
Trarsactions on non-controlirg iNterests
with a crange in control - - - - - ("1t 1) 6) 17
Oervatives on egoity instruments [8.15. 9] - - — - - 3 3 3 8
Trarszctions on treasury shares of asscciates - - - - - ) sl - (2}
- (11 - - - 1527) ‘628, e {704}
Balance at 31 December 2016 192 (48) (84) 52 75 2,890 3,077 475 3,562

The accompanying notes form an ntegral part of these censolidated financial statements.
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Gonsolidated financial

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December

2016 2ma
Noes €m £m
Cash flows f_rpf’l__é:_)per&iirig activitlg_s_'
Proft before taxes ‘ 1,179 1,183
Adjustments lor ------
- Depremaucn and amomsaluon 218 202
- Value adjustments, impa !mem and Brovisions 133 1ce
- Share based payments expenses 10 9
- Re- measurement of earn-out arrangements (1) (1q)
- Gam an d»sposal of assets (25) (22)
—Financial resuits :ncludmg ) et mterest expense
and share of resuﬂs of investments accounted for .sing the equrtyj‘mgthad_ ] 23 {15}
Use ofprovsons 8. 13. 81) 11 U)
Workiﬁé capital chénges o (83) (102)
Ircome taxes pad ) (267) {238)
Net cash from opefatiﬁg activities 1,106 983
Caéh flﬁws irom investing activ-i-t"i-t—as- _____
Accunsmons o o )
- Programme and olher rig s , (122) (108)
— Subsidhares, net of cash acqmrt.d 777777777777 60} 87
- Other |ntang\ljle and 1an£;‘\.t‘); assets- llllllllll (135) (17
- Other nvestmerts and financ'al assets (36) 4
{353) (341)
Proceecs from rhe safe o mrangcbﬁe ana"r-angame asse!s 47 18
D'bposal of other sum.ad anes, net o (.d.b dl:posed Uf - 5 2
F’roceeds from the sale of nnuestme"ts accounted for using the equny method olher |nvesrments a"d flnancla\ assets 7- 8 49
Inerest receved ’ 5 5
65 74
Net cash used in investing activities (288) 1267)
C‘a“shﬂfrlows fréfn ﬁnal;lging activites 0o
Intcrcst pad o 17} {20)
Transacnons on nan- coﬁtmlmg merests (16) {1
Acoulsmon of treasury shares ‘ 1) @
Term Ioan faciity due to sharcholder 10. 1) (153) 6
Proceeds from loans 72 28
Hecaymem of | Joans 27) (=)
Dnidends paid (689) {766)
Net cash used in financing activities (831) {761)
Net gte:qreasg in cash and cash equivalents : ______ (13} (45)
Cash and cash equivalenté and bark overdrafts at benjinning of year 8. 9] 444 479
Effect of exchange réte fluctuation on cash held - 10
Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at end of year 8. 9] 431 444

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

BB SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RTL Group SA (the "Company”) is a company domiciled in Luxembourg. The consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
{together referred to as “RTL Group” or “the Group”) and the Group’s interest in associates and joint ventures.
RTL Group SA is the parent company of a multinational television, radio and content Group with developing
online operations and holding, directly or indirectly, investments in 556 companies. The Group mainly
operates television channels and radio stations in Europe and produces television content such as game
shows and soaps. The list of the principal Group undertakings at 31 December 2016 is set out in note 12.

The Company is listed on the Brussels, Frankfurt and Luxembourg Stock Exchanges. Statutory accounts
can be obtained at its registered office established at 45, boulevard Pierre Frieden, L-1543 Luxembourg.

The ultimate parent company of RTL Group SA preparing consolidated financial statements, Bertelsmann
8E & Co. KGaA, includes in its consolidated financial statements those of RTL Group SA. Bertelsmann SE
& Co. KGaA is a company incorporated under German law whose registered office is established at Carl-
Bertelsmann-StraBe 278, D-33311 Glitersloh, Germany. Consolidated financial statements for Bertelsmann
SE & Co. KGaA can be obtained at their registered office.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
8 March 2017.

Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union.

ERBA Basis of preparation

Consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Euro, which is the Company's functional
and Group presentation currency, and have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for
the following materiat items in the statement of financial position:

w Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value;

® Non-derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value;

= Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value;

® |jahilities for cash-settled share-based payment arrangements are measured at fair value; and

® The defined benefit assets and liabilities are measured in accordance with 1AS 19.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the European Union requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the pericd in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that pericd,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect on the financial

statemerts and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next years are discussed in
note 2.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group entities and are consistent with those
used in the previous year, except as follows:

1. New and amended standards and interpretations adopted by the Group

The following standards, amendments to standards and new interpretations are mandatory for the first time

tor the financial year beginning 1 January 2016:

u [AS 18 revised, “Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions™,

= Annual improvements 2010-2012. These amendments include changes from the 2010-2012 cycle of the
annual improvements project, that affect seven standards: IFRS 2, “Share-based payment”, IFRS 3,
“Business Combinations”, IFRS 8, "Operating segments”, IFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”, IAS 7,
“Statement of cash flows”, IAS 16, “Property, plant and equipment” and |AS 38, “Intangible assets™. This
implies consequential amendments to IFRS 9, “Financial instruments”, IAS 37, “Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets”, and IAS 39, “Financial instruments - Recogrition and measurement™;

®» Amendments to IAS 1, “Disclosure Initiative™;

= Amendments to 1AS 16, “Property, plant and equipment” and 1AS 41, “Agriculture” related to accounting
for bearer plans®;

1 Amendments to |IAS 16, “Property, plant and equipment” and 1AS 38, “Intangible assets” on depreciation
and amortisation. The IASB has clarified that the use of revenue-based methods to calculate the
depreciation of an asset is not appropriate because revenue generated by an activity that includes the use
of an asset generally refiects factors other than the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in
the asset. The IAS8 has also clarified that revenue is generally presumed te be an inappropriate basis for
measuring the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in an intangible asset. However, there is
arebuttable presumption, that revenue-based amortisation is pemmitted when it can be demonstrated that
revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly correlated.

The application of the amendments to IAS 38 did not generate any significant impact for the Group on the
basis of the high correlation between revenue and consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the
programme and other rights;

® Amendment to IAS 27, “Equity method in separate financial statements™;

B Amendment to IFRS 10, “Consclidated financial statements”, IFRS 12 "Disclosure of interests in cther
entities” and IAS 28, “Associates and joint ventures” on sale or contribution of assets and on investment
entities applying the consolidation exception?;

® Amendment to IFRS 11, “Joint arrangements” on acquisition of an interest in & joint operation?;

& Annual improvements 2012-2014. These amendments include changes from the 2012-2014 cycle of the
annual improvements project, that affect four standards: IFRS 5, “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations”, IFRS 7, “Financial instruments: disclosures”, 1AS 19, “Employee benefits” and
IAS 34, “Interim financial reporting”. This implies consequential amendments to IFRS 1, “First-time
adoption of international financial reporting standards™?.

2. Standards and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been

early adopted by the Group

The following new standards and amendments have been published but are not effective for the Group's

accounting year beginning on 1 January 2016.

u [FRS 9, “Financial instruments” {and related amendment on general hedge accounting) — effective from
1 January 2018. The IASB has published the complete version of IFRS 9 which replaces the guidance in
IAS 39. This final version includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets
and liabilities; it also includes an expected credit losses madel that replaces the incurred loss impawrment
model used today**,

® |[FRS 14, “Regulatory deferral accounts” — effective from 1 January 20165,

= |[FRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers” applies to all contracts with custormers except those
that are financial instruments, leases or insurance contracts and introduces a five-step process that the
Group will have to follow. The new standard goes beyond just "commercial effect”, “fair value” and “risk

ATL Group Annual Report 2016
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Nates to the consolidated financial statements

and rewards” and will also result in a significant increase in the volume of disciosures related to revenue.
IFRS 15 will be effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018°.
IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers” is a new comprehensive standard for revenue recognition
across afl industries and replaces the current IFRS regulations.
IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model related to revenue recognition from contracts with customers. In
addition to substantially more extensive guidance for the accounting treatment of revenue from contracts
with customers, more detailed disclosure is required by the new standard. Application of the standard is
mandatory for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Jaruary 2018 even though the endorsement
of the clarifications published in April 2016 is still outstanding. The standard has to be applied retrospectively
although diverse practical expedients are allowed in some circumstances; eartier application is still
permitted. RTL, Group has opted for the modified retrospective transition and does not intend to early adopt
the standard.

RTL Group has launched a project to analyse the implications of IFRS 15 across the Group. During the first

phase of the project the Group sefected pilot entities (Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland, Groupe M6, and

FremantieMedia) — thus ensuring that the most significant revenue streams of advertising and content

related revenues were covered — and has performed a diagnostic of the IFRS implications based on a

sample of related contracts. The Group has now started the implementation phase of the project. Based

on the analysis made to date, the Group estimates that IFRS 15 is likely to have an impact on the timing
and amount of revenue recognition, especially relating to licences as further detailed below:

- Advertising revenue is derived from g wide range of contracts, usually of one year or less. IFRS 15
implications relate to the identification of performance obligations {spots, campaigns, other services) and
to variable considerations associated with this revenue;

- Content revenue involves a wide variety of performance obligations from service contracts to muiti-year
licence agreements, as well as ancillary services. The nature of those licences granted are currently being
analysed to determine whether each licence should be recognised at a point-in-time or over time.
Payment schemes considered in determining the revenue of each contract under IFRS 15 include
minimum guarantees and revenue sharing schemes and other variable payment terms.

The new standard could also impact transactions wherein third parties are involved as agent or principal,

therefore impacting the gross versus net presentation of revenue.

A reasonable estimate of the guantitative impact of IFRS 15 is not possible to be derived at this stage of

the project;

» Amendment to IAS 7, “Statement of cash flows", Disclosure initiative — effective from 1 January 2017°9,

= Amendment to 1AS 12, “"Income taxes”, recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses — effective

from 1 January 201729;

B |FRS 16, “Leases” defines a lease as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset
{the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. IFRS 16 requires lessees to
recognise nearly all leases on the balance sheet which will reflect their right to use an asset for a period of
time and the associated liability for payments. The leases of satellite transponders qualifying as service
agreements are no longer reported in operating leases. The quantitative and disclosure impacts anticipated
from implementing IFRS 16 are currently being determined. IFRS 186 will be effective for reporting periods

- beginning on or after 1 January 2019%

= Amendments to IFRS 2, “Share-based payment”, Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions — effective from 1 January 2018%5;

u [FRIC 22, “Forelgn Currency and Advance Consideration” clarifies the accounting for transactions that include
the receipt or payment of advance consideration in a foreign currency ~ effective from 1 January 20189,

= Amendments to [AS 40, “Transfers of Investment Property” on the definition of change of use — effective
from 1 January 20182,

& Annual improvements 2014-2016. These amendments affect three standards; IFRS 1, “First-time adoption
of International Financial Reporting Standards”, IFRS 12, "Disclosure of Interests in Other entities” and IAS
28, “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” — effective from 1 January 2017 or 1 January 20182,

8 Amendments to IFRS 4, “Insurance contracts”, applying IFRS 9 “Financtal instruments” with IFRS 4 —
effective from 1 January 20188%,

RTL Group Annual Report 2016



Naotes to the consclidated financial statements

EEEL Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those undertakings controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has
power or ability (*de facto control), directly or indirectly, over an entity; is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involverment with the entity and has the ability to affect these returns through its
power over the entity. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are presently exercisable or
presently convertible are considered when assessing whether the Company controls another entity. Directly
or indirectly held subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Company,
and are no longer consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The full consolidation method is used, whereby the assets, liabilities, income and expenses are fully
incorporated. The proportion of the net assets and net income attributable to non-controfling interests is
presented separately as non-controlling interests in the consolidated statement of financial position and in
the consolidated incorne statermnent.

Accounting for business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.

For acquisitions on or after 1 January 2010, the Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

# the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

= the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus if the business combination
is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquiree; less

= the net recognised amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.

Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that
the Group incurs in connection with a business combination, are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.

Contingent consideration is classified as either equity or a financial liability. Since 1 January 2016, amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently re-measured to fair value with changes recognised in profit
or loss.

The potential cash payments related to put options issued by the Group over the eqguity of subsidiary companies
are accounted for as financial liabilities. The amount that may become payable under the option on exercise
is initially recognised for the present value of the redemption amount within accounts payable with a
corresponding charge directly to eguity or through goodwill in case of a business combination with the transfer
of the risks and rewards of the non-controlling interests to the Group. Such options are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, in order to accrete the liability up to the amount
payable under the option at the date at which it first becomes exercisable. The Group has elected the fair value
measurement option for the options managed on a fair value basis and related to Best of TV and Style Haul
{see note 4.3.1). The income/{expense) arising is recorded in “Financial results other than interest”. In the event
that the option expires unexercised, the liability is derecognised with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

On an acquisttion-by-acquisition basis the Group recognises any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interast’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

Identifiable assets acquired and habilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair value at the acquisiticn date.

RTL Group Annual Report 2056
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Accounting for transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of the Group.
For acquisitions from non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of the net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals of non-controlling interests are atso recorded in equity.

Loss of control

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value
subsequently becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of accounting faor the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the refated assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Investments accounted for using the equity method
The investments accounted for using the equity method comprise interests in associates and joint ventures.

Associates are defined as those investments, where the Group is able to exercise a significant influence.
Joint ventures are arrangaments in which the Group has joint control, wherseby the Group has rights to the
net assets of arrangements, rather than rights to their assets and obligations for their liabilities.

Such investments are recorded in the consclidated statement of financial position using the equity method
of accounting and are initially recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs. Under this method the
Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of investments accounted for using the equity methed
is recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised
in reserves.

The Group decided not to reverse any impairment loss recognised and altocated to goodwill on associates
prior to 1 January 2009. This cumulated impairment loss amounted to €280 million.

When the Group's share of losses in an investment accounted for using the equity method equals or exceeds
its interest in the investment accounted for using the equity method, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group deoes not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investment accounted for using the equity method.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and is investments accounted for using the equity
method are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies for investments accounted for using the equity method have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group and restated in case of specific transactions on
RTL Group level in relation with investments.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised gains arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains arising from transactions
with investrments accounted for using the equity method are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest
in the undertaking. Unrealised gains resulting from transactions with associates and joint ventures are
eliminated against the investment accounted for using the equity method. Unrealised losses are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains except that they are only eliminated to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.
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Fareigh currency translation

Foreign currency translations and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at
the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date.
Fareign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated to Euro at foreign exchange rates ruling at the date the
fair value was determined.

Financial statements of foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill, except for goodwill arising from
acquisitions before 1 January 2004, and fair value adjustments arising on consolidation, are translated to
Euro using the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rate for the year under review. The foreign currency translation differences resulting
from this treatment, and those resulting from the translation of the foreign operations' opening net asset
values at year-end rates, are recognised directly in a separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in a foreign operation, or associated
undertaking and financial instruments, which are designated and qualified as hedges of such investments,
are recognised directly in a separate component of equity. On disposal or partial disposal of a foreign
operation, such exchange differences or proportion of exchange differences are recognised in the income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

m Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Fair value

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value in the statement of financial positions at
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts is determined by using forward exchange market rates
at the reporting date.

Cash flow hedging

For qualifying hedge relationships, the Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relaticnship
between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge. This process includes linking all derivatives designated as hedges ta specific assets
and liabilities or to specific firm commitments or foracast transactions. The Group also documents, both at
the hedge inception and on an ongaing basis, its assessment of wheather the hedging derivatives are effactive
in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged iterns.

The accounting treatment applied to cash flow hedges in respect of off-balance sheet assets and liabilities

can be summarised as follows:

= Far qualifying hedges, the effective component of fair value changes on the hedging instrument (mostly
foreign currency forward contracts or cash balances in foreign currencies) is deferred in “Hedging reserve”;

= Amounts deferred in "Hedging reserve” are subsequently released to the income statement in the periods
in which the hedged item impacts the income statement or are used to adjust the carrying value of assets
purchased {basis adjustment). When hedging forecast purchases of programme rights in foreign currency,
releases from equity via a basts adjustment occur when the programme right is recognised on-balance
sheet in accordance with the Group's policy;

u The ineffective component of the fair value changes on the hedging matrument is recarded directly in the
income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge

accounting under 1AS 39, any cumulative gain or loss inciuded in the "Hedging reserve” is deferred until the
committed or forecast transaction ultimately impacts the income statement. However, if a2 committed or
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forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in
equity is immediately transferred to the income statement.

EMEA Current/non-current distinction
Current assets are assets expected to be realised or consurmed in the normal course of the Group’s operating
cycle (normally within one year). All other assets are classified as non-current assets.

Current liabilities are liabilities expected to be settled by use of cash generated in the normal course of the
Group's operating cycle {(normally within one year) or liabilities due within one year from the reporting date.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current liabilities.

Intangible assets

Non-current programme and other rights

Non-current programme and other rights are initially recagnised at acquisition cost or production cost, which
includes staff costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads, when the Group controls, in substance,
the respective assets and the risks and rewards attached to them.

Non-current prograrmme and other rights include {co-)productions, audiovisual and other rights acquired with
the primary intention to broadcast, distribute or trade them as part of the Group’s long-term operations. Non-
current programme and other rights are amortised based on expected revenue, The amortisation charge is
based on the ratio of net revenue for the period over total estimated net revenue. The (co-)production shares
and flat fees of distributors are amortised over the applicable product lifecycle based upon the ratio of the
current period's revenue to the estimated remaining total revenue {ultimate revenue) for each (co-jproduction.

Estimates of total net revenue are reviewed periodically and additional impairment losses are recognised if
appropriate.

Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date. Goodwili
arising from applying this method is measured at initial recognition as detailed in note 1.3.1.

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is recognised as an intangible asset. Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is aliocated to cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment testing. Each of the cash-generating units represents the Group’s
investment in a geographical area of operation by business segment, except for the content business, SpotX
and the multi-channel networks, which are worldwide operations.

No goodwill is recognised on the acquisition of non-controlling interests.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets with a definite useful life, which are acquired by the Group, are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. They comprise licences (other than (co-)production,
audiovisual and other rights), trademarks and similar rights as well as EDP software. They are amortised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life as foliows:

= |icences: seven to 20 years;

m Software: maximum three years.

Other intangible assets with a definite useful life also include capitalised costs associated with the acquisition
of sports cluby players. These costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the respective

contracts. The term of these contracts vary and generally range from one to five years.

Brands, unless an indefinite useful life can be justified, and customer relationshios acquired through business
combinations are mainly amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life.

Other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are tested annually for impairment and whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
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m Property, plant and equipment

EEEREN Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
B |and: nil;

= Buildings: ten to 25 years;

» Technical equipment: four to ten years;

® Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment: three to ten years.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components having different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment. Gains and losses on disposals
are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and are included in operating profit.

Depreciation metheds and useful lives, as well as residual values, are reassessed annually.

Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group assumes substantialiy all the benefits and risks
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Assets held under finance leases and the related obligations
are recognised on the statement of financial position at the lower of their fair value and the present value of
minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Such assets are depreciated on the same basis as owned assets (see note 1.8.1.} or lease term if no
evidence of lessee will abtain ownership. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charge so as to achieve a constant rate on the outstanding finance balance. The corresponding lease
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in loans payabie. The interest element of the finance charge
is charged to the income statement over the lease period.

Leases, where all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor, are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are
charged to the income statement on a straight-ine basis over the period of the lease.

Subsequent expenditure

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property, plant and equipment, that is separately
accounted for, is capitalised, with the carrying amount of the component that is to be replaced being written
off. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits that
will be derived from the item af property, plant and equipment, All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

EBEA Loans and other financial assets

Loans are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs. In subsequent pericds, loans are stated at
amortised cost using the effective yield methed, less any valuation allowance for credit risk, Any difference
between nominal value, net of transaction costs, and redemption value is recognised using the effective
interest method in the income statement over the period of the loan.

Non-current and current investments comprise available-for-sale assets and other financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

investments intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or changes in interest rates, are classified as available-for-sale and are included in non-current
assets unless management have the express intention of holding the investment for less than 12 months
from the reporting date or unless they will need to be sold to raise operating capital, in which case they are
included in current assets. Management determine the appropriate classification of its investments at the
time of the purchase and re-evaluate such designation on a regular basis. Avaitable-for-sale investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs and are subsequently carried at fair value. Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale investments are included, net of
deferred income tax, in other comprehensive income {revaluation reserve) in the period in which they arise.
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Financial instruments are designated at fair value through profit or loss if they contain one or more embedded
derivatives which cannot be measured separately, or when they are managed and their performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis. They are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the income statement. Changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.

All purchases and sales of non-current and current investments are recognised on the trade date, which is
the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The fair value of publicly traded investments is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. The fair
value of non-publicly traded investments is based on the estimated discounrted value of future cash flows.

Current programme rights
Current programme rights are initially recognised at acquisition cost or Group production cost when the
Group controls, in substance, the respective assets and the risks and rewards attached to them.

Current programme rights include programmes in progress, (co-Jproductions and rights acquired with the
primary intention to broadcast or sell them in the normal course of the Group’s operating cycle. Current
programme rights include an appropriate portion of overheads and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The net reafisable value assessment is based on the advertising revenue expected to be
generated when broadcast and on estimated net sales. Weak audience shares or changes from a prime time
to a late-night slot constitute indicators that a valuation allowance may be recorded. They are consumed
based on either the expected number of transmissions or expected revenue in order to match the costs of
consumption with the benefits received. The rates of consumpticn applied for broadeasting rights are as
follows:

= Free television thematic channels: programme rights are consumed cn a straight-line basis over a maximum

of six runs;

® Free television other channels:

- Blockbusters (films with high cinema ticket sales), mini-series {primarily own productions with a large
budget), other films, series, TV movies and {co-)productions are mainly consumed over a maximum of
two transmissions as follows: at least 67 per cent upoen the first transmission, with the remainder upon
the second transmission;

Soaps, in-house productions, quiz and game shows, sports and other events, documentaries and music
shows are fully consumed upon the first transmission;

- Children’s programmes and cartoons are consumed over a maximum of two transmissions as follows:
at least 50 per cent upon the first transmission, with the remainder upon the second transmission;

m Pay television channels: programme rights are consumed on a straight-line basis over the licence period.

Accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable arise from the sale of goods and services related to the Group’s operating
activities. Other accounts receivable include, in addition to deposits and amounts related to Profit and Loss
Pooling (“PLP"} and Compensation Agreements with RTL Group’s controlling shareholder, VAT recoverable,
and prepaid expenses. Trade and other accounts receivable are measured at amortised cost. Impairment
losses on trade and other accounts receivable are recognised when there is gbjective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according te the onginal terms. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtar will enter bankruptcy or financial reerganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the ariginal effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss s recognised in the income statement within depreciation, amortisation, impairment and valuation
allowance. When a trade receivable is uncollectible it is written off against the allowance account for trade
accounts receivable. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
depreciation. amortisation and impairment in the income statement.

Accrued income is stated at the amounts expected to be received.
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Cash and cash equivalents
Cash consists of cash in hand and at bank.

Cash equivalents are assets that are readily convertible into cash, such as short-term highly liquid
investments, commercial paper, bank deposits and marketable securities, all of which mature within three
months from the date of purchase, and money market funds that qualify as cash and cash equivalents under
IAS 7 {see note 4.1.2.).

Bank overdrafts are included within current liabilities.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash ftows {cash-generating units).

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and vaiue in use. In
assessing value in use, and fair value less costs of disposal where applicable, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assel.

in respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed when there |s an indication that the
conditions that caused the impairment foss may no tonger exist and there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying value after the reversal of the impairment loss
cannot exceed the Garrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortisation,
if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset, or a
group of financial assets, is impaired.

Evidence of impairment of available-for-sale financial assets is assessed on the basis of two gualitative

criteria:

m A significant drop of the fair value, considered as a decline exceeding one quarter of the acquisition cost,
while giving consideration to all market conditions and circumstances; or

m The observation of an unrealised loss over two consecutive years.

If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in the income statement — is removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the income statement (“Financial results other than interest”). Impairment testing of trade accounts
receivable is described in note 1.11.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is
to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are
stated at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposat if their carrying amount is
recavered principaily through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. The impairment losses
on the assets related to disposal groups are reported in nan-current assets held for sale.

Accounts payable
Trade accounis payable arise from the purchase of assets, goods and services relating to the Group's

operating activities angd include accrued expenses. Other accounts payabte comprise, In addition to amounts
related to the Profit and Loss Pooling Agreement (“PLP") with RTL Group's controlling shareholder, VAT
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payable, fair value of derivative liabilities, and accounts payable on capital expenditure. Trade and other
accounts payable are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except derivative
liabilities which are measured at fair value.

Loans payable

Interest-bearing current and non-current liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing current and non-current liabilities are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

LAREN Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic
benefits as a result of past events. The amounts recognised represent management’s best estimate of the
expenditures that will be required to settle the obligation as of the reporting date. Provisions are measured by
discounting the expected future cash flows to settle the obligation at a pre-tax risk-free rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the obligation.

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group has approved a detailed and formal restructuring
plan and the restructuring has either commenced ar has been announced publicly. Costs relating to the
ongoing activities of the Group are not provided for.

Provisions for onerous contracts relate to unavoidable costs for individual programnte rights, the performance
of which is assessed as clearly below that originally planned when the contract was agreed. Such situations
mainly arise in case of executory obligations to purchase programmes which will not be aired due to lack of
audience capacity or to a mismatch with the current editorial policy. in addition, an expected or actual fall
in audience can be evidenced by several indicators such as the underperformance of a previous season,
the withdrawal of the programme’s main advertisers or a decline in the popularity or success of sports stars.
Long-term sourcing agreements aim to secure the programme supply of broadcasters. They are mainly
output deals, production agreements given the European quota obligations, and arrangements with sports
organisations. The provisicn is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating
the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established,
the Group reccgnises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

m Employee benefits

EREIMEN Pension benefits

The Group operates or participates in both defined contribution and defined benefit plans, according to the
national laws and regulations of the countries in which it operates. The assets of the plans are generally held
in separate trustee-administered funds, and some of the plans are operated through pension funds that are
legally independent from the Group. The pension plans are generally funded by payments from employees
and by the relevant Group companies, taking into account the recommendations of independent qualified
actuaries.

Pension costs and obligations relating to defined benefit plans are recognised based on the projected unit
credit method. The Group recognises actuarial gains and losses in other comprehensive income.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately through the profit or loss.

Pension ¢osts relating to defined coentribution plans {including deferred compensation plans that are defined
contribution plans in nature) are recognised when an employee has rendered service in exchange for the
contributions due by the employer.

Other benefits

Many Group companies provide death in service benefits, and spouses' and children’s benefits. The costs
associated with these benefits are recognised when an employee has rendered service in exchange for the
contributions due by the employer.
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EEEEEE} Share-based transactions
Share options are granted to directors, senior executives and other employees of the Group. They may also
be granted to suppliers for settiement of their professional services.

Share aptions entitle holders to purchase shares at a price {the “strike price”} payable at the exercise date
of the options. Opticns are initially measured at their fair value determined on the date of grant.

The grant date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment arrangements is recognised as an expense
with a corresponding increase in equity over the vesting period of the options. The amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of opticns that are expected to ultimately vest, considering
vesting service conditions and non-market performance conditions.

For cash settled share-based payment arrangements, the fair value of the amount payable to employees is
recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in liability until the employees exercise their options.

The liability is re-measured to fair value at each reporting date up until the settlement date. Any changes in
the liability are recognised in the income statement.

The fair value of the options is measured using specific valuation models (Binomial and Black-Scholes-
Merton models),

EBERR share capital

| 'SR Equity transaction costs

incremental external costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares, other than in connection with a
husiness combination, are deducted, net of the related income taxes, against the gross proceeds recorded
in equity.

(A M- Treasury shares
Where the Company or its subsidiaries purchase the Company’s own equity, the consideration paid, including
any attributable transaction costs net of income taxes, is shown in deduction of equity as “Treasury shares”.

LAY Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recorded in the consolidated financial statements in the period in which they
are approved at the Shareholders’ meeting or authorised loy the Board of Directors in case of interim dividends.

Revenue presentation and recognition

Revenue relates to advertising, the production, distributicn and licensing of films, programmes and other
rights, the rendering of services and the sales of merchandise. Revenue is presented, net of sales deductions
such as cash rebates, credit notes, discounts, refunds and VAT. Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable in the ordinary course of the Group's activities.

Advertising sales are recognised during the period over which the related advertisement is broadcast or
appears before the public. Sales house and other agencies’ commissions are directly deducted from

advertising revenue.

Revenue from content is recognised when the customer can generate economic benefit from the exploitation
of related rights and the Group has no remaining contractual obligation.

Revenue from services is recognised in the period in which the service has been rendered provided that the
amaunt of revenue can be measured reliably.

TV platform distribution revenue is recognised when Group's TV channels are providing a signal to cable,
IPTV or satellite platforms for a fee.

The sales of merchandise are recognised when the Group has transferred the significant risks and rewards
of ownership and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
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Barter revenue is recognised if goods or services in a barter transaction are of a dissimilar nature and if
revenue has economic substance and can be reliably measured. Revenue from barter transactions is
recognised at the fair value of the goods or services received, adjusted for any cash involved in the transaction.

In the Director’s report, “Digital” refers to the internet related activities with the exception of online sales of
merchandise (“e-commerce”). Digital revenue spreads over the different categories of revenue, i.e. other
advertising sales, revenue from content, sales of merchandises and consumer services and professional
services, “Content” mainly embraces the non-scripted and scripted production and related distribution
operations. “Diversification” includes the sale of merchandise through home shopping TV services,
e-commerce and services rendered to consumers, for example mobile services (voice), and mobile data (SMS).

m Government grants
Grants from government and inter-governmental agencies are recognised at their fair value where there is a

reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants related to assets are initially presented as a deduction in arriving at the carmrying amount
of the asset.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in "Other operating income™ on a
systematic basis in the same period in which the expenses are recognised.

Forgivable loans are loans which government and inter-governmental agencies undertake to waive repayment
of under certain prescribed conditions. Forgivable loans are recognised in "Other operating income” where
there is reascnable assurance the loan will be waived.

Gain/{loss) from sale of subsidiaries, other investments and re-measuremant

to fair value of pre-existing interest in acquiree
Gains/ {losses) on disposal or loss of control of subsidiaries owning only one non-financial asset or a group
of similar assets are classified in “Other operating income” to reflect the substance of the transaction.

Interest income/ {expense}
Interest income/ (expense) is recegnised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Incorme tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised
in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly to equity or other
comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted in the countries where the Group’s entities operate and generate taxable income at
the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred taxes are recognised accoerding to the balance sheet liability method on any temporary difference
between the carrying amount for consolidation purposes and the tax base of the Group’s assets and
liabilities. Temporary differences are not provided for when the initial recognition of assets or liabilities affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit, and when differences relate to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. No temporary differences are recognised on the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are reccgnised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the tempcrary differences and losses carried forward can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same tax authority.
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Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a compoenent of the Group’s business that represents a separate major line of
business or a gecgraphical area of operations that has been disposed of or is held for sale or distribution,
or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to
be classified as held for sale, if earlier. When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation the
comparative income statement is re-presented as if the operation had been discontinued from the start of
the comparative year.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to shareholders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased by the
Group and held as treasury shares and the shares held under the liquidity programme (see note 7.8.}.

The diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. There is currently no category of
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

m Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting pravided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing perfarmance of the cperating segments, has been identified as the Executive Committee that
makes strategic decisions.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenue and incur expenses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the
Group’s other components.

All operating segments' operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group's Executive Committee to
make decisions about resources to be atlocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which
discrete financial information is available.

The invested capital is disclosed for each reportable segment as reported to the Executive Cormmittee.

The segment assets include the following items:

= The non-current assets, except the incremental fair value of the available-for-sale investments, the surplus
of the defined benefit plans and the deferred tax assets;

m The current assets, except the income tax receivable, the fair value of derivative assets, the current deposit
with the shareholder, the accounts receivable from the shareholder in relation to the PLP and Compensation
Agreements, the accounts receivable related to dividend income, the fixed term deposits, and cash and
cash equivalents.

The segment assets and liabilities are consistently measured with those of the statement of financial position.
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A ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reascnable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.,

Ceonsaclidation of entities in which the Group holds less than 50 per cent

Even though the Group has less than 50 per cent of the voting rights of Groupe M&, management consider
that the Group has de facto control of Groupe M8. The Group is the majority shareholder of Groupe M6 while
the balance of other holdings remnains highly dispersed and the other shareholders have not organised their
interest in such a way that they intend to vote differently from the Group.

m Programme and other rights (assets and provisions for onerous contracts)

The Group's accounting for non-current programme rights requires management judgement as it relates to
estimates of total net revenue used in the determination of the amertisation charge and impairment loss for
the year.

in addition, management judgement will need to take into account factors such as the future programme
grid, the realised/expected audience of the programme, the current programme rights that are not likely to
be broadcast, and the related valuation allowance.

Provisions for onerous contracts related to programme and other rights are also recognised when the Group
has constructive obligations and it is probable that unavoidable costs exceed the economic benefits
originally planned. These provisions have been determined by discounting the expected future cash inflows
for which the amount and timing are dependent on future events,

Estimated impairment of goodwill and investments accounted for using the equity method
The Graup tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
paolicy stated in note 1.7.2.

The Group tests annually whether investrments accounted for using the equity method have suffered any
impairment, and if any impairment should be reversed.

The Group has used a combination of long-term trends, industry forecasts and in-house knowledge, with greater
emphasis on recent experience, in forming the assumptions about the development of the various advertising
markets in which the Group operates. This is an area highly exposed to the general economic conditions.

The state of the advertising market is just one of the key operational drivers which the Group uses when
assessing individual business models. Qther key drivers include audience shares, advertising market shares,
the EBITA and EBITDA margin and cash conversion rates.

All of these different elements are variable, inter-retated and difficult to isolate as the main driver of the
varicus business models and respective valuations.

The Group performs sensitivity analysis of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units, especially
oh those where the headroom between the recoverable amount and the carrying value is low.

m Contingent consideration and put cption liabilities on non-controlling interests

Contingent consideration, resulting from business combinations, is valued at fair value at the acquisition
date as part of the business combination, and subsequently re-measured at each reporting date. The
determination of the fair value is based cn discounted cash flow and takes into account the probability of
meeting each performance target. Put option liabilities on non-controlling interests are valued based on the
net present value of the expected cash outflow in case of exercise of the option by the counterparty.
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EEE] calt options on interests held by non-controlling sharehalders in subsidiaries

and derivatives on investments accounted for using the equity method
Call options on interests held by non-controlling shareholders in subsidiaries and call and put option
derivatives on investments accounted for using the equity method are initially recognised and subsequently
re-measured at fair value through profit or loss {“Financial results other than interest”) (see note 7.6.).

The magnitude of changes in fair value is driven by the terms of arangements agreed between the parties
{e.g. multiples applied) and by the valuations based on discounted cash flows (“DCF”) and derived from
market sources. In addition to the expected life of the options, the time value portion of the fair value of the
options is largely affected by the volatility of the value of the underlying asset value.

The underlying assets are usually Level 3 investments; their value and volatility are determined as described
in notes 4.3. and 8.2. respectively.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has recognised an income/ (expense) resulting from:

m g change in the fair value of a call option on an investment accounted for using the equity method for €0.2
million {see note 8.4.1.); and

= 3 change of €{3) million in the fair value of the call option on a subsidiary (see note 6.2.).

EX} Fair value of available-for-sale investments
The Group has used discounted cash flow analysis for various available-for-sale investments and financial
assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss that were not traded in active markets.

The carrying amount cf available-for-sale investments {see note 8.15.5.) would be an estimated €3 million
lower or higher were the discount rates used in the discounted cash flow analysis to differ by 10 per cent
from management’s estimates.

Provisions for litigations

Most ciaims involve complex issues, and the probability of loss and an estimation of damages are difficult
to ascertain. A provision is recognised when the risk of a loss becomes more likely than not and when it is
possible to make a reasonable eslimate of the expected financial effect. RTL Group management review on
a regular basis the expected settlement of the provisions.

EAEN income, deferred and other taxes
The Group Is subject to income and other taxes in numerous jurisdictions. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ardinary course of business.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences and losses carried forward can be utilised. Management judgement
is required to assess probable future taxable profits. In 20186, deferred tax assets on losses carry-forwards
(mainly in Germany, €15 million; 2015: €21 million) and on temporary differences (mainly in Germany, €262
million; 2015: €293 million) have been reassessed on the basis of currently implemented tax strategies.

m Post-employment henefits

The post-employment benefits {ay on several assumptions such as:

» The discount rate determined by reference to market yields at the closing on high quality corporate bands
{such as corporate AA bonds) and depending on the duration of the plan;

m Estimate of future salary increases mainly taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion, and supply
and demand in the employment market.

Dispesal groups
The determination of the fair value less costs of disposal requires management judgement as it relates to
estimates of proceeds of the disposal, residual obligations and direct disposai costs.

FARRE Contingent habulities

Contingent liakilities are disclosed unless management consider that the likelihood of an cutflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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E8 KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

RTL Group reports different alternative performance measures not defined by IFRS that management believe
are relevant for measuring the performance of the operations, the financial position and cash flows and in
decision making. These key performance indicators {(KP!s) also provide additional information for users of
the financial statements regarding the management of the Group on a ceonsistent basis over time and
regularity of reporting.

RTL Group's KPls may not be comparable to similarty titled measures reported by other groups due to
differences in the way these measures are calculated.

EBIT, EBITA and EBITDA
EBIT, EBITA and EBITDA are indicators of the operating profitability of the Group. These alternative
performance measures are presented on page 107 of the annual report.

EBITA represents earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) excluding some elements of the income

statement:

a “|mpairment of goodwill and amortisation and impairment of fair value adjustments on acquisitions of
subsidiaries”;

® |mpairment of investments accounied for using the equity method reported in "Share of result of
Investments accounted for using the equity method”;

u Re-measurement of earn-out arrangements presented in “Other operating income” and “Other operating
expense”;

® “Gain/(loss) from sale of subsidiaries, other investments and re-measurement to fair value of pre-existing
interest in acquire”.

EBITA is a component of the RTL Group Value Added (RVA, see below) and presents the advantage to
consistently inglude the consumption, depreciation and impairment losses on programmes and other rights
for all businesses that RTL Group cperates regardless of their classification on the consolidated statement
of financial position {current or non-current).

EBITDA represents earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) excluding some elements of the income

statement:

= “Impairment of goodwill and amortisation and impairment of fair value adjustments on acquisitions of
subsidiaries”;

= Amortisation and impairment of non-current programme and other rights, of other intangible assets,
depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment, with the exception to the part concerning
goodwill and fair value adjustments (see above}, reported in “Depreciation, amortisation, impairment and
valuation allowance”;

= Impairment of investments accounted for using the equity method included in the “Share of result of
investments accounted for using the equity method”;

®» Re-measurement of earn-out arrangements reported in “Other operating income™ and “Other operating
expense";

® “Gain/{loss) from sale of subsidiaries, other investments and re-measurement to fair value of pre-existing
interest in acquiree”.

EBITDA is largely used by the financial community, especially by the rating agencies when calculating the
“net debt to EBITDA ratio” (see below).
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oCcC
Operating cash conversion ratio {OCC) means operating free cash flow divided by EBITA, operating free cash
flow being net cash from operating activities adjusted as follows:

2016 201
€m £m
Net cash from operating actvities o 1,106 983

s

-Programme and otner ngnis D (-
- Otrer miangble and tangile assets (3
Proceeds fram the sale of ntangiole and tangible assats 47
Operating free cashflow . LT

Operating gash conversionrato 7% 87%

The operating cash conversion ratio reflects the level of operating profits converted inte cash available for
investors after incorporation of the minimum investments required to sustain the current profitability of the
business and before reimbursement of funded debts {interest included) and payment of income taxes. The
operating cash canversion of RTL Group’s operations is subject to seasonality and may decrease at the time
the Group significantly increases its investments in operations with longer operating cycles. RTL Group
historically had, and expects in the future to have, a strong OCC due to a high focus on working capital and
capital expenditure throughout the operations.

Net debt to EBITDA ratio
The net debt to EBITDA ratio is a proxy debt to profitability ratio typically used by the financial community
to measure the ability of an entity to pay off its incurred debt from the cash generated by the operations.

The net debt is the gross balance sheet financial debt adjusted for:

B “Cash and cash equivalents”;

» Marketable securities and other short-term investments presented in “Accounts receivable and other
financial assets”;

= Curtent deposit with shareholder reported in “Accounts receivable and other financial assets”; and

® Financial assets related to the sales and lease backs presented in “Loans and other financial assets”
{non-current part} and "Accounts receivable and other financial assets” {current part).

216 013
£m £€m

. lsa) eos)
L
(1,010} {1,129

Gurrent loans ana bank overdrafts

Non-current loans

Beducionn o

Cash and cash euu\.\flélem 77777 N - L T
Flﬂa}nClal assets related ‘o the sales and lease backs o N 1 - 3
Net debt - (576) [GIaM
esitpa o o ' 1411 S350
Net debt to EBITDA ratio o ' - 0.4 05

The Group intends to maintain a conservative level of between 0.5 and 1.0 times net debt to full-year EBITDA
to benefit from an efficient capital structure (see note 4.2.},
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RVA

The central performance indicator for assessing the profitability from operations and return on invested
capital is RTL Group Value Added (RVA). RVA measures the profit realised above and beyond the expected
return on invested capital. This form of vatue orientation is reflected in strategic investment and partfolio
planning — including the management of Group operations — and is the basis for senior management variabie
compensation.

The RVA is the difference between net operating profit after tax (NOPAT), defined as EBITA adjusted for a
uniform tax rate of 33 per cent, and cost of capital.

The NOPAT corresponds to the sum of (i) EBITA of fully consolidated entities and share of result of investments
accounted for using the equity method not already taxed adjusted for a uniform tax rate of 33 per cent, and
(i} share of resuit of investments accounted for using the equity method already taxed.

The cost of capital is the product of the weighted average cost of capital (a uniform 8 per cent after tax) and
the average invested capital {operating assets less non-interest bearing aperating liabilities as reported in
note 5.1.). 66 per cent of the present value of operating leases and of satellite transponder service agreements
is also taken into account when calculating the average invested capital.

2016 201a
€m €m

s e

1180 (1145

e e
ES

B16 7B9

L A6 3759
BEEL N

ﬁrérper'cént of tre net éresent value of operating leases and satellte ra~sporder service agraemen-s
atbegnmngofyear

66 per cent of the net cresen: value of operating leases ard satellite tra~sporder service agreements

at end of year N 3z0 327

Costofcapital o . - B <7
RVA 482 485
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EX FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

E®ER Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency, interest rate,
inflation risk and equity risks}, counterparty credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group is exposed in particular
to risks from movements in foreign exchange rates as it engages in long-term purchase contracts far
programme rights {output deals) denominated in foreign currency.

Risk management is carried out by the Group Treasury department under the supervision of the Chief
Financial Officer under policies approved by the Board of Directors. Group Treasury identifies, evaluates and
hedges risks in close cooperation with the Group's operating units. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance. The Board of Directors has issued written principles for overall
risk management as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as market risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk, use of derivatives and investment of excess liquidity.

The Group seeks to minimise the potential adverse effects of changing financial markets on its performance
through the use of derivative financiat instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts. Derivatives
are not used for speculative purposes. Risks are hedged to the extent that they influence the Group’s cash
flows (i.e. translational risk linked to the conversion of net investments in foreign operations is not hedged}.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group cperates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily in respect of USD and GBP. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and
liabilities, future commercial transactions and net investments in foreign operations.

For the Group as a whole, cash flows, net income and net worth are optimised by reference to the Euro.
However, foreign exchange risks faced by individual Group companies are managed or hedged against the
functional currency of the relevant entity (as these entities generally generate their revenue in local currencies}.
Hence the Group manages a variety of currencies due to the numerous functional currencies of the
companies constituting the Group.

In addition, market practices in the television business imply a significant forward exposure to USD as
programme rights are usually denominated in USD and not paid up-front. For this reason, the main off-
balance sheet exposure of the Group is towards the USD in respect of future purchases and sales of
programme rights, output deals {commitments for future cash flows} and highly probable forecast transactions
{USD 44 million as at 31 December 2016, USD 55 million as at 31 December 2015).

Management of the foreign exchange exposure

Management have set up a policy to require Group companies to manage their foreign exchange risk against
their functional currency. Group companies are required to hedge their entire foreign currency exchange risk
exposure with Group Treasury in accordance with the Group Treasury paolicies. All foreign currency exchange
exposures, including signed and forecast output deals and programme rights in foreign currency are
centralised in an intranet-based database. To manage their foreign exchange risk arising from recognised
assets and liabilities and future commercial transactions, entities in the Group use forward contracts
transacted with Group Treasury. Group Treasury is then responsible for hedging, most of the time on a one-
to-one basis, the exposure against the functional currency of the respective entity.

The Group Treasury policy is to hedge up o 100 per cent of the recognised monetary foreign currency
exposures arising from cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, loans receivable and borrowings
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency. The Group policy is to hedge between 80 per
cent and 100 per cent of shart-term cash flow forecasts and between 10 per cent and 80 per cent of longer
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term {between two and five years) cash flow forecasts. Approximately 59 per cent {2015: 66 per cent) of
anticipated cash flows constitute firm commitments or highly probable forecast transactions for hedge
accounting purposes.

In order to monitor the compliance of the management of the foreign exchange exposure with the Group's
policy, a monthly report is produced and analysed by management. This report shows for each subsidiary’s
exposure to currencies other than their functionai currency, detailing the nature {e.g. trade accounts, royalties,
intercompany accounts) of on-balance sheet items, and the underlying deals and maturities of off-balance
sheet items, as well as the comresponding hedging ratios. A specific report showing the global currency
exposures (mainly USD) is provided to RTL Group management on a monthly basis.

Accounting

The foreign currency cash flow hedge accounting model defined under IAS 39 is applied by those companies

that account for the majority of the Group's foreign currency exposure, when:

® Hedged foreign currency exposures relate to programme rights transactions which have not yet been
recognised on the statement of financial position (such as forecast or firm purchases of programme rights
for which the licence period has not yet begun); and

u Amounts are sufficiently material to justify the need for hedge accounting.

When hedge accounting is applied, the effective portion of the changes in the fair value of the hedging
instrument is recognised net of deferred tax in the hedging reserve as presented in the “Consolidated
statement of changes in equity” {(see note 8.15.4.). It is added to the carrying value of the hedged item when
such anitem is recognised in the statement of financiat position. The ineffective portion of the change in fair
value of the hedging instrument (inciuding swap points) is recognised directly in profit or loss. For the year
ended 31 December 2016, the amount of ineffectiveness (see note 7.6.) that has been recognised in the
income statement is €5 million (€3 million in 2015).

For recognised foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities there is a natural offset of gains and losses
in the income statement between the revaluation of the derivative and the exposure. Therefore, hedge
accounting as defined under |IAS 39 is not applied.

Foreign exchange derivative contracts
The impact of forward foreign exchange contracts is detailed as follows:

2016 2ma

Notes €m £m

Net farr valug of foreign exchange denvatve assets ‘73 &0
Operating foreign exchange gans/fosseg> -
Cas~ flow hecges neffectiveness gains/{losses; 5 3
2016 2015

£m Em

13 e

26 28

Less thar s o 3 33
More than S years e ) o 3 -
Net far value of denvative assets 73 20
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The split by maturities of notional amounts of forward exchange contracts at 31 December 2016 is, for the
main foreign currencies, as follows:

anr 2018 0109 a0 2070 Total

£m £m fm Il £m £m
Bw .. ee a8 7o 28
Sel (314) (27} < 2 < S C I < )
Total (105) 10 10 4 19 (62)

2017 2018 2019 2070 >2020 Total

Sm sm §m §m £m £m
BUY .. .. .BTY P21 7803 88
Set 412 63) o (19] UO) ) 7(371]
Total 467 158 59 93 57

The split by maturities of national amounts of forward exchange contracts at 31 December 2015 is, for the
main foreign currencies, as follows:

2016 2017 INH 219 >2019 Tatal
Em £m £m Em £m £m
B s ez A a7 84 3d
Sell SRR <2 (R - N - SR SO < A .-
Total {75) {11) [ 2 2 (74)
2016 2017 2018 2019 »2019 Tatal
3m $m §m &m gm $m
B e ems TgBa 2t 315 1388
Sel L o wEm e 3 L S o1
Total 488 215 92 9 11 815

Sensitivity analysis to foreign exchange rates

Management estimate that:

s |f the USD had been 10 per cent stronger compared to the € (respectively weaker), with all other variables
held constant, this would have had no material impact on the Group profit or loss (2015: no material
impact), and an additional pre-tax €73 million income (respectively expense) {2015: an income of
€62 million) recognised in equity;

u |f the GBP had been 10 per cent stronger compared to the € {respectively weaker), with all other variables
heid constant, this would have had no material impact on the Group profit or loss (2015: no material
impact), and an additional pre-tax € nil million expense {respectively income) (2015: an expense of € nil
million) recognised in equity;

= [f other currencies had been 10 per cent stronger compared to € (respectively weaker), with all other
variables held constant, this would have had no material impact on profit or loss and equity (2015: no
material impact}).

This sensitivity analysis does not include the impact of translation into € of foreign operations.
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Interest rate risk
The Group interest rate risk arises primarily from loans payable, financing agreements with Bertelsmann SE
& Co. KGaA (see note 10.1.) and from gash and ¢ash equivalents.

The objective of the interest rate risk management policy is to minimise the interest rate funding cost over
the long-term and to maximise the excess cash return.

In 2013, the Group entered into a 10-yearterm lean facility in the amount of €500 million with a fixed interest
rate of 2.713 per cent per year. The term lcan matures on 7 March 2023. The fair value of the 10-year-term
facility - calculated as the present value of the payments associated with the debt and based on the
applicable yield curve and RTL Group credit spread — amounts to €557 million (2015; €548 mitlion). This is
a Level 2 fair value measurement (see note 4.3.2.). Under the same shareholder loan agreement, the Group
also has access to a revalving and swing line facility of up to €1 billion. The revelving and swing line facility
matures on 24 February 2018. The interest rates for loans under the revolving and swing line facility are
EURIBOR plus a margin of 0.60 per cent per year and EONIA plus a margin of 0.60 per cent per year,
respectively. The balance between the fixed versus floating rate ratio might change substantially following
the loan agreements described above. Management intend to maintain a suitable fixed versus floating rate
ratio, taking into account interest rate yield curves. This percentage can be reviewed at the discretion of the
Treasury Committee until the optimum mix between fixed and floating rates has been achieved.

In order to maximise the excess cash return on cash balances, cross border cash pooling has been set up
for rmost of the entities of the Group. The interest rate strategy defined by RTL Group depends on the net
cash position of each company.

When RTL Group has excess cash, the Treasury Committee defines the appropriate average tenor of the
short-term placements basad on business seasonality and regularly reviewed cash flow forecasts. Interest
income depends on the evolution of floating interest rates and can potentially, in a low interest rate
environment, generate a shortfall of income against interest expense.

Group Treasury uses various indicators to monitor interest rate risk, such as a targeted net fixed/floating
rate debt ratio, duration, basis point value (increase in interest rate costs resulting from a basis point increase
in interest rate) and interest cover ratio {i.e. adjusted EBITA over net interest expense as defined by rating
agencies).

If the interest rates achieved had been lower (respectively higher) by 100 basis points, and assuming the

current amount of floating net cash available remains constant, the net interest income/{expense) at
31 December 2016 would have been decreased (respectively increased) by €1 million (2015: €2 million).
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The following table indicates the effective interest rate of interest-earning financial assets and interest-
bearing financial liabilities at 31 December and the periods in which they re-ptice:

Effectwve Toral 8 Tonths 6-17 1-7
interesl rate amount i less months years
Nafes % £m £m £m £m
Loans to Irvesiments
dccounted for usng the equily methad - not bearing interest - 7 - - -
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ascounted far using the equity method - fixed rate 3.0 e 3 2 -
Loans to irvestments
ﬂccomted for using me equ\ty method - floating rate 0.0 o - - - -
Cnher Ioans —fixed rate 47 i - 1 -
Cnher loans — floating rate: 0.1 4 3
Cash and cash equwvaleﬂts - earmng assets. - 02 _
26 @

26 (7
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Ea’\K overdraﬂs e . 2] - —
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@ - N
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At 31 December 2015 o S ”””(542] s - -
tftective Total 6 months 612 1-2
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Notes % £m €m £m €m
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Cnher Ioans —fixed sate ) 2 -
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Cash and cash equwale"ts :éamlnc assets R - -
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Loans due to investmerts )
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EXERE] Credit risk

RTL Group's expostre to credit risk primarily arises through sales made to customers {trade receivables),
investments in money market funds classified in cash and cash equivalents, and deposits made with banks
and the shareholder.

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis, except for credit risk relating to accounts receivable balances that
are managed by individual subsidiaries.

The Group's television and radio operations incur exposure to credit risk when making transactions with
advertising agencies or direct customers. In 20186, the combined television and radio advertising revenue
contributed 52 per cent of the Group's revenue (2015: 54 per cent). Due to its business model, RTL Group's
exposure to credit risk is directly linked to the final client. However the risks are considered as low due to
the size of the individual companies or agency aroups.

RTL Group produces programmes that are sold or licensed to state-owned and commercial television channels.
in 20186, these activities contributed 26 per cent of the Group’s revenue (2015: 26 per cent}. Given the limited
number of television broadcasters in different countries, there is a high degree of concentration of credit risk.
However, giveh the long-standing relationships between content provider and broadcasters and the fact that
the customers are large businesses with solid financial positions, the level of credit risk is significantly mitigated.

RTL Group alsc has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and services are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history.

According to the banking policy of the Group, derivative instruments and cash transactions {including bank
deposits and investments in money market funds) are operated only with high credit quality financial
institutions so as to mitigate counterparty risk {only independently rated parties with a minimum rating of ‘A’
are accepted for bank deposits}. The Group’s bank relationship policy sets forth stringent criteria for the
selection of banking partners and money market funds (such as applicable supervisory authorities,
investrnent policy, maximum volatility, track record, rating, cash and cash equivalents status under 1AS 7).
In arder to mitigate settlement risk, the Group has policies that limit the amount of credit exposure to any
one financial institution on any single day. Statistics {such as the percentage of the business allocated to
each bank over the year compared to a target defined by management, or such as the summary of the
highest intraday exposures by bank and by maturity date) are computed and used on a daily basis so as to
ensure credit risk is mitigated in practice at any time.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents their maximum credit exposure.

Ageing of financial assets (excluding available-for-sale and fair value through profit or loss investments far
respectively €58 million and € nil million) at 31 December 2016:

Neither Not impared as of the -cporting datc and past duc oy
Gross oast cue nor Gross
carrying  impaired on the < | 2-3 3-6 =17 Over amount
amount'  reporting date manth months manths months 1 year inpaired
£€m Em tm £m £m £m £m Em
Loars and other non-current ’
financial assets 19 5 - - - - - 14
Trade accounts recewvable 1,281 885 223 70 11 65
Accounts recenvable
and loans racervakble to
investment accounted
for using the equity me:hod 40 38 1 - - - 1 -
Crher accounts recewvaole and
curren: fi~arcial assets 555 538 2 - - - - 17
Cash and cash equivalents 433 433 - - - - - -
At 31 December 2016 2,338 1,897 228 70 23 T 10 96

Ageing of financial assets (excluding available-for-sale and fair value through profit or loss investments for
respectively €55 million and € nil million) at 31 December 2015:
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Neither Not imparet as o* the reporting date and past Gua by
(ross  past due nor (rass
carrying imparree on the <=" 2-3 38 6-12 Over amount
amount  reparfirg date Tonth manths monthy manths 1 year ImpdIrec
£m €m €m €m [ €m £m €m
t oans and other non-current
financial assets 23 5 - - - - - 18
Trade accounts recevable 1,249 862 184 87 41 13 5 62
Accounts recevable
and leans recevable to
Investmen: accounted
for using tre equity method 44 39 2 2 1 - - -
Other accounts recevabie and
current financiat assets 837 €23 2 - - - -

C .......

cash equ a_lgf\'tsw C 449 449 - - - = -
At 31 December 2015 2,402 1,978

The top ten trade accounts receivable represent €138 mitlion {2015: €124 million) while the top 50 trade
accounts receivable represent €352 million (2015: €310 million).

The top ten counterparties for cash and cash equivalents represent €165 million {2015: €88 million).

The Group has a significant concentration of credit risk due to its relationship with Bertelsmann. Nevertheless,
credit risk arising from transactions with shareholders is significantly mitigated (see note 10.1.).

Price risk

The Group is subject to price risk linked to equity securities, earn-out mechanisms, put options on non-
controlling interests and derivatives on subsidiaries and investment accounted for using the equity method
{see note 2.5.).

Liquidity risk

Prudent liguidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying business, management aim to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
committed credit lines available despite the tatal net cash situation. Gash flow forecasting is performed in
the operating entities of the Group and aggregated by Group Treasury. Group Treasury monitors rolling
forecasts on the Group's liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient headroom to meet operational
needs. Management monitor, on a monthly basis, the level of the “Liquidity Head Room™ (total committed
facilities minus current utilisation through bank loans and guarantees).

Under 1 1-5 Dver 5
yaar years. years 2016
€m £m &m £m
Committed faciities 294 - - 294
Headroom 49 - - 49
Uinder 1 1-5 {ver 5
yaar years yEAIS 2015
fm €m &m £m
Credit facilities - i).a-n-l-(s- 777777777777
Commitied faciities 279 - - 279
Headroom 53 - - 53

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over and above balances required for warking capital managerment
is transferred to Group Treasury. Group Treasury invests surplus cash in interest bearing current accounts,
time deposits, money market funds or deposits with Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA (see note 10.1.) cheosing
instruments with appropriate maturities or sufficient liquidity to provide sufficient headroom as determined
by the above-mentioned forecasts.
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The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the closing date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table
below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Urzer 1 1-5 Over &
year Years years Total
e€m €m £€m £m

Loans and bank overdrafts 528 1,098
Accounts payabe™ 1 2421
At 31 December 2016 543 3519
Derivative financial liabilites
Forward exchange contracts used for hecgng:
g e St e S e L e
“flew T - 8D
At31 Degember206 - 8
Urcer 1 1-5 Ouer &
year years years Total
£m €m €m £m

Non.

Loans and bank overdrafts o L 619 o ?3 o 539 . 1.231
Accounts payable™ B o 2210 o 1_5_8 o 15 o 2,383
At 31 December 2015 2,829 231 554 3,614

Derivative financial liabiltes
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging:

Cirflow
At31 December 2015

IR Capital management
The Group monitors capital on the basis of its net debt to EBITDA ratio (see note 3.).

The Group'’s ability and intention to pay dividends in the future will depend on its financial condition, results
of operations, capital requirements, investment alternatives and other factors that the management may
deem relevant, Management expect that the principal source of funds for the payment of dividends will be
the cash flow and dividends received from its current and future subsidiaries.

The Group intends to pay ordinary dividends in the future targeting a dividend ratio of between 50 and 75
per cent of the adjusted net profit atiributable to RTL Group shareholders.

The adjusted net profit takes into account non-recurring items, both positive and negative, impacting the
reported net result attributable to RTL Group shareholders. The non-recurring items include gains or losses
that appear in the financial statements that are not expected to accur regularly such as impairment of
gocdwill, material gains/{losses) on disposal of assets, restructuring costs and re-measurement to fair value
of pre-existing interests in acquiree.
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EBER Accounting classifications and fair value hierarchy

Financial instruments by category
The fair value of each class of financial assets and liabilities are equivalent to their carrying amount.

Ass
Loans and other financial assets

Agsels at far Lgans and Avelable-
valug through accounts. Ir-Salg
pratit ar loss Oenvatives'™ recevabie mestments Total
MNates £m £m £m €m €m

- e 58
Liatifitres al iair Ciher
value through tinancial
profitor boss'' Derivatives ™ liauletres' Tatal
Noles €m €m £m £m
L-i;b 7 ri}e.s... e ettt e s e e+ e+ e Lt e et e ¢ e e e e -
Loans and bank overdrafts - - 1,010 1,010
Accounts payable® 28 38 2,349 2,415
At 31 Dacember 2016 28 38 3,359 3,425
Assels at fair Loans anc Avallable
value through accounts tor-sale
profit or lpss Der vatives” recevable IVESITENS Total
Mates €m Em £m €m £m
Assels
Loans and other financial assets
(surplus of the delined bengfil plans excluded) - - 13 a5 88
Accounts receivable and other financial assets' - 108 1,853 - 1,961
Cash and cash equivalents - - 443 - 449
At 31 December 2015 - 108 2,315 55 2,478
Liabirics at fair Other
walue through financial
oroli or loss' Denvanves liabifties™ Totat
Natzs £m £m tm €m
Llables et e e e = et e e e e e e e o
Loans and bank cverdrafts - - 1,128 1,129
Accounts payable® 28 22 2,328 2,378
At 31 December 2015 28 22 3,457 3,507
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Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value. The different

levels have been defined as follows:

& | evel 1; quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets (or liabilities);

® | evel 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices}); and

= | evel 3: inputs for the asset or the liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

Tatal Level * Level 2 wevel 3
Nutes £m m Em €m

Assets
Avalable-for-sale nvestments

Denvatives used for Fedging . - T
Denvates n relaton to call ootions - - - 3
At 31 December 2016 172 9 111 52

Déﬂ\.’ ves used for qEUglﬂg ) 38 T — T 38 V V—
Liabities in relation ta put aptions on non-controling nterests LG . 28 - - 28
At 31 December 2016 66 - 38 28
Total Level * level 2 —evel 3

€m cm [ €m

Assets

Avallableforsalemvestments . g n

Denvatives used for recgng e -0z -

Demaivesnwstontocalootens P 8 - - &

At 31 December 2015 ' ' BT 8 102 53

Lisbilties

""" 22 - z
-conoling rierests [ 28 - - 28

At 31 December 2015 N 50 - 22 28

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the years 2016 and 2015.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. These instruments are included
in Level 1. The quoted market price used for financial assets by the Group is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

If ane or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included
in Level 3.
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The Group's finance department, which includes Group Treasury and Controlling teams, perform the recurring
and non-recurring valuations of items to be valued at fair value for financial purposes, including Level 3 fair
values. These teamns report directly to the Chief Financial Officer, who reports to the Audit Committee at least
once every quarter, in line with the Group's quarterly reporting dates. The main Level 3 related inputs used
by RTL Group relate to the determination of the expected discounted cash flows as well as the discount
rates used in the different valuations.

Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instruments include:

= Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments (Level 2);

® The fair vaiue of forward foreign exchange contracts classified under Levei 2 is determined by using forward
exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value;

® For instruments classified under Level 3, other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, based
far the main instruments on the significant unobservable inputs {(e.g. forecast revenue growth rates and
market muitiples are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments) or the Black-
Scholes model. Volatility is primarily determined by reference to comparable publicly traded peers.

The following table presents the change in Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31 December 2016

Financ al asseis Lighikifies

at fair valug Availake- at ‘air valug

through for sale Total through

prolit ar loss investments ASSELS prefit or loss

Nales £m €m €m £m

ance at

Acquistions and additiors
Gains and losses recognised in profit or loss

[“Financal results other than interest”) ) B ) N 1 13) - @ {1}
Balance at 31 December 3 49 52 25
Total gains/(iosses) for the pericd included in profitor loss for

assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting periad (3) - {3) 1

The following table presents the change in Level 3 insttuments {or the year ended 31 December 2015:

Finane:al assets 1 atibies

at far valug Available- at tar valye

thrgugh for-sdle Intal through

profit or loss meesta ets AsSELS croft of [oss

Natzs Em m £m €m

Balance at 1 January - 50 50 30
Accuisiions and additions - 1 1 -
in other comprehensive incarme - {4) [CH -

Gans and losses recogrised In profit or loss

6 L B
5] 47 53 2%
assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting pericd 6 - 6 4
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EMA Master netting agreement

The Group enters into derivative transactions under International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA}
master netting agreements. In certain circumstances — e. g. when a credit event such as a default occurs —
all cutstanding transactions under the agreement are terminated, the terrmination value is assessed and only
a single net amount is payabie in settlement of all transactions.

The ISDA agreernents do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the staterment of financial position. This is
because the Group does not have any currently legally enforceable right to offset recognised amounts,
because the right to offset is enforceable only on the occurrence of future events such as a bank loan default
or other credit events.

The following table sets out the carrying amounts of recognised financial instruments that are subject to the
above agreements. The column “net amount” shows the impact on the Group's statement of financial
position if all set off rights were exercised.

At 31 Decerper 2076 At 31 Cecemper 2015
Gross amounts Relaled Gross amaunts Refatec
In the financiat in the financial
sfalement nsteuments staremenl nstruments
of financial thal zre af financial that are
pasifien not oftset Het amount pasiion not offset Net amount
Em m £m €m €m €m
Financial assets
Derivative financial nstruments
- Forward exchange contracts used for hedging 1 {38) 73 102 (22) BO
111 {38) 73 102 (22) BO
Financial liabilities o o
Denvative financial instruments
- “orward exchange centracts used for hedging {38) a8 - (22) 22 -
{38) 38 - {22) 22 -

RTL Group Annual Report 2016



Nates ta the consolidated financial statements

B SEGMENT REPORTING

The determination of the Group’s operating segments is based on the operationat and management-related
entities for which information is reported to the Executive Gommittee.

The Group has 16 business units (of which Atresmedia accounted for using the equity method), each one
led by a CEQ. They manage operations in television, radic and diversification businesses in eight European
countries and across South East Asia. The Group owns interests in 60 TV channels and 31 radio stations,
of which six TV channeis and three radio stations are held by Atresmedia as an associate. BroadbandTV,
FremantieMedia, Radical Media as an associate, SpotX and Style Haul operate international networks in the
content and digital businesses.

The following reported segments meet the guantitative thresholds required by IFRS &:

u Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland: this segment encampasses all of the Group’s German television
activities. These include the leading commercial channel RTL Television, free-to-air channels Vox, Super
RTL and Toggo Plus {through RTL Disney Fernsehen GmbH & Co. KG, joint-venture accounted for using
the equity method), RTL Nitro, RTL Plus and N-TV, thematic pay channels RTL Crime, RTL Living,
RTL Passion and Geo Television, and an equity participation in the free-to-air channel RTL Il. This segment
also includes an array of diversification operations such as digital and content activities;

= Groupe M6: primarily composed of the commercial free-to-air TV channel M6. This segment also includes
two other free-to-air television channels, W9 and Bter, plus a number of smaller thematic pay channels,
plus significant other operations such as digital activities, home shopping, rights production and distribution
and a football club;

= FremantleMedia: principally a worldwide production business but other activities include a significant
distribution and licensing business. Its main business units are based in the United States, Germany, the
United Kingdom and Australia;

® RTL Nederland: this segment covers television, radio and a wide range of new media and diversification
activities. Its television channels RTL 4, RTIL 5, RTL 7, RTL 8, RTL Z, ATL Lounge, RTL Crime and
RTL Telekids are the leading family of channels in the Netherlands;

® RTL Belgium: this segment includes both television and radio activities primarily focused on the French-
speaking part of Belgium. The television activities are the \eading family of channeis and include RTL-TVI,
Plug RTL and Club RTL, while the radio activities are made up of the number one and number three
stations, Radio Contact, Bel RTL and Mint;

a RTL Radio (France): this is the leading radio family in France and includes the stations RTL Radio, RTL 2
and Fun Radio.

The revenue of “Other segments” amounts to €580 million (2015: € 478 million}; multi-channel networks and
ATL Hungary are the major contributors for €176 million and €104 million respectively (2015: €90 million
and €100 million respectively). Group headquarters, which provide services and initiate development
projects, are also reported in “Other segments”,

RATL Group's Executive Gommittee assesses the pedormance of the operating segments based on EBITA
and EBITDA. Interest incomne, interest expense, financial results other than interest and income tax are not
allocated to segments, as these are centrally driven. Inter-segment pricing is deterrmined on an arm’s length
basis.

The Executive Committee also reviews, on a regular basis, the amount of the invested capital of each profit
centre. Only the assets and liabilities directly managed by the profit centres are considered. Reportable

segment assets and liabilities are reconciled to total assets and liabilities, respectively.

All management financial information reported to RTL Group’s Executive Committee is fully compliant and
consistent with the Group’s accounting policies and primary statements.
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Segment information

Mediengruppe

Groupe

Note RTL Deutschland M6

2018
€m

Reverue from external customers

I~ter-segment revenue k3

Total revenue

2211 2135

2,214

Rk 2016 2013
Ll €m [

Prom/[loss, from operating actvities .. B82
Share of resuhs of investrments accour“led for usmg lhe Ecruwly melhod B - ) 41
EBIT 703

EBITDA

Denrncwatwon and amon satlon
(amomsat on and mparmen: of far value adjus*ments on acuuvsmons of subswcwanes exc\uded]

EBITA

03
705

718

R
235

Gam/ ioss) from sale of subsudlarles. oﬂ"er nvestments
and re-rmeasurement to Tair value ¢

EBIT

I
S

interest incorne
Inlerest ‘expense

Fmancwal resuits otherlhan lmerest S

In ome tax experse.

Prom for the year

Segmert asseis {assets classified as held for sale and rvestments
accounted fcr using the equ 1y method excludec)

Invesiments accounted for using Ihe equity melhod
Asseis ulassmed as held for sale -
Segment assets

Segment fabilities {labilites directly associated with non-cu-rent assets classified as held for sale excluded)

Invested capital

Segmentassets '
Deferred tax asse1s

Othe’ assets’

Gashandoastequvalents
Total assets

Deferred tax Ilabwlmes

income tax payable e e e e e
Other habllmes
Total Ilabllmes

| 56
meawrmemIossesexclud:ngqoodwwll S B -

Capatal expench ure"‘

Deprec ation and an-orl satlon

Restructuring costs amount to €3 million (2015: insignificant)
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AT, RTL RTL
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Geographical information

Geographical areas are based on where customers (revenue) and the Group's non-current assets are located.
Goodwill has been allocated to a geographical area based on whether the Group's risks and returns are

affected predominantly by the products and services it produces.

Germany France USA The Ketherlands. UK
2016 2013 2016 08 2016 2015 20t6 s 2016 2015
€£m [ £m €m €m Em €m £m £m £m

2204 2,51 1419 394 802 TEE 514 509 227 246

63 25 175

_ 282 275 839
1,045 1000 965 941 707 728 309 S09 408 409

JRRE- DA D B DU S D

Belgum Other regions. Totai

2016 2Ms 2016 2015 2016 205
€m £m fm €m £m £

839 738 6,237 £.029
50 50 170 174 3654 3611
- ...D..B -8
5 .5 7b e 3 275

The revenue generated in Luxembourg amounts to €88 million {2015: €73 million). The total of non-current
assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets and post-employment benefit assets located in

Luxembeurg amounts to €106 million (2015: €65 million).
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B ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Acquisitions and increases in interests held in subsidiaries

Acquisitions have been consolidated using the purchase method of accounting with goodwill being
recognised as an asset. The acquisitions have been included in the consolidated financial statements from
the date that the control was obtained by the Group.

In aggregate, the acquired businesses contributed revenue of €54 millicn and profit attributable to RTL Group
shareholders of €3 million for the post acquisition period to 31 December 2018. Had the business
combinations occurred at the beginning of the year, the revenue and the profit attributable to RTL Group
shareholders would have amounted to €6,300 million and €719 million, respectively.

Details of main acquisitions and disposals, increases in interests held in subsidiaries

2016

Abot Hameiri

On 11 January 2016, FremantieMedia Netherlands BY {“FremantieMedia” acquired 51 per cent of Abot
Hameiri Communications Ltd (“AH"), an lsraeli content development and TV productian company, which
primarily focuses on the development and production of both established and original entertainment,
scripted drama and factual programmes. The acquisition is in line with the growth strategy of FremantieMedia
to strengthen the creative pipeline and to enter new markets. The transaction qualifies as a business
combination since RTL Group gained the control of AH.

The purchase consideration of €7 rnifiion, net of cash acquired, includes a top-up adjustment based on the
level of profitability realised in 2015. The purchase accounting did not lead to the recognition of additional
identifiable assets and liabilities. Goodwill of €8 million mainly represents the value of creative talent and
market competence of Abot Hameiri's workforce and is not tax deductiole. AH is allocated to the
FremantleMedia cash-generating unit.

FremantleMedia holds an option on the remaining 49 per cent of the share capital. The strike price of the
option, exercisable in 2021, is based on a variable component. The consideration for 100 per cent of AH is
capped at €46 million. If FremantleMedia does not exercise the option, the non-controlling sharsholders
have a drag-along right and a call option. The fair value of the related derivative was € nil million at completion
date and remains unchanged at 31 December 2016,

Transaction-reiated costs of €0.3 million, mainly consisting of legal fees and due diiigence costs, are reported

in "Other operating expenses”.
Fair value
at date of
gain ot control
€m

Carshrarrldr‘césrlrﬂ Edu&ﬂenié 7 7 o 7 7 ) 7

Cumentprogramme rgts e T
A‘VCCO(.JHTS}ECEIVabliE and otﬁérfirlwanclr;fil asusets‘ _ L T ‘ 1
Accoums payable |
Net assets acquired B B ' - .
Gooawil L e e e e e .8
"i;otal quchase cbhsideraﬁon - ) ‘ 8
Cas‘ﬁ and-(;ash eq-u.n;ualents .|r-1.operal}-cxﬁs acqunréd 7 7 - T 7 (1)
Cashroutﬂow'on a6QU|s-ition o B ) i o : - s ) ’ -7
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Smartclip

On 11 March 2016, RTL Group Vermdgensverwaltung GmbH entereg into an agreement to acquire 93.75
per cent of smartclip Holding AG and five of its subsidiaries operating in Germany, Italy, the Netherlands and
Sweden (“Smartclip”}. Smartclip bundles the onlire video advertising inventary of 700 publishers worldwide,
and manages the integration and serving of video advertising to all internet-connected screens. As a strong
sales house and technological innovator, Smartclip also creates solutions for Smart-TV and multiscreen
advertising. Smartclip complements RTL Group's investments in digital advertising sales. The German cartel
office approved the transaction on 22 April 2016. The transaction qualifies as a business combination since
RTL Group gained the controt of Smartclip.

The purchase cansideration amounts to €37 millicn, net of cash acquired. Intangible assets include the trade
name (€1 million) and customer contracts (€4 million). A corresponding deferred tax liability amounts to €1
millien. Goodwill of €38 million is attributable 1o the skills and market competence of Smartclip’s workforce
and the synergies expected. The goodwill in connection with the acquisition is not tax deductible. Smartclip
is allocated to the Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland cash-generating unit.

The remaining 6.25 per cent are subject to symmetrical put and call options exercisabie in 2017, The strike
price of the put option is based on a variable component and capped at €200 million on a 100 per cent
basis. The related amount has been initially recognised as a financial liability for €4 million through equity
for the present value of the redemption amount. The financial liability is subsequently measured at amortised
cost and has been re-measured to €6 million at 31 December 2016. The related expense of €2 million is
reported in “Financial results other than interest" {see note 7.6.}.

Transaction-related costs of €0.2 million, mainly consisting of legal fees and due diligence costs, are reparted
in “Other operating expenses” (2015: €0.4 million).

Fair value

at date of
gain of contral
Em

Cash anc cash equivalents 11
Other ntangiole assets 9

Acceounts receivatle and cther financial assets

Accounts paya
Nef geferrec tax liabives 77
Non-centroling mverests
Net assets acquired
Goodwill

Total purchase consideration

Casr and cash equivalents n operations acaured

Cash outflow oﬁ acqguisition
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Mandarin Cinéma

On 22 July 20186, Groupe M6 acquired 100 per cent of Mandarin Ginéma SAS {*Mandarin Cinéma"}. Mandarin
Cinema, which is based in France, holds a catalogue of 32 feature films. With this targeted acquisition,
Groupe M6 continues the consolidation of its activities of distribution of audiovisual rights by extending its
catalogue, which now contains almost 1,360 full-length feature films. The transaction gualifies as a business
acquisition since RTL Group gained the controf of Mandarin Cinéma.

The purchase consideration amounts to €12 miltion, net of cash acguired. The purchase agreement includes
an earn-out mechanism based on a variable performance component; the contingent consideration has been
estimated and recognised for €1 million. The fair value of identified assets has been allocated to the
catalogue for € 7 million and to other accounts receivable for €7 million. A corresponding deferred tax liability
has been recognised for €4 million. Provisional goodwill of €2 million is attributable to expected synergy
penefits. The goodwill arising from the transaction is not tax deductibte. Mandarin Cinema is allocated to
the Groupe M6 cash-generating unit.

Transaction-related costs of €0.1 million are reported in “Other operating expenses”.

Fair value

at date of
gain of contrad
£€m

Cash and cash .
Non-current program e and other rights
Accounts receivable and other financiat assets

N

T

{4)

‘13

Goodwil 2
Total purchase consideration T o T g
Commgent Gongideration )
Casn and cash equivalerts in operator's acqured o e [t
Cash outflow on acquisiion U0 T Ty
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iGraal

On 30 November 2016, Groupe M6, through its subsidiary M6 Web SAS, acquired 51 per cent of iGraal SAS
(“iGraal"). iGraal is based in France and the leader for cashback schemes on online purchases. With this
acquisition, Groupe MB is strengthening its capacity for inngvation in support of online retailers, expanding
its range of ‘good deals’ for consumers and enriching its data strategy by accessing highly qualified
purchasing behaviour data. The transaction qualifies as a business acquisition since RTL Group gained the
control of iGraal.

The purchase consideration amounts to €2 million, net of cash acquired. Provisional goodwill amounts to
€11 million. The geodwill in connection with the acquisition is not tax deductible. iGraal is aliccated to the
Groupe M6 cash-generating unit.

The remaining 49 per cent are subject to call and put options exercisable at the latest in 2019. The strike
price of the put option is based on a variable component and capped at €40 million on a 100 per cent basis
on a debt and cash free basis. The put option has been recognised at the acquisition date for an amount of
€15 million through equity as a liability for the present value of the redemption amount. The financial liability
is subsequently measured at amortised cost and remained unchanged at 31 December 20186.

Transaction-related costs are insignificant.

Fair vakie

at date of

gain of control

£m

Casr anc cash equivalents 7 o 9
Accounts receivable and other financial assets 5
Accounts payable (12}
Provisions (3}
Net deferred tax assets 1
Net assets acquired -
Goodwill 1
Total purchase consideration LA

red consideration

Cés and cashrequivarle ons gcqured 8
Cash outflow an acquisition 1

Other
On 1 September 2016, RTL Nederand Ventures BV disposed of the interests held in Pepper BV generating
a sale proceeds and a capital gain of €0.2 million (see note 7.4.).

On 26 Qctober 2016, RTL Nederand Ventures BV fuily disposed of its 100 per cent stake in Couverts
Reserveren BY to TripAdvisor generating a capital gain of €5 million (see note 7.4.). The sale proceeds, net
of cash disposed of, amounted to €6 million, of which €0.9 million is placed on an escrow account.

2015 (updated at 31 December 2018)

Oxygem

On 9 January 2015, Groupe M6 acquired 100 per cent of Oxygem SA and its subsidiaties ("Oxygem”).
Oxygem operates various websites. The acquisition strengthened the monetisation capabilities of Groupe
M&6 in the online advertising market and generates significant synergies by crass-fertilising digital expertise.
The transaction qualified as a business combination since RTL Group gained the control of Oxygem.

The purchase consideration amounted to € 18 million, net of cash acquired and, in addition, the reimbursement
of a loan previcusly granted to Oxygem by the seller (€6 millicn). The fair value of the brand names, subscriber
base and technology was measured for €8 million, of which €7 million for the brand names. A corresponding
deferred tax liability was recognised for €3 million, As a resuit, a goodwill of €17 million was recognised. The
latter 1s attributable mainly to the synergies expected and to the skills and expertise of the Oxygem workforce.
The goodwill is not tax deductible. Oxygem was allocated to the Groupe M6 cash-generating unit.
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Transaction-related costs of €0.2 million were reparted in “Other operating expenses” in 2015.

Fair value

atdate of

gan af control

€m

Cashand cash equuvalents T I
Other mtargible gssats ooy R
Aotounts recenatle and oter francetessers T mmmmommmmmn amm g
Aecountspayale .
Employee bendtl othgatens , L2
Netdefered tlaxpanives U )
Netassetsacquired T mTnm i imn ann p I Ty
Goadwil O L4
Total purchase consideration S 20
8

2

4

YoBoHo

On 1 April 2015, BroadbandTV Corp. ("BBTV") acquired 87.6 per cent (71.2 per cent on a fully diluted basis)
of YoBoHo New Media Private Limited and its subsidiary YoBoHo New Media Inc. {*YoBoHo"). RTL Group
consequently held an interest of 50.2 per cent (50.3 per cent at 31 December 2015) (36.3 per cent on a fully
diluted basis; 36.9 per cent at 31 December 2015) in YoBoHoe. YoBgHo, which is based in Mumbai, produces
kids-and-family oriented video for distribution across digital platforms. The acquisition of YoBoHo supported
RTL Group's ambitions to secure a leading position in the global online video market. The transaction
qualified as a business combination since RTL Group gained the control of YoBoHo.

The purchase consideration, partiy contributed to YoBoHa, amounted to €8 million, net of cash agquired
and was cantingent on a cash-and-debt free position adjusted for normalised working capital. The identified
intangible assets amounted to €4 million and reflected the value placed in original characters (€2 miflion)
and trade names and & non-compete agreement {€2 million). A corresponding deferred tax liability was
recognised for €1 million. Goodwill of €6 miilion corresponded to the value of creative talent, workforce and
synergles. It is not tax deductible. YoBoHo was allocated to the BBTV cash-generating unit.

BBTV also benefits from a call option for the remaining non-controlling interests. The call window opens two
years from 2015 closing and ends 18 months thereafter; the non-capped strike price is determined on the

basis of the fair value of YoBoHo.

Transaction-related costs of €0.5 million were reported in “Other operating expenses” in 2015,

Fair value

at date of

qain of control

€m

Nl(ryﬁlcuhrre-nt ;ﬁroér-aﬁf;e and- Dflhe;r‘rf-vg-gh‘TS ) ) 2
Girer nta-gicle assets T Ty
Aéé@umfs; ;c.celv;ﬂb\é ;rwj Vc)rlhc_r‘r.ﬂrw;dr‘uerl 754575675; ) . - S o h T o 7- 1
Accountspayable o S ' m
Net deferred lax liaoites ) ’ ‘ ‘ ‘ ’ ) 7 7 ) ] {1
Nor%fcorrﬂrmi‘hngr |merrest‘s 7 7 7 ) ) . o h ‘ (1)
Nét a§§ets aéquired ’ 2
Goodwil 8
Taotal purchase cansideration 8
8

Casbh outflow on acquisition
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UFA Sports

On 20 April 2015, RTL Group agreed with Lagardére Unlimited Germany GmbH ("Lagardére Unlimited™) to
fully dispose of the interests held in UFA Sports GmbH and some of its subsidiaries (“UFA Sports”). The
subsidiaries apareo Halding GmbH, apareo Deutschland GmbH and UFA Sports Asia Pte Ltd were excluded
from the deal and remained with RTL Group. The German competition authorities approved the transaction
on t5 June 2015. In consequence, RTL Group lost control of UFA Sports and derecognised all related assets
and liabilities. In conjunction with the disposal, UFA Sports repaid the net amounts owed to and by RTL Group
of €11 million thanks to the reserve contribution made by the acquirer Lagardere Unlimited (€6 million). At
the sarne time, RTL Group equalised the net cash position of UFA Sports for €2.5 million, of which €1.4
million for a guarantee granted for commercial bad debts.

Cas" and casn equwvak
Intangble assets
Lears and other financial assets

Accounts recevable olher financial assets S (11}
Accounts payapls e 6

Netassets disposed N L
Capital reserve mpection by theacqurer T e g

Incremental ce

L
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Wildside

On 7 August 2015, FremantieMedta Group Ltd ("FremantieMedia®) acquired a §2.5 per cent stake in Witdside
St and its 100 per cent affiliates (“Wildside"). Wildside is an Italian television and feature film production
entity. The acquisition enhanced FremantleMedia's scripted presence in the Italian market and bolstered the
global content pipeline of the Group overall, The transaction gualified as a business combination since
RTL Group gained the controt of Wildside.

The purchase consideration amounted to €34 million, including €9 million bank overdrafts, net of cash.
Intangible assets had been recognised for €3 million, reflecting the value placed in non-compete agreements
(€1 million), trade name and customer contracts (€2 million). A coresponding deferred tax liability was
recognised for €1 million. Goodwill of €22 miliion represented the value of creative talent and skills of
Wildside's workforce. The goodwill is not tax deductible. Wildside was allocated to the FremantleMedia
cash-generating unit.

The remaining 37.5 per cent interest is subject to call and put options exercisable at the latest in 2020, The
strike prices are based on a variable component. The consideration for 100 per cent of Wildside is capped
at €75 million excluding working capital funding required. The put option had been recognised at the
acquisition date as deduction of the Group’s equity with a corresponding financial liability for the present
value of the redemption amount of €6.3 million. The financial liability, subsequently measured at amortised
cost, remained unchanged at 31 December 2015, It has been re-measured at 31 December 2016 with a
related income of €0.5 million reported in “Financial results other than interest”. The fair value of the call
option of € nil million at 31 December 2415 remains unchanged at 31 Decernber 2016.

Transaction-related costs of €0.8 million, mainly consisting of legal fees and due diligence costs, were
recagnised in “Other operating expenses” in 2015. Additional transaction-related costs are reported in 2016
for €0.3 million in “Other gperating expenses”.

Fair value

at date of

gam of controf

€m

Non-current programme and ofher rghts S g
Other manglole assets T T e e e
Uoans zrd other fnancial asssts S T
Gurert pogrammerghts T rm i n i e T Ty
AccoU Va T e e e e e e e e e e 12
Accounts payable o , (14
Bank overdrafts, net of sash and Gash equvalerts T o @
Loans e T e i e e (7)
Non-controlhngag.selb e e T e s e s e e e e L e e e s (2)
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Goodw!l R . ) 22
Total purchase consideration T mm g
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Kwai

On 1 October 2015, FremantleMedia Overseas Holding BY (“FremantleMedia”} acquired a 51 per cent stake
in Kwai SAS ("Kwai™), a French television production company focused on prime-time TV films and series,
further expanding its capabilities in the scripted business. The transaction qualified as a business combination
since RTL Group gained the control of Kwai.

The purchase consideration of €6 million, net of cash acquired, included a contingent consideration based
on a variable performance component. Goodwill of €6 million represented the value of creative talent of
Kwai's workforce and is not tax deductible, Kwai was allocated to the FremantleMedia cash-generating unit,

FremantleMedia holds a call option for the remaining 49 per cent. The strike price of the option, exercisable
in 2020, is based on a variable component. The consideration for 100 per cent of Kwai is capped at €25
million. If FremantleMedia does not exercise the call option, the non-controlling shareholders will have the
option to acquire the shares held by the Group. The fair value of the related derivative was € nil million at 31
December 2015 and remains unchanged at 31 December 2016.

Transaction-related costs of €0.2 million, mainly consisting of legal fees, were reported in “Other operating
expenses”.

Fair value
atdate of
gain of control
€m

Cash and cash equivalents
- Dr
Accounts

Curr

Accourts payable -
Lo
Net assets acquired

Goodwill P
Total purchase consideration 7
Cashanc cash equwvalents noperators acoured o h)
Contingent consideration 2
Cash outflow on acquisition 4

Other acquisitions and disposals, increases in interest held in subsidiaries

On 7 January 2015, RTL Group acquired 100 per cent of Dinnersite BV (“Dinnersite"}, an online restaurant
guide. The combination with Couverts, the online table reservation portal owned by RTL Nederland Ventures
BV, created a leading positton in the Dutch online restaurant booking market. The transaction qualified as a
business combination since RTL Group gained the control of Dinnersite. The purchase consideration
amounted to below €1 million, net of cash acquired. Goodwill was € nil million. Dinnersite BV merged into
Couverts Reserveren BV in 2015 which was soid in 2016.

RTL Group, through FremantleMegia North America lnc, incorporated on 13 March 2015 the new company
Big Balls LLC, held at 95 per cent, in order to launch a digital broadcasting network (“digi-net") in the US
calied Buzzr, scheduling FremantleMedia's large library of classic game shows.

On 1 April 2015, RTL Nederdand BV (“RTL NL”) acquired 100 per cent of Grand Gear Media BV, which
operates a Dutch digital platform named Bright, a cross-media platform operating in the field of innovative
lifestyle related content with a focus an technology, lifestyle and design and the Bright Assets and all Bright
digital platforms and databases such as Bright.ni, Uitpakparty, Bright |deas, Bright Store and events. The
transaction qualified as a business combination since RTL Group gained control. Goodwill was € nil million.
Grand Gear Media BV merged into RTL Nederland BV in 2015.
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On 1 April 2015, ATL Group gained the conirol of Dutch Learming Company BY (“DLC™) through a capital
increase of €1 million. From that date, RTL Group holds 80.3 per cent of the share capital of DLG. As a result,
a goodwill of €1 million was recognised. The goodwill is not tax deductible. Before 1 April 2015, DLC was
accounted for using the equity method. The measurement at fair value of the 37.8 per ¢ent interest previously
held was insignificant. Since 1 August 2015, RTL Group holds 100 per cent of the share capital of DLC {see
note 8,15.8.,).

On 7 Aprit 2015, the non-controlling interests of The Entertainment Group BV {"TEG"} agreed with
RTL Nederland Interactief BV (“RTL interactief”) on the transter of the remaining 35 per cent hefd in the share
capital for an amount of €3 miliion fuily paid at 30 June 2015. On 22 July 2013, RTL Group had gained the
control of TEG, which had been consolidated at 100 per cent.

On 7 September 2015, FremantleMedia Overseas Holdings BV acquired a controlling interest of 51 per cent
in Fontaram SAS, a recently launched company. This oppartunity enabled FremantleMedia to develop new
drama content. The purchase consideration was € nil million. FremantieMedia has the ability to buy the
remaining 49 per cent shares through a “promise to seil” mechanism where the founders undertake 1o sell
their shares to FremantleMedia. The stiike price is based on a variable component. If FremantleMedia does
not accept the cffer, the non-controlling shareholders will have the option to acquire the shares held by the
Graoup. The fair value of the related derivative was € nil million at 31 December 2015 and remains unchanged
at 31 December 2016. The consideration for 100 per cent of Fontaram is capped at €20 million.

On 11 September 2015, FremantleMedia Netherlands BV (“FremantleMedia”) acquired 75 per cent of No
Pictures Please Productions BV (“NPP™), a Dutch programming youth orientated factual producer. NPP will
sit alongside FremantleMedia's entertainment and scripted businesses in the Netherlands. The transaction
qualified as a business combination since RTL Group gained the control of NPP. The purchase consideration
amounted to below €1 million, net of cash acquired. The goodwill of €1 miflion is not tax dedugtible.
FremantleMedia and the non-controlling sharsholder entered into an agreement that permits FremantleMedia
to purchase the remaining 25 per cent in the first half of 2020. The strike price is based on a variable
camponent. if RTL Group does not exercise the call option, the non-controlling shareholder will have the
option to acquire the 75 per cent stake. The fair value of the related derivatives was € nil million at 31
December 2015 and remains unchanged at 31 December 2016. Transaction-related costs of €0.1 miflion,
mainly consisting of legal fees, were reported in “Other operating expenses”.

On 17 Decernber 2015, RTL Nederland BV set up a new company with a third party, Themakanalen BV, active
in the field of advertising sales for selective theme channels. RTL Group holds a call option exercisable in 2019
to acquire the 25 per cent non-controlling interests. It RTL Group does not exercise the call option, the non-
controliing sharehoider will have the option to acquire the 75 per cent stake. The non-controlling interests hold
a put option exercisable in 2020. The strike prices are based on a variable component. The fair value of the
call option was € nil millien at 31 December 2015 and remains unchanged at 31 December 20186, The put option
had been recognised as deduction of the Group’s equity with a corresponding financial liability recognised for
the present vafue of the redemption amount of below €1 million, The financial liability is subsequently measured
at amortised cost. The re-measurement of the liability at 31 December 2016 is insignificant.

Previous years (updated at 31 December 2016)

2014

Best of TV

The contingent consideration related 1o Best of TV, acquired on 7 January 2014, nad been paid during the
first half of 2015 (€6 million).

495 Productions

Since the gain of control of 485 Productions on 26 March 2014 by RTL Group, the mincrity shareholder holds
a put option on the remaining 25 per cent non-controlling interests. The put and call options are based on
a performance-related component. The put option liability had been initially recognised through equity for
the present value of the redemption amount of €7 million. The financial liability remained unchanged at 31
December 2015 and has been re-measured to € nil million at 31 December 2016. The related income of €7
million is reported in “Financial results other than interest” {see note 7.6.). The farr value of the call option
related derivative was € nil million at 31 December 2015 and remains unchanged at 31 December 2016.
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SpotX
A second instalment of the SpotX earn-out was paid during the second quarter 2016 for an amount of €4
million {31 December 2015: €7 million).

At 31 December 2018, the fair value of the derivative related to the SpotX call option has been decreased
to € nil million at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: €3 million). The related expense of €3 million is
reparted in “Financial results other than interest” (see notes 4.3.1. and 7.6.).

Printic

On 16 September 2014, Groupe ME had acquired 80 per cent of Printic SAS ("Printic”). The remaining 20
per cent are subject to put and call options. The put option in the hand of the sellers had been recognised
as a deduction to the Group’s equity with a corresponding financial liability for the present value of the
redemption amount of €2.2 million at 31 December 2014. This is a Level 3 fair value measurement. The
financial liability had been re-measured to € nil million at 31 December 2015 and remains unchanged at 31
December 2016. In 2015, the related income of €2 million was reported in “Financial results other than
interest” {see note 7.6.).

Sparwelt

On 19 September 2014, Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland acquired 100 per cent interest in Econa Shopping
GmbH, renamed SPARWELT GmbH (“Sparwelt™) after acquisition. The transaction and the gain of control
were subject to the approval of the German Federal Cartel Office, which was obtained on 29 October 2014.
The purchase agreement included an earn-out mechanism based on a variable performance component
and up to a maximum and undiscounted amount of €27.5 million. The related amaunt had been initially
recognised as a financial liability for €6 milfion through equity for the present value of the redemption amount,
The financial liability had been re-measured to €4 million at 31 December 2015 and remains unchanged at
31 December 2016. In 2015, the related income of €2 million was reported in “Other operating income™.

Style Haul

©n 1 December 2014, RTL Group had gained the full control of Style Haul Inc through RTL US Holding, Inc
(collectively called “Style Haul™). The purchase consideration, partly contributed ta Style Haul, amounted to
€115 million, net of cash acquired and contingent on a cash-and-debt free position adjusted for normalised
working capital. The initial purchase consideration of €115 million, contingent on a cash-and-debt free
position adjusted for normalised working capital, had been reduced by €4 million following the completion
of the true-up exercise during the first haif year of 2015. The Group received this amount during the first half
year 2015.

The parties had also agreed on earn-out mechanisms that might increase the initial consideration by a
maximum of USD 45 million, subject to the future performance of the business. The related liability had been
initially recegnised for €8 million through equity for the present value of the redemption amount. The financial
liability subsequently measured at amortised cost remained unchanged at 31 December 2014. The earn-put
related consideration initially recognised for €8 million had been re-measured to € nil million at 31 December
2015. The related impact was reported in “Other operating income”.

The employees benefited from share-based arrangements before the business combination. All unvested stock
options had been accelerated. The employees had agreed to sell 70 per cent of their shares and their stock
options. The stock options that were retained by the employees were replaced by new stock options
representing 3 per cent of the capital of RTL US Holding, Inc on a fully diluted basis. The fair value of all
accelerated options had been initially measured by reference to the purchase price and recognised as a post-
business combination for €6 rillion. The related amount had been recognised as a financial liability as the
transaction qualifies in substance as a cash settled share-based payment. RTL Group granted to the non-
controlling sharehalders a put option exercisable in the course of 2017 based on the fair value at the date of
exercise of the options; the fair value of Style Haul for the put option is capped at USD 500 million on a 100
per cent basis. The put option related to outstanding nan-controlling shares had been recognised initially as a
deducticn in the Group’s equity with a corresponding liability of €5 million representing the present value of
the redemption amount. The fair value of the put option liability and the cash settled share based payment
arrangernent liability has been re-measured to € 10 million at 31 December 2016 {2015: €11 millian). The related
income of €1 million (2015: €2 million) was reported in “Financial results other than interest” (see note 7.6.}.
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Radical Media

On 30 December 2014, RTL Group had lost control over @radical.media LLC and its 100 per cent affiliates
(“Radical Media”). RTL Group continues to hold 34.5 per cent of the outstanding membership interests of
the company and exercises a significant influence over Radical Media. Radical Media is accounted for using
the equity method as from 31 December 2014, The purchaser benefits from a call option effective at the
greater of a floor or a multipie of a variable performance component. This call option is valid for 18 months
following the closing of the change of control. RTL Group has the right 10 sell its stake frorn 30 December
2019 at the greater of a floor or a muttiple of a variable performance component. These options had been
valued for € nil million at 31 Becember 2015 and remain unchanged at 31 December 2016,

2ma3

BreadbandTV

Since the gain of control in June 2013, RTL Group held a call option on the BroadbandTV Corp. ("BBTV")
non-controlling interests. RTL Group announced on 31 January 2017 that it decided not to exercise this call
option for the remaining non-controlling interests in BBTV and agreed to explore, jointly with the minority
shareholders of BBTV, all strategic alternatives for the company. This would include a 100 per cent sale of
the business. The call option has now expired.

In addition, for a period of two years from 31 January 2017, the non-controlling shareholders are entitled to
an axit mechanism whereby they can first offer their stake to RTL Group and, if RTL Group does not accept
the offer, drag RTL Group’s stake in a 100 per cent sale of the company at a price at least equal to the price
offered to RTL Group. RTL Group, on the other hand, has a right to sell the company in a 100 per cent sale
at any time by dragging the non-contralling shareholders’ stake.

RTL CBS Asia

CBS SEA Channels Pte Ltd, non-controlling sharehoider of RTL CBS Asia Entertainment Network LLP
(“RTL CBS Asia”}, has the option of requiring RTL Group Asia Pte, Ltd to purchase ali its interest in RTL CBS
Asla (“put option®} under the terms of the Membership Agreement dated 13 August 2013. The put option
can be exercised in case of change of control of ATL Group and in the event that cumulative actual losses
as of 31 December 2018 exceed a threshold agreed between the parties. The related financial liability
amounts to €6 million at 31 December 20186.

The Entertainment Group

The contingent consideration recognised in July 2013 and related to the 35 per cent non-conirolling interests
had been initially recognised as a financial liability through equity for the present value of the redemptiaon
amaunt. The financial ligbility, which had been re-measured at amartised cost from €6 million to €3 million
at 31 December 2014, had been paid in 2015,

Miso Film

The contingent consideration recognised in November 2013 and related to the 49 per cent non-controlling
interests had been initially recognised as a financial liability through equity for the present value of the
redermnption amount of €9 million. The financial liability subsequently measured at amortised cost had been
re-measured to €5 million in 2015 and has been re-measured to €6 miltion at 31 December 2016. The related
axpense of €1 million is reported in “Financial results other than interest”. An income of €4 million had been
recognised at 31 December 2015 {see note 7.6.).

2009

Original Productions

The put option held by the nen-cantrolling sharehalders of Qriginal Praciuctions LLC (“Original Productions”),
which control was gained by RTL Group on 20 February 2009, might be exercised in 2017. Tne related
financial liability amounts to €9 million at 31 December 2016.

RTL Group Annual Report 2018



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Assets and liabilities acquired
Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:
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AR Cash outflow on acquisitions
The net assets and liabilities arising from the acguisitions are as follows:
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DETAILS ON CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
Revenue
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Other operating income
As announced on 27 May 2016, Groupe M6 and Orange have jointly agreed to gradually transfer M6 Mobile
customers to Orange services. M6 Mobile by Orange customers will keep their services as well as all the
related benefits, such as the management of the customer community by Groupe M6, until their transfer. As
such, Groupe M6 will continue to manage and benefit from the account holder base and trademark licence
until 30 June 2019. In addition, Groupe M& has recognised and cashed-in a cantractual compensation of
€50 million from Orange in 2016.

Other operating expenses
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Fees related to the Group's auditors and their affiliates regarding the continuing operations, are set out below:
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Employee benefits expenses

2016 20

€m £€m
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The amounts set out above exclude personnel costs of €225 million (2015: €216 million}, that are capitalised
and that represent costs of employees directly allocated to the production of assets.

In addition to other short-term bonus schemnes, RTL Group has implernented for its senior management a
long-term incentive plan ("LTIP") which runs for the term 2014 to 2016, The LTIP aims to reward RTL Group’s
senior management for entrepreneurial performance and to get their long-term commitment to the Group.
The performance targets of the LTIP have been approved by the Nomination and Compensation Committee
of RTL Group who gave authority to the Executive Committee to approve the participation of the cther
Executives in the LTIP. The performance targets are based on financial metrics such as RTL Group Value
Added (“RVA"), EBITA, EBITDA (see note 3.) and, for FremantieMedia, also on non-financial metrics like
development and commercial success of new formats.

As at 31 December 2016, the liability related to this LTIP has been assessed on the basis of the achievement
of performance targets and amounts to €40 million {2015: €31 million). Groupe M6 operates a specific long-
term incentive plan based on free shares plars (see note 8.15.7.).

Pension costs relate to defined contributions for € 10 million (2015: €11 million) and defined benefit plans
for €8 million (2015: €8 million) (see note 8.14.).

The average number of employees for undertakings held by the Group is set out below:

2016 201y

Empoyees of ly consolated underiakings 1o 03z
10,692 10,375

Gain/{loss) from sale of subsidiaries, other investments and re-measurement to fair value

of pre-existing interest in acquiree
“Gain/{loss) from sale of subsidiaries, other investments and re-measurement to fair value of pre-existing
interest in acquiree” mainly relates to the following:

2016
Subsidiaries (see note 6.2.)
® Gain on disposal of Couverts €5 million

2015

Subsidiaries (see note 6.2.)

® | oss on disposal of UFA Sports GmbH and some of its subsidiaries €(7) million
Associates (see note 8.4.1.)

= (Gain on dilution in Atresmedia €10 million
Assets classified as held for sale {see note 8.10.)

® Gain on disposal of AdSociety Daye Advertising Co. Ltd - €1 million
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Net interest income/ (expense)
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“Interest income on loans and accounts receivable” includes an amount of € nil million (2015 € nil million)
in respect of deposits to Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA (see note 10.1.).

“Interest expense on financial liabilities” includes an amount of €15 million (2015: € 17 million) in respect of
the loans from Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA {see note 10.1.).

Financial results other than interest

016 2015

Netag Em €m
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Income tax expense
2016 2005
£m £€m

Curentiaxexpense N I
Dsferred tax ex; L I
{363) 1300)

The income tax on the Group profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
Luxembourg tax rate as follows:

2016 2015
Note €m % £m *
Lo
Income tax rate applicable in _uxembourg 29,22 29.22
fax calculated at domestic tax rate applcable
to profts in Luxembourg 345 340

Effects of tax rae in foreign juniscictions and German trade tax 48 50

Tax calculated at gomestic tax rate applicable to profits

in the respective countres 393 33.30 390 33.50
Changes In tax regulat on and status

Tax exempt revenue
Commission received in relation to the Compensation Agreemen:

Utilisat on of previously unrecognised tax losses

Tax mceﬁlwes n cognised n the ncome Sta‘[erﬁé&tﬂ R o

Effect of tax osses for which no deferred tax assets zreresogosed. 5

Tax expense pefore adpsiments on pnor years 363

Cumert tax adjustments on pror years UL

Deferted tex sciustments on proryears =
income tax expense 363 30.79 300 25.80

Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions mainly results from the differentiated rates applicable in the following

countries:

» Germany, where the official tax rate is 32.5 per cent, representing an impact of €22 million (2015: €22
million);

® France, where several tax rates apply, depending on the size of the business. The rates of 34.43 and 33.33
per cent apply, representing an impact of €24 million (2015: the rates of 38, 34.43 and 33.33 per cent
applied, representing an impact of €27 million).

In 2016, non deductible expenses include exceptional contribution on dividends, withholding taxes for €6
million {2015: €6 million).

Tax exempt revenue mainly relates in 2016 to the share of results of investments accounted for using the
equity method for €19 million.

Tax exempt revenue mainly relates in 2015 to capital gains and fair value changes for €19 million and to the
share of results of investments accounted for using the equity method for €17 million.

Tax incentives not recognised in the income statement relate to a permanent difference generated by the
amortisation of tax goodwill in Germany.
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Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based an the profit attributable to RTL Group shareholders of
€720 million (2015: €782 million) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the

year of 153,555,377 (2015: 153,589,269), calculated as follows:

Notes 2016

WE\Q”?QC} averége”dgrr‘ber of Q(d\n'érryﬂs'h'arres: - o N
Issuec ordinary shares at 1 Jaﬁuary R 8.15. _ 1_54,787,5_54
(27,020}

201s
LT

154,787,554

geasuysharestele 0 EEEER 6700 (1168701
Effect of lqudty programme ENEE | (35456)  (29.584)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 153,555,377 153,588,269
Basceamngspersnarein € ' 489 s
Diluted eamings per share {in €) 4.69 5.14
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EA DETAILS ON CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

m Programme and other rights, goodwill and other intangible assets
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Balance at 31 December 2016 g2

Amortisation and impairment losses
ary 201
Effects of movements in foreign exchange (52)

Amortisation charge for the year
Impairment losses recognised for the year -

Reversal of impairment losses -

Disposal

Transfers and other chanﬂgrés o S - o

Balance at 31 December 2015 T (789)

Impairment losses recognised for the year ) - - )] - o
Reversal of impairment losses - i - i - -
D sposals

Transfel
Balance at 31 Decemnber

Caryingamount: - -
At 31 December 2015 T T e T s 85 295 215

At 31 December 2016 20 48 a2 00 208 225
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Other intangible assets include mainty brands for an amount of €128 million (2015: €129 million), primarity
related to the Groupe M6.

In 2016, Groupe M6, through its affiliate Football Club des Girondins de Bordeaux SASP (“FCGB™,
recognised a capitat gain of €16 million on disposal of players (2015: €4 million). The cash received in 2016
by FCGB amounts to €12 million (2015: €8 million).

The M6 brand is considered to have an indefinite useful life and was recognised for an amount of €120
miilion. At 31 December 2016, an impairment test was performed and did not lead to any impairment.

in determining that the M6 brand has an indefinite useful life, management have considered various factors
such as the past and expected longevity of the brand, the impact of possible changes in broadcasting
technologies, the impact of possible evolutions of the regulatory environment in the French television
industry, the current and expected audience share of the M6 channel, and M6 management’s strategy to
maintain and strengthen the trademark “M6E". Based on the analysis of these factors, management have
determined and confirmed at 31 December 2016 that there is no foreseeable limit 1o the period of time over
which the brand M& is expected to generate cash inflows for the Group.

Hungarian language cable channels and M-RTL

A new advertising tax was adopted and arnended by the Hungarian Pariament on 4 July 2014 and came
into force on 15 August 2014, The tax was steeply progressive, with rates between nil and 40 per cent, and
was calculated, in general, on the net revenues derived from advertising plus the marging which the sales
houses affiliated to the taxpayers’ charge to their customers. The tax base was calculated by aggregating
the tax bases of affiliated undertakings. As a result, entities belonging to a group of companies were taxed
at higher tax rates than independent legal entities. On 18 November 2014, the Hungarian government
adopted an amendment by which the highest applicable tax rate was increased from 40 to 50 per cent. This
amendment entered into force on 1 January 2015.

On this basis, RTL Group’s management had recognised in 2014:

= gt 30 June, the full impairment of the goodwill for an amount of €77 million and additional impairment
osses on non-current intanginle assets for €11 million, of which €9 million related o assets identified in
connection with the initial purchase price allocations; and

m gt 31 December, a valuation aliowance on current programme rights for €7 million.

On 27 May 2015, the Hungarian Parliament amended retrospectively the advertising tax. The tax rate was
changed into a flat rate of 5.3 per cent for a tax base above HUF 100 million and zero under HUF 100 million.

The retrospective impact resulted in a one-off positive impact of €5 million reported in deduction of the
“Qther operating expenses” at 31 December 2015.

in addition, RTL Group’s management re-assessed:

® the fair value of the non-current intangible assets identified in connection with the initial purchase price
allocations and fully reversed the previously recognised impairment for an amount of €7 mitian;

u the net realisable value of the current programme rights. This resulted in the recognition of a reversal of €5
million of the previously recognised valuation allowance.
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EXEX Impairment test for goodwil

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units {(*CGUs") on the basis of the business units (see
note 5. and at the level at which independent cash flows are generated. Ludia, part of the business unit
FremantleMedia, conducts specific and separate operations that generate independent cash flows and is
not expected at this stage to benefit from sufficient synergies with the Group and therefore gualifies as a
separate cash-generating unit.

All business units and cash-generating units mainly operate in one country, except BroadbandTV,
FremantleMedia, Ludia, SpotX and Style Haul, which are multi-territory / worldwide operations. Goodwill is
allocated by cash-generating unit as follows:

31 December 31 Decemaer
2016 2075
£m £€m

Groupe ME&
fremantleMedia
RT_Necedand
RT. Beigum Ty
RIL Racio Frarcel T
Other segments T
- Style Haul
-Spofx
“Boadoanav T

Total goodwill on cash-generating units 3,039 2,959

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, as of 31 December, or whenever changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The recoverable amount of a CGU has been determined on the basis of the higher of its value in use and its

fair value less costs of disposal:

® The value in use is determined on the basis of cash flows excluding estimated future cash inflows or
outflows expected to arise from future restructurings and from improving or enhancing the CGU’s
performance unless the cash-generating unit is committed at year-end to the restructuring, and related
provisions have been made. Furthermore, the discount rate is closely linked to Group parameters (mainly
credit premium, gearing ratio and specific risk). Specific country risk and inflation differential are also taken
into account;

= Fajr value less costs of disposal is the amount obtainable from the sale of a CGU in an arm’s length
transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. When available, market
quoted prices are used.

The Group supports its fair values less costs of disposal on the basis of a discounted cash flow {“‘DCF”)

maodel to the extent that it would reflect the value that “any market participant” would be ready to pay in an

arm's length transaction. Differently from the “value in use” approach, which reflects the perspective of the

Group for along-term use of the CGU, a “fair value less costs of disposal” DCF model would include future

cash flows expected to arise from restructuring plans and future investments, as all rational market

participants would be expected to undertake these restructurings and investments in order to extract the

best value from the acquisition. Furthermare, the discount rate is calculated based on a market approach

and most of the parameters used are derived from market sources.
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The value in use approach has been applied to determine the recoverable amount of all cash-generating

units at 31 December 2016. Despite the fact that for all CGUS, the value in use was higher than the carrying

amount, the fair value less cost of disposal approach has been also considered especially for the CGUs

which:

= are iisted (Groupe M6);

® develop in a market environment characterised by disruptive innovation;

= gre in an early stage of their lifecycle given uncertainties regarding future development. In some cases, like
the muiti-channel networks {(“MCN~), planned revenue and profitability levels have not yet been achieved.

Cash flow projections are based on financial budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period. Cash flows beyond the three-year period for up to a total of ten years are prepared using the
astimated growth rates and other key drivers. For advertising revenue, this includes audience and advertising
market shares, the EBITA margin, and cash conversion rates based on past performance and expectations
regarding market development. Management alsa relies on wider macro-economic indicators from external
sources to verify the veracity of its own budgeting assumptions. Finally, the market positions of the Group's
channels are also reviewed in the context of the competitive landscape, including the impact of new
technologies and consumption habits. For FremantieMedia operating muiti-territory/ wordwide and
diversified operations, the expected growth rate is determined according to a weighted average of growth
expectations of regions and markets. The volume of video views and the development of original production
and branded entertainment are key drivers for the muiti-channel networks. Cash flows beyond the ten-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated perpetual growth rates and the discount rates stated below.

The perpetual growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports. The discount
rates have been determined, CGU by GGV, in order to reflect, where appropriate, the folowing factors:

& Country risk;

u |nflation rate differential;

& Specific firm premium;

m Credit spread due to the financial situation; and
= Geating ratio of the CGU.

2016 2015
Perpetual Femelual

growth rate  Discount rate grawth -ate  Fliscount rate
% a year % % a year %

Cash-generatingumits 7 T 7 i
‘2o 74 2o s
""" 25 71 25 74
7 20 124 20 124
RTL Negerland L T T R X N1
RTLBelgum 7 T T e T e T s T s
RTLRado Francel o Ty T Tgn T T en T ey
Other segments o - o e
-Syemad ey iz 20 g
“sporx T - o 20 120 20 108
-BroadpaneTy T . 20 Tiae 20 ac
—Germanracn T g T g T Tgn T e

Management consider that, at 31 December 2016, no reasonably pessible change in the market shares,
EBITA margin and cash conversicn rates would reduce the headroom between the recoverable amounts and
the carrying values of the cash-generating units to zero, FremantleMedia and Style Haul excepted. No
impairment loss on goodwill was identified in 2016 and 2015.
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FremantleMedia

In addition to organic initiatives to develop new formats and inteliectual property (“IP”), FremantleMedia has
continued its focus on the identification and integration of new businesses in order to increase the pipeline
of new shows (IP creation), to gain presence in new markets and to continue expanding its drama footprint.
FremantleMedia’s key brands continue to perform well and this is expected to remain the case in the coming
years. FremantleMedia continues to build a scalable digital business by expanding capabilities across the
value chain and by developing new specific content. Therefore, despite continuing pressure on margins and
volumes, the increase of the diversity of FremantleMedia's portfolic has led to an updated business plan
confirming an expected slight increase of its EBITA margin compared to the most recent levels.

Based on this revised 10-year-plan, the headroom that existed at the level of FremantleMedia has been
slightly increased to €237 million {31 December 2015: €189 million). The value in use on the basis of a
discounted cash flow model was retained for determining the recoverable amount.

For FremantleMedia, if for 2017 and each of the following years, the estimated revenue growth and EBITA
margin had been reduced by 1 per cent and the discount rate had been increased by 1 per cent, the sum of
these corresponding effects would have resulted in an impairment loss against goodwill of €520 million
(€463 million at 31 December 2015).

When taken individually, the following changes in the key assumptions would reduce the recoverable amount
of the CGU FremantieMedia as follows:

31 December 371 Decemorr

2016 2015
€m £€m
Varigtionim:
Revenue growth by (1) per cent on each perios (240 1191)
EBITAmargn by (1) per centoneachpencd gy 1gg)
Dssount rale by 100 basspoinis ey ey

Style Haul

Revenue growth was penalised by the delayed ramp up of certain revenue streams, notably branded
entertainment. Gross profit increased from an improvement in talent revenue shares. At this stage, the
increase in operating costs fully offsets the improved gross profit. Based on a revised business plan, the
headroom has been ingreased to €23 million (31 December 2015: €11 million). The value in use was retained
for determining the recoverable amount; the fair values derived from market valuations were also considered
{see above).

If, for 2017 and each of the following periods, the estimated revenue growth and EBITA margin of Style Haul
had been reduced by 1 per cent and the discount rate had been increased by 1 per cent, the compounded
effect of these corresponding variations would have resulted in an impairment loss against goodwill of €15
million (€18 miltion at 31 December 2015).

When taken individually, the following changes in the key assumptions would reduce the recoverable amount
of the CGU Style Haul as follows:

31 December 31 Decemae

H16 200
€m €m

Variati(:;n in:
Revenue growd™ by (1) per cent on each DEI’IOL‘; . . . S 7(1 0) o (9)
ERITA ma;guf‘ by {1, pe'r'crem or each Dél’l[‘]ld ‘ ’ 7 T ’ -{-9-) T 15)
[ scount rate be 100 pasis pors T B - - GE R (18)
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Lang,

nulldings and Technical
Impravements cqupment Dther latal
€m fm fm £m

Gost

Balance al1 January 2015 333 N ”336 o 237 o 906
Ef‘fec:t of movemsnts n fore\gn 5;(&:|-’7-é|-1-ge """" o 1 o T ) 2 T
Addtons B 4 20 54 78
Dsposals” W w3 s
Transters ando ) 3 . T T s ' 'ml.{J
Balance at 31 December 2015 T 274 962
Eﬁecr of movemsnts n forelgn exchange o ey - - B
Addltons T 7 YRR € a7
Drsposals @ g E@n 1)
Transter to assets classmed as held tor sa\e“‘ o -(SOJ‘ ' (3) L ) VfBGJ'
. rergest e 85 ) ) @
Balance at 31 December 2016 a4 340 230 @18

Deprecmtlon and Jmpalm-lenl Iosses

l‘)epreclatlon charge fortheyear g e 2

ERNTE : -5 SRR o =
Balance at 31 December 2015 {i59)  (2an | (164) {610)
Effec‘ of move"nents ir forelgn exchange o ’ -(.'-2;) - - (2]
Deprecwanon charge for he - e T '{63)
Imparment losses recogmsed for the year - H)' : @
Disposals o ' 2 o7 " 49
Balance at 31 December 2016 (282) {628)

Carrymg amoum
At A December 201 5
At 31 December 2016

L

172 58

290

Net tangible assets held under finance leases at 31 December 2016 amount to €2 million {2015: €2 million).
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investments accounted for using the equity method
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

Assoc ates
Joint ventues

Balance at 31 December

2014 05

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:

Associates
Joint ventures

2016 20'5
€m £m

Investments in associates

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December 2016, which in the opinion of the

management, are material to the Group.

Country of Prncipal

% votmy power Meazurement

Name of entry incorporatian activity Fele by the Group methad

2016

vesmeds’’ . Smen Bosdsing™V. 187

RI-2Fernsenen GmGH&Co.KG*  Gemany  Broadosstng TV 359

2015

18T Fauy
- 369 Equity

The summarised financial information for the main associates of the Group, on a 100 per cent basis and
adjusted for differences in accounting policies between the Group and its associates is as follows:

Atrasmecia
2016 2015
£m €m

Non-c.rrent assets

Non-curent hablites

Netr assets

RTI 2 GmoH & Ca, KG
2016 2015
€m €m

Income tax expense
Profit for the year 129 103

Dividends received from associates 17 12
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The reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the carrying amount of its interest
in associates is presented below:

Aresmecia RTL 2 GmeH & Ca. KS Gtrer irmaenal assooiates ” Total

2016 215 2018 2Ty 2016 2015 2016 AL

£m €in £m i €m €m £€m £m
NelassetsaliJanary = 483 &0 @ B 8 45 ey 6e0
Profitfor the year 129 103 |8 T3 s ‘183
R et A ] POk U
comprerensive meome T T T S
Dswburon ooy B3 8 wn e @n e (e
Tarsacuors oo oy
on treasury shares B @ . - - G} -
Ghange in ownership interest oo e e e
endotherchanges 2 T . ..T ..o o..B o2 L4
Net assets at 31 December 517 483 101 97 57 69 875 649
interest n assocates v s
Irmp n.\‘/‘:‘s'stme“n'ts n T
assogamles . .. T LTS oW W w9
Carrying value 263 266 60 sa Tz T e 7 a0 37

Main changes in the Group’s ownership interest in associates

2016

On 14 April 2018, RTL Group exercised the option 1o acquire an additional 24.5 per cent interest, for €7
million, in Divimove GmbH {*Divimove”) bringing the Group’s shareholding to 75.5 per cent. RTL Group
continues to have a significant influence in Divimove, corperate governance rules providing the other
shareholders with substantive rights on relevant activities. The carrying amount of Divimove is €11 million
at 31 December 2016 (€4 million at 31 December 2015). On 15 June 2016, the sharehoiders decided to
amend the option agreement related to the last 24.5 per cent of the share capital. The fair value of the
derivative related to the call option has been re-measured from €3 million to €3.2 million at 31 December
2016. The related income is reported in “Financial results ather than interest” (see note 7.6.). The Group
granted a loan of €1.2 million to Divirmove in 2016.

On 25 April 2018, FremantieMedia Ltd (“FremantieMedia”) entered with a 25 per cent stake into the share
capital of Dr Pluto Films Ltd {“Dr Pluto”), a newly created production company that will develop concepts
across alt genres and platforms. The carrying amount of Dr Pluto is below €1 million at 31 December 2016.
In addition, FremantleMedia granted a loan of GBP 0.5 millien to Dr Pluto. FremantleMedia holds call options
an the remaining 75 per cent of the share capital. These are exercisabie in 2021 and 2023, The strike pfice
of the options is based on a variable component. If FremantieMedia exercises its 2021 call option but not
the 2023 ane, the other shareholders will have the option to require FremantleMedia to purchase all the
remaining shares, subject to certain conditions. In the event that FremantleMedia does not exercise the call
opltions, the holders of the 75 per cent interest have the option o acquire the shares held by the Group or
drag FremantleMedia shares into a sale with a third party. The fair value of the derivatives is € nil million at
31 December 2016.

Atresmedia implemented a share buy-back programme in the second gquarter of 2016 to acquire shares for
the remuneration plan of directors and senior management, The programrne was approved at the Crdinary
General Meeting of Shareholders held on 20 April 2016. Consequently a total of 791,880 shares were
acquired by Atresmedia. In June, Atresmedia met its commitment to deliver shares, amounting to 789,738
treasury shares to Gala Desarrollos Comerciales, S.L. linked to the merger with La Sexta's shareholders. This
was the final delivery of shares under this agreement.

0On 30 November 2015, FremantleMedia Lid and Squawka Ltd (“Squawka™) entered into a contractual

arrangement and a loan agreement for a total of €2 million, of which less than €1 million was paid at 31
December 2015. Once the full amount of the loan was paid, FremantleMedia had the option to convert it
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and to acquire a minority shareholding in Squawka and an additional option to acquire a further minority
shareholding through a capital injection. At 31 December 2015, FremantieMedia was not a shareholder but
jointly controlled Squawka on the basis of the contractual arrangement. The initial contractual arrangement
was modified in 2016 and as a result FremantieMedia no longer has the joint control but can exercise
significant influence. The conversion of the loan (GBP 1.5 million) and a capital injection of GBP 3.5 million
on 26 April 2016 provided a 35 per cent stake to FremantieMedia. FremantieMedia holds call options on the
remaining 65 per cent of the share capital. These are exercisable in 2017 and 2020. The strike price of the
options is based on a variable component. If FremantieMedia exercises its 2017 call option but not the 2020
one, the other shareholders will have the option to require FremantieMedia to purchase all the remaining
shares, subject to certain conditions. The carrying amount of Squawka is €5 million at 31 December 2016.

On 13 May 2016, FremantleMedia Ltd entered with a 25 per cent stake into the share capital of Wiid Blue
Praductions Ltd (subseguently renamed Wild Blue Media Ltd, “Wild Blue"), a newly created production
company that will develop, produce and sell international non-scripted formats across factual, factual
entertainment and tive events genre. The carrying amount of Wild Blue is below €1 million at 31 December
2018, In addition, FremantleMedia granted Wild Blue a loan of GBP 0.5 million. FremantleMedia holds call
options on the remaining 75 per cent of the share capital. These are exercisable in 2020 and 2022. The strike
price of the options is based on a variable component. If FremantleMedia exercises its 2020 call option but
not the 2022 one, the other shareholders will have the option to require FremantleMedia to purchase all the
remaining shares, subject to certain conditions. In the event that FremantleMedia does not exercise the call
options, the holders of the 75 per cent interest have the option to acquire the shares held by the Group or
drag FremantleMedia shares into a sale with a third party. The fair value of the derivatives is € nil million at
31 December 2016.

On 25 May 2016, Fremantle Productions North America Inc (“FPNA™) acquired for €2 million, a non-
controlling 25 per cent stake in Eureka Productions LLC, a production company, incorporated on 16
December 2015, and its 100 per cent held subsidiary Eureka Productions Pty Ltd (“Eureka”). Eureka
develops, sells and produces unscripted travelling formats and docu-series for leading broadcasters and
cable networks in the US and Australia. The purchase accounting di¢ not lead to the recognition of additional
identifiable assets and liabilities. In addition, FPNA granted Eureka a loan facility of USD 6 miillion; the loan
receivable amounts to USD 4 million at 31 December 2016. The carrying amount of Eureka is €2.5 million
at 31 December 2016. FPNA holds call options on the remaining 75 per cent of the share capital. These are
exercisable in 2020 and 2022. The strike price of the options is based an a variable component. If FFNA
exercises its 2020 call option but not the 2022 one, the other shareholders will have the option to require
FPNA to purchase all the remaining shares, subject to certain conditions. In the event that FPNA does not
exercise the call options, the holders of the 75 per cent interests have the option to acquire the shares held
by the Group or drag FPNA shares into a sale with a third party. The fair value of the derivatives is € nil million
at 31 December 2016.

On 7 June 2016, FremantleMedia Ltd entered with a 25 per cent stake into the share capital of Dancing
Ledge Productions Ltd (“Dancirg Ledge”), a newly created production company that will develop, produce
and sell international scripted formats across the US and UK markets. The carrying amount of Dancing
Ledge is below €1 millicn at 31 December 2016. In addition, FremantleMedia granted a loan of GBP 0.5
million. FremantleMedia holds call options on the remaining 75 per cent of the share capital. These are
exercisable in 2021 and 2023. The strike price of the options is based on a variable component, If
FremantleMedia exercises its 2021 call option but not the 2023 one, the other shareholders will have the
option to require FremantleMedia to purchase all the remaining shares, subject to certain conditions. In the
event that FremantleMedia does not exercise the call options, the holders of the 75 per cent interests have
the aption to acquire the shares held by the Group or drag FremantleMedia shares into a sale with a third
party. The fair value of the derivatives is € nil million at 31 December 2016.

On 29 July 20186, Groupe MG acquired a 34 per cent non-controlling stake in Elephorm SAS (“Elephorm”)
for €2.8 million. Elephorm is based in France and is a leader in the production of e-learning video content.
The deal allows Groupe M6 to enter the online learning market. In addition Groupe M6 holds call options on
the remaining 66 per cent of the share capital. These are exercisable from 2018, The fair value of the related
derivative is € nil million at 31 December 2016.

RTL Group Annual Report 2016



Notes to the consolidated financial staternents

2015 (updated at 31 December 2016)

On 21 January 2015, FremantleMedia Ltd ("FremantleMedia”) acquired a 25 per cent non-controlling stake
in Carona Television Ltd {("Corona™), a newly created TV production company based in the UK. The related
carrying amount is € nil million at 31 December 2016 (€ nil million at 31 December 2015). The deal, which
gave FremantleMedia a first look option on all Corona output, furthers FremantleMedia’'s ambition to build
its scripted pipeline. In addition, FremantleMedia granted a loan of GBP 0.4 million in 2016 (31 December
2015: GBP 0.6 million), FremantleMedia holds call options on the remaining 75 per cent share capital. These
are exercisable in 2018 and 2020. The strike price of the optiens is based on a variable component. The fair
value of the related derivatives was € nil million at 31 December 2015 and remains unchanged at 31
December 2016.

On 8 April and 5 June 2015, RTL Group acquired a 19.5 per cent (17.4 per cent on a fully diluted basis) non-
controliing interest in CLYPD, inc. ("Clypd™). Clypd is a programmatic TV start-up based in Boston that
focuses cn the development of an audience-buying platform for tinear TV. The company is complementary
to the programmatic online video advertising marketplace in which SpotX cperates. The investment amount
was €10 million. Although RTL Group holds less than 20 per cent of the equity shares of Clypd, management
consider that the Group exercises a significant influence in Clypd in view of the representation of RTL Group
on the Board of Clypd. The purchase accaunting did not lead to the recognition of additional identifiable
assets and liabilities. The related carrying amount is €9 million at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015:
€10 miilion),

The ownership of RTL Group decreased from 19.2 per cent at 31 December 2014 tc 18.6 per cent at 30 June
2015 in Atresmedia. This transaction resulted in a dilution of RTL Group’s interest-generating 2 gain of €10
million reported in “Gain/(loss) from sale of subsidiaries, other investments and re-measurement to fair value
of pre-existing interest in acquiree”.

0On 15 June 2015, FremantieMedia Greup Ltd took a 35.3 per cent (31.6 per cent on a fully diluted basis)
non-controlling interest in UMI Mobile, Inc ("UMI™), a new gaming company in Canada. The related carrying
amount is below €1 million at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: below €1 million). FremantleMedia
is entitled, via a call option, to buy the remaining shares of the controlling shareholders at market value.

0On 14 September 2015, FremantleMedia Ltd entered with a 25 per cent stake, into the share capital of Naked
Entertainment Ltd (“Naked”), a UK start-up television production company focusing on high-end factual
entertainment series. The carrying amount of Naked is below €1 million at 31 December 2016 {31 December
2015: below €1 million). In addition, FremantleMedia granted a loan of GBP 1 million in 2015 which was
subsequently increased ta GBP 1.5 milliort in 2016. FremantleMedia hgolds call options on the remaining 75
per cent of the share capital. These are exercisable in 2021 and 2023. The strike price of the options is based
on a variable component. If FremantleMedia does not exercise the call options, the holders of the 75 per
cent interests will have the option to require FremantleMedia to purchase all the remaining shares, subject
to certain criteria, or an option to acquire the shares held by the Group. The fair value of the related derivatives
was € nil million at 31 December 2015 and remains unchanged at 31 December 2016.

On 3 Novemnber 2015, RTL Group led the Series A investment round for Videoamp Inc. (“Videoamp"),
a US-based platform for cross-screen data optimisation founded in 2014. The investment of €7 milion
provided RTL Group with a stake of 21.5 per cent; €6 million were paid at 31 December 2015 and the
balance in 2016. Videoamp fits into RTL Group’s digital strategy as it is complementary to the current ad-tech
businesses of SpotX and Ciypd. The purchase accounting did not lead to the recognition of additional
identifiable assets and liabilities, RTL Group granted a loan of USD 1.8 million o Videoamp in 2016,

On 23 Novemnber 2015, FrermantleMedia Ltd entered with a 25 per cent stake into Full Fat Television Ltd {Full
Fat TV"), a newly created UK based factual entertainment company. The carrying amount of Fult Fat TV is
below €1 million at 31 December 2016 {31 December 2015: below €1 million). In agdition, FremantleMedia
granted a loan of GBP 1 million in 2015. FremantleMedia tolds call options on the remaining 75 per cent of
the share capital. These are exarcisable in 2020 and 2022. The strike price of the optians is based on a
variable component. tf FremantleMedia exercises its 2020 call option but not the 2022 one, the holders of
the 75 per cent interests will have the option to require FremantleMedia to purchase all the remaining shares,
In the event that FremantleMedia will not exercise the call options, the other shareholders will have the option
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to acquire the shares held by the Group. The fair value of the related derivatives was € nil milllion at 31
December 2015 and remains unchanged at 31 December 2016.

On 8 December 2015, FremantleMedia Ltd acquired a 25 per cent stake in the company Man Alive
Entertainment Ltd (“Man Alive Entertainment”), a newly created television production company. The carrying
amount of Man Alive Entertainment was € nil million at 31 December 2015 and remains unchanged at 31
December 2016. In addition, FremantleMedia granted a loan of GBP 1 million in 2015. FremantleMedia holds
call options on the remaining 75 per cent of the share capital. These are exercisable in 2021 and 2023. The
strike price of the options is based on a variable component. If FremantleMedia exercises its 2021 call option
but not the 2023 one, the holders of the 75 per cent interests will have the option to require FremantleMedia
to purchase all the remaining shares. In the event that FremantleMedia will not exercise the call options, the
other shareholders will have the option to acquire the shares held by the Group. The fair value of the related
derivatives was € nil million at 31 December 2015 and remains unchanged at 31 December 2016.

Impairment testing

Investments in associates are tested for impairment according 1o the same methodology applied for the
impairment test of goodwill (see note 8.2.). The recoverable amount of Atresmedia has been determined on
the basis of the fair value less costs of disposal at 31 December 2016. This is a Level 1 measurement (see
note 4,.3.2.). The recoverable amount of RTL 2 Fernsehen GmbH & Co. KG has been determined on the basis
of the value in use at 31 December 2016.

The perpetual growth and discount rates used are as follows:

2016 2015
Perpetual Pempetual Discount
growth rate  Discount rate arcwth rate rate
% ayear % ¥ ayear ES

Main assosiates
RT_ 2 Fernsehen Gml

No impairment loss on investments in associates was recorded in 2016 and 20t5.
RTL 2 Fernsehen GmbH & Co. KGis a party in legal proceedings with a subsidiary of RTL Group.

Contingencies
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in the associates.

Investments in joint ventures
The main joint venture is as follows:

Country of Prncical “avoting power  Measurement
incorporation actmity hela by the Group methad
2018 2ma

adcastng V. 500 500 Equiy

RTL Disney Fernsehen GmbH & Co. KG is set up as a joint venture with the control shared by Disney and
RTL Group. Neither of the shareholders have the ability to direct the relevant activities unilaterally.
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The summarised financial information for the main joint ventures of the Group, on a 100 per cent basis and
adjusted for differences in accounting policies between the Group and the joint ventures is as follows:

ATL Disney Fernsehen GmbH & Co, KG

Non-current 7
Assels o

Current

Cash and cash equivalents , ) ) o )

Qther current assets
Total current assets

Fial)
£m

b
£m

28

Current lia
Total current liabilities

Net assets

Reverue

Depreciation and ar~orfisation - -

Profit before tax
Income tax experse

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Group'’s share of profit and total comprehensive income for the year

13

Dividends received from joint venture

"

At 31 December 2016, RTL Group owed a cash poaling payable to RTL Disney Fernsehen GmbH & Co. KG

for an amount of €44 million (31 December 2015: €5 million; see note 8.11.).

The reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the carrying amount of RTL Group's

interest in join! ventures is presented below:

Netassets at 1 January

Pofi/ossi for heyesr

Distribunion
Ofher changes
Net assets at 31 Decermnber

RTL Dusney fernsehen
GmbH & o KG
2016 2015

R TR
@ e
Ly G2

T

2016

Qtrgr immaterial
Joint ventures
2015

L
B

5
7

2016

Total
2015

Goodwill

Carrying value B

12 R

RRE I T D
12

15
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Main changes in the Group’s ownership interest in joint ventures

2016

On 15 Januvary 2016, RTL Nederand Ventures BV (“RTL Nederland”) acquired 32.6 per cent of Heilzaam BV
(*Heilzaam”}, operating eHealth information websites. The purchase consideration of €1 million has been
mainly contributed to the company. The transaction qualifies as a joint arrangement as RTL Nederland jointly
controls the company. The related carrying amount is €1 million at 31 December 2016.

RTL Nederland Ventures Holding granted in June 2016 to Miinto Nederland Holding BV a short-term loan of
€3 million which has been reimbursed during the third quarter.

2015

On 27 January 2015, RTL Nederland BV {"RTL NL”) entered into the joint venture Buurtfacts BV (“Buurtfacts®).
Buurtfacts is a web and app-based platform with a focus on distributing publicly available news, information
and facts on a local tevel. The carrying amount of Buurtfacts is € nil million at 31 December 2016 (€ nil million
at 31 December 2015). The other shareholders, who hold 45 per cent, have been granted a put option.
RTL NL holds a call option on the shares held by the other shareholders. The strike price of the options is
based on a variable component. The fair value of the related derivatives is € nil million at 31 December 2016
{€ nil million at 31 December 2015).

0On 24 March 2015, RTL Nederland Ventures BV (*“RTL NL™} announced the acquisition of 34.8 per cent stake
in Reclamefolder.nl BV {“Reclamefolder”) holding a platform for online brochures and offers Reclamefoider.ni.
RTL NL continues to focus on investments in companies currently in the transition phase from offline to
online, with an increasing emphasis on mobile. The transaction was completed on 15 July 2015 once the
clearance from the European Commission was obtained. RTL NL and the company also entered into a media
exposure agreement. The transaction qualified as a joint arrangement as RTL Group jointly controls the
cormpany. In July 2015, RTL NL contributed €2 million to the share capital of the company. The carrying
amount of Reclamefolder is €2 million at 31 December 2016 (€2 million at 31 December 2015).

Impairment testing

Investments in joint ventures are tested for impairment according to the same methodology applied for the
impairment test of goodwill {see note 8.2.). The recoverable amount of RTL Disney Fernsehen GmbH & Co.
KG has been determined on the basis of the value in use at 31 December 2016.

The perpetual growth and discount rates used are as follows:

2016 2014
Perpetual Ferpelual Discocnt
growth rate  Discount rate grewth rate rate
% a year % # ayeal %
Main joint venture
RTL Disrey Fernsehen Gmbl 1.5 6.9 2.0 6.9

No impairment loss on investments in joint ventures was recorded in 2016 and 2015.

Contingencies
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in the joint ventures.

The transactions with the associates and joint ventures are reported in note 10.2.
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Loans and other financial assets

2016 2013

Nofes £m em

Avallable-for-saie investments o 58 55
Loans receivablé to mvestrrents accounted for using te equty method BB VI
Loansand other frarealasscts T TITT T g Ty
. ' ' U 68

RTL Group holds 19 per cent of the share capital of Beyond International Limited, a company listed on the
Australian Stock Exchange. This is a Level 1 fair value measurement. In 2016, RTL Group recorded an
increase in fair value of this available-for sale investment for €2 million (2015: decrease for €1 million),

Since April 2000, FremantleMedia has arrangements in relation to sale and lease back transactions {see note
9.3.}. At 31 December 2016, two banks did not satisfy the required credit ratings. The related amounts are
recognised for €1 million in the consolidated statement of financial position {2015: €9 million), of which €1
million with a maturity of less than one year {2015: €7 miliion). The restricted bank accounts are reported in
other financial assets with counterpart in bank loans payable (see note 8.11.).

No impairment loss was recognised in 2016 {2015: € nil million). No reversal of impairment loss has been
recorded in 2016 (2015 € nii million).

The movernents in available-for-sale investrments are as follows:

2016 2018
€m £m

Net acq disposals ]

Change in far value 15

mparment losses and other canges o - )

Balance at 31 December 58 55
m Deferred tax assets and liabitihies

2016 2015

£m €m

"""" L

2

308

016 2015

€m €m

Balance at 1 January 335

Income tax experse o

lncome tax credied / charged 1o eauity” S

Change i consobcaton scope [l

fanstes sndolher cranges e

Balance at 31 December 308

The Group has deductible temporary differences originating from an intra-group transaction which will mainly
reverse guring the next three years.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets amount to €1,191 millicn at 31 December 2016 (2015: €1,330 million}.
Deferred tax assets are recognised oh tax losses carry forwards to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of €4,489
million (2015: €4,476 million) to carry forward against future taxable income which retate to Luxembourg and
Hungary (2015: Luxembourg and Hungary) and have na expiry date.
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The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year is as follows:

{Chargec) !
credited to Change n
Balance at NGorme Chargec  consohication  Translers angd Balance at
1 January 2016 statemeni 0 equity scope  cther charges M Dlecember 2016
Nate €m £€m £m £m [ €m

Deferred tax assets
imang ble assets T m T - T T w T T Tee
Pogramme rgnts zo3 tm - o T
Popety, plant and equprrent 3 - - LTy
ousons e s o Ty e T T
Telosses . BE % 08 -2
COthers 57 5 — _

Setoffoftax e o e e

370 (32} - 2 23

Provisions

Intangble assets (74} - - 13 {3 {80)
Pogammengrls @ - - - - @
(17

e Y
Setoffo'tax

we -~ - m
(62) {1} 2 (53] 22 (45)

I
1
;(‘nj

Property, plant and equipment (13

Powsons . ... .. . Q.s

T (R
|
I
N

{Charged)/
cregitec Lo Change 'n
Balance at Income Chargea  conselidation  Transfers ang Balance at
1 January 2015 siatement 1o equily scope  gther cranges 31 December 2015
Nete €m €m €m €m £n €m

Deferred tax assets
Intangible assets
Programme nights

Taxlosses -
Others
Setoffoftac .8 - - -

B
385 23) - 2 @) aro

Deerred tax liabilties

R B

intangible

|
|
|
@

Programrm

e S PR L
Powsons ]
)

Property, plant ana equipment

- é
Others L), 18) {d) - tg; (66

Setroffo_‘tax N 81 ) - - - 28 139
{60) 4] (4 (8) 14 {62)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset against each other if they relate to the same tax authority and
meet the criteria of offsetting. The term of the deferred taxes on temporary differences is mostly expected
to be recovered or settled more than 12 months from the balance sheet date.
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Current programme rights

2016 2015

Gross Valuatian Net firnss Valuatior Net

value allowance value wah o allowarce value

€m €m £m £m fm £m

(Coderoauctions 0 T T aeg T mag T g a3 T mam @
Cther distrbution and broaccastng ngnts 833 (@o8) 624 940 (308) 632
Sub-total programmmerights 1408 (838 772 ia3ro @Iy 74
{Coleroductions and programres in erogress 288 0 22 218 5 212
Advance payments on [coJpraductions, programmes T
and nghts B ) 157 1 156 141 ) 140
Sub-total programme rights inprogress 36 (8 388 38 (0 3m
1,804 (644) 1,160 1,729 (636) 1,083

Additions and reversals of valuation allowance have been recorded for €(90) million and €64 miliion
respectively in 2016 (2015 €{93) million and €62 million, respectively).

Accounts receivable and other financial assets

2018 2015
Under Over Uncer Ouer
1 year 1 year Total 1 year 1 year Total
Nates €m €m Em €m £€m £m
Traceacoountsrecabele . L288 - 128 118 - 1%
Accounts recevatle from investments
accounted fer using the equisy method - 24 36 - 36
Loan receivable to investments
2 - 2 - - -
92 18 93
a7 &3
- 11
nrelgton wih PLP Agreement - [ER 42 - 423 a2 oLk
Other accounts recevable o 1w 25 212 146 75 o2
2,025 90 2,115 2,014 138 2,153

Additions and reversals of valuation allowance have been recorded for €{32) million and €21 million
respectively in 2016 (2015: €(22) million and €16 million, respectively).

The amount of €20 million deposited since the first half of 2012 under an escrow account by the Football
Club Girondins de Bordeaux for the benefit of the city of Bordeaux and reported in current “Accounts
receivable and other financial assets” at 31 December 2014 had been released to Groupe M6 in 2015. This
amount was reported in cash inflows from investing activities in the consclidated cash flow statement in
2015. The same amount has been paid by Groupe M§ in 2015 tg the city of Bordeaux in return for reduced
future rental payments for the use of the new stadium by Girondins de Bordeaux. The related amount was
reported in non-current “Loans and other financial assets” and reduced the operating free cash flow in 2015,
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EXE} cash and cash equivalents

2016 20'5

£m €m

Casnr hand and at bank 0 T Y N
Fixex tarm deposits 'under three maonths) 79 21
Other cash equ valents 88 £9
Casr anc cash equivalents {excluding bank overdrafts) 433 443
2016 205

Nute £m £m

j e s

Cast and cash eaunalents excudng bank overcratsl

Senkoverdralts R - I - N
Cash anc cash equivalents 431 444

“Other casn equivalents” include money market funds for €88 million {2015: €49 million).
Assets classified as held for sale

20186

Media Properties

On 26 October 2016, RTL Group entered inte an agreement with a third party to sell Media Properties Sarl
("Media Properties”}, Media Properties owns RTL Group’s new buildings (“RTL City") in Luxembourg (see
note 8.3.). These buildings, which RTL Group will leaseback, host the Corporate Centre and the other
operations of the Group in Luxembourg. The disposal is expected to be completed during the second quarter
of 2017. The sale proceeds of Media Properties amounts to €154 million and will generate an operating
capital gain estimated to be €60 million.

2015

Following the disposal of AdSociety associate (see note 7.4.), there were no assets classified as held for sale
anymore at 31 December 2015.

EXEEA Loans and bank overdrafts

Notes £m £m

Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts ) -5
Bank loars payable 2
Loans due ta mvastments acoounted for using the equity method E
ST BT -

554

13

,,,,,, SO

2016 25

£m £m

Non-current liabilities

Bark Ioans-p-ayabl-e- 77"3 .
Leasmg lanibes oo L !
Term lcar fachty due to sharehgider o e
Ofher ~on-current lpans payacle T T S e .
_ ] S 517 524
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Term and debt repayment schedule:
Unter 1
yaar

2018 Nates em

Bark overdrafts

Loéﬂs due o Investme
Leasirg liabilties
Term loan facilty due to sharsholde~

-5
yedrs
Em

[vet b Tetal carrying
YEAIS amount
£m £m

T %
507 1,010

e e
Bark loans payadle

Loans due to invesiments accounted for usag the equity metrod. |
leasnglables T

1-5
years
€m

Over5  Tonal camying
years amount
€m €m

B
S

B0 s

508 1,128

Accounls payable
Current accounts payable
Tiade scoountspayedle

Amounts dueto associates
EmpongeﬂbEnefltrsrlr\gbihty

Notc

216 2015
€m £m

1,588 150B

REICHI
o
2842 2742

Non-current accounts payable
2016
1-5 Qver 5
years years Total
€m €m €m

lrade accountspayagle a7 Tqg 7 g
Emp enefits \\ab\\ny N 1 256 257

Other accounts payable ‘ o 83 5 88
131 274 405

100 - T e

=4
years

191

2010
Ovzr 5
years Total
€m £m
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Provisions

Provisions other than post-employment benefits

Bestructuning wiigaunons  Unerows corracls Oiher provisios Tatal
£m £m €m €m €m
Balance at 1 January 2016 1 92 93 16 202

Prowis ons chargac /{eredred)
to the income statemet:

—Addmonsr ’ 8 ’ ?3 ’ ”3 R 57
—Reversals W e m e
Povisorsused dunmg theyear - em @ e
Swbsdenesacques = ...~ . .- __...8% 3
Balance at 31 Desember 2016 3 90 107 13 213

The provisions mainly relate to the following:
® Provisions for litigations correspond to the Group’s best estimate of the expected future cash outflow
related to disputes arising from the Group’s activities.

RTL Group is party to legal proceedings in the normal course of its business, both as defendant and
claimant, The main legal proceedings to which RTL Group is a party are disclosed below.,

Several subsidiaries of the Group are being sued by broadcaster RTL 2 Fernsehen GmbH & Co. KG and
its sales house El Cartel Media GmbH & Co. KG befare the regional court in Disseldorf in Germany seeking
disclosure of information in order to substantiate a possible claim for damages. The proceedings succeed
the impaosition of a fine in 2007 by the German Federal Cartel Office for the abuse of market dominance
with regard to discount scheme agreements {"share deals”) IP Deutschland GmbH and SevenOne Media
GmbH granted to media agencies. The German Federal Cartel Office argued that these discounts would
foreclose the advertising market for small broadcasters. In 2014, the court of Diisseldorf decided to order
an expert report. The expert has not yet rendered his report. Similar proceedings of other small broadcasters
initiated in different courts were unsuccessful or have been withdrawn.

Brandi Cochran was employed as a model on the television series [he Price Is Right from July 2002 until
February 2010 and was claiming wrongful termination and other allegations due to her gender and
pregnancy. Her claim was brought against FremantleMedia North America (“FMNA™), The Court entered
judgment in January 2013 and awarded her damages in the amount of USD 9 million (compensatory
damages of USD 1 million and punitive damages of USD 8 million; subject to interest at the rate of 10 per
cent per annum until paid} plus attorney’'s fees. FMNA appealed the verdict. FMNA also filed a post-trial
motion for a new trial, which was granted in March 2013 {and the verdict was vacated). In December 2014,
the Appellate Court remanded the parties for a new trial, which was set to begin in April 2016. However,
in February 2016, the parties reached a settlement agreement, which resolved this matter. The related
cash-out in 2016 was USD 3 million, net of insurance reimbursement, without significant impact on the
incomne statement.

In June 2016, the main competitors of Fun Radio alleged that a host of the morning show had influenced
Fun Radio's audience ratings by encouraging his listeners to give favourable treatment to Fur Radio in the
Mediamétrie surveys. In response to these allegations, Médiamétrie called a special committee, which
ultimately decided to remove Fun Radio from Médiamétrie’s survey to be published in July 2016. Following
a legal procedure initiated by Fun Radio, Médiamétrie was required to reinstate Fun Radio in the ratings
surveys as from September 2016 but, since then. decided to lower Fun Radio’s audience results, arguing
a possible “halo effect”. Thereafter, Fun Radio initiated a procedure ta challenge the scientific reliabitity of
the Médiamétrie calculation. In December 2016, the main competitors of Fun Radio also filed a claim for
damages claiming unfair competition.
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® *Onerous gontracts™ mainly comprise provisions made by:
Mediengruppe RTL Beutschland for €64 million (2015: €49 million) mainly in refation to the supply of
programmes, of which sport events (2016: € 19 million; 2015: €4 million);
Groupe M6 for €42 million (2015: €41 million) in refation to the supply of programmes, of which sport
events (2016: €3 million; 2015: €3 million).
Out of €73 million of provisions recorded during the year, €52 million relate to programmes such as mavies
and series and €21 million to sport events.

2016 2015
€m im
T e i e e i
Nen-current o o L -T2
213 202
ARy Post-employment benefits
2016 2015
Nats €m €m
Balance at 1 165

23 )

- Addmonéﬂg o
Provisions uge D
Actaral losse e
............. LT @
181 165

“Post-employment benefits® comprise provision for defined benefit obligations {see note 8.14.) for €177
million {2¢15: €160 million} and provision for other employee benefits for €4 million (2015: €5 million).

2018 2014
Em €m
Non-current 179 163
18 165

Defined benefit obligations

RTL Group operates or participates in a number of defined benefit ("DB") and defined contribution plans
throughout Europe. FremantleMedia North America in the United States also operates a medical care plan
which is not further disclosed given its materiality to the consolidated financial statements.

These plans have been set up and are operated in accordance with national laws and regulations. A
description of the principal defined benefit plans of the Group and risks associated are given below.

Belgium

Employees of RTL Belgium participate in a defined benefit plan insured with the insurance company AXA,
which provides pension benefits to mermbers and their dependants on retirement and death. It concerns a
closed plan in run-off. From 1 January 2004, a new defined contribution scheme has been open for all new
employees. The assets of the insurance contract are not segregated but mutualised within the global assets
of the Company (“Branche 21"). A guaranteed interest rate is provided by AXA and the plan should not be
affected by financial markel deveiopment,

Furthermore, the pension plan provides a lump sum at retirement, and therefore will not be affected by the

expected increase of the future life expectancy of retirees. Other risks mainly relate to minimum funding
requirements when vested rights are not funding enough.
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France

Groupe M6, Ediradio, ID and IP France operate retirement indemnity plans which, by law, provide lump sums
to employees on retirement. The lump sums are based on service and salary at the date of termination of
employment in accordance with the applicable collective agreement. The Ediradio and 1D retirement
indemnity plan is partly funded by an insurance contract with AXA, Ediradio also participates in a defined
benefit plan which provides pension benefits to members on retirement. This plan is partly funded by an
insurance contract with AXA. The assets of the insurance contract are not segregated but mutualised within
the global assets of the insurance company. A guaranteed interest rate is provided by AXA and the plan
should not be affected by financial market development. By nature, the liability is not influenced by the
expected increase of the future life expectancy of a retiree.

Germany

Employees of UFA Berlin Group (inciuding UFA Fiction GmbH, UFA Shows & Factual GmbH, UFA GmbH,
UFA Serial Drama GmbH), Universum Film, Radio Center Berlin, AVE Gesellschaft fir Hérfunkbeteiligungen
GmbH, UFA Film & Fernsehen, RTL Group Deutschland and RTL Group Central & Eastern Europe participate
in an unfunded commen group retirement plan and defined benefit in nature. In case of insolvency, there is
a comprehensive protection system {“Pensionssicherungsverein™ operated by the Gemman Pension
Protection Fund. The company UFA Serial Drama has a partly funded plan.

Related obligations and plan assets are subject to demographic, legal and economic risks. The main risks
relate to longevity risk for pension recipients.

Each employer that participates in this plan has separately identifiable liabilities.

RTL Television and IP Deutschland operate their own retirement arrangements. (P Deutschland sponsors
individual plans for five former employees, providing defined pension benefits to each ermployee at retirement.

RTL Television sponsors individual plans for two employees and two former employees, providing defined
pension benefits to each employee at retirement. In addition, a number of employees participate in a support
fund providing pension benefits to members and their dependants on retirement and death.

The plan of RTL Television is partfy funded by a life insurance contract with AXA. The assets of the insurance
centract are not segregated but mutualised within the global assets of the insurance company. A guaranteed
interest rate is provided by AXA and the plan should not be affected by financial market development. Both
companies are exposed to certain risks associated with defined benefits plans such as longevity, inflation
and increase of wages and salaries.

Luxembourg

CLT-UFA, RTL Group and Broadcasting Center Europe {“BCE") sponsor a post-employment defined benefit
plan in favour of their employees. The occupational pension plan provides benefits to the affiliates (members
and their dependants) in case of retirement, death in service and disability. The pension benefits are financed
through an internal book reserve, as one of the allowed funding vehicles described in the law of 8 June 1999
on occupatianal pension plans in Luxembourg. Therefore CLT-UFA, RTL Group and BCE set up provision
for the unfunded retirement benefit plén. Nevertheless in such case, the law requires the company to
subscribe to an insolvency insurance with the German Pension Protectiaon Fund (“Pensionssicherungsverein®).
The CLT-UFA, RTL Group and BCE occupational pension scheme is a defined benefit plan final pay with
integration of the state pension. Consequently, the Company is exposed to certain risks associated with
defined benefits plans such as longevity, inflation, effect of compensation increases and of the state pension
legislation.

Death and disability are insured with Cardif Lux Vie.

United Kingdom

FremantleMedia Group Limited is the principal emplayer of the Fremantle Group Pension Plan (“the Fremantle
Plan” or “the Plan"}, which was established on 29 December 2000 and was, prior to 1 September 2005,
known as the RTL Group UK Pension Plan. The Fremantle Plan provides benefits through two sections, one
providing defined benefits and the other providing defined contribution benefits with a defined benefit
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underpin. Plan assets are held for both sections of the Fremantle Plan — the assets in the defined benefit
section comprise a qualifying insurance {buy-in) policy and UK corporate bonds; the assets in the defined
contribution section comprise mainly equities. The Plan is funded through a trust administered by a trustee
company, the assets of which are held separately from the assets of the participating employers.
FremantleMedia Group Limited is ultimately fiable for any deficit in the Plan. Funding requirements are under
section 3 of the Pensions Act 2004 (UK). This requires:

® Three-yearly formal actuarial valuations, with annual monitoring;

= Trustees to maintain a Statement of Funding Principles;

m Trustees and employers to agree the approach to each actuarial valuation;

= Funding deficits to be eliminated in accordance with a schedule of deficit funding cantributions.

The Company has been managing and reducing the risks associated with the Fremantie Plan. The Company
closed the Plan to all further benefit accrual with effect from 31 March 2013. From 19 March 2(14, the
Gompany decided to secure benefits by insuring the Plan’s liabilities through a buy-in policy.

The main risk related to the defined benefit section is that the insurance provider (Pension lnsurance
Corporation) defaults on the buy-in policy and the Trustees are unable to recover the full value. This event
is extremely unlikely given the regulatory capital requirements for insurance companies and cther protections
in place {e.g. the Financial Services Compensation Scheme).

Future pension provision for members of the Fremantle Plan still employed by the Company is now through
a Group Personal Pension plan with Scottish Widews, which commenced on 1 April 2013,

Legislation regarding introducing employers’ pensions ‘aute-enrolment’ obligations, requires contriputions
to be made for employees/workers who were previously not members of Company schemes or who
previously had no pension entitlement. This affected the Company from 1 September 2013 onwards. An
employee must now choose to ‘opt out’ if they do not wish to contribute to the pension scheme.

Information about the nature of the present value of the defined benefit liabilities are detailed as follows:

2016 2015

€m £m
Fral salery plans " T V'
Carcer average plans e e g T g
Flat ealary plans - piars win fiked amourts T T g Ty
OVers™ e w8 a
Total - N

Thereof capital commitrment for €122 million at 31 December 2016 {2015: € 112 million). Under the Fremantle
Plan Rules, in the defined benefit sections a member may opt to exchange up to around 25 per cent of their
pension benefit for a cash lump sum.

Information about the plan members is detailed as follows:

2016 2018
Head Hearl
Actve mermbacs 3007 288
Deferred memeers ' - I 1108 1098
Frz’é;‘sunersr 7 o ’ N o o o 7;506 30%
Total 4,512 4.29°
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The breakdown of the present value of the defined benefit liabilities by the plan members is as follows:

Actwemembers 140

Deferrad members

Pensicners 64

Total 312

20y
£m

128
a7
8
284

Thereof beneficiaries with vested rights for €266 million (2015: €243 million) and beneficiaries with unvested

rights for €46 million (2015: €41 million).

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are determined as follows:

Notes €m
Present value of fundea obligations 186

Far value of plan assets. _ Y O - T

Deficit of funded plans 51

2013
£m

go
(124]
45

Net defined benefit liability 177

Present value of unfunded cbligations 126

Provisions B. 13. 2] 177

The amounts recagnised in comprehensive income are determined as follows:

2016
Notes €m

Service costs:

— Current sensice cost

— Net nterest expense

Components of defined benefit costs recarded in profitoriass T

2015
€m

Re-measurements:

- (Gains)/losses ‘romn change ir finangial assumptions pa]

- Expenence adpstments (gains)/losses

cluded in net iIntere

S return on plan assets |

Components of defined benefit costs recarded |n0ther Cofﬁﬁréhensive tncome{OGI") o

Total of components of defined benefit costs 23

The movement in the present value of funded/unfunded defined benefit obligations aver the vear is as follows:

2018
£€m

BalanceatfJamuary .

Currert service cost 8

Interest cost 8
Re-measurcmerts: ' S ‘
- [Gains), losses fram changs i financal ass.mptions™ - - 2
- Experlence adjustments (galns;,’\osses,"‘ B ‘ S ' ’ -3
Bernefi:s paid by o ployer R ' (5}
Berefis paid out of she plan assets @
Fore-ém exchange d fiererces 7 S ' (1 é]
Balance at 31 December 312
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The movement in the fair value of plan assets of the year is as follows:

Balanceattanvary

Return on plan asse
Empicyer contributions*?

ncluded in net interest expense

Benefits paid out of the plan HS&SE%S“M e e

Foreign excharge differances

Balance at 31 December

2016
€m

e

135

Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending 31 December 2017 are

€3 million.

Plan assets are comprised as follows:

{uoted
marked
price
£€m

Equity instruments
(including equity funds):

Debt instruments

Na quoted
marked  Total 2016
wice Em £m %

Quotcc WMo quotea
marked proc markeg pricc Total 2015
&m £m £m

{including debt funds}: 1 1 1 1
Corperate bonds: iInvestmen: grade 1 - 1 1 - 1
Cash and cash equivalents ] - ! 1 - 1 ! 1
Qualifying insurance policies - 89 88 65 - 79 79 63
Total 46 89 135 100 44 80 124 100
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:
2016 2019
% a year % a year
Qther European {ther Luropean

Germany countnes UK Garmany colnttes UK

Discount rate ~1.70-1.80 150 280 28D 220 apa

" 150-170
25

1.00-150

1s0-200 2

Rk

25

1.00-1.70

2117450

At 31 December 2016, the weighted-average duration of the defined benefit liability was

(2015: 17 years).

The breakdown of the weighted-average duration by geographical areas is as follows:

LK
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At 31 December, the sensitivity of the defined benefit liabilities to changes in the weighted principal
assumptions is as follows:

2016 200y
Increase Decrease Increase Secrease
€m €m £ €m
Average lfe expectancybbyTyesr . ® & & @
Discount rate feffect of 0.5%) L )t 9
Future salary growth teffectofG.5%) .15 4e 14 08
Future pension growth (effect of 0.5%) > ..®& 7 ©

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant.

At 31 Decernber 2016, expected maturity analysis of undiscounted pension {future cash flows) are as follows:

Less than 85 than
1 year 1-Gyears 10 years
€m £€m [ 3 Tongk
Defred beneftliaggty 7y ss 72 139

Equity
AR ERRN Share capital

The Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the Company, held on 25 May 2016, acknowledged that 44,748
physical shares of RTL Group had not been registered in accordance with the provisions of the law of 28
July 2014 regarding the immobilisation of bearer shares in Luxembourg (“Immobilisation Law”). The EGM
acknowledged that the Board of directors set the price of the cancelled shares at €32.96 per share in
accordance with article 6 (5) of the law.

As a consequence, at 31 December 2016, the subscribed capital amounts to €192 million {2015: €192
milllion} and is represented by 154,742,806 (31 December 2015: 154,787 ,554) fully paid-up ordinary shares,
without nominal value; the equity of the Company was reduced by €2 million. The amount has been
depaosited on 15 July 2016 in an escrow account with the Caisse of consignation in accordance with the
legal provisions.

Treasury shares

The Company's General Meeting held on 16 April 2014 has authorised the Board of Directors to acquire a
total number of shares of the Company not exceeding 150,000 in addition to the own shares already held
{i.e. 1,168,701 own shares} as of the date of the General Meeting. This authorisation is valid for five years
and the purchase price per share is fixed at a minimum of 80 per gent and a maximum of 110 per cent of
the average closing price of the RTL Group share over the last five trading days preceding the acquisition.

Following the shareholders’ mesting resclution and in order to foster the liquidity and regular trading of its
shares that are listed on the stock market in Brussels and Luxembourg and the stability of the price of its
shares, the Company entered on, 28 April 2014, into a liquidity agreement (the “Liguidity Agreement”} with
Kepler Capital Markets SA (the “Liquidity Provider”). During the year ended 31 December 2016, under the
Liquidity Agreement, the Liquidity Provider has:

m purchased 574,728 shares at an average price of €73.82; and

= sold 562,659 shares at an average price of €74,17, in the name and on behalf of the Company.

At 31 December 2016, a total of 47,488 {2015: 35,419} RTL Group shares are held by the Company and €7.0

million (2015: €7.7 million) are in deposit with the Liquidity Provider under the terms of the Liquidity
Agreement,
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Currency translation reserve

The currency translation reserve comprises alt foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations, reserves on investments accounted for using the equity
method for foreign exchange translation differences and cash flow hedging, as well as loans designated to
form part of the Group's net investment in specific undertakings, as repayment of those loans is not
anticipated within the foreseeable future.

TN Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve {equity attributable to non-controlling interests included) comprises the effective portion
of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments related to hedged transactions
that have not yet occurred.

Between 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016, the hedging reserve increased by €5 million before

tax effect. This consists of:

® Increase by € 14 million due ta foreign exchange contracts that existed at 2015 year end and which were
still hedging off-balance sheet commitments at 31 December 2016;

® Decrease by €34 million due to foreign exchange contracts that existed at 2015 year end but which were
incorporated in the cost of the hedged item and subsequently cansumed and released in 2016 from the
hedging reserve to income statement;

® increase by €25 million due to foreign exchange contracts entered into in 2016 hedging new off-balance
sheet commitments.

Between 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015, the hedging reserve increased by €8 million before

tax effect. This consists of:

= Increase by €34 million due to foreign exchange contracts that existed at 2014 year end and which were
still hedging off-balance sheet commitments at 31 Decemnber 2015;

® Decrease by €28 million due to foreign exchange contracts that existed at 2014 year end but which were
incorporated in the cost of the hedged item and subsequently consumed and released in 2015 from the
hedging reserve to income statement;

® [ncrease by €2 million due to foreign exchange contracts entered into in 2015 hedging new off-balance
sheet commitments.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve includes:

® The cumulative change net of tax in the fair value of available-for-sale investments (see note 8.5.) until the
investment is derecognised or impaired for €20 million (2015: € 18 miliion). The amount of QCI recycled to
profit or loss and related to available-for-sale investments disposed of in 2016 is € nil million (2015: € nil
million};

® The cumulative increase in the fair value of the intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
fallowing the gains of controt of Groupe M6 and M-RTL (2016: €55 million; 2015: €55 million).

m Dividends

On 20 April 2018, the Annual General Meeting aof Shareholders decided, after having taken into account the
interim dividend of €1.00 per share pait on 10 September 2015, to distribute a final dividend of £€3.00 per
share. Accordingly, an amount of €460 million was paid out on 28 April 2016.

On 24 August 2016, RTL. Group's Board of Directors authorised the distribution of an interim dividend of
€1.00 per share, The payment on 8 September 2016 amounted to € 154 million.

Share-based payment plans

Groupe M6 share-based payment plans

Groupe M6 has established employee share option plans open to directors and certain employees. The
number of options granted to participants is approved by the Supervisory Board of Métropole Télévision SA
in accordance with the authorisation given by the Generai Meeting of Shareholders.
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The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, whereby all options are setiled by physical delivery
of shares:

Maxmum nurmcer of
free shares granted  Remaimn: oplions
Grant gate In thousznesi** ‘i thousarcs) Vesling concitiors

Free shares plans

U pa-zo 1a9ss -
10-2014 513.15 o - 2years o

f service + cerformance ol

32.50 ) 3250 Q-Qéars of sé&née

"""" 48040 453.20 2 years of service + oerformance cond fions

" 44080 43730 2 years of senvice + perfor ce cond fions

.. .. b7-E0f 38100 38100 2yearsof senice » performancs condtions
Total 1,977.20 1,284.00

The Free Shares Plans are subject to performance conditions. A description by plan is given below:

= The plans at 13 October 2014, 28 July 2015 and 27 July 2016 are subject to Groupe M6 achieving its target
growth in net consolidated result over the periods 2014, 2015 and 2016 respectively; the second plan at
27 July 2016 is subject to a cumulated performance requirement over 3 years;

= The plans at 14 April 2014 and 11 May 2015 are only subject to the presence in Groupe M6.

Approximately 1,284,000 free shares are still exercisable at the end of the year against 1,147,000 at the
beginning of the year. 802,000 free shares were granted during the year with 620,000 being exercised and
45,000 being forfeited.

The price to be paid to exercise each of the remaining options is the average price of shares in Métropole
Télévision SA on the Paris Stock Exchange over the 20 trading days preceding the date of grant with the

exception of the management free share allocation plan.

Maovements in the number of share options are as follows:

Average 2016 Average 20°5

exgrcise price thousands  exercse price thousznos

£per share af options €per share of ootions

Optens cutstanding at the peginnirg o the year - - 15 233
Opt.ons exercised duning the year - - 15 (152)
Opt cng exgired/cancelled dunng the - - 15 81)

Options outstanding at the end of the year - - - -

Free share options outstanding (in thousands) at the end of the year have the following terms:

Number of Num per of
shares shares
Fapiry cate 206 2013
Free shares plans
20186 - 634
2017 486 5°3
2013 798 -
Total 1,284 1,147

The market price of Métropole Téiévision shares on the Paris Stock Exchange was €17.67 at 31 December
2016 (€15.84 at 31 December 2015).
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The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted. The estimate of fair value of the services received is measured based on
a binomial model. Free shares are valued at the share price at the date they are granted less the discounted
future expected dividends that employees cannot receive during the vesting period.

Risi free Lxpectea Lmployee expense
Shara pnce In'erest 1a1e return 2016 215
Gran: date 3 # ayear % avyear Optign hfz £m €m

Free shares plans

sso7/2008 610 2years - 1.9
1470472014 560 2yoars 03 o8
13/10/2 e L1203 780 Zyears 15 19
11/08/2015 s 480 2years 02  C°
a8/o7/2015 183 022 4% 2years 30 13
28/07/2018 o ars 1.0 -
BTN BRI SR B S Y

Style Haul Inc Share-based payment plan

Some employees of Style Haul Inc benefit from a share-based payment plan in RTL US Helding, Inc, its
parent company. The plan qualifies as a cash-settled share-based payment transaction, This plan was fully
vested as of 31 December 2015 (see note 6.2.).

Other plans
There are other insignificant share-based payment plans within the Group. The total expense associated to
these plans amounts to €2.4 million for the year ending 31 December 2016 {2015: €3 million).

Dilution can occur when beneficiaries of stock option plans or holders of other optional securities exercise
their options. At 31 December 20186, the dilutive effects in the Group's ownership percentage are as follows:
= dilution of RTL Group interest in SpotXchange Inc by 4.01 per cent;

m dilution of RTL Group interest in BroadbandTV Corp by 6.46 per cent,

a dilution of RTL Group interest in YoBoHo New Media Private Ltd by 13.90 per cent.

The Group has been already diluted by 3.3 per cent to 67.5 per cent in the share of SpotX following the
exercise by employees of their options during the third quarter 2016.

AR I-AR:R Non-controlling interesis
The Group owns 48.4 per cent in Métropole Teélévision SA, which together with its subsidiaries and
investments accounted for using the equity method represent Groupe M6, listed on the Paris Stock

Exchanges (see note 12.). Shares not owned by the Group are material for the Group.

The total non-controtling interests is €475 million at 31 December 2016 (2015: €455 million), of which €428
mitlion (2015; €409 million) is for Groupe M6,

Nan-controlling interests in other subsidiaries are individually immaterial.

The following tables summarise the restated information relating to Groupe M8, befcre any intra-group
elimination.
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Summarised financial information:

Groupe M§

2016 201z

£m €m
Norcumertassets et 5
c assels o he2 910
Curertlablizes o te0a) (593
Nor-curentliblbtes . o N (g
Net assets 817 783

Revenue

Prbﬁt beforrer tax

ncometaxexperse
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income 152 120

Total comprehensive income allocated to non-contralling interests 80 62

Dividends paid to non-gontrolling interests (56) {57)
269

Netcasnusedmfrancrgacttates 0 . 62
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents @

Transactions on non-controlling interests
These transactions mainly relate to:

2016

Transactions on non-controlling interests without a change in control:

= Groupe M6 has granted, acguired and disposed of own shares in respect to the employee share option
plans (see note 8.15.7.), the forward purchase contract {see note 8.15.9.) and the liquidity programme,

= SpotXchange Ing has granted own shares in respect to the employee share option plan (see note 8.15.7)

= CBS Studios International contributed €1 million in a number of capital increases in RTL CBS Asia
Entertainment Network LLP, proportionally to its 30 per cent share.

The transactions on non-controlling interests with a change in control relate to Smartclip and iGraal (see note
6.2.).

2015

Transactions on non-controlling interests without a change in control:

1 On 1 January 2015, RTL Nederland Interactief BV disposed of 49 per cent, out of the 100 per cent held in
Videostrip BV (renamed SpotXchange Benelux BY) to SpotXchange Inc (held at 70.8 per cent by the Group)
resulting in a dilution of RTL Group’s interest of 14.2 per cent;

=1 On 1 August 2015, RTL Nederand Ventures BV increased its interest in the e-learning company Dutch
Learning Company BV (“DLC") from 80.3 per cent to 100 per cent (see note 6.2.);

m CBS Studios International contributed €2 million in a number of capital increases in RTL CBS Asia
Entertainment Network LLP, proportionally ta its 30 per cent share;

8 Groupe M6 has granted, acquired and disposed of own shares in respect to the employee share option
plans (see note 8.15.7.), the forward purchase contract (see note 8,15.9.) and the liquidity programme.

The transactions on non-controlling interests with a change in control relate to YocBoHo New Media Frivate
Ltd and Wildside Srl {see note 6.2.).

!m Derivatives on equity instruments
Derivative instruments relate to forward transactions by Groupe M6 on Métropole Télévisian SA shares.
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EA COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

2016 015

£m &m
Guarantees and sndarsements gven T T e T g
Contracts for purchasing rights, {coJproduct ors and programmes® N A
Satelite transponders T n T T e s
Operaling leases T e T T T T e
Purchese obligations n respect of lansmisson and distriocton 47 1gs
Other \Dng-term contracts and commltmems T T 69 138

The Group has investments in uniimited tiability entities. In the event these entities make losses, the Group
may have to participate to the entire amount of losses, even if these entities ara not wholly owned.

Certain UK companies in the FremantleMedia Group have elected to make use of the audit exemption, for
non-dormant subsidiaries, under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006. In order to fulfil the conditions
set out in the regulations, the Company has given a statutory guarantee of all outstanding liabilities to which
the subsidiaries are subject at the end of the financial year to 31 December 2016. A full list of the companies
which have made use of the audit exemption is presented in note 12,

In the course of their activities, several Group companies benefit from licence frequency agreements, which
commit the Group in various ways depending upon the legal regulation in force in the countries concerned.

Operating leases
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are as follows:

s 205
Uncer | 1=5 Quee Y Unaer 1 1-5 Over 5
year yrars yoars Tatal yaar years years Tatal
Lease Payments €m em em £m em £m fm £€m

TS s e e 73 201 208 480

"Other operating leases” mainly relates to the rental of offices, buildings and equipment in Germany, France
and the United Kingdom.

EXEA Purchase obligations in respect of transmission and distribution
These obligations result from agreements with providers of services related to the terrestrial and cable
transmission and distribution of the signals of the RTL Group TV channels and radio stations.

Other long-term contracts and commitments
The Group has “Other long-term contracts and commitments” amounting to €69 million at 31 December
2016 (2015: €136 million).

Long-term contracts include contracts for services, agreements to purchase assets or goods, and
commitments to acquire ficences other than audiovisual rights and felevision programming that are
enforceable and legally binding and that specify all significant terms.

FremantleMedia has arrangements for a remaining period of one year in relation to sale and lease back
transactions for an amount of below €1 millien (2015: €2.5 million). Under these arrangements,
FremantleMedia has sold programme rights to a special purpose vehicle and simultaneously leased back
the assets under a finance lease arrangement. The cash received is placed in a “restricted bank account”
at A-rated banks in order to satisfy the lease payments, and is not considered as an asset in accordance
with SIG 27, Income received by FremantleMedia was recognised in the income statement when entering
into these arrangements.
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K[! RELATED PARTIES

Identity of related parties

At 31 December 2018, the principal shareholder of the Group is Bertelsmann Capital Holding GmbH ("“BCH")
(75.1 per cent). The remainder of the Group’s shares are publicly listed on the Brussels, Frankfurt and
Luxembourg stock exchanges. The Group also has a related party relationship with its associates, joint
ventures and with its directors and executive officers.

Transactions with shareholders

Sales and purchases of goods and services

During the year the Group made sales of goods and services, purchases of goods and services to
Bertelsmann Group amounting to €9 million (2015: €10 million} and €23 million (2015: €24 million),
respectively. At the year-end, the Group had trade accounts receivable and payable due from/to Bertelsmann
Group amounting to €3 million {2015: €2 million) and €8 million (2015: €4 million), respectively.

Deposits Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA
With the view to investing its cash surplus, RTL Group SA entered in 2006 with Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA
(previously Bertelsmann AG) into a Deposit Agreement, the main terms of which are:
u Interest rates are based on an overnight basis on EONIA plus 10 basis points; or on a one-to-six month
basis, EURIBOR plus 10 basis peints;
u Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA grants to RTL Group as security for all payments due by Bertelsmann SE &
Co. KGaA a pledge on:
- All shares of its wholly owned French subsidiary Média Communication SAS;
* All shares of its wholly owned Spanish subsidiary Media Finance Holding SL;
All its interests in the German limited liability partnership Gruner + Jahr GmbH & Co. KG;
- All shares of its wholly owned English subsidiary Bertelsmann UK Ltd.

At 31 December 2016, RTL Group SA did not hold any deposit with Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA (2015: €
nil million on a one-to-three month basis and € nil million on an overnight basis). The interest income for the
period is € nil million (2015: € nil mitfion).

The interests in Gruner + Janr GmbH & Co. KG and shares of Bertelsmann UK Ltd have also been granted
as pledge by Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA to CLT-UFA SA, a subsidiary of RTL Group, in connection with
the accounts receivable related to PLP and Compensation Agreements as defined below.

On 22 December 2011, RTL Group Deutschland GmbH, a Group company, and Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA
entered into an agreement related to the deposit of surplus cash by RTL Group Deutschiand GmbH with the
shareholder. To secure the deposit, Bertetsmann pledged to RTL Group Deutschland GmbH its aggregate
current partnership interest in Gruner + Jahr GmbH & Co. KG.

At 31 December 2016, RTL Group Deutschland GmbH did not hold any depaosit with Bertelsmann SE & Co.
KGaA (2015: € nil million}. The interest income for the period is insignificant {2015: insignificant).

RTL Group SA has additionally entered into a Treasury Agreement in North America with Bertelsmann Inc.
interest rates are based on US Libor plus 10 basis points. At 31 December 2016, the balance of the cash
poaling accounts receivable and payable amounts to € nil million {2015: € nil million). The interest
income/expense for the year is € nil million (2015: € nil million).

Loans from Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA and BeProcurement Sarl

On 7 March 2013, RTL Group Deutschland GmbH, a Group company, and Bertelsmann SE & Co, KGaA

entered into a shareholder loan agreement pursuant to which Bertelsmann makes available a term loan

facility in the amount of €500 million and a revolving and swingline facility in the amount of up to €1 billion.

The main terms of these facilities are:

8 Term loan facility of €500 million until 7 March 2023 bearing interest at 2.713 per cent per annum;
RTL Group SA has the right to early repay the loan subject 1o break costs. On 23 June 2016, the term loan
facility of €500 million has been transferred from Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA to BeProcurement Sarl
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controlled by Bertelsmann Luxembourg Sar. At 31 December 2016, the term loan balance amounts to
€500 million (2015: €500 million);

» Aevolving loans bear interest at the applicable EURIBOR plus a margin of 0.60 per cent per annum, and
swingline loans bear interest at EONIA plus a margin of 0.60 per cent per annum. A commitment fee of 35
per cent of the applicable margin is payable where for purposes of calculation of the payable commitment
fee the available commitment under the revolving and swingline facilities will be reduced by €200 million.
At 31 December 2016, the total of revolving and swingline toan amounts to €389 million {2015; €542 million).

The interest expense for the period amounts to €15 million (2015: €17 million). The commitment fee charge
for the period amounts to €0.6 million (2015: €0.4 million).

Tax

On 26 June 2008, the Board of Directors of RTL Group agreed to proceed with the tax pooling of its indirect
subsidiary RTL Group Deutschland GmbH (“RGD") into BGH, a direct subsidiary of Bertelsmann SE & Go.
KGaA.

To that effect, RGD entered into a Profit and Loss Pooling Agreement (“PLP Agreement”} with BCH for a six-
year period starting 1 January 2008. Simultaneously, Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA entered into a
Compensation Agreement with CLT-UFA, a direct subsidiary of RTL Group, providing for the payment to CLT-
UFA of an amount compensating the above profit transfer and an additional commission {“Commission"}
amounting to 50 per cent of the tax saving based upon the taxable profit of RGD.

Through these agreements, as from 1 January 2008, Bertelsmann SE & Co, KGaA and the RGD sub-group
of RTL Group are treated as a single entity for German income tax purposes.

As the PLP Agreement does not give any authority to BCH to instruct or control RGD, it affects neither
RTL Group nor RGD's ability to manage their business, including their responsibility to optimise their tax
structures as they deem fit. After six years, both PLP and Compensation Agreements are renewable on a
yearly basis. RGD and CLT-UFA have the right to request the early termination of the PLP and Compensation
Agreements under certain conditions.

On 15 May 2013, the Board of Directors of RTL Group agreed to the amendment of the Compensation
Agreement in fight of the consumption of the trade tax and corporate tax losses at the level of Bertelsmann
SE and Go. KGaA and of the expected level of indebtedness of RTL Group in the future.

The PLP Agreernent was slightly amended in 2014 on the basis of a recent change to German corporate tax law.

In the absence of specific guidance in IFRS, RTL Group has elected to recognise current income taxes
related to the RGD sub-group based on the amounts payable to Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA and BCH as
a result of the PLP and Compensation Agreements described above. Deferred income taxes continue to be
recagnised, based upon the enacted tax rate, in the consolidated financial statements based on the amounts
expected to be settled by the Group in the future. The Commission, being economically and contractually
closely related to the Compensation, is accounted for as a reduction of the tax due under the Agreements.

At 31 December 2016, the balance payable to BCH amounts to €578 million (2015: €583 million) and the
balance receivable from Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA amounts to €423 million (2015: €472 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the German income tax in relation to the tax pooling with Bertelsmann
SE & Co. KGaA amounts to €171 million (2015: €176 million). The Commission amounts ta €16 million {2015:
€65 million). The brought forward income tax losses available for offset were fully consumed at 31 December
2015,

The UK Group relief of FremantleMedia Group to Bertelsmann Greup resulted in a tax income of €2 million
(2015: €2 million).
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All Danish entities under commoen control by an ultimate parent are subject to Danish tax consolidation,
which is mandatory under Danish tax law. Blu A/S, a 100 per cent held subsidiary of RTL Group, was elected
as the management company of the Bertelsmann Denmark Group.

ECNEA Transactions with investments accounted for using the equity method
The following transactions were carried out with investments accounted for using the equity methed:

2018 2010
£€m £m

Solesof goods andservices o:

Associates G
Joint ventures L 55

85 84
Associat{asi . e 8 7 9

Joiﬁt_ven_tL_J(e;:__ 20 .7
28 26

Sales and purchases to and from investments accounted for using the equity method were carried out oh
commercial terms and conditions, and at market prices.

Year-end balances arising from sales and purchases of goods and services are as follows:

2016 205
£m €m

Trade accounts receivable from: y

ASSOCIRIES o, T 16
Jontventures 13
Trade accounts payable to:
Associates 6 3

Transactions with key management personnel
In addition to their salaries, the Group also provides non-cash benefits to the members of the Executive
Committee and contributes to a post-employment defined benefit plan on its behalf.

The key management personnel compensation is as foliows and reflects benefits for the period for which
the individuals held the Executive Committee position:

2016 1y

£m fm

Snort-term benefts T m 82 80
Post-employment benefts I ez o2
Long:{é.fm benefits o oo e o Y o 4.4 V V 44
' ' ' o ' 12,8 126

m Directors’ fees

In 2016, a total of €0.6 million {2015: €0.6 million) was allocated in the form of attendance fees to the non-
executive members of the Board of Directors of RTL Group SA and the committees that emanate from it,
with respect to their functions within RTL Group SA and other Graup companies.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 2 February 2017, UFA Film und Fernseh GmbH entered into an agreement with the contralling
shareholders of Divimove GmbH (“Divimove”) to modify the corporate governance of the company. This
change provided the control to RTL Group and extended the exercise period of the call option over the
remaining 24.5 per cent until the first half of 2019, at the latest. The strike price of the option is based on a
variable component. The transaction qualifies as a business combination since RTL Group gains the control
of Divimove. The amount of the re-measurement to fair value of the pre-existing interest is estimated at €14
million.

On 27 September 2016, Magyar RTL Televizio Zartkérien Mikodo Részvénytarsasag (“RTL Hungary”)
entered into an agreement to acquire 30 per cent stake representing 51 per cent of the voting rights in Central
Digital Media Kft (“Central Digital Media"), one of the leading web publishers in Hungary. Central Digital
Media is operating a number of websites and mobile apps. Central Digital Media is ranked as one of the top
three online media companies in Hungary, based on web analytics. The acquisition, subject to approval by
the Hungarian competition authority, would significantly accelerate the Group's strategy to increase
RTL Hungary's presence in the digital media market. The transaction would qualify as a business combination
since M-RTL would gain control of Central Digital Media. RTL Hungary would also hold call options on the
remaining 70 per cent shares exercisable 18 months after the deal completion. However, in the second part
of February 2017, the Hungarian competition authority decided to refuse its approval of the transaction.
RTL Hungary is currently assessing this decision and possible legal actions.

On 8 March 2017, RTL Group's Board of Directors acknowledged the request from Mrs. Anke Schéterkordt
to resign as Co-CEQ of RTL Group and to step down from the Board of Directors, with effect from the Annual
General Meeting on 19 April 2017. Anke Schaferkordt will continue to be the GEO of Mediengruppe
RTL Deutschland.

It will be proposed at the AGM, to be held at 19 April 2017, that Mr. Bert Habets joins RTL Group’s Board
of Directors as Executive Director with immediate effect. The Board has decided, on 8 March 2017, that
Bert Habets then also becomes Co-CEO of RTL Group. The Board has acknowledged that Bert Habets will
thus be member of the Group’s Executive Committee.
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GROUP UNDERTAKINGS

Group's Co Sroup's Lt Group's Grour §
awnership Jwrership ownershig - OWners~ p L
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RTL GROUP S.A.

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of RTL Group S.A.
and its subsidiaries (the "Group"), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated income statement, statement of
comprehensive income, staternent of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the
year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
infarmation as set out on pages 107 to 203.

Board of Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union, and for such internal control s the Board
of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consclidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermror.

Responsibility of the “Réviseur d’'entreprises agréé”

QOur responsibility is to express an opiniorn on these consolidated financial statements
based on cur audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing as adepted for Luxemlbourg by the "Commission de Surveillance du Secteur
Financier”. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated finangial
staternents are free from material misstatement.

An audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the judgment of the “Réviseur d’entreprises agréé” including the assessment of the
risks of material misstaterment of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the “Réviseur d'entreprises agrés”
cansiders internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinton on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consclidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consclidated financial statements set out on pages 107 to 203 give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as of 31 December
2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consclidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union.

Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director's report and the Corporate Governance
Siaterment bul does not include the consolidated financial statements and our audit
report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consclidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is 10 read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained fn the audit or otherwise appears to be matsrially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard

Other matter

The Corporate Governance Statement includes information required by Article 68bis
paragraph {1} of the law of 19 December 2002 on the commercial and companies register
and on the accounting records and annual accounts of undertakings, as amended.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
The Director’s report, is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and has
been prepared in accordance with the applicable legal requirements.

The information required by Article 68bis paragraph (1} letters ¢) and d) of the law of
19 December 2002 on the commercial and companies register and on the accounting
records and annual accounts of undertakings, as amended and included in the Corporate
Governance Statement is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and has
been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Luxembourg, 8 March 2017

W =

FPricewaterhouseCogpers, Société coopérative
Represaniod ny
Gilles \Vanderweysn Magate Cotrer
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Addressable TV

Technically a form of programmatic TV
{automated ad serving). Major
distinguishing factors are its
household-level and real-time targeting.
Advertisers can buy audiences instead of
programmes.

Advertising market share

The advertising market share of a media
owner; this represents total advertising
sales volume expressed as a percentage
of the sales volume of a given market {for
example the TV advertising market in
Germany).

Advertising sales house

An organisation that sells advertising on
behalf of media owners. Sales houses
include both in-house sales departments
and independent businesses, which
typically retain a percentage of sales
revenues in exchange for their services.

Advertising technology {also: ad tech)
Technological tools to sell advertising in the
digital environment, e.g. with automated
processes, such as programmatic
advertising, or exchanges and market
places. See also pages 22 and 23.

Audience fragmentation

The division of audiences into small
aroups across an increasing number of
media outlets. Audience fragmentation is
characteristic of digitisation and the
associated proliferation of channels, and
can lead to a growth in services catering
to specific interest groups.

Audience share

The percentage of a radio or television
audience that tuned in to a particular
channel or programme during a given
period, out of the total radio or television
audience in the same period.

Brand-building platform

A platform, or medium, which, through its
teach and the range of its viewers or
listeners, enables brand owners and
advertisers to establish and improve the
identity of their brands.
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Broadcasting licence
A licence granting the licensee permission
to broadcast in a given geographical area.

Business-to-business market

A market in which transactions are carried
out between businesses - such as
between a content producer and a
broadcaster — as opposed {0 a business-
to-consumer market, in which transactions
are carried out directly between a business
and the end consumer.

Cable distribution

A system of distributing television
programmes to subscribers through
coaxial cables or fight pulses through fibre
optic cables. Cable distribution as

a means of distributing television signals is
usually part of a free-TV broadcasting
licence.

Cash conversion rate
See note 3 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Cash flow
See note 3 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Cash flow statement
See note 3 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Catch-up service

Usually refers to video-on-demand
services that allow viewers to watch or
listen to programmes at a time chosen by
the consumer after the initial broadcast
(often available for the seven following
days). Many catch-up services also offer
previews and archive content.

Commercial broadcaster {free-to-air)
Usually a privately owned business, active
in television and/or radio broadcasting.
Commercial broadcasters are financed to
a large extent by the sale of advertising.

Commercial target group

A standard estabiished by industry
players, defining the largest common
denominator within the total population,
relevant for advertisers’ demand and
pricing. Commercial target groups can be
defined by age, gender and other
demographic factors.

Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR)
A measure of growth over multiple time
periods. it can be thought of as the growth
rate that gets you from the value at one
point in time to the value at another point
in time if assumed that the investment has
been compounding over the time period.

Connected TV (CTV)
A web-connected television device.

Content production

The creation of original content for
television broadcast, either by the
in-house production department of the
broadcaster or an external production
company. The production of television
formats by a third party production
company takes place either on
commissioning basis, i.e. specifically
ordered by the broadcaster, who owns all
rights on a buy-out basis -orasa
licensing model {the producer owns the
rights and grants limited licence to the
broadcaster).

Content rights

Certain intellectual property rights, given
to an originator of content for the
pratection of original works of authorship,
or to an assignee, to distribute, sell,
broadcast or otherwise expleit an audio-
visual work.

Cantent vertical

A business or brand that aggregates
content around a specific demographic or
interest group.

Convergent currencies

Measurement of audiences across muitiple
platforms, such as TV and online, using a
single metric, to give a combined audience
figure for all viewing, irrespective of
delivery channel.
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Cross-media offers

Advettising products that cover more than
one medium at the same time: for
example, TV and online

Deficit funding modet

A funding model for content production, in
which the broadcaster cornmissions a
production company to produce a show,
and pays a licence fee that daes not fully
cover the costs of production. The
producer funds the deficit in costs in
return for retaining certain rights.

Demand Side Platform (DSP}

A computer-based platform that is part of
the advertising technology {ad tech)
envirgnment, It is used by advertisers or
media agencies to autormate media buying
across multiple sources with unified
targeting, data, optimisation and reporting.

Distribution platform

A system for disseminating media content
such as audio and video, using
infrastructure based on technologies such
as cable, satellite, terrestrial broadcast,
IPTV and the open internst.

Dividend

All shareholders are entitled to the portion
of the net profit distributed by a company
that corresponds to the amount of their
shareholding. This payment is known as a
dividend. The amount of the dividend is
proposed by the Executive Commitee and
approved by the Annual General Meeting.
The dividend depends, among other
things, on the Group’s financial and the
amount of cash earmarked for further
growth cpportunities.

Docu drama / docu soap / docu seres
A genre of radio and television
programming that presents dramatised
re-enactments of actual events in the style
of a documentary.

Glossary

Digital revenue

“Digital” refers to internet-related activities,
excluding online sales of merchandise
(“e-commerce”}. Digital revenue
encormpasses the different categories of
revenue, for example gther advertising
sales, the production/distribution of fims,
programmes and other rights and the
professional services. To summatise:
unlike some competitors, RTL Group only
recognises pure digital businesses in this
category/revenue stream and does not
consider e-commerce, home shopping
and platform revenue as part of its digital
revenue.

Digital Video Ad

An Ad that is displayed online, through a
web browser or browser-equivalent based
internet activity that involves streaming
video.

oTT

Digital terrestiial television (DTT) is a
distribution sysiem that broadcasts digitat
TV signals 'over-the-air' frorm a ground-
based transmitter to a receiving antenna
attached to a digital receiver.

EBIT
See note 3 to the Consalidated Financial
Statements.

EBITA
See note 3 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

EBITDA
See note 3 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

E-commerce

The buying and selling of products or
services aver electronic systems such as
the internet and other computer networks.

Flat rate subscription

A payment model for premium services
that can be accessed during a specified
period of time, in exchange for a recurnng
fixed fee, regardiess of the quantity and/or
length of usage in that same time period
(see also SVOD),
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Format

Describes the overall concept, premise
and branding of a copyrighted television
programme. A format can be licensed by
TV channels, so that they may produce a
version of the show tailored to their
nationality and audience.

Free float

The number of shares in a company that
are not owned by major shareholders but
owned by many different sharehoiders and
can therefore be traded freely in the capital
market.

Game show

A radio or television programming genre in
which contestants, television personalities
and/or celebrities, play garmes that involve
answering guestions or solving specific
tasks usually for money and/ar prizes.

HbbTV

Hybrid broadcast broadband television
{HbbTV) is an industry technology
standard for combining broadcast TV
services with services delivered via the
internet on connected TVs and set-top
boxes.

HDTV

High-definition television {(HDTV} is both a
type of television that provides better
resolution than standard definition
television, and a digita! TV broadcasting
format that enables the broadcast of
pictures with more detail and quality than
standard definition.

Impression

The number ot times a user is shown a
video or ad - in other words, the number
of chances they have {0 see the ad. The
user doesn’'t need to interact with the
video or ad for it to count as an
impression. Impressions are commonly
accepted as a billing standard for video
ads running across all types of content, Ad
campaigns are usually measured in terms
of number of impressions.
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PTV

Internet protocol television (IPTV) is the
term used for television and/or video
signals that are delivered to subscribers or
viewers using internet protocol, the
technology used to access the internet.
KPI

Key Performance Indicator (KPI) is a type
of performance measurement. See note 3
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Linear TV

The pravision or viewing of television
programmes in a fixed time sequence
according to a given schedule.

Long-form video content

A descriptive term for a type of videa
content that has a beginning, middle and
end, and which typically lasts longer than
10 minutes in total. If the content is ad
supported, it typically contains breaks
{mid-roil).

LTIP

Long-term ingentive plan {(“LTIP"). See
note 7.3.1. to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Market capitalisation

Value of a listed company determined by
multiplying the market price of a stock (on
a given date or average) with the number
of outstanding shares.

MDAX

The MDAX is a stock index which lists
companies listed in Germany. The index
reflects the price development of the 50
largest companies from the Prime
Standard segment of Deutsche Borse
excluding technology sector which rank
below the DAX index. The composition of
the index is reviewed on a semi-annual
basis and adjusted in March and
September. The criteria for weighting the
shares in the index are: trading volume
and market capitalisation on the basis of
the number of shares in free float, as well
as position in the respective sector.
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Multi-channel network

Multi-channel networks (MCNs) are service
providers that affiliate with multiple
channels on a given platform such as
YouTube to offer services that may include
audience development, content
programming, creator collaborations,
digital rights management, monetisation,
and/or sales. They offer these services in
exchange for a share of revenue.

Net debt to EBITDA ratio
See note 3 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Net financial debt
See note 3 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

NOPAT
See note 3 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Non-linear content

Content that is provided and/or viewed on
demand, outside of a linear broadcast
schedule.

Online advertising

A form of advertising that uses the internet
to deliver marketing messages to an
audience of ontine users.

Online display advertising

A form of online advertising in which an
advertiser's message is shown on a web
page in a variety of formats — both in-page
{e.g. banner ads} and in-stream (e.g.
overlay banners} - which use various
techniques to enhance the visual appeal of
the advertising, as opposed to online
classified and search advertising.

Originai content

Content that is produced specifically for a
certain distribution platform {e.g. TV) and
shown for the first time on that platform,

OoTT

Qver-the-top (CTT) is a term for the delivery
of content or services over the open
internet rather than via a managed network.

Cverlaying

The superimposition of cantent {(such as
text, graphics, video) on a TV programme
or advertisement shown on a TV screen.

Pay-TV

A commercial service that broadcasts or
provides television programmes to viewers
in exchange for a monthly charge or per-
programme fee,

Phasing effect

Financial effects (positive or negative) on
revenue or profit over a period longer than
the reporting period, resulting from the
time difference between allocation of costs
and return of investment.

Playtist start
The number of times a playlist — including
video ¢content and ads - is started.

Prime time

That part of a broadeaster's proagramming
schedule that attracts the most viewers
and is therefore the most relevant in terms
of advertising. The start and end time of
prime time is typically determined by the
medium (e.g. radio or television) and
defined by the industry in each market,
and can therefore vary from one country to
another.

Programme format
See "format” above.

Public broadcaster

A publicly owned company, active in
television and/or radio broadcast, whose
primary mission is often public service
related. Public broadcasters may receive
funding from diverse sources including
license fees, individual contributions,
public financing and advertising.

Real time bidding (RTB)

The means by which ad inventory is
bought and sold on a per-impression
basis, via programmatic instantaneous
auction, similar to financial markets.

RVA

"RTL value-added” is a RTL Group specific
measure of shareholder value creation
based on economic value added. See note
3 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Sales house
See “advertising sales house”.
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Second screen

An elecironic device such as a tablet or
smartphone that is used simuitaneously
with television consumption. Second
screen applications may allow audiences
to access additional content and services
related to the breadcast programme, or to
interact with the content consurmed
through the primary screen.

Short-form video

A descriptive term for a type of video
content that lacks a content arc, and
which typically lasts less than 10 minutes
in total.

Supply side platform (SSP)

An advertising technology platform that
represents inventory {for example through
publishers), and its availability. An SSP
allows many of the world’s larger web
publishers to automate and optimise the
selling of their online media space.

Sycos

RTL Group's synergy committees (Sycos)
are comprised of executives and experts
from each segrment and from the
Corporate Centre and meet regularly to
discuss topics such as programming,
news, radio, advertising sales and new
media. While each segment makes its own
management decisions, it is free to draw
on the understanding and expertise of
other RTL Group companies to replicate
successes and share ideas. The Sycos are
coordinated by RTL Group's Corporate
Strategy team.

Terrestrial broadcasting TV

A system to disseminate audio-visual
content in the form of radio waves over the
air from a ground-based transmitter to a
receiving antenna.

Time-shifted viewing / consumpticn
The viewing of programming recorded to a
storage medium {e.g. personal videg
recarder), at a time more convenient to the
viewer than the scheduled linear
broadcast.

TV household
A household equipped with at least one TV
set,

Glossary

Underlying revenue
Revenue adjusted for scope changes and
at constant exchange rates.

Unigue user

A metric that seeks to count as individuals,
visitors who visit a website more than once
in a given period of time.

Vertical network

A business that aggregates muitiple
content publishers into themed content
vetticals for which it may offer centralised
advertising sales services.

Video view

The number of times a video has been
viewed. Technology vendors may use the
metnc ‘creative view' to help track which
technical version of an ad was played in a
particular environment, but that metric is
used for technological analysis and not for
measuring user engagement. Often
confused with impression.

VOD/video-on-demand

A service that enables viewers to watch

video content when they choose to,

outside of any linear schedule.

= AVOD - advertising-funded VOD
A typical example includes catch-up
services from TV channels that allow free
access to video content seven days after
the broadcast, funded by advertising.

= SVOD - subscription-funded VOD
A VOD service that is financed by
subscription fees. See also flat rate
subscription.

= TVOD - transaction-funded VOD
A VOD service that is financed on single
transactions per view or caontent iterm.
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